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INTRODUCTION AND USE OF CERTAIN TERMS

     TeliaSonera AB is a public limited liability company incorporated under the laws of Sweden. TeliaSonera was created as a result of the
merger of Telia AB and Sonera Corporation in December 2002. On March 26, 2002, Telia and Sonera entered into a combination agreement in
which the two companies agreed to merge. To effect the merger, Telia made an offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Sonera in
exchange for Telia shares. In the exchange offer, which was completed on December 9, 2002, Telia acquired approximately 95.0 percent of the
share capital of Sonera. Upon completion of the exchange offer, Telia changed its name to TeliaSonera. In February 2003, TeliaSonera
completed a mandatory redemption offer under Finnish law for all of the remaining shares of Sonera. At the completion of the mandatory
redemption offer, TeliaSonera held approximately 99.4 percent of the share capital of Sonera on a fully diluted basis. In addition, in December
2002, TeliaSonera commenced a separate compulsory acquisition proceeding under Finnish law pursuant to which the remaining holders of
Sonera shares were required to surrender their remaining Sonera shares to TeliaSonera for redemption at a fair price as determined under Finnish
law. As required under Finnish law, an arbitral panel was appointed to hear and resolve any disputes concerning TeliaSonera�s right of
redemption and the redemption price in the compulsory acquisition proceeding. On March 20, 2003, at the request of the arbitral panel,
TeliaSonera issued a counter-indemnity for a bank guarantee for the payment of the redemption price plus accrued interest with respect to all
outstanding Sonera shares not held by TeliaSonera. According to Finnish law, as a result of the arbitral panel�s acceptance of the bank guarantee
as security for the payment of the redemption price plus accrued interest, TeliaSonera became the sole record and beneficial owner of Sonera�s
shares. On June 26, 2003, the arbitral panel determined that the redemption price for the remaining Sonera shares would be �5.78 plus accrued
interest at the rate of five percent per annum from March 21, 2003. It is estimated that the redemption price for the remaining Sonera shares will
be paid no later than September 2003.

     Unless the context otherwise requires, as used in this annual report, (i) the terms �Group,� �Company,� �we,� �our,� �TeliaSonera� and �us� refer to
TeliaSonera AB or TeliaSonera AB together with its subsidiaries depending upon the context; (ii) the term �Telia� refers to Telia AB or to Telia
AB together with its subsidiaries depending upon the context, prior to the completion of the exchange offer on December 9, 2002, and its
subsequent name change to TeliaSonera and the merger of Telia and Sonera Corporation; and (iii) the term �Sonera,� refers to Sonera Corporation
or to Sonera Corporation together with its subsidiaries depending upon the context, prior to the completion of the exchange offer on December 9,
2002, and the merger of Telia and Sonera.

     TeliaSonera AB publishes its consolidated financial statements in Swedish kronor. This annual report contains TeliaSonera�s audited
consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, which have been prepared in accordance
with International Accounting Standards, or IAS. IAS differ in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, or U.S. GAAP. For a discussion of the principal differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP relevant to TeliaSonera, together with a
reconciliation of net income and shareholders� equity reported under IAS to net income and shareholders� equity under U.S. GAAP, see Note 45
to TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements.

     The financial statements of TeliaSonera included in this annual report include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic subsidiaries UAB
Omnitel, AB Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons SIA as from December 3, 2002, the date at which each of these entities
became consolidated subsidiaries of TeliaSonera.

     This annual report also contains audited consolidated financial statements for Netia Holdings S.A., a company in which we held a significant
interest until February 2003, as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 and for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002.

     For information purposes only, we have also included as Annex A to this annual report Sonera�s audited consolidated financial statements as
of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, which have been prepared in accordance with Finnish generally accepted
accounting principles, or Finnish GAAP.

     References in this annual report to �Swedish krona,� �Swedish kronor� and �SEK� are to the currency of Sweden. References to �euro,� �euros,� ��� or
�EUR� are to the currency of the European Union�s Economic and Monetary Union. References in this annual report to �U.S. dollar,� �$� and �USD�
mean the currency of the United States of America.

     In this annual report, unless otherwise stated, Swedish krona have been translated, solely for convenience, into U.S. dollars using the noon
buying rate in New York City for cable transfers in Swedish krona, as certified

-iii-
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for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York (the �Noon Buying Rate�), on May 30, 2003, which was SEK 7.7654 per $1.00
(SEK 1.00 per $0.1288). On June 25, 2003, the Noon Buying Rate for the Swedish krona was SEK 7.9100 per $1.00 (SEK 1.00 per $0.1264).
These translations should not be construed as a representation that the U.S. dollar amounts actually represent, or could be converted into,
Swedish kronor at the rates indicated.

     References in this annual report to �Nordic countries� are to Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden. References to the �Baltic States,� the �Baltic
countries� or �Baltic region� are to Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

     This annual report contains forward-looking statements. Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs and
expectations, are forward-looking statements and can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology such as the words �believe,� �expect,�
�seek,� �plan,� �intend,� �anticipate,� �estimate,� or �predict.� These statements are based on current plans, estimates and projections, and, therefore, the
reader should not place too much reliance on them. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties. A number of important
factors could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement. These factors include,
but are not limited to, the following:

� risks and uncertainties with respect to our expectations about the recent merger of Telia and Sonera, including:

� earnings improvement,

� cost and capital expenditure savings,

� expenses related to the merger,

� the success of the integration of the two companies, and

� other benefits anticipated from the merger;

� the level of demand for telecommunications services, particularly with respect to mobile services and new, higher value-added
products;

� regulatory developments and changes, including with respect to the levels of tariffs, the terms of interconnection, customer access
and issues related to national roaming;

� the outcome of legal and regulatory proceedings in which we are involved or may become involved;

� the effects of competition;

� technological innovations, including the cost of developing new products and the need to increase expenditures to improve the
quality of service;

� the timing and effect of the roll-out of Universal Mobile Telecommunications System (UMTS) networks and other new, enhanced
or upgraded networks, systems, products and services, and their performance;

� the success of our international investments;

� the amounts of future capital expenditures;

� the effects of potential mergers and consolidations within the telecommunications industry, our ability to complete planned
divestitures and the costs associated with possible future acquisitions and dispositions;

� uncertainties associated with developments related to fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, currency devaluations and
other macroeconomic monetary policies;

� other economic, business, competitive and/or regulatory factors affecting our business generally, including factors affecting the
market for telecommunications services; and
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� other factors that are described under �Item 3.D Risk Factors.�
     TeliaSonera is under no obligation to, and expressly disclaims any such obligation to, update or alter its forward-looking statements, whether
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

-iv-

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 10



Table of Contents

PART I

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISERS

     Not applicable.

ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE

     Not applicable.

ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION

3.A Selected Financial Data
Selected Consolidated Financial Data

     The financial data set forth below as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 have been derived from TeliaSonera�s
audited consolidated financial statements included in Item 18 of this annual report. Financial data as of and for the years ended December 31,
1999 and 1998 have been derived from TeliaSonera�s previously published audited consolidated financial statements not included in this
document. The financial data is based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic subsidiaries
Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     The audited consolidated financial statements, from which the selected consolidated financial data set forth below have been derived, have
been prepared in accordance with IAS. For a discussion of the principal differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP relevant to TeliaSonera,
together with a reconciliation of net income and shareholders� equity reported under IAS to net income and shareholders� equity under U.S.
GAAP, see Note 45 to TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements.

     You should read the following selected consolidated financial data in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of TeliaSonera
and �Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects,� each included elsewhere in this annual report.

     Solely for the convenience of the reader, Swedish krona amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of SEK 1.00 = $0.1288
($1.00 = SEK 7.7654), the Noon Buying Rate for the Swedish krona on May 30, 2003. On June 25, 2003, the Noon Buying Rate for the Swedish
krona was SEK 1.00 = $0.1264 ($1.00 = SEK 7.9100).

Year ended December 31,

2002 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

($) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK)
(in millions, except per share/ADS data)

INCOME STATEMENT DATA
IAS
Net sales 7,660 59,483 57,196 54,064 52,121 49,569
Costs of production (4,917) (38,182) (40,435) (33,028) (31,206) (30,988)
Gross income 2,743 21,301 16,761 21,036 20,915 18,581
Sales, administrative, and research
and development expenses (2,404) (18,667) (17,943) (16,326) (14,887) (15,045)
Other operating revenues and
expenses, net (1,810) (14,057) 506 8,493 (805) 4,388
Income from associated companies 68 528 6,136 (1,197) 723 (704)
Operating income (1,403) (10,895) 5,460 12,006 5,946 7,220
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Financial net (93) (721) (652) (289) 34 (77)
Income after financial items (1,496) (11,616) 4,808 11,717 5,980 7,143
Income taxes 466 3,619 (2,917) (1,447) (1,754) (2,092)
Minority interests (9) (70) (22) 8 (4) (40)
Net income (loss) (1,039) (8,067) 1,869 10,278 4,222 5,011
Earnings (loss) per share

Basic (0.33) (2.58) 0.62 3.50 1.48 1.76
Diluted (0.33) (2.58) 0.62 3.50 1.48 1.76

Cash dividend per share(1) 0.05 0.40 0.20 0.50 0.52 0.49
Earnings (loss) per ADS(2)

Basic (1.66) (12.91) 3.11 17.52 7.40 8.79
Diluted (1.66) (12.91) 3.11 17.52 7.40 8.79

Cash dividend per ADS(1)(2) 0.26 2.00 1.00 2.50 2.60 2.45

1
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Year ended December 31,

2002 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

($) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK)
(in millions, except share and per share/ADS data)

Operating margin (%)(3) (18.3) (18.3) 9.5 22.2 11.4 14.6
Net profit margin (%)(4) (13.6) (13.6) 3.3 19.0 8.1 10.1
U.S. GAAP
Net sales 7,641 59,336 56,957 53,849 51,931 49,389
Net income (1,127) (8,755) 4,443 9,991 4,218 3,600
Earnings (loss) per share
Basic (0.36) (2.80) 1.48 3.41 1.48 1.26
Diluted (0.36) (2.80) 1.48 3.41 1.48 1.26

Earnings (loss) per ADS(2)
Basic (1.80) (14.01) 7.40 17.03 7.40 6.31
Diluted (1.80) (14.01) 7.40 17.03 7.40 6.31

Weighted average number of
shares outstanding (in
thousands)
Basic 3,124,289 3,124,289 3,001,200 2,932,757 2,851,200 2,851,200
Diluted 3,125,314 3,125,314 3,001,200 2,932,757 2,851,200 2,851,200

CASH FLOW DATA
IAS
Cash flow from operating
activities 1,603 12,449 10,416 10,152 10,715 10,301
Cash flow from investing
activities (715) (5,553) 3,632 (37,121) (10,701) (8,967)
Cash flow from financing
activities (1,332) (10,344) (6,608) 26,818 1,005 (2,301)
Cash flow for the year (444) (3,448) 7,440 (151) 1,019 (967)

At December 31,

2002 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

($) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK) (SEK)
(in millions, except financial ratios)

BALANCE SHEET DATA
IAS
Intangible fixed assets 8,770 68,106 26,816 25,198 2,146 1,844
Tangible fixed assets 7,234 56,172 47,314 43,807 33,318 34,801
Financial fixed assets 6,250 48,534 20,784 22,335 18,023 12,553
Current assets 4,358 33,844 33,277 31,375 23,117 18,080

Total assets 26,612 206,656 128,191 122,715 76,604 67,278
Shareholder�s equity 14,014 108,829 59,885 55,988 32,893 29,344
Minority interests 659 5,120 204 320 210 210
Provisions 2,370 18,406 13,107 11,351 10,488 7,735
Long-term debt 4,137 32,124 25,193 20,876 9,123 6,491
Current debt 1,624 12,608 3,931 13,166 6,934 7,062
Non-interest-bearing liabilities 3,808 29,569 25,871 21,014 16,956 16,436

Total equity and liabilities 26,612 206,656 128,191 122,715 76,604 67,278
Capital employed(5) 20,222 157,035 90,971 92,374 50,936 43,440
Operating capital(6) 17,657 137,113 70,150 75,042 39,160 34,921
Net debt (7) 4,903 38,075 20,004 32,512 14,280 12,870
Net interest-bearing liability(8) 3,224 25,034 10,661 20,235 7,527 6,767
U.S. GAAP
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Total assets 28,004 217,464 132,495 123,689 77,974 68,598
Shareholders� equity 14,200 110,269 58,589 51,870 29,168 25,575
RATIOS
IAS
Debt/equity ratio (multiple)(9) 0.23 0.23 0.18 0.37 0.24 0.24
Equity/assets ratio (%)(10) 51.8 51.8 46.2 44.4 41.0 41.5

(1) Dividends are declared and paid annually on the basis of income and retained earnings as of the end of the preceding year.
(2) Each American Depositary Share (ADS) represents five TeliaSonera shares.
(3) Operating margin is operating income expressed as a percentage of net sales.
(4) Net profit margin is net income expressed as a percentage of net sales.
(5) Capital employed is total assets less non-interest-bearing liabilities and non-interest-bearing provisions, and the proposed dividend.
(6) Operating capital is non-interest-bearing assets less non-interest-bearing liabilities and non-interest-bearing provisions.
(7) Net debt is interest-bearing liabilities less short-term investments and cash and bank deposits.
(8) Net interest-bearing liability is interest-bearing liabilities and provisions less interest-bearing assets, and less long-term investments in

less than 20-percent-held securities.
(9) Debt/equity ratio is net interest-bearing liability divided by equity (less the proposed dividend).
(10) Equity/assets ratio is equity (less the proposed dividend) expressed as a percentage of total assets.

2
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Currency and Exchange Rate Information

     TeliaSonera presents its financial statements in Swedish kronor. A significant portion of TeliaSonera�s revenues and expenses is denominated
in Swedish kronor and a portion is denominated in currencies other than the Swedish krona. The table below sets forth, for the periods and dates
indicated, the average, high, low and period-end Noon Buying Rates for the Swedish krona expressed in Swedish kronor per U.S. dollar.

     Other than for the monthly information, the average Noon Buying Rates have been calculated based on the Noon Buying Rate for the last
business day of each month during the relevant period. This information is being provided to you for your convenience. These are not
necessarily the rates that were used in the preparation of TeliaSonera�s financial statements and we do not make any representation that Swedish
kronor could have been converted into U.S. dollars at the rates shown or at any other rate for such periods or at such dates.

     Solely for the convenience of the reader, certain Swedish krona amounts in this annual report have been translated into U.S. dollars at the
Noon Buying Rate on May 30, 2003, which was $1.00 = SEK 7.7654.

Swedish Krona Exchange Rate

Period
Year Average High Low End

(Swedish Kronor per U.S. Dollar)
1997 7.6843 8.0825 6.8749 7.9400
1998 7.9658 8.3350 7.5800 8.1030
1999 8.3007 8.6500 7.7060 8.5050
2000 9.1735 10.3600 8.3530 9.4440
2001 10.3425 11.0270 9.3250 10.4571
2002 9.6571 10.7290 8.6950 8.6950
December 2002 8.9303 9.0750 8.6950 8.6950
2003
First Quarter 8.5308 8.7920 8.3650 8.4735
January 8.6368 8.7920 8.4750 8.6140
February 8.4837 8.5650 8.4100 8.5050
March 8.5440 8.7030 8.3650 8.4735
Second Quarter (through June 25) 7.9485 8.6425 7.6710 7.9100
April 8.4314 8.6425 8.1700 8.1700
May 7.9213 8.1470 7.7479 7.7654
June (through June 25) 7.7772 7.9620 7.6710 7.9100

3.B Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

3.C Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.

3.D Risk Factors
     Set forth below is a description of factors that may affect our business, results of operations and share price from time to time.

TeliaSonera may have difficulty integrating the large and complex businesses of Telia and Sonera and realizing the anticipated benefits of
the merger.

     The integration process of Telia and Sonera is still in its early stages. We may face difficulties integrating our businesses, operations and
personnel in a timely and efficient manner. As a result, we may not be able to achieve the expected synergies and other benefits of the merger or
may not be able to achieve them within the expected timescale. Members of our management team may also have difficulty adjusting to the
corporate governance structure of the combined company and implementing the combined company�s strategy. We may

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 15



3

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 16



Table of Contents

experience disruption in our employee base as a result of uncertainty caused by the merger. Our competitors may also seek to take advantage of
potential integration problems to gain customers. There can be no assurance that the above factors or other integration issues will not result in a
delay or a reduction in achieving the total annual cost and capital expenditure synergy benefits that we expect to derive from the merger.

Our revenues and profitability could decline if the growth in the Nordic telecommunications markets slows.

     The telecommunications industry in the Nordic countries is currently well developed relative to most other European countries. In particular,
each of Denmark, Finland, Norway and Sweden has among the highest mobile penetration rates and lowest mobile calling tariffs in the world.
The high penetration rate in the Nordic countries will make it more difficult for us to match our previous subscriber growth. In addition,
economic growth in the Nordic countries has slowed considerably since the beginning of 2001, causing a decrease in the growth of customer
demand for telecommunications services. These trends may result in our recording slower revenue growth than we have achieved in the past or
recording flat or declining revenues in these markets.

Increased competition in the Nordic mobile and fixed network communications markets may result in decreased prices, loss of market share
or inability to gain market share. We also expect to experience increased competition in the Baltic markets and the international markets
where we have operations.

     We operate primarily in the highly competitive Nordic telecommunications market. As competition continues to intensify, our mobile, fixed
network and Internet and data services businesses may lose market share or fail to gain market share and be forced to reduce tariffs.

     Currently, we face strong competition in the mobile telecommunications market in Sweden from Vodafone Group PLC and Tele2 AB
(Comviq). In Finland, we face strong competition from Oy Radiolinja Ab, a subsidiary of Elisa Communications Corporation, which has
recently entered into an extensive partner agreement with Vodafone, as well as from DNA Finland Ltd. In Norway, we face strong competition
from the incumbent operator Telenor ASA and, in Denmark, we face strong competition from the incumbent operator TDC A/S, which also has
entered into a partner agreement with Vodafone, as well as Tele2 and Sonofon A/S, which is majority owned by Telenor. In addition, the
commercial introduction in each of the Nordic countries of third generation mobile services will open the Nordic telecommunications market to
even more competition. We also expect to experience increased competition from non-traditional operators, including Mobile Virtual Network
Operators (MVNOs), which are telecommunications service providers that typically do not own their own network infrastructure but rather lease
capacity from network operators.

     In the Nordic fixed line market, we expect that competition from operators such as Song Networks Oy, Utfors AB, Elisa Communications,
TDC, Telenor and Tele2 will increase, resulting in further reductions of tariffs. With the continuation of the trend of traditional users of fixed
network services switching to mobile phone usage, a trend sometimes referred to as fixed-mobile substitution, our fixed network businesses are
also expected to face increased competition from mobile operators. Moreover, new forms of telecommunications that do not use conventional
tariff structures, such as Internet telecommunications, are expected to increase the sources of competition that we will face. In the Nordic
Internet communications market, we expect to face increased competition from large Nordic and European Internet service providers such as
Tele2, Finnet Oy, Utfors, Elisa Communications, Sonofon, Telenor, TDC, Spray Network AB and Tiscali S.p.A.

     In the Baltic region, we already experience strong competition from rival GSM operators and expect that both our mobile and fixed line
operations will lose market share as regulation favoring competition is adopted in line with European Union directives. The anticipated grant of
additional GSM licenses in Turkey, Russia and the former Soviet states in which Fintur Holdings B.V., a holding company through which we
maintain our interest in mobile operations in certain Eurasian countries, operates is also expected to increase competition in those markets.

We operate in a highly regulated industry and changes in, or adverse applications of, the regulations affecting us could harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

     Our fixed line network and mobile telecommunications operations are subject to regulatory and licensing requirements, either at the national
level or at transnational level, such as by the European Union. Implementation and application of these regulations are undertaken by one or
more regulatory and competition authorities which, in their discretion, may challenge our compliance with the regulations. If we are found not to
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have complied with any regulations, we may be subject to damage awards, fines, penalties, injunctions or suspensions.

     The regulations we are subject to impose significant limits on our flexibility to manage our business. For example, in both Sweden and
Finland, we have been designated as a party with significant market power in certain markets in which we operate, including the fixed and
mobile telecommunications markets. In Norway, NetCom, our wholly owned subsidiary, has been designated by the Norwegian Post and
Telecommunications Authority (NPT) as an operator with significant market power in the mobile telecommunications market for
interconnection. As a result, we are required to provide certain services on non-discriminatory, cost-based and transparent terms, which may
differ from the terms on which we would otherwise have provided those services. Although we are appealing our designation as a mobile
operator with significant market power on the Swedish and Norwegian national markets for interconnection, there can be no assurance that the
final outcome of the proceedings will be in our favor. In addition, the legislatures in the Baltic countries are revising their telecommunications
legislations in anticipation of their entry into the European Union. We cannot assure you that we will not be subject to additional obligations
relating to the services we provide in those countries as a result of such changes.

     Changes in legislation, regulation or government policy affecting our business activities, as well as decisions by competition and other
regulatory authorities or courts, including granting, amending or revoking of licenses to us or other parties, could harm our business, financial
condition and results or operations. For example, both Sweden and Finland have adopted new laws that will significantly revise
telecommunications regulation in Sweden and Finland. In Finland, for example, mobile operators must begin offering number portability by July
2003. These changes may result in additional legal obligations for us which may have a considerable adverse impact upon our business.
However, we are currently not in a position to assess the full impact of these changes on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

     For further information regarding the regulatory regimes to which our business is subject, see �Item 4.B Business Overview�Regulation.�

Changes in markets and our business plans have resulted and may in the future result in substantial write-downs of the carrying value of
our assets and may affect our ability to pay dividends.

     Our regular review of the carrying value of our intangible and other assets has resulted in significant impairments and we may in the future be
required to recognize additional impairment charges. In 2002, Telia recognized substantial impairment charges related primarily to its
international carrier operations and Sonera recognized substantial impairment charges related primarily to its international UMTS investments.
Such charges were based on changes in expectations of future cash flows attributable to those assets. Events in the telecommunications and
technology markets, including significant declines in stock prices and market capitalizations of market participants, and negative changes in the
economic, regulatory, business or political environment, as well as our ongoing review and refinement of our business plans may result in
substantial write-downs of our assets in the future. In particular, we will periodically review the carrying value of assets such as the goodwill and
fair value adjustments we recorded in connection with the Telia-Sonera merger in 2002 as well as assets such as the goodwill we recorded in
connection with our acquisition of NetCom in 2000, our tangible fixed assets and our minority interests in companies such as Infonet Services
Corp., and may in the future be required to recognize impairment charges with respect to these assets.

     Such potential write-downs may adversely affect our ability to pay dividends. Under Swedish law, the amount of dividends that we may pay
is generally limited to profits and other non-restricted reserves available at the end of the preceding fiscal year for our parent company or for the
consolidated group, whichever is lower. As of December 31, 2002, we had consolidated non-restricted reserves of SEK 17.1 billion and our
parent company had non-restricted reserves of SEK 21.8 billion. Any write-down of intangible or other assets will have the effect of reducing, or
possibly eliminating, our non-restricted reserves that are available to pay dividends.

The restructuring initiatives we have undertaken recently may not result in expected improvements in the restructured operations. In
addition, the restructuring charges we have made may prove to be insufficient.

     We have recently undertaken a number of restructuring and streamlining initiatives, including the restructuring of our Danish fixed network
operations and the restructuring of our international carrier operations. These initiatives resulted in substantial restructuring charges in 2002,
including a charge of SEK 486 million
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related to our Danish fixed network operations and a charge of SEK 3.9 billion related to the restructuring of our international carrier operations.
The restructuring efforts in Denmark and the restructuring program for our international carrier operations are both ongoing. See �Item 5A
Operating Results�Restructuring Costs.� Although we believe that such restructuring efforts will have a positive impact on the results of the
restructured operations, there can be no assurance that those businesses will become profitable in the future. In addition, the restructuring
charges we have recorded may prove to be insufficient, and any additional restructuring charges we may be required to incur may have an
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We expect to make substantial investments in the construction of UMTS networks and development of services based on UMTS technology.
The market for UMTS products and services is uncertain and we may not generate a sufficient return on our investments.

     We have made large investments in UMTS licenses and have invested and expect to invest substantial amounts over the next several years in
the upgrading and expansion of our network to support UMTS services and the roll-out of UMTS services. The success of our UMTS
investments will depend to a large extent on the acceptance of UMTS technology as a mobile telecommunications standard, the availability of
services based on UMTS technology that will be attractive enough to customers to generate sufficient traffic volume, the costs associated with
such services and the timing of the introduction of such services. We cannot be certain that UMTS services will achieve acceptance in the
market, or that the demand for such services will justify the related costs. Ongoing costs will include the costs of upgrading, expanding and
maintaining our networks to support UMTS services, the costs of promoting UMTS services through advertising and other promotional
measures, and the costs of purchasing content for UMTS-based services. In addition, any delays in providing UMTS services, whether due to
problems associated with suppliers of UMTS networks, difficulties in network construction, the unavailability of adequate UMTS-compatible
handsets in sufficient supply, the lack of marketable services or otherwise could adversely affect the level or timing of revenues generated by
UMTS services.

     Moreover, a variety of new entrants in the third generation market could intensify competition and reduce the potential profitability of
providing third generation services. Possible new entrants include MVNOs, which typically do not have their own network infrastructure and
thus would not have our fixed cost burdens. Competition from companies providing Wireless Local Area Network (WLAN) services, which are
based on wireless short distance transmission networks, can deliver wireless data services at a lower cost than UMTS in concentrated areas, may
also affect the market and pricing for third generation services. In addition, operators utilizing UMTS technology may face competition from
other operators using other technological standards to deliver third generation services.

     Under the terms of our UMTS licenses and the licenses of our international UMTS joint ventures, we have agreed to make significant
investments in UMTS networks. If we or our international joint ventures cannot fulfill the conditions under such UMTS licenses or obtain their
modification, such licenses could be revoked or, in certain cases, we could be subject to monetary penalties.

     In addition, we have assumed ongoing financial obligations in connection with our investments in Xfera Moviles S.A., our UMTS joint
venture in Spain. We currently anticipate being obligated to contribute an additional �226 million to fund Xfera�s business plan. We have also
provided counter-guarantees relating to the fulfillment of Xfera�s commitments in connection with its UMTS license in the original amount of
�387 million, but which we expect, based on a decision announced by the Spanish government to reduce the amount of the guarantees supporting
Xfera�s performance guarantee, to be reduced to an amount below �100 million. Xfera�s board of directors has decided to significantly curtail
Xfera�s operating and capital expenditures until the necessary UMTS technology becomes commercially available for Xfera to launch
commercial UMTS services or Xfera receives the necessary license and spectrum allocation to launch GSM/GPRS services. As a new entrant in
the market, without an existing customer base and without an existing network, we cannot give any assurance that Xfera will be able to develop
into a viable business, or that it will not require additional funding beyond that expected in its current business plans.

     We are also reliant upon certain suppliers, of which there are a limited number, to manufacture and supply network equipment and related
software as well as handsets in our markets to allow us to develop our UMTS networks and to offer UMTS services on a commercial basis. We
cannot be certain that we will be able to obtain network equipment or handsets from alternative suppliers on a timely basis if our existing
suppliers are unable to satisfy our requirements.
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Our cooperation with Tele2 in connection with the build out and operation of a UMTS network in Sweden may not be successful.

     We plan to offer UMTS applications and services in the Nordic region. While we were not awarded a UMTS license in Sweden in connection
with a license tender held by the Kingdom of Sweden in 2000, we have entered into a cooperation arrangement with Tele2 to build and operate a
UMTS network in Sweden to exploit, through the joint venture Svenska UMTS-nät AB, the Swedish UMTS license originally granted to Tele2.
TeliaSonera and Tele2 are significant competitors in both the mobile and fixed line telecommunications market in Sweden. As in any joint
venture, there is a risk that the partners may disagree on important aspects of the venture, including the funding of the venture, and this risk may
be magnified when the partners are competitors. A disagreement or deadlock regarding the joint venture or a breach by one of the parties of the
material provisions of the joint venture arrangements would result in a setback to the joint venture�s goal of building out and operating a UMTS
network in Sweden, which, in turn, would have a negative effect on our ability to pursue our UMTS strategy. In addition, the joint venture will
be subject to review by the Swedish Competition Authority in 2007 after the current exemption from the prohibition against anti-competitive
agreements included in the Swedish Competition Act will expire. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the Swedish Competition
Authority will not in the future revoke or restrict the exemption granted to the joint venture, which could have a material adverse effect upon the
joint venture and our operations.

     In addition, we have made an aggregate capital contribution of SEK 501 million to the joint venture and have issued a guarantee of SEK
5.5 billion in favor of Svenska UMTS-nät. We have also pledged our interest in Svenska UMTS-nät to the joint venture�s lenders. If Svenska
UMTS-nät is unsuccessful, whether due to the failure of UMTS services to achieve market acceptance, the joint venture�s inability to build out
the network in a timely fashion, disagreements between the parties or otherwise, we may face significant financial exposure with respect to our
UMTS joint venture in Sweden.

As part of our strategy, we may seek to participate in the ongoing consolidation of the telecommunications industry through acquisitions,
strategic alliances or business combinations. The failure to participate successfully in the consolidation of the industry could harm our
business and our shareholders.

     As part of our growth strategy, we may seek to participate in the consolidation of the telecommunications industry. To implement this
strategy, we expect to review acquisition prospects, as well as proposals for business combinations and strategic alliances or partnerships that
may complement our existing businesses. This strategy would entail a variety of risks that could negatively affect our business. There is, on the
one hand, the risk that, due to competition in the identification of acquisition opportunities or strategic partners, we will make an acquisition or
enter into a strategic alliance on unfavorable terms. There is also the risk that we will not be able to successfully integrate and manage any
acquired company or strategic alliance, that the acquisition or strategic alliance will fail to achieve the strategic benefits or synergies sought and
that management�s attention will be diverted away from other ongoing business concerns.

We have assumed various ongoing obligations in connection with our recent divestment of non-core businesses and assets.

     As part of our strategy to focus on our core businesses, we have recently divested or partially divested, or are in the process of divesting or
partially divesting, several businesses and certain operations, including Telia�s network construction and maintenance, installation and servicing
of access and customer equipment, and directory inquiries operations and, Sonera�s network construction and maintenance, directory assistance,
SmartTrust AB and Sonera Zed Ltd. operations. In addition, as part of our efforts to concentrate our geographic presence, we have divested
several of our international investments, including our financial interests in the Brazilian mobile operator Tess S.A., Telia�s fixed network
operations in Finland and Telia�s ISP (Internet Service Provider) businesses in Spain and the United States. We have also divested several of
Sonera�s international investments, including its interests in certain GSM operators in the United States, Pannon GSM in Hungary and Libancell
S.A.L. in Lebanon. In connection with the merger, we have recently divested Com Hem AB, Telia�s Swedish cable TV business, and Telia
Mobile Finland, Telia�s mobile business in Finland. As is customary in negotiated sales, in many of these transactions we gave representations,
warranties and indemnities relating to the sold businesses to the purchasers, some of which remain in force. We, accordingly, have assumed
ongoing potential liabilities with respect to many of these divested or partially divested businesses. In addition, in some cases, such as in
connection with our sale of a 51 percent interest in our former wholly owned subsidiary Telefos AB and the sale of our entire interest in the
Orbiant Group, we entered into long-term
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commitments to purchase products and services from such divested or partially divested businesses, which may restrict our operational
flexibility in the future.

We have only limited control of our associated companies.

     We conduct some of our activities as a telecommunications operator outside of the Nordic region through associated companies, such as
OAO MegaFon, Turkcell Iletisim Hizmetleri A.S., Lattelekom SIA, AS EMT and AS Eesti Telefon, in which we have less than a majority
holding. As a result, we have limited control over the conduct of many of our international operator businesses. In addition, we hold substantial
minority interests in non-core businesses, such as Telefos and Infonet. Under the governing documents for certain of these entities, certain key
matters such as the approval of business plans and decisions as to timing and amount of cash distributions require the agreement of our partners.
The risk of disagreement or deadlock is inherent in jointly controlled entities. Our partners may have different approaches with respect to the
associated companies and we may be unable to reach agreement with our partners. In addition, the shareholding structure of the associated
companies may change for reasons beyond our control. In Turkey, for example, regulatory actions and financial difficulties affecting the
Çukurova Group, the other major shareholder in Turkcell, may have an impact on the ownership structure of Turkcell, or may have a negative
impact on our relationship or cooperation with the Çukurova Group. Additionally, any new partners may have strategies very different from
ours. Because we do not have control of these entities, our partners may have the right to make certain decisions on key business matters with
which we do not agree. In some cases, strategic partners may choose not to continue partnerships that they have with us. Any of these factors
could impact our ability to pursue our stated strategies with respect to those entities and may harm our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

The value of our investments in telecommunications companies outside of the Nordic markets may be adversely affected by political,
economic and legal developments in these countries.

     We have made a number of significant investments in telecommunications providers with operations in countries such as Estonia, Latvia,
Lithuania, Turkey, Russia, Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan and Moldova. The political, economic and legal systems in these countries may be
less predictable than in countries with more developed institutional structures. Political or economic upheaval, changes in laws and other factors,
such as legal or regulatory proceedings brought against such companies, may have a material effect upon the operations of the companies in
which we have invested and, in turn, the amount of income from, and the value of, these investments. Turkey, for example, has experienced
severe political and economic crises in recent years, including bouts of hyperinflation. In addition, the political situation in each of the countries
in which Fintur has interests remains unstable, with each of Azerbaijan, Georgia and Moldova facing regional separatist movements. Each of
these nations is also experiencing financial difficulties, including weak local currencies and high external debt.

     The more significant risks of operating in emerging market countries arise from the establishment or enforcement of foreign exchange
restrictions, which could effectively prevent us from receiving profits from, or from selling our investments in, these countries. While none of
the countries in which our international subsidiaries or associated companies are located currently have foreign exchange controls that affect
them significantly, all of these countries have had such controls in the recent past and we cannot assure you that they will not reinstitute such
controls in the future.

MegaFon, an associated GSM company operating in Russia, has significant capital needs and may be required to change its strategy if it is
unable to obtain financing on satisfactory terms.

     MegaFon, a GSM operator in Russia in which we hold a 43.8 percent interest, has significant capital needs and will have to secure additional
financing if it is to implement its current strategy of becoming a provider of nationwide GSM services in Russia. In particular, MegaFon will
need additional financing to build-out its GSM network. We have made capital commitments to, and issued guarantees on behalf of, MegaFon.
We may need to contribute additional capital to MegaFon and/or provide additional guarantees or offer forms of credit support to assist
MegaFon in securing the necessary financing. If MegaFon is unable to secure such financing on satisfactory terms or if the Russian mobile
market does not develop as expected, MegaFon might have to revise its strategic focus, which may adversely affect its growth prospects as well
as the amount of income we derive from, and the value of, the company.

The income that we derive from our business operations outside of Sweden could decrease if the exchange rate between the Swedish krona
and the operating and accounting currencies of such operations change
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significantly.

     A significant portion of our business is located outside of Sweden where the operations are conducted in currencies other than the Swedish
krona. In addition, some of our associated companies, including Turkcell, operate under currencies that are relatively volatile and may therefore
fluctuate greatly against the Swedish krona. Any loss in value of any such currencies against the Swedish krona will have a negative impact on
the amount of income we derive from such operations, as reflected in our Swedish krona-denominated financial statements. Nevertheless, the
Swedish Government is expected to hold a national referendum in September 2003 to decide whether Sweden will join the European Union�s
Economic and Monetary Union. Although we cannot predict the outcome of this referendum, a decision to adopt the euro as Sweden�s official
currency would eliminate our exchange rate risk relating to our operations in the member states of the Economic and Monetary Union.

We may not be able to fully realize anticipated tax benefits resulting from recent asset write-downs.

     As a result of its �4,280 million write-down of its UMTS investments in Germany and Italy, Sonera recorded a deferred tax benefit of
�1,235 million in the second quarter of 2002. Although we currently estimate that the deferred tax asset can be realized in six to eight years under
different scenarios, there can be no assurance of sufficient taxable income in Finland within this period. Tax loss carry-forwards in Finland
expire after ten years.

     In addition, Telia recorded deferred tax assets principally in connection with write-downs related to its international carrier operations and its
Danish operations. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to use these tax benefits in full to reduce our tax obligations in the
future.

We may not be able to remain competitive and implement our strategy if we cannot hire and retain skilled personnel.

     To remain competitive and implement our strategy, we will need to hire and retain highly skilled employees with particular expertise. In
particular, competition is intense for qualified telecommunications and information technology personnel in the Nordic countries and elsewhere.
To a considerable extent, our ability to hire and retain skilled personnel for growth business areas will depend on our ability to offer them
competitive incentive programs. The adoption of such incentive programs may require the support of our largest shareholders, including the
Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland, and no assurance can be given that such shareholders will be supportive of such proposals. If
we cannot implement competitive incentive programs, we may be unable to hire and retain skilled employees, which may limit our ability to
develop our high growth business areas and new business areas or remain competitive in our traditional business areas. Furthermore, we are
particularly dependent on certain key members of management responsible for managing the continued integration of Telia and Sonera and
developing the strategic direction for TeliaSonera. The integration process of Telia and Sonera may, however, prove to be disruptive and may
cause these and other key employees to leave.

Actual or perceived health risks or other problems relating to mobile handsets or transmission masts could lead to decreased mobile
communications usage.

     Concern has been expressed that the electromagnetic signals from mobile handsets and base stations, which serve as the platform for
transmitting radio signals, may pose health risks and interfere with the operation of electronic equipment, including automobile braking and
steering systems. These concerns may intensify in relation to third generation handsets and telecommunications equipment, which may emit
higher maximum levels of radiation but, due to more advanced power control features and ongoing development, are not expected to emit higher
average levels of radiation than GSM handsets or equipment. In the European Union, the European Council has adopted a recommendation on
the limitation of exposure of the general public to electromagnetic fields (1999/S19/EC). These recommended levels are assessed on an ongoing
basis and may be tightened based on new scientific findings. Actual or perceived risks of mobile handsets or base stations and related publicity
or litigation could reduce the growth rate, customer base or average usage per customer of our mobile communications services or may result in
significant restrictions on the location and operation of base stations, any of which could have a negative impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We could be influenced by the Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland whose interests may not always be aligned with yours.
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     The Kingdom of Sweden holds approximately 45 percent and the Republic of Finland holds approximately 19 percent of our shares. The
Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland have, furthermore, agreed to consult each other with respect to voting on matters to be resolved
by the shareholders at general meetings of the company. Accordingly, the Kingdom of Sweden, acting alone, may have and the Kingdom of
Sweden and the Republic of Finland, if they should choose to act together, will have the power to influence matters submitted for a vote of
shareholders, including the approval of the annual financial statements, declarations of dividends, capital increases in connection with
acquisitions, investments and the election and removal of members of our board of directors. The interests of the Kingdom of Sweden and the
Republic of Finland in deciding these matters and the factors they consider in exercising their votes could be different from the interests of our
other shareholders.

The Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland may sell significant amounts of our shares and this could significantly depress the
market price of our shares.

     The Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland, which together hold approximately 64 percent of our shares, have announced their
intention to reduce their TeliaSonera shareholdings during the five-year period following the closing of the merger of Telia and Sonera. Neither
the Kingdom of Sweden nor the Republic of Finland is under any contractual commitment that would restrict their ability to sell any shares. It is
currently not possible to assess the precise timing and manner of any future sales by the Kingdom of Sweden or the Republic of Finland of our
shares. However, any sale by the Kingdom of Sweden or the Republic of Finland of a significant number of our shares, or the public perception
that these sales could occur, may cause the market price of our shares to decline significantly and may also make it more difficult for us to issue
new shares in the future.

ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

4.A History and Development of the Company
TeliaSonera

     TeliaSonera AB was created as a result of the merger of Telia AB and Sonera Corporation in December 2002. The merger of Telia and
Sonera brings together two of the leading telecommunications companies in the Nordic region to form the leading telecommunications group in
the Nordic and Baltic regions. The formation of TeliaSonera in December 2002 was the culmination of a shared strategic vision of Telia and
Sonera to create a leading telecommunications company in the Nordic countries.

     TeliaSonera�s new organization has been operational since January 1, 2003. As from January 1, 2003, TeliaSonera has also changed its
method of presenting segment information and as from such date presents segment information based on the following principally
geographical-based reporting units: (1) Sweden, (2) Finland, (3) Norway, (4) Denmark (5) the Baltic countries, (6) Eurasia, (7) Russia,
(8) Turkey, (9) TeliaSonera International Carrier and (10) TeliaSonera Holding.

     The shares of TeliaSonera are listed on the Stockholm Exchange and the Helsinki Exchanges and the ADSs of TeliaSonera are quoted on the
Nasdaq National Market.

     Our principal executive office is located at Mårbackagatan 11, S-123 86 Farsta, Sweden, and our telephone number is +46-8-713-1000. Our
agent in the United States is Telia International Carrier, Inc., 10780 Parkridge Blvd., Suite 300, Reston, Virginia, 20191, and its telephone
number is +1-703-546-4000.

     For information regarding our principal divestitures and capital expenditures, see �Item 5.A Operating Results � Recent Acquisitions,
Investments and Divestitures� and �Item 5.B Liquidity and Capital Resources � Capital Expenditures and Investments.�

Telia

     Telia, the leading telecommunications company in Sweden, was originally managed directly by the Swedish State as a public service
corporation, Televerket, beginning in the 1850s. Although Telia has never operated under a statutorily sanctioned monopoly, Televerket was
virtually the sole provider of public voice telecommunications services in Sweden. In 1993, the Swedish State decided to transform Televerket
into a state-
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owned public company through the transfer of Televerket�s assets to TeleInvest AB, a limited liability company, previously incorporated in 1966
that was subsequently renamed Telia AB. Telia AB became a public limited company in 1994. During the 1980s and 1990s, Telia developed
from a near monopoly to a competitor in an open market for telecommunications.

     Prior to June 2000, all of the shares of Telia were owned by the Swedish State. In June 2000, the Swedish State sold a 29.4 percent interest in
Telia in an initial public offering to institutional and retail investors in Sweden and internationally. Telia�s shares were quoted on the A-list of the
Stockholm Exchange in connection with the offering. Prior to the merger of Telia and Sonera, the Swedish State held 70.6 percent of Telia�s
outstanding shares.

Sonera

     Sonera, the leading telecommunications operator in Finland, originated as part of a state organization, the Telegraph Office of Finland, in
1917. Between 1935 and 1992, the Posts and Telecommunications of Finland, the successor to the Telegraph Office of Finland, was the only
Finnish long distance and international call operator. The monopoly in long distance and international telephone services ended in 1992, when
the Finnish Council of State began granting licenses to competing telephone operators. Practically all forms of national telecommunications
services in Finland were opened to competition in 1994 when the market for the provision of domestic long distance and international
telecommunications services was fully liberalized.

     Between 1990 and 1998, the Finnish State undertook a series of initiatives to make the structure of Posts and Telecommunications of Finland
more market-oriented. This culminated in the creation of a separate telecommunications company, Telecom Finland Group plc, which eventually
changed its name to Sonera Group plc in 1998. In 1999, Sonera Group plc and its principal operating subsidiary, Sonera Ltd., merged, with the
merged entity assuming the name Sonera Corporation.

     Prior to November 1998, all of Sonera�s shares were owned by the Finnish State. In November 1998, the Finnish State sold a 22.2 percent
interest in Sonera in connection with an initial public offering. In connection with the November 1998 offering, Sonera�s shares were listed on the
Helsinki Exchanges. Subsequent to the initial public offering, the Finnish State sold additional Sonera shares to institutional and retail investors
on two separate occasions. In addition, Sonera�s shares, in the form of ADSs, were quoted on the Nasdaq National Market beginning in 1999.
Prior to the merger of Telia and Sonera, the Finnish State held 52.8 percent of Sonera�s outstanding shares.

4.B Business Overview
     TeliaSonera is the leading telecommunications group in the Nordic and Baltic regions. We are the largest mobile operator in Sweden and
Finland, the second largest mobile operator in Norway and the fourth largest mobile operator in Denmark. We are also the largest fixed voice
and data provider in the Nordic region with leading positions in Sweden and Finland and a significant position in Denmark. Further, we are the
largest mobile and fixed line operator in the Baltic region. We are a leading mobile operator in the following Eurasian countries: Azerbaijan,
Georgia, Kazakhstan and Moldova. We also have minority holdings in mobile operators in Russia and Turkey,

     The following table sets forth a geographic breakdown of our mobile subscriptions and our fixed network access lines for our consolidated
operations and for our associated companies as of December 31, 2002. The table excludes Telia�s mobile business in Finland, Telia Mobile
Finland, and Swedish cable TV business, Com Hem AB, both of which were divested in June 2003:

Fixed Network
Geographic area Mobile Subscriptions Access Lines

(in thousands)
Consolidated operations

Sweden 3,604 6,441
Finland 2,490 721
Norway 1,088 �
Denmark 466 �
Baltic countries 1,324 936
Eurasia 1,614 �

Total 10,586 8,098
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Fixed Network
Geographic area Mobile Subscriptions Access Lines

(in thousands)
Associated companies

Baltic countries 428 1,166
Russia 3,030 �
Turkey 15,730 �

Total 19,188 1,166

     For the year ended December 31, 2002, on a combined basis assuming that Telia and Sonera had been a combined company and that Telia
Mobile Finland and Com Hem had been divested as of January 1, 2001, our net sales would have amounted to SEK 81.0 billion.

     For the three months ended March 31, 2003, we had net sales of SEK 20,349 million, a 3.6 percent increase from net sales of SEK
19,642 million for the same period in 2002 assuming Telia and Sonera had been a combined company and that Telia Mobile Finland and
Com Hem had been divested as of January 1, 2001.

     The following table sets forth our net sales by reporting unit for the three months ended March 31, 2003, excluding Telia Mobile Finland,
Telia�s mobile business in Finland, and Com Hem, Telia�s Swedish cable TV business, both of which have been sold:

Reporting Unit Net sales

(SEK in millions)
Sweden 10,486
Finland 4,368
Norway 1,515
Denmark 717
Baltic countries 1,413
Eurasia 558
TeliaSonera International Carrier 1,492
TeliaSonera Holding 570
Corporate and eliminations (770)

Total 20,349

     As of December 31, 2002, we had 28,460 employees, adjusted for the disposal of Telia Mobile Finland and Com Hem.

     Since the merger, Telia�s and Sonera�s operations have been rapidly integrated and we have established new customer segments to help us
achieve our goal of becoming more customer-oriented. By the end of the first quarter of 2003, initiatives that we undertook to generate synergy
benefits included negotiating with suppliers and eliminating dual corporate functions, overlapping network resources, dual Multimedia
Messaging Services (MMS) platforms, dual IT software licenses, and dual roaming agreements. The initiatives that we implemented during the
first quarter of 2003 are expected to yield annual cost savings of SEK 436 million and annual investment savings of SEK 127 million by the end
of 2005. We estimate that one-time expenses related to implementing these synergies will be less than SEK 100 million during the period of
2003 to 2005.

Strategy

     Our overall focus will be on best serving our customers in our core business and creating value for our shareholders through stronger profits
and cash flows.

Focus on core business
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     Our principal focus will be to further develop our business in our home market, which comprises the Nordic and Baltic markets. In Sweden,
Finland and the Baltic countries, we provide a full range of telecommunications services to our customers, whereas, in Norway and Denmark,
we are initially offering a selected range of services with a focus on services that can be delivered profitably. Provided that the right expansion
opportunities develop, we intend to become a provider of a full range of services in all countries within our home market.
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Growth opportunities outside of the home market

     We intend to achieve growth through the further development of our Russian businesses with the aim, in the longer term, of having Russia
form part of our extended home market.

     We will seek to grow and create value in the international mobile businesses of Turkcell in Turkey and Fintur in Eurasia.

     We will also seek growth in our refocused international carrier operations.

Adopt customer-oriented approach

     We will be in the business of providing telecommunications services to customers rather than providing technology or access to networks as
such. Accordingly, we will aim at accelerating the refocusing of our operations from a technology-driven approach to a customer-oriented
approach, thereby enhancing our ability to achieve growth in our core businesses. We will seek to be innovative in packaging our product and
service offerings for both retail and business customers to better meet the needs of our customers for integrated and easy-to-use services.

Pursue profitable growth

     We will seek balanced growth in our home market and target selected growth opportunities outside our home market where requirements for
return on investment and other factors are satisfied as well as continue to evaluate participation in the consolidation of the European
telecommunications services industry.

� Increase revenues in our home market.

     We will seek to achieve profitable growth in our core business through combined product and service offerings, cross selling and an
intensified customer service approach.

     We are committed to strengthening our customer-oriented focus by offering our customers a comprehensive range of
telecommunications services. For consumers, our goal is to offer simple, easy-to-use services that combine fixed network, mobile and
Internet communications capabilities. For corporate customers, we will work to enhance our ability to deliver communication services
through our diverse portfolio of voice and data services. We will also expand our services, together with our partners, in a focused
manner to include telecommunications-intensive IT services when they are related to the telecommunications needs of our corporate
customers.

     We believe that these initiatives will provide substantial opportunities to increase revenues both from our existing customer base and
from new customers in selected market segments and, consequently, will strengthen our market position in both the consumer and
corporate segments in our home market.

     We believe that there are significant growth opportunities to be achieved through increased use of telecommunications services in the
Baltic countries, where penetration rates are lower than in the Nordic countries. We will aim to benefit from these growth opportunities
by obtaining controlling interests in our Baltic operations, to the extent practicable and financially viable, while maintaining strong
cooperation and joint ownership with our local partners.

� Pursue growth in Russia.

     The Russian market represents a significant growth opportunity for us. We own a 43.8 percent direct and indirect interest in MegaFon,
the first Russian GSM operator with licenses to offer mobile services nationwide. We will seek to take advantage of the growth
opportunities presented by increasing the penetration of mobile services in Russia. We believe that we can enhance the value of MegaFon
by making available our competence in telecommunications operations on the basis of our home market experience. We may consider
capitalizing on such growth opportunities by increasing our ownership interest in our Russian operations, to the extent practicable and
financially viable, while maintaining strong cooperation and joint ownership with our local partners. While our focus is on our mobile
operations, we may also consider other opportunities in Russia. Because investing in Russia involves a higher degree of risk than
investing in our home markets, we plan on making additional investments in Russia only where we believe we can achieve a
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higher return on our investment than in our home market.

� Pursue growth in international mobile operations in Turkey and Eurasia.

     We foresee significant growth potential in our international operations in Eurasia and Turkey, as the market for mobile services in
these areas continues to grow. We believe that, through our majority owned investments in Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan and
Moldova through Fintur and our 37.3 percent investment in Turkey through Turkcell, we will be able to capitalize on the strong market
position of our majority owned and associated companies in these regions that have comparatively low penetration rates for mobile
services. We believe that, with our expertise in mobile communications, we will be able to enhance the ability of these companies to
achieve significant growth. We, however, view our holding in Turkcell as a financial investment.

� Participate in the consolidation of the European telecommunications services industry.

     We expect that the consolidation of the telecommunications services industry will continue. Before pursuing any potential transaction,
we will carefully evaluate whether the transaction would improve our ability to serve our customers and enhance shareholder value.

     Our first priority is to strengthen our position in our home market and to develop the home market business into a valuable asset.

     In the longer term, our intention is to use our home market business as a strong base from which to build a larger company by
participating in the consolidation of the European telecommunications services industry. This could take the form of acquisitions,
business combinations or partnership arrangements.

Generate increased profits and cash flow

     We aim to significantly increase profits in the longer term, both on an operating income level as well as on an EBITDA and net income per
share level. We expect increased profits to come from profitable growth, anticipated cost synergies from the merger of Telia and Sonera,
stand-alone efficiency improvements, improvement of under-performing businesses and divestment of non-core assets.

     We will have an equally strong focus on increasing free cash flows, which management expects to come from increased profits, from
anticipated capital expenditure synergies resulting from the merger of Telia and Sonera and from a cautious business-oriented approach to
capital expenditures.

     We plan to maintain a strong financial position to enable us to develop our core business.

     The following actions will be undertaken to support increased profits and cash flows:

� Increased profits and cash flow from implementation of synergies.

     We seek to realize significant synergy benefits from the merger of Telia and Sonera. Management estimates that the total recurring
annual pre-tax cash flow synergies to be generated from the merger will amount to approximately SEK 2.7 billion after 2005.

� Increased profits and cash flow from efficiency improvements.

     We aim to achieve cost and capital expenditure savings to improve our profits and cash flow. We plan to realize these savings from
both the continuation of on-going efficiency programs of Telia and Sonera which were already in place prior to the merger as well as
from new efficiency improvement programs. Our larger size is expected to allow us to use benchmarking more efficiently as a tool to
achieve cost and capital expenditure savings.

� Increased profits from divestment of non-core assets.

     Both Telia and Sonera have divested non-core assets in recent years. We intend to continue to streamline our businesses by divesting
operations and assets that are not essential to our core business. In particular, we are considering the potential divestment of the following
businesses:
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� We are planning to divest the remainder of our non-core investments in telecommunications companies such as Netia, Tess,
Infonet and Metro One Telecommunications, Inc. as well as our interests in mobile and/or fixed line operators based in Hong
Kong, Namibia, Sri Lanka and Uganda held by our non-wholly owned subsidiary Overseas Telecom AB (formerly, Telia
Overseas AB) in light of market conditions or otherwise in an effort to maximize our return on such investments.

� We have divested a portion of our shareholdings in Sonera Zed and SmartTrust AB and expect to fully divest our interests in such
businesses over time.

� We will consider the disposal of certain operations that could be sourced more efficiently from outside providers.

� We will continue to cap our expenditure and investments in our international UMTS ventures to no more than SEK 4.1 billion
during the years 2002-2011. These UMTS holdings are now being treated as financial investments.

Generate increased profitability from improving under-performing businesses

     We plan to improve the performance of our under-performing businesses with the goal of having such businesses achieve profitability on an
operating profit level and also result in a positive operating cash flow. Specifically, we plan to:

� Transform our international carrier operations into a financially viable business.

We will continue our efforts to make our international carrier operations cash flow positive as quickly as possible. We began the process of
restructuring Telia�s international carrier operations in 2002. As part of strategic refocusing of Telia�s international carrier operations, it is
focusing on offering wholesale capacity and IP (Internet Protocol) services to large customers over the profitable parts of its wholly owned
European and trans-Atlantic networks. As part of the restructuring program, we are closing down Telia�s international carrier�s Asian
operations as well as its national voice reseller business in the United Kingdom and Germany, discontinuing domestic capacity services in
the United States and terminating its co-location business. We are also taking steps to significantly reduce the number of commercial points
of presence of Telia International Carrier. We are centralizing the sales, finance, administration and customer care resources of Telia
International Carrier in Sweden. We estimate that, as part of the restructuring, we will reduce the original workforce of Telia International
Carrier of approximately 800 persons as of September 2002 by more than 50 percent. The strategic refocusing and restructuring will also
enable Telia�s international carrier operations to substantially scale down the number of offices and technical facilities it maintains, as well
as reduce the number of its operation and maintenance contracts and leased lines. We are also in the process of integrating Sonera�s
international carrier operations with Telia�s international carrier operations, from which we expect to derive synergy benefits and incur
related implementation costs.

� Continue improvement of the operational performance in our Danish units.

In 2002, we began implementing our plan of restructuring and streamlining our fixed network operations in Denmark. In particular, we have
shut down certain unprofitable businesses in Denmark and significantly reduced the number of full and part-time employees. We expect to
see the full benefits of the restructuring in Denmark starting at the end of 2003.

In addition, we expect our new Danish GSM 900 network, which was completed in 2002, to improve our market position in Denmark.
Starting from a small market share, challenging the largest operator in Denmark, we will aim to pursue growth. Our Danish mobile
operations have recently recorded strong customer growth, having increased our subscriber base in Denmark by over 60 percent in 2002.

Group Reporting Units and Customer Segments

     Following the completion of the merger of Telia and Sonera, we regrouped our reporting units principally along geographical lines into:
Sweden, Finland, Norway, Denmark, the Baltic countries, Eurasia, Russia, Turkey, TeliaSonera International Carrier and TeliaSonera Holding.
These geography-based reporting units are responsible for all operating resources, including marketing, sales, network operations and
development of
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products and services within their respective areas.

     In certain cases, management�s areas of responsibility comprise more than one reporting unit. The TeliaSonera Sweden and TeliaSonera
Finland areas of responsibility covers the reporting unit Sweden and Finland, respectively. The TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and the Baltic
countries area of responsibility covers each of the reporting units Norway, Denmark and the Baltic Countries. The TeliaSonera International area
of responsibility covers the reporting units Eurasia, Russia, Turkey and TeliaSonera International Carrier. Our Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for TeliaSonera Holding.

     To further our goal of becoming a more customer-oriented company, our marketing efforts have been reorganized into four customer
segments: Consumer, Business, Large Corporate, and Operators. Our Consumer segment focuses on the consumer market, our Business segment
is responsible for small and medium-size companies, and our Large Corporate segment serves large companies and organizations. Our Operators
segment targets service operators. Initially, these customer segments apply across Sweden and Finland and we expect in the longer term to apply
these customer segments to all countries within our home market.

     In addition, two group-wide business units have been established, namely, the Marketing, Products and Services business unit and the
Networks and Technology business unit. The Marketing, Products and Services business unit has overall responsibility for our product and
service development. Its responsibility comprises establishing objectives and strategies for product and service development, such as formulating
brand strategies, price policies, pan-Nordic services and joint campaigns. This business unit is also responsible for approving any requested
deviations from centrally determined plans. For optimum service to Swedish and Finnish business customers with substantial multinational
operations, the Marketing, Products and Services business unit is also responsible for coordinating group activities and resources for
approximately 20 such customers. The Networks and Technology business unit has overall responsibility for our telecommunications platforms
and IT systems as well as for purchasing, including contracts with key suppliers. Its responsibility involves establishing strategies and targets for
these areas.

TeliaSonera Sweden

Overview

     The Swedish telecommunications market is among the most developed in the world. Swedish trade and industry is characterized by a large
number of multinational companies. Many of these companies have a great need for sophisticated communications solutions, and our position in
this segment is very strong. At the same time, the high level of IT maturity and low entry thresholds in Sweden have attracted a lot of
participants to the Swedish telecommunications market. All product areas are characterized by intense competition.

     We are a full-range supplier of telecommunications services in Sweden and operate primarily under the Telia brand. Our main products are
mobile communications, fixed voice services, Internet and data communications as well as value-added services, service and support.

     We are a leader in the Consumer segment of the Swedish telecommunications market. In Sweden, our mobile communications product area
has more than 2.5 million consumer customers, our fixed voice services product area has close to 3.9 million consumer customers, and our
Internet service product area has more than one million consumer customers. We have taken a number of important sale initiatives in this
segment, including the launching of new MMS services and a broad offering of ADSL (Asymmetric Digital Subscriber Line) services.

     Our Business segment is responsible for small and medium-size businesses, which in Sweden total nearly 900,000. We have a strong network
of resellers and partners in this customer segment, in addition to our own sales organization. We intend to implement more intense initiatives to
strengthen our local and regional presence in order to be able to satisfy the substantial telecommunications and IT needs of many small and
medium-size companies in Sweden.

     We have a strong position in the Large Corporate segment in Sweden. This customer segment includes our 1,000 largest business customers
and organizations. Many of these companies and organizations are undergoing transformation and are dependent on efficient communications
solutions. We are developing, among other things, solutions that integrate fixed and mobile communications and voice and data services to
satisfy these needs.
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     In Sweden, our business in the Operators segment is conducted under the Skanova brand. We provide network services as a wholesaler to
other operators in four areas, namely, voice, network capacity, Internet access and co-location. Skanova currently has relationships with 150
wholesale customers. Some of the products we offer in this segment are regulated, including interconnect traffic and copper access. Therefore,
we are required to offer these services at prices based on cost. Other services are commercially developed and offered on competitive terms. Our
most extensive offer to other operators in Sweden is ADSL solutions.

Mobile Communications Sweden

     We are the leading mobile communications operator in Sweden. In 2002, our mobile communications business in Sweden generated net sales
of SEK 11,846 million. We offer digital mobile services through our dual band GSM 900/1800 network and analog mobile services through our
NMT (Nordic Mobile Telephone) 450 network. As of December 31, 2002, we had 3.5 million direct subscribers in our digital GSM network in
Sweden, as well as an additional 88,000 subscribers via service providers, which offer their own services using our Swedish mobile network. In
addition, as of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 137,000 subscribers using our analog NMT 450 network in Sweden. We estimate that,
based on net sales, our market share in the mobile communications market in Sweden in 2002 was approximately 50 percent. We have
maintained our strong market position in Sweden despite an intensely competitive environment in which penetration rates for mobile
communications services are among the highest in the world, having reached approximately 89 percent in December 2002.

     We are one of four licensed providers of GSM digital mobile telecommunications services in Sweden and, as of December 31, 2002, our
GSM network covered 99 percent of Sweden�s population. We also hold one of three GSM 1800 licenses in Sweden. We launched our GSM
1800 network in December 1997 in order to provide a dual band service and to increase the capacity of our GSM network in urban areas, which
tend to have the highest mobile traffic volumes. Our principal competitors in the GSM market in Sweden are Vodafone and Tele2 (Comviq).

     Our mobile communications business generates revenues from voice services, which include voice traffic revenues, connection fees and
monthly subscription charges, and non-voice services. Voice service revenues also include revenues derived from service operators, which
manage their own customers but utilize our network infrastructure.

     Voice traffic revenues consist of traffic charges paid by mobile subscribers, interconnection fees, fixed line to mobile call charges and
roaming fees from calls made by subscribers of foreign mobile network operators while in Sweden and calls made or received outside of Sweden
by our Swedish subscribers using another mobile operator�s network. Voice traffic revenues depend principally upon the total number of
subscriptions, traffic volume, the mix of services utilized by subscribers and tariffs applicable to such services.

     Non-voice revenues include revenues from Short Messaging Services, also known as SMS, a mobile communications system, which allows
users to send alpha-numeric messages from one mobile handset to another, SMS-based content and transaction services as well as mobile data
and other value-added services.

     We offer a wide range of mobile service packages in Sweden designed to appeal to different categories of subscribers, including packages
offering different types of subscription plans, pre-paid cards, portal access, corporate service packages and several innovative value-added
services, including location-based services, transactional services, entertainment services and information services.

Voice Services

     The table below shows selected subscription data for our mobile services in Sweden :
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As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Subscriptions:

GSM, post-paid 1,680 1,759 1,755
GSM, pre-paid 1,787 1,536 1,321
NMT 137 144 181

Total subscribers 3,604 3,439 3,257

Subscribers via service providers 88 74 48

     The increase in our Swedish GSM subscriber base in the past three years was largely due to growth in the pre-paid subscriber market
segment. We expect that the number of subscribers will continue to grow in the future, although at a slower rate. We believe that growth in the
Swedish mobile telecommunications market will depend upon continuing improvements in mobile handset technology, developments in wireless
Internet applications and wireless transaction-based services and the level of demand for GPRS (General Packet Radio Service) and, eventually,
UMTS services. We expect growth in traffic volumes to accelerate as new applications using SMS/MMS services, GPRS services and other new
services become available. We also anticipate that the Swedish wireless communications environment will evolve into one in which many users
have more than one mobile connection.

     Like other mobile operators, we experience subscriber turnover, commonly referred to as �customer churn.� We compute our customer churn
rate based on the total number of disconnections from our network during a year as a percentage of the average number of subscribers for the
year (which number does not include our subscribers who migrate to different subscription packages offered by us). Disconnections can be
either voluntary, as when a subscriber terminates mobile service or switches to a competing service, or involuntary, as when we terminate
service due to non-payment. For purposes of calculating customer churn, we generally treat pre-paid subscribers as disconnections 12 months
following their last account top-up, which is the point at which they are physically disconnected from our network.

     Our customer churn rate for our Swedish mobile communications business was 12 percent, eight percent and eight percent for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. We seek to control customer churn by managing our customer relations, increasing our
marketing and special promotion efforts, introducing value-added services, broadening our distribution channels and improving our mobile
communications networks and technology.

     The following table sets forth selected traffic data for our GSM and NMT services in Sweden for the periods indicated. Information with
respect to traffic relates to both contract and pre-paid subscribers:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Total traffic (in millions of minutes)(1) 5,495 5,083 4,357
Average subscriber usage (minutes per month)(2) 130 127 123
Average revenue per user (SEK per month)(3) 277 285 308
Mobile generated SMS messages sent (in millions of messages) 488 389 185
Average monthly SMS messages sent per subscriber (messages) 12 10 5

(1) Includes outgoing mobile to mobile and mobile to fixed line calls and calls from subscribers of other operators roaming in our network.
Traffic generated by service operator subscriptions is excluded.

(2) Average monthly minutes of use per subscription is calculated by dividing total outgoing traffic by the average number of subscriptions
for the period, divided by the number of months in the period. Service operator subscriptions and related traffic are excluded.

(3) Average monthly revenue per user is calculated by dividing revenues for the period by the average number of subscriptions for the
period, divided by the number of months in the period. Service operator subscriptions and related revenues are excluded.
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     The total traffic in our Swedish operations increased by eight percent in 2002 as compared to 2001, and by 17 percent in 2001 as compared to
2000, largely as a result of continued growth in our GSM subscriber base and higher average monthly minutes of use per subscription.
Continued traffic volume growth in our GSM network will depend on a number of factors, including pricing, the availability of new services and
competition.
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Non-voice Services

     We offer a broad range of non-voice value-added services to our contract and pre-paid subscribers in Sweden, including voice-mail, caller
display, call forwarding, itemized invoicing and call waiting. We also offer SMS and related services in Sweden. The importance of value-added
services has increased in recent years. For example, subscribers have become increasingly familiar with SMS messaging, which provides the
basis for many of our value-added services.

     In December 2002, we launched MMS services in Sweden. Our MMS service is available to all our Swedish mobile subscribers, and allows
users with MMS enabled mobile phones to send and receive messages containing images, text and sound to and from TeliaSonera�s, Vodafone�s
and Tele2/Comviq�s mobile subscribers.

     We also operate a number of mobile portals in Sweden allowing end-users to access the Internet through their mobile handsets. As the
Internet increasingly becomes mobile through the development of new mobile handset technology and the introduction of GPRS and UMTS, we
expect our Swedish mobile portal product offerings to increase in importance as a service point.

     Additionally, we offer Telia HomeRun, a service that offers a mobile broadband connection in locations such as airports, hotels, conference
halls, roadside inns, and cafés. In addition, Telia HomeRun allows users to connect to the Internet or to their corporate intranet (an internal
network based on Internet technology) using a WLAN card and a computer. Telia HomeRun offers transmission speeds of up to 11 Mbps
(Megabits per second) which is faster than most Internet services currently available.

     Telia commercially launched GPRS services in Sweden in September 2001. All of our Swedish GPRS service offerings allow subscribers to
transmit a specified amount of data per month for a fixed monthly fee. Once the monthly allowance has been used, the customer is charged per
kilobyte for any additional data transmissions.

     We have access to a UMTS license in Sweden through our network sharing agreement with Tele2, which was established in March 2001. The
network sharing agreement gives us access to the UMTS license of the Swedish joint venture, Svenska UMTS-nät. The cooperation between
TeliaSonera and Tele2 has been reviewed by the Swedish Competition Authority and, in March 2002, the cooperation was given a five-year
exemption from the anti-competitive agreements prohibition in the Swedish Competition Act. The exemption ends in February 2007, at which
time the cooperation has to be reviewed by the Competition Authority. In March 2003, Svenska UMTS-nät requested the Swedish regulators to
amend its UMTS license to push back the date by which TeliaSonera�s and Tele2�s UMTS network must be completed. Svenska UMTS-nät has
cited, among others, its difficulty in receiving required building permits and the unavailability of key UMTS technology as the primary reasons
for its request. We currently believe that the UMTS network under construction by TeliaSonera and Tele2 will cover 70 percent of the
population in Sweden by early 2004. Our goal is that that the coverage requirements under the terms of the UMTS license will be met by the end
of 2005, provided there are no significant changes in technological and market developments. For a further discussion of our UMTS joint
venture in Sweden, see �Item 10.C Material Contracts.�

Tariffs

     We charge our subscribers in Sweden an initial connection fee, monthly subscription charges, a call initiation fee and traffic charges for
outgoing calls and SMS messages. Charges for outgoing calls are based on minutes of use and charges for outgoing SMS messages are based on
the number of messages sent. We bill airtime in per second intervals under all of our pricing plans in Sweden. We also derive voice revenues by
providing interconnection to our mobile communications network to and from competing domestic operators. Although mobile tariffs in Sweden
have historically been relatively high in comparison to European averages, there has been an overall decline in tariffs in recent years.

Fixed Communications Sweden

     We are the leading provider of fixed network communications services in Sweden. Including access networks, our fixed networks reach
virtually every household and business in Sweden. In 2002, our fixed voice services and fixed networks communications business in Sweden
generated net sales of SEK 31,535 million.
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     Our fixed networks in Sweden are comprised of a nationwide fiber optic backbone network and logical networks for telecommunications,
data communications and IP. We offer a wide range of telecommunications services in Sweden, including basic telecommunications services,
value-added telecommunications services, wireless services, and Internet and data communication services. We are also the largest supplier of
network products in the Swedish wholesale market, which are provided under the Skanova brand. By operating in both the retail and wholesale
markets, we believe that we are able to penetrate the largest portion of the total Swedish market for fixed network products and services.

Fixed Voice Services

     We offer both business and residential customers in Sweden a full range of communications products and services, from basic fixed line
telecommunications to complex, tailored solutions designed to meet the specific needs of individual customers. Our fixed network voice services
offer access to local calling, domestic long distance calling and international calling. In 2002, our fixed network voice services in Sweden
generated net sales of SEK 21,655 million.

     The following table sets forth the minutes of use by subscribers of our fixed telecommunications services in Sweden (in millions of minutes)
and estimated market share (based on traffic revenues) for our business and residential subscribers in Sweden for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

National traffic 19,838 59% 26,533 70% 31,360 77%
Fixed to mobile traffic 1,770 57% 1,744 58% 1,590 69%
International traffic 460 43% 503 48% 520 56%

     We also offer multi-conference voice and video meeting services in Sweden, such as automatic and manual teleconferencing, web-based
scheduling, ISDN (Integrated Services Digital Network)-based conferencing. ISDN is a transmission system with the capacity to transmit two
streams of information (including voice, text, data or graphics) simultaneously on a single telephone line. Other services offered by our fixed
voice and networks business in Sweden include intelligent network services and server hosting.

Fixed Access Lines

     Through our PSTN (Public Switched Telephone Network) access service, we provide connections between our customers� premises and our
analog network for basic telecommunications and dial-up Internet services. Each PSTN access line provides a single telecommunications
channel. We also offer both basic ISDN lines with two channels, primary ISDN access lines with 30 channels, and 2 Mbps lines with 30
channels.

     The following table sets forth selected information regarding our total access lines in Sweden as of the dates indicated:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
PSTN access lines 5,558 5,663 5,783
ISDN channels 883 922 838
2 Mbps lines 101 94 103

     Although analog-based PSTN services are expected to remain an important part of our Swedish fixed voice and fixed networks business in
the future, competition from other technologies for voice and data transmission will increase as they become more readily available. In certain
customer segments, customers are substituting mobile telecommunication services for fixed line services. We also expect broadband mobile
networks to compete with our PSTN lines for data communications and, eventually, voice telecommunications. We also expect customers to
migrate from PSTN services to broadband and mobile networks for data communications and, eventually, voice telecommunications.
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     Under the Telecommunications Act and the terms and conditions of our licenses, we must provide universal fixed line service in Sweden.
This means that we must provide connections for fixed telecommunications to permanent residences and permanent businesses throughout
Sweden. Number portability, allowing end-users to change local exchange or mobile carriers while retaining the same telephone number, and
free carrier pre-
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selection, allowing end-users to choose a local, long distance, mobile or international carrier independent of their local loop provider, have made
it possible for customers to switch operators easily, which has eroded our market share in Sweden. In addition, carrier pre-selection covering
local calls was introduced in Sweden on February 2, 2002.

     In Sweden, our principal competitors in the fixed access lines markets include Tele2, Telenordia Privat AB, MCI Corporation, Song
Networks and Utfors among others.

     Historically, our fixed telecommunications business in Sweden has experienced a high customer retention rate. We expect, however, that
increased competition will have a negative effect on our customer retention rates. We also expect pre-selection and local loop unbundling to
result in increased reselling of fixed telecommunications services by service providers and other operators and may require us to act as a reseller
of other operators� subscriptions.

Tariffs and Pricing

     Our prices are based on both fixed fees and volume charges, depending on the service or product purchased. Connections carry an installation
fee when access is first installed or moved. After a connection is installed, a quarterly fee is charged that includes basic maintenance and
customer support. We own the network only up to the first phone outlet in the customer�s premises; the customer typically owns the rest of the
equipment. We charge market prices for servicing the part of the network that we do not own. Usage is priced based on a call initiation fee and a
time-based traffic fee, which is billed in one-second increments. Some of our value-added services, such as caller identification, have a monthly
fee. Others, such as call-forwarding, are provided free of charge but lead to increased revenue through traffic charges.

     Our national traffic charges are based on actual cost (as required by the Telecommunications Act) and are adjusted to reflect the competitive
environment. In February 2000, we introduced a new pricing structure under which we eliminated national long distance rates, and, as a result,
since February 15, 2000, all calls within Sweden have been billed as local calls.

     Our traditional telecommunications services are currently experiencing increased price pressure along with increased demand for more
advanced communication services. The Swedish market is moving toward value-based pricing as well as customer-driven communications
product and service offerings. Factors that affect our tariff levels in Sweden also include market competition and interconnection fees.

Wholesale

     We provide voice transit and interconnect services for voice traffic to other operators. We also have an advanced wholesale service that
enables service providers to market and sell voice services to end customers by using our existing telecommunications switches. This service
enables us to retain the majority of the revenue generated by the use of our network assets despite intense competition for voice services.

Internet and Data Services

     We are the leading provider of Internet and data services in Sweden. In 2002, our Internet and data communications business in Sweden
generated net sales of SEK 7,550 million.

     We are working to leverage our leading position and large customer base in the fixed telecommunications and Internet access market in
Sweden to build an Internet-based, customer-oriented business and to expand our broadband access and content offerings in Sweden. We believe
that an integrated focus between traditional telecommunications products and our broadband network and portals will create revenue generating
potential in the future.

Internet Services

     As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 1.1 million Internet access customers in Sweden, which represented over 40 percent of the
Internet services market in Sweden, and an approximately 15 percent increase in the number of subscribers compared to December 31, 2001.

     Sweden has one of the highest penetration rates of Internet access and broadband among the member states
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of the European Union, reaching approximately 56 percent at the end of 2002. We currently offer a wide range of Internet connections in various
bandwidths to both residential and business subscribers in Sweden, including:

� PSTN dial-up Internet access, our simplest connection which provides speeds of up to 56 Kbps (Kilobits per second) depending
on the user�s modem;

� ISDN dial-up Internet access, which is available at speeds of 64 Kbps or 128 Kbps;

� ADSL, with broadband communication over copper wire, available at various speeds: 250 Kbps, 500 Kbps and 2 Mbps for
residential customers, and 500 Kbps, 1 Mbps or 2 Mbps for business customers;

� Ethernet, which provides communication over a fiber network to residential customers at speeds of up to 10 Mbps; and

� ProLane, a dedicated access service for large businesses, which provides nearly unlimited capacity.
     We believe that our array of Internet access services will continue to provide us with revenue-generating potential by offering our subscribers
high speed Internet access at competitive prices.

     The table below sets forth the approximate number of access accounts for our Internet and data communications business in Sweden for the
periods specified:

As of ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Dial-up 763 747 687
Broadband:

ADSL/LAN 317 194 27
ProLane 4 3 2

Total broadband 321 197 29

Total accesses 1,084 944 716

     Our PSTN access service provides connections to a subscriber�s premises and access for basic telecommunications and dial-up Internet
services. PSTN access customers in Sweden are charged fixed network charges based on minutes of use. We also offer ISDN access services in
Sweden which allows a single access line to be used simultaneously for multiple purposes, provides higher quality connections and increases the
bandwidth capacity of the access market. We offer both basic ISDN access lines, which offer two channels and are suited for residential and
small business customers, and primary ISDN access lines, which offer 30 channels and are suited for medium-size to large businesses.

     We remain the leading provider of dial-up access services in Sweden, where we have an estimated 40 percent market share. We also remain a
market leader in Sweden for serving the growing demand for high speed Internet access. We expect future growth rates to decrease as the dial-up
market matures and subscribers migrate to broadband services.

     We are also developing certain access-related services in Sweden that are designed to support and facilitate Internet use, such as
voice-over-IP, and other types of communications related services. As part of our efforts to create a service portfolio with long-term growth and
sustainable profitability, we have closed down many of our previous portal, content and hosting services, which were unprofitable.

Data Services

     We are the largest provider of data communications services in Sweden with a market share of almost 60 percent. We focus on
network-based high value-added data communication and multimedia services. Although our network-based services are based mainly on
traditional technologies, we are developing products based on other technologies, such as IP.
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     We provide customized corporate data network solutions, such as private networks, virtual private networks and IP-based virtual private
networks, including design, service level agreements, technical advice and support. We offer standardized data communication services, such as
managed leased lines, ATM (also known as Asynchronous Transfer Mode, a system which allows high-speed digital communications permitting
the
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transmission of different types of data, such as voice and text, simultaneously), ADSL, LAN (Local Area Network) interconnect (a short
distance data transmission network designed to interconnect personal computers, workstations, printers and various other devices), VPN (also
known as Virtual Private Networks, secure private communication paths through one or more data networks that is dedicated between two points
allowing data to safely and privately pass over public networks such as the Internet), Frame Relay (a system based on packet-switching
technology providing high data transmission), X.25 (a worldwide protocol for communications services using packet-switched networks) and
packaged products. We also sell data services from other operators, such as our associated company Infonet, individually and packaged with
other of our products.

Wholesale

     We offer other operators and service providers a range of PSTN and ISDN access services as well as a range of other access products
including high speed Internet and telecommunications services, broadband access (based on Ethernet and on ADSL) and wholesale IP and
ADSL access.

     We offer telecommunications carriers and value-added resellers leased broadband lines capacities from 2 Mbps to 155 Mbps. We also offer
bandwidth capacity at transmission speeds between 2 Mbps and 155 Mbps to Internet service providers and Internet content providers.

     We offer ducts, dark fiber, optical channels, copper access and co-location services to other carriers. Dark fiber refers to a part of a fiber optic
cable that is not connected to transmission electronics. In a dark fiber sale, another communications provider purchases rights to one or more of
our fibers for its own use, and is responsible for providing its own transmission electronics to enable the fiber to carry traffic. Our co-location
services permit carriers to extend and expand their networks by housing their own computing and telecommunications equipment, such as
routers and servers, inside our secure premises.

     We also provide network management services including remote supervision and terminal-based operational troubleshooting and error
analysis. Traffic routing and rerouting provide information on the operational status of the network to customers. Other network management
services are provided to secure the network functions. The implementation of local loop unbundling is expected to increase competition at the
service provider level.

TeliaSonera Finland

Overview

     Finland has a well-developed economy based on its traditional forestry, engineering and metal industries. The rapidly growing
telecommunications and electronics industries have taken a more prominent role in the last decade and have expanded to employ an increasing
share of the country�s five million inhabitants. The Finnish telecommunications market is highly developed, resulting in part from the relatively
high IT penetration and the early opening of the telecommunications market to competition.

     In Finland, we operate as a full-range supplier of telecommunications services, mainly under the Sonera brand. Our product range includes
mobile communications, fixed voice services, Internet and data communications as well as value-added services and support.

     We have a strong presence in the Consumer segment in the Finnish telecommunications market. We are the market leader in mobile
communications and among the leading providers of broadband and fixed network services. Nonetheless, we face strong competition in Finland
in mobile communications, Internet and fixed network services.

     We are a leader in the Business segment in the Finnish telecommunications market and our customers in this segment include approximately
120,000 Finnish companies. Demand for Internet and data services by Finland�s small and medium-size companies is particularly high. We
intend to work more closely with our customers in this business segment by, among other things, taking advantage of our wide range of products
and services and developing more customized, modular solutions for each customer.

     With approximately 400 customers in the Large Corporate segment, we are among the leading suppliers of mobile communications, fixed
voice services and telecommunications-related IT services to large companies and organizations in Finland. We aim to further develop our
position in this customer segment by continuing to create customized solutions and flexible cost structures for each of our customers through the
broad range of
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products and services we offer.

     In Finland, our business in the Operators segment is operated by two entities, Sonera Carrier Networks and Sonera Mobile Networks. Sonera
Carrier Networks conducts the fixed network operator business and Sonera Mobile Networks conducts the mobile network operator business of
TeliaSonera Finland. The two units provide operator services on equal and non-discriminatory terms to service providers and other wholesale
customers both within and outside the TeliaSonera Group.

Mobile Communications Finland

     We are the leading mobile telecommunications operator in Finland. In 2002, our mobile communications business in Finland generated net
sales of SEK 11,208 million. We offer digital mobile services in Finland through our GSM 900 and GSM 1800 networks. Additionally, we offer
a GPRS service as a part of our GSM service. We estimate that our market share of GSM subscriptions in Finland at the end of 2002 was over
55 percent. The aggregate penetration rate of digital and analog mobile communications services in Finland is estimated to be one of the highest
in the world, having exceeded 85 percent in December 2002.

     We are one of three licensed providers of GSM 900 networks in Finland. Currently, our GSM 900 network covers approximately 97 percent
of Finland�s geographical area and over 99 percent of its population. We also hold one of four nationwide GSM 1800 network licenses in
Finland. We use our GSM 1800 network as a cost-effective means of increasing the capacity of our GSM 900 network, predominantly in urban
areas with significant amounts of mobile traffic. We offer a dual band service in Finland that can utilize both our GSM 900 and GSM 1800
networks through the use of dual band handsets. As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately 2.5 million GSM subscriptions, of which less
than two percent were pre-paid subscriptions.

     We discontinued our Finnish NMT 450 mobile services on December 31, 2002, and stopped opening new NMT 450 subscriptions on
August 15, 2001, due to decreased monthly usage of our Finnish NMT 450 subscribers and the migration of NMT 450 subscribers to GSM
services.

     Our mobile communications business generates revenues from voice services, which include voice traffic revenues, connection fees and
monthly subscription charges, and non-voice services. Voice service revenues also include revenues derived from service operators, which
consist of operators that manage their own customers but utilize our network infrastructure.

     Voice traffic revenues consist of traffic charges paid by mobile subscribers, interconnection fees, fixed line to mobile call charges and
roaming fees from calls made by subscribers of foreign mobile network operators while in Finland and calls made or received outside of Finland
by our subscribers using another mobile operator�s network. Voice traffic revenues depend principally upon the total number of subscriptions,
traffic volume, the mix of services utilized by subscribers and tariffs applicable to such services.

     Non-voice revenues include revenues from SMS messages, SMS-based content and transaction services, mobile data and other value-added
services.

Voice Services

     The table below sets forth selected subscription data for our mobile communications businesses in Finland as of the dates specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

( in thousands)
Subscriptions:

GSM, post-paid 2,452 2,376 2,231
GSM, pre-paid 38 46 51
NMT � 38 56

Total subscriptions 2,490 2,460 2,338

Subscriptions via service providers 35 50 27
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     During the last few years, our subscriber growth in Finland has slowed down due to the high penetration levels in Finland of over 85 percent.
We believe, nevertheless, that we have additional means to grow revenue and profitability through initiatives such as new data services, as well
as through the continuing evolution of Finland as a wireless telecommunications environment in which many subscribers have more than one
mobile
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connection. Nevertheless, we expect that the growth of our mobile subscriber base will continue to slow down in the future due to the high
penetration rate and increased competition in the Finnish telecommunications market.

     Our customer churn rate in Finland was 12.6 percent, 10.1 percent and 9.7 percent for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. We continuously seek to manage customer churn through customer loyalty programs, special offerings for targeted segments and
high network quality. In addition, our customer service, our computerized credit-checking procedures and the lack of handset subsidies in the
Finnish market have also contributed to our relatively low customer churn rate in Finland.

     The table below sets forth selected traffic data for our mobile services in Finland for the periods indicated:

Year ended
December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Total traffic (in millions of minutes)(1) 4,480 4,215 3,724
Average subscriber usage (minutes per month)(2) 151 145 139
Average revenue per user (� per month)(3) 40.0 40.5 40.4
Mobile generated SMS messages sent (in millions of messages) 796 744 618
Average SMS messages sent per subscriber (messages per month) 27.2 26.4 25.2

(1) Includes outgoing mobile to mobile and mobile to fixed line calls and calls from subscribers of other operators roaming in our network.
Traffic generated by service operator subscriptions is excluded.

(2) Average monthly minutes of use per subscription is calculated by dividing total outgoing traffic by the average number of subscriptions
for the period divided by the number of months in the period. Service operator subscriptions and related traffic are excluded.

(3) Average monthly revenue per user is calculated by dividing revenues for the period by the average number of subscriptions for the
period, divided by the number of months in the period. Service operator subscriptions and related revenues are excluded.

     Growth in total traffic on our Finnish GSM network since 2000 has been due to the growth in our Finnish GSM subscriber base as well as
higher average monthly minutes of use per subscription. Continued traffic volume growth on our GSM network will depend on a number of
factors, including pricing and the availability of new services, general economic conditions, the overall mix of our subscriptions and the level of
competition for obtaining new subscriptions.

Non-voice services

     The importance of non-voice services to our mobile communications business in Finland has increased in recent years as customers have
become familiar with SMS messaging, the means by which many of our value-added services are provided. In 2002, non-voice services
represented approximately 12 percent of our mobile communications revenue in Finland, as compared to approximately 12 percent in 2001 and
ten percent in 2000. We expect that the share of non-voice services as a percentage of the revenues for our mobile communications business in
Finland will grow in the long term.

     Sonera introduced SMS messaging in May 1995. In 2002, our GSM subscribers in Finland sent 796 million SMS messages, an increase of
seven percent from 2001. We also offer a number of services in Finland that utilize SMS messaging technology, including transmission of an
SMS message to a fax machine or a GSM e-mail address and group SMS messaging that enables a user to send an SMS message to a group of
recipients selected by the user.

     In June 2002, we launched MMS services in Finland. Our MMS service is available to all our Finnish mobile subscribers, and allows our
Finnish customers with MMS enabled mobile phones to send and receive messages containing images, text and sound to and from TeliaSonera�s,
Radiolinja�s and DNA�s mobile phone subscriptions, and in 30 other countries with 45 networks.

     Our mobile infrastructure in Finland also provides a platform for wireless data applications including e-mail and access to corporate LANs.
To increase the data capacity of our mobile network, we also offer multi-slot HSCSD (High Speed Circuit Switched Data) services in our
network in Finland. HSCSD increases the transmission speed of a single slot from 9.6 Kbps to 14.4 Kbps and allows a single user to utilize up to
four timeslots at the same time and with data transmission speeds of up to 56 Kbps. As a result, HSCSD supports a greater number of mobile
applications.
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     We have offered GPRS services throughout Finland since March 2001. Our GPRS service currently achieves a transmission rate of up to 100
kbits per second. However, the current terminals in the market can only operate up to a speed of approximately 40 kbits per second.

     We offer a wide variety of SMS, WAP (Wireless Application Protocol) and MMS-based content services in Finland. Among the most
popular services are directory services, which enable a subscriber to look up a person�s telephone number or to identify the holder of a telephone
number using SMS messaging, account query services, that enable the subscriber to obtain the current balance of his or her mobile bill, and
different ringing tone and icon services. We also offer a wide range of WAP and MMS-based content services together with our content
partners. In early 2003, we introduced a range of services for the new multimedia handsets with color displays.

     We opened our UMTS network for technical testing in Finland on January 1, 2002. We expect to be able to open the network for commercial
use during 2003, provided that the maturity of the UMTS network technology and the commercial availability of dual mode UMTS/GSM
handsets are sufficient. In September 2002, we launched third generation services, which can initially be used in the existing mobile network.

Tariffs

     We charge subscribers in Finland an initial connection fee, monthly subscription charges and traffic charges for outgoing calls based on
minutes of use, for outgoing SMS and MMS messages based on the number of messages sent, and for GPRS usage based on the amount of data
transferred. Subscribers in Finland are not charged for incoming calls (other than calls received while roaming) although we receive
interconnection fees from other telecommunications service providers for these calls. Subscribers in Finland are charged monthly service fees
for other value-added services, such as Multi Data Service, and are charged per-minute or per-transaction fees for other services such as certain
content services. While charges for the provision of mobile communications services are not subject to direct regulation in Finland, Finnish
telecommunications regulation and competition law subject operators with a significant market power or dominant market positions, including
us, to cost-based and non-discriminatory pricing requirements. See �Item 4.B Business Overview � Regulation.�

Fixed Communications Finland

Fixed Voice Services

     We provide a full range of fixed network telecommunications services in Finland for both residential and business customers. Our fixed voice
services in Finland provides access to local calling, domestic long distance calling and international calling. Despite increased competition since
the liberalization of fixed network services in Finland in 1994, our fixed network voice services in Finland have continued to be a stable source
of revenue, generating net sales of SEK 2,665 million in 2002.

     Local Voice Services

     We are the market leader in providing local voice services in our traditional service areas in Finland, located principally in the more sparsely
populated areas of eastern and northern Finland. In addition to TeliaSonera, approximately 60 local telephone companies provide local telephone
services in Finland. Many of these companies have maintained monopolies in their traditional local service areas, which cover most of the larger
towns and urban areas of Finland.

     The following table sets forth information regarding our access lines in Finland at the end of the periods indicated:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Standard lines 503 533 562
ISDN lines 50 51 48
2 Mbps lines 4 4 4

     The number of total access lines has decreased slightly over the past few years. Despite liberalization of the local calling market in 1994,
there has been little competition in the Finnish local call market because charges
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for leasing existing local operators� networks remain high principally since potential new entrants would have to build out their own network
infrastructure to offer local service. We are installing fiber optic loops in the largest cities in Finland and are marketing direct local access to
business customers in those areas. We believe that the usage of our fixed network will shift from voice services to data, Internet and media
applications and that competition for local customers in the heavily populated areas of Finland will increase as charges for leasing existing
operators� networks fall and customers choose service providers based on the quality of customer service and their range of service offerings
which are, to an increasing extent, going to be based on ADSL and other broadband technologies. We further believe that, while local access
competition in our sparsely populated service areas in Finland will remain more limited than in urban regions, the number of local access
customers in such regions will decline as customers move to urban areas and the use of mobile phones increases.

     As a result of the population decrease in our traditional operating areas in Eastern and Northern Finland, together with the growing shift in
voice traffic toward mobile communications, we have explored the possibility of providing local access to these regions using GSM technology.
We currently have approximately 400 GSM technology based wireless lines in operational use in Finland.

     The following table sets forth information regarding local call traffic generated by our fixed line subscribers in Finland for the periods
indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Traffic (in millions of minutes)(1) 1,730 1,817 1,834

(1) Minutes accrued from calls originating on our fixed network and terminated within the same telecommunications area.
     We provide domestic long distance voice services for both residential and business customers. We are among the leading providers of long
distance voice services with an estimated market share of over 30 percent. Overall long distance traffic volumes in Finland, however, have
declined in recent years principally due to increased mobile phone usage.

     The following table sets forth information regarding domestic long distance voice traffic generated by our subscribers in Finland for the
periods indicated, in terms of minutes accrued from calls utilizing our trunk network, including long distance calls placed by subscribers of other
service operators which are routed through our trunk network:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Traffic (in millions of minutes)(1) 484 518 588

(1) Minutes accrued from calls utilizing our trunk network including long distance calls placed by subscribers of other service operators
which are routed through our trunk network.

     We are the leading provider of international voice services in Finland. Our share of the Finnish international call market, based on total
volume of outgoing minutes, was approximately 50 percent in 2002. Prior to 1994, Sonera had an exclusive right to provide international calling
services in Finland. The international call market was opened to competition in 1994 and customers typically choose international long distance
carriers on a call-by-call basis by dialing a prefix associated with that providers� service.

     Tariffs

     We charge our fixed line customers an initial connection fee, monthly subscription charges and local, domestic long distance and
international traffic charges for outgoing calls. We have higher connection fees and monthly subscription charges for ISDN and 2 Mbps lines
than for standard connections. In general, the prices of local and long distance telephone services in Finland are relatively low by international
standards.

Internet and Data Services

     In 2002, our Internet and data communications business in Finland generated external sales of SEK 2,441 million.
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     Internet Services

     We are among the leading providers of Internet services and cable television in Finland. As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately
252,000 residential Internet subscriptions in Finland.

     We offer dial-up services, as well as ADSL and cable access services on the rapidly growing broadband market in Finland. We also offer a
variety of other Internet services to our access customers.

     We are the second largest cable television service provider in Finland and offer a variety of innovative cable television services, including
cable television Internet access. Currently, we provide cable television access to approximately 154,000 households through our own broadband
cable network. Our cable Internet services are currently being expanded to the major cities in Finland covered by our cable network.

     In 2000, Sonera began offering consumers the ability to subscribe for a broadband service based on ADSL technology. The service, known as
Sonera Home ADSL, uses existing telephone cables and has a transfer rate of up to two Mbps per second. Subscribers to our ADSL broadband
service in Finland receive an always-on Internet connection at a fixed monthly price without separate usage or call charges. In addition to Home
ADSL and other consumer-oriented Internet subscription products, we offer a range of Internet subscriptions and related services to business and
corporate customers.

     Our Sonera Internet portal service, www.soneraplaza.fi, is the most frequently visited portal in Finland recording monthly over 1.6 million
unique users during 2002. We estimate that our portal service reaches almost 90 percent of the Internet users in Finland on a monthly basis. The
popularity and variety of our portal service has also enabled Sonera Plaza to emerge as a leading online advertising media in Finland.

     Data Services

     We provide data communications and network and systems management services in Finland for business customers. Our data services
business in Finland includes two product areas, basic data services, and LAN interconnection and management services and systems for servers
and workstations. Our basic data transfer services in Finland include DataPak X.25 packet-switching services and FastNet managed leased line
services. Our LAN interconnection and management services in Finland include DataNet, which provides managed communications packages
that utilize a number of underlying technologies including frame relay, ATM and IP. In recent years, Sonera�s strategic focus has shifted from
standardized data transmission to the development of higher value-added services, such as LAN interconnection and management services,
which offer customers comprehensive communications solutions. Our data communications service customers in Finland include the largest
corporations in Finland, small and medium-size enterprises (SMEs) and public organizations.

     We also provide the corporate information and communication technology market with advanced application and management services.
Sonera enables customers to purchase applications as a service package together with development, maintenance and updating services. In
addition, Sonera provides infrastructure management services covering workstations, mobile smart phones and other wireless communications
devices, LANs, remote networks, servers and other data processing platforms and customer applications. Sonera also provides Internet hosting
services, which enable subscribers to establish a World Wide Web site on one of Sonera�s servers.

     In addition, we are a provider of leased lines, which are fixed point-to-point connections for the transmission of voice and data traffic
between two geographically separate points. Our leased line service does not include the provision of managed leased lines, which are offered as
part of our data communication services. Customers lease lines from us in Finland both for their own use and for use in providing
telecommunications services to third parties. Although the total number of lines we lease in Finland has decreased since 1996, total transmission
capacity of our leased lines has increased significantly due principally to the increase in the number of higher capacity digital lines leased.

TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and the Baltic Countries

     We offer mobile services in Norway and mobile services, cable TV and a limited number of fixed network services in Denmark through our
wholly owned subsidiaries. In the Baltic countries, we offer a full range of telecommunications services through our non-wholly owned
subsidiaries and associated companies. In the mobile communications market, we are the market leader in the Baltic countries, second in
Norway and fourth in Denmark. We also have a significant market position in the fixed voice services in Denmark.
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     The telecommunications markets in Norway and Denmark are highly developed with high penetration in the fixed and mobile
communications markets. Penetration in the Baltic countries is significantly lower, which management believes creates opportunities for future
growth.

     Our goal for TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and the Baltic countries is to strengthen our market position further, to generate growth and to
improve profitability by leveraging our market presence in the region. With the completion of the merger of Telia and Sonera, TeliaSonera now
consolidates the Baltic mobile operators UAB Omnitel and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons SIA, and the fixed network operator AB Lietuvos
Telekomas, thereby increasing possibilities for economies of coordination.

     We believe there are growth opportunities for us in the mobile communications market in Norway, Denmark and the Baltic countries. In
addition, we believe that the Internet access and broadband markets in Estonia, Latvia and Lithuania exhibit growth potential, and our strong
position within the fixed network telecommunications markets in these countries gives us a good position to seek to exploit this growth potential.

     In the future, if opportunities for profitable expansion arise, we will aim to offer a full range of services in all markets in the region.

Norway

     We offer mobile services in Norway through our wholly owned subsidiary, NetCom. Telia acquired NetCom, the second largest mobile
operator in Norway, in 2000. In 2002, our Norwegian mobile communications business recorded net sales of SEK 5,537 million. As of
December 31, 2002, NetCom had 1,088,000 direct subscribers as well as an additional 90,000 subscribers via service providers which offer their
own service packages and billing operations but utilize NetCom�s network. The market for mobile communications in Norway is highly
developed, with a penetration rate of approximately 85 percent.

     NetCom offers both GSM 900 and GSM 1800 services and launched a GPRS service in 2001. NetCom is one of two GSM operators in
Norway, the other being Telenor, the incumbent operator.

     NetCom offers a wide range of mobile service packages in Norway designed to appeal to different categories of subscribers, including
packages offering different types of subscription plans, pre-paid cards, portal access, corporate service packages and several innovative
value-added services, including location-based services, transactional services, entertainment services and information services.

Voice Services

     The table below shows selected subscription data for our mobile services in Norway as of the dates specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Subscriptions:

GSM, post-paid 542 469 417
GSM, pre-paid 546 501 433

Total subscribers 1,088 970 850

Subscribers via service providers 90 112 50

     As at December 31, 2002, NetCom�s market share of the Norwegian mobile communications market was approximately 30 percent. NetCom�s
churn rate was 29 percent for the year ended December 31, 2002. For purposes of calculating customer churn, NetCom generally treats pre-paid
subscribers as disconnections 12 months following their last account top-up, which is the point at which they are physically disconnected from
NetCom�s network.

     The following table sets forth selected traffic data for our GSM services in Norway for the periods indicated excluding service provider
traffic. Information with respect to traffic relates to both contract and pre-paid subscribers:
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Year ended
December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Total traffic (in millions of minutes) 1,887 1,450 1,245
Average subscriber usage (minutes per month) 156 136 139
Average revenue per user (NOK per month) 345 310 308
Mobile generated SMS messages sent (in millions of messages) 756 501 302
Average monthly SMS messages sent per subscriber (messages) 61 46 32

     The total traffic in our Norwegian operations increased by 30 percent in 2002 as compared to 2001, largely as a result of continued growth in
our GSM subscriber base. Continued traffic volume growth in our GSM network will depend on a number of factors, including pricing, the
availability of new services and competition.

Non-voice Services

     Telia commercially launched GPRS services in Norway in January 2001. NetCom�s GPRS service allows subscribers to transmit a specified
amount of data per month for a fixed monthly fee. Once the monthly allowance has been used, the customer is charged per kilobyte for any
additional data transmissions. NetCom also offers its subscribers WAP-based services.

     We have not yet set the launch date for UMTS services in Norway. NetCom and Telenor hold UMTS licenses in Norway which they received
in 2000. UMTS licenses of the two other recipients, Tele2 Norge AS and Broadband Mobile ASA, have been revoked by the Norwegian
regulatory authorities. Although the original terms of the UMTS licenses issued to NetCom and Telenor required them to have UMTS networks
in place covering 76.5 percent of Norway�s population by the end of 2003, the Norwegian government issued a decision in the beginning of 2003
postponing the deadline for the UMTS network build-out by 15 months.

     In addition, NetCom operates mobile portals for the Norwegian market which allow end-users to access the Internet through their mobile
handsets.

Denmark

     In Denmark, we offer mobile and fixed voice services to business and consumer customers, and network capacity to operators and service
providers. We market these services under the Telia brand. Additionally, we offer broadband Internet and cable TV services through our wholly
owned subsidiary Telia Stofa.

Mobile Communications

     We offer both GSM 900 and GSM 1800 services in Denmark and began offering GPRS services and MMS services in 2002. As of
December 31, 2002, we had 466,000 subscribers in Denmark. In 2002, our mobile communications business in Denmark recorded net sales of
SEK 1,021 million.

     We have a national roaming agreement with Sonofon A/S regarding our GSM 900 service. Telia was one of four operators to receive a
UMTS license in Denmark, together with the incumbent mobile operator TDC, Orange A/S and Hi3G Denmark ApS.

     Voice Services

     The table below shows selected subscription data for our mobile services in Denmark as of the dates specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
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GSM, post-paid 329 134 112
GSM, pre-paid 137 154 151

Total subscribers 466 288 263

     As at December 31, 2002, we had an approximate ten percent share of the Danish mobile communications market.
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     The following table sets forth selected traffic data for our GSM services in Denmark for the periods indicated, excluding service provider
traffic. Information with respect to traffic relates to both contract and pre-paid subscribers:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Total traffic (in millions of minutes) 473 314 259
Average subscriber usage (minutes per month) 105 95 100
Average revenue per user (DKK per month) 183 178 171
Mobile generated SMS messages sent (in millions of messages) 175 61 39
Average monthly SMS messages sent per subscriber (messages) 39 19 15

     The total traffic in our Danish mobile operations increased by 51 percent in 2002 as compared to 2001, largely as a result of continued growth
in our GSM subscriber base.

     Non-voice Services

     In December 2002, we introduced MMS services in Denmark, and, in April 2003, entered into an agreement with Sonofon allowing MMS
messages to be sent between subscribers of TeliaSonera and Sonofon.

     We commercially launched GPRS services in Denmark in February 2002. Our Danish GPRS service allows subscribers to transmit a
specified amount of data per month for a fixed monthly fee. Once the monthly allowance has been used, the customer is charged per kilobyte for
any additional data transmissions.

     Telia was one of four operators to receive a UMTS license in Denmark. We have not yet set the launch date for our UMTS services in
Denmark. The license conditions require a population coverage of 30 percent by the end of 2004 and of 80 percent by the end of 2008.

Fixed Communications

     We conducted a review of our Danish fixed network operations in 2002 with a view to valuing the operations� assets and assessing the
strategic focus of the operations. As a result of such review, we decided to restructure and streamline our fixed network operations in Denmark.
In particular, we have shut down certain unprofitable businesses in Denmark and significantly reduced the number of full- and part-time
employees. We expect to see the full benefits of the restructuring in Denmark starting at the end of 2003. In 2002, our fixed communications
business in Denmark generated net sales of SEK 1,762 million.

     Fixed Voice Services

     Our fixed voice business in Denmark has shown unsatisfactory development and measures were taken in 2002 to alter this trend. We have
ceased selling unprofitable products and are concentrating on offering fixed voice services to businesses and consumers, and network capacity
for operators and service providers. We are the third largest fixed voice services provider in the Danish retail market and the second largest
network capacity provider in Denmark. The dominant player in the market for fixed voice services in Denmark is TDC.

     As of December 31, 2002, we had 257,000 contract and prefix subscriptions in Denmark.

     We provide wholesale network services in Denmark, both to entities within the TeliaSonera group and to external service providers and
operators. We are the second largest owner of infrastructure in Denmark, where we have a nationwide 7,000 kilometer long fiber optic backbone
network, an IP network covering Denmark�s four largest cities, a nationwide telecommunications network and fiber rings in 55 locations (TDC
local exchanges) throughout Denmark, including Copenhagen.

Internet and Data Services

     We offer IP/VPN services to business customers and a wide range of Internet connections in various bandwidths to both residential and
business subscribers in Denmark, including ISDN, ADSL, ethernet and cable broadband.
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     The table below sets forth the approximate number of our Internet access accounts in Denmark for the periods specified:
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As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Internet dial-up access 94 89 78
Internet broadband users 81 58 30

Total access accounts 175 147 108

Cable TV Services

     We offer both analog cable and digital television to our subscribers in Denmark through our subsidiary Telia Stofa. We had approximately
13 percent of the cable television market in Denmark as of December 31, 2002, with approximately 188,000 cable television subscribers. We are
the second largest cable TV provider in Denmark and the largest broadband Internet access provider through cable TV.

     The table below sets forth the approximate number cable TV subscriptions in Denmark for the periods specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
Cable TV subscriptions 188 179 175

The Baltic Countries

Lithuania Mobile

     We offer mobile services in Lithuania through Omnitel, in which we hold a 55 percent interest. Omnitel is the largest of the three mobile
operators in Lithuania. As of December 31, 2002, Omnitel had approximately 850,000 subscribers using its GSM network, giving it an
approximate 54 percent share of the Lithuanian mobile market. Omnitel�s GSM network covers approximately 99 percent and 98 percent of
Lithuania�s population and geographic area, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2002, Omnitel�s net sales amounted to SEK
1,840 million.

     The table below shows GSM subscription data for our mobile services in Lithuania as of the dates specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
GSM 850 557 307

     Omnitel commercially launched its GSM 900 service in March 1995. Omnitel�s current GSM 900 license was granted in October 1997 by the
Lithuanian Ministry of Communications and Information and is valid until October 2007, subject to renewal thereafter. Omnitel was granted a
GSM 1800 license in 1998. Omnitel offers its subscribers a wide range of value-added features, including GPRS services (which were launched
in February 2001). Omnitel�s main competitors in the markets for mobile communications services in Lithuania include UAB Bite GSM and
UAB Tele2, both of which provide GSM 900 and GSM 1800 services. Omnitel also provides commercial Internet services, data transmission
services, using X.25 and X.28 protocol, and nationwide paging services.
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     Omnitel�s other shareholders are Motorola Lithuania Telecom, a Lithuanian subsidiary of Motorola Corporation, with a 35 percent
shareholding, and the Kazickas family, with a ten percent shareholding.

Lithuania Fixed

     We offer fixed voice services, Internet and data communications services in Lithuania through Lietuvos Telekomas, in which we hold a
60 percent interest. Lietuvos Telekomas is the leading provider of fixed line telecommunications services in Lithuania. As of December 31,
2002, Lietuvos Telekomas had approximately 936,000 access lines. In 2002, Lietuvos Telekomas� net sales amounted to SEK 2,557 million.

     Up to December 31, 2002, Lietuvos Telekomas had the exclusive right to be the sole operator of Lithuania�s
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public fixed telephone network and the sole provider of public fixed telephone services in Lithuania. However, Lietuvos Telekomas faces
significant competition in the fixed line market from Lithuanian mobile operators, which, under the terms of their past licenses, have had the
right to provide international telecommunications services. During the past several years, Lietuvos Telekomas has made substantial investments
in its fixed line communications networks. At the end of 2002, approximately 86 percent of access lines in use by Lietuvos Telekomas in
Lithuania were connected to digital exchanges as compared to approximately 34 percent at the end of 1999. Lietuvos Telekomas� digital system
allows it to offer customers additional services such as call waiting, conference calling and other value-added services. Lietuvos Telekomas has
also been investing significantly in the modernization of its network.

     Lietuvos Telekomas offers a nationwide data transmission service that utilizes X.25 or X.28 protocols, two world-wide protocols for
transmitting data in packet switched format, via leased lines or via modem using the public switched telephone network.

     Lietuvos Telekomas� other major shareholders include the Republic of Lithuania, which retains an approximately ten percent interest. In 1999,
in accordance with Lithuanian legislation, the Republic of Lithuania offered approximately five percent of the share capital of Lietuvos
Telekomas to employees of Lietuvos Telekomas, thus reducing the Republic of Lithuania�s interest in the company from 40 percent to
approximately 35 percent. In June 2000, the Republic of Lithuania sold, as part of an international and domestic offering, an additional
25 percent interest in Lietuvos Telekomas, thus reducing the Republic of Lithuania�s interest in the company to approximately ten percent.
During the offering, UAB Lintkom, a wholly owned subsidiary of Lietuvos Telekomas, acquired and continues to hold 4.67 percent of Lietuvos
Telekomas� shares.

     Lietuvos Telekomas has lately experienced declining revenues and profitability. In 2002, net sales in local currency fell nine percent
compared to 2001, and during the first quarter of 2003, net sales in local currency fell 18 percent compared with the first quarter of 2002, in both
cases principally due to strong price competition from the mobile sector. The number of subscriber lines fell by 19 percent during 2002 and by
five percent during the first quarter of 2003. Lietuvos Telekomas has undergone extensive restructuring and has reduced the number of
employees by approximately 28 percent during 2002 and the first quarter of 2003. Although Lietuvos Telekomas has been able to significantly
adjust its operating expenses to respond to declining revenues, and maintain its EBITDA margin at approximately 50 percent, the lower level of
revenues has resulted in a lower absolute amount of net income. In addition, in the beginning of 2003, Lietuvos Telekomas agreed to lower its
interconnection fees and lower tariffs on calls between fixed line and mobile subscribers in Lithuania, which is expected to negatively impact
Lietuvos Telekomas� results of operations in 2003. Lietuvos Telekomas� continued focus is to win back customers and develop the Internet and
data business, taking advantage of its modern and developed network.

Latvia Mobile

     We offer mobile services in Latvia through Latvijas Mobilais Telefons, in which we hold a 60.3 percent direct and indirect interest. Latvijas
Mobilais Telefons is the largest mobile operator in Latvia. As of December 31, 2002, Latvijas Mobilais Telefons had approximately 474,000
subscribers, giving it approximately 55 percent of the total Latvian mobile market. For the year ended December 31, 2002, Latvijas Mobilais
Telefons� net sales amounted to SEK 1,815 million.

     The table below shows GSM subscription data for our mobile services in Latvia as of the dates specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
GSM 474 348 270

     Latvijas Mobilais Telefons commercially launched its NMT service in 1992 and its GSM service in 1996. The only competing provider of
mobile telecommunications services in Latvia is SIA Tele2, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Swedish telecommunications company Tele2 AB,
which currently has approximately 45 percent of the total Latvian mobile communications market. Latvijas Mobilais Telefons offers its
subscribers a wide range of value-added features, including mobile high speed data services. Beginning in September 2002, customers have also
been able to use high-speed GPRS data transmission services as well as MMS services. In July 1999, Latvijas Mobilais Telefons and SIA Tele2
were granted GSM 1800 licenses. Latvijas Mobilais Telefons began using the new frequency at the end of 1999 and SIA Tele2 in early 2000. In
July 2002, Zetcom
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started operating as a virtual network operator using the network of Latvijas Mobilais Telefons offering its customers pre-paid services. In
August 2002, Latvijas Mobilais Telefons and SIA Tele2 both received UMTS license in Latvia at a cost of approximately �10 million per license.
A third UMTS license was also offered by the Latvian government. However, because no new operator filed an application for the combined
GSM/UMTS license before the auction due date, under the rules of the auction, the third license cannot be granted until October 2004. Under the
terms of their licenses, Latvijas Mobilais Telefons and Tele2 are required to build a UMTS network covering 30 percent of the Latvia�s
population by the end of 2005.

     Latvijas Mobilais Telefons� other shareholders include Lattelekom, with a 23 percent interest, and the Republic of Latvia, which directly or
through its wholly owned affiliates has a 28 percent interest.

Latvia Fixed

     We offer fixed voice services, Internet and data communications services in Latvia through Lattelekom, in which we hold a 49 percent
interest. Lattelekom is the leading provider of fixed line telecommunications services in Latvia. The Republic of Latvia holds the remaining
51 percent of Lattelekom. As of December 31, 2002, Lattelekom had approximately 701,000 subscriber lines. In 2002, Lattelekom�s net sales
amounted to Latvian Lat 145 million. As of December 31, 2002, Lattelekom had total assets of Latvian Lat 302 million.

     Lattelekom has made substantial investments in its fixed line telecommunications network. At the end of 2002, approximately 83 percent of
all lines were connected to digital switches, compared to 69 percent in 2001 and only two percent in 1994. Lattelekom�s digital system allows it
to offer its customers additional services such as call waiting, call forwarding and other value-added services. Lattelekom also offers ISDN
services in the majority of Latvia�s most populated regions.

     Although voice telephone services remain its core business, Lattelekom has begun to offer many other types of telecommunications services,
including Internet access, data transmission and local area network connections. Lattelekom offers its customers data transmission services and
virtual private network services using X.25 protocol. In addition, Lattelekom also offers a DSL broadband service based on ADSL technology.

     In May 2002, the �Law On Avoidance of Conflict of Interests in Activities of State Officials� came into effect in the Republic of Latvia. The
terms of the law prohibit, among other activities, Latvian state officials from being employed by private commercial firms and impose civil
sanctions for violations of this restriction. Since the Republic of Latvia owns 51 percent of Lattelekom, the members of Lattelekom�s board of
directors may be considered to be Latvian state officials for purposes of the law. We currently have five nominees serving on Lattelekom�s
11-member board of directors. Our executives also serve as chief executive officer and chief financial officer of Lattelekom. If the TeliaSonera
employees serving on Lattelekom�s board of directors were considered to be in violation of the law, we may be required to relinquish our board
seats in Lattelekom, and, as such, we would lose our ability to influence and participate in Lattelekom�s important corporate actions and decision
making processes. Although we intend to retain our board seats in Lattelekom and remain in compliance with applicable Latvian laws, we
cannot be certain how this recently enacted law will be interpreted, applied or enforced. In addition, we cannot assure that we will be able to
obtain any exemption or waiver from the law that would permit our five employees to continue to serve on the board of directors of Lattelekom.

     In addition to our holding of ordinary shares in Lattelekom, we also hold 24,600 redeemable C shares of Lattelekom. Our redeemable C
shares may be converted into debt in the principal amount of $41 million at Lattelekom�s option. On such conversion, the debt will bear interest
at commercially available rates and will mature on December 31, 2003, or at such earlier date as Lattelekom may determine, subject to
Lattelekom having sufficient cash reserves. In July 2001, Lattelekom�s board of directors notified us that Lattelekom plans to proceed with a
financial restructuring which would include a conversion of the redeemable B and C shares into debt. Accordingly, if the anticipated
developments take place, our C shares of Lattelekom will be converted into debt in the principal amount of approximately $41 million in
December 2003.

     See �Item 8.A.7 Legal and Regulatory Proceedings� for a discussion of certain legal matters in which we are involved that relates to our
shareholding in Lattelekom.

     Up to December 31, 2002, Lattelekom had the exclusive right to be the sole provider of public basic fixed-line telecommunications services
in Latvia. On January 1, 2003, the Latvian telecommunications market was deregulated, opening up for competition in the fixed line services.
Beginning in 2002, Lattelekom began a restructuring program in order to make its operations more flexible in light of the liberalization of the
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telecommunications market in Latvia. Management expects that the deregulation of the Latvian telecommunications market will increase
competition and lead to a loss of customers, which will have a negative effect on Lattelekom�s business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Estonia Mobile

     We offer mobile services in Estonia via EMT (formerly, AS Eesti Mobiiltelefon), in which we have a 49 percent indirect interest. EMT is the
largest of the three mobile operators in Estonia. As of December 31, 2002, EMT had approximately 428,000 subscribers using its GSM network,
giving it approximately 50 percent of the total Estonian mobile market. EMT�s GSM network covers approximately 99 percent and 98 percent of
Estonia�s population and geographic area, respectively. In 2002, EMT�s net sales amounted to �157 million. As of December 31, 2002, EMT had
total assets of �110 million.

     The table below shows GSM subscription data for our mobile services in Estonia as of the dates specified:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands)
GSM 428 383 327

     EMT commercially launched its NMT service in 1991 and its GSM 900 service in 1995. EMT terminated its NMT services at the end of
2000. EMT has a GSM license granted by the Estonian Ministry of Transport and Communications (the �Estonian Ministry�) that is valid until
December 21, 2010. EMT also has a license granted by the Estonian Ministry to provide GSM 1800 services that is valid until December 21,
2010. Competing providers of mobile telecommunications services in Estonia include Radiolinja Eesti AS, a subsidiary of the Finnish GSM
operator Radiolinja, and Tele2 Eesti AS, which together currently have a 50 percent share of the Estonian mobile telecommunications market.

     EMT offers its subscribers a wide range of value-added features, including GPRS services and mobile high speed data services.

     We hold our indirect interest in EMT through our shareholding in AS Eesti Telekom, a publicly listed Estonian corporation, in which we
have a 49 percent ownership. EMT is a wholly owned subsidiary of Eesti Telekom. Other shareholders of Eesti Telekom include the Republic of
Estonia, which holds a 27.3 percent equity interest. The remaining 23.7 percent in Eesti Telekom is owned by the public. Eesti Telekom has a
ten member supervisory council elected by the annual general meeting of shareholders. TeliaSonera has four nominees and the Republic of
Estonia has two nominees on the supervisory council. EMT also has its own five member supervisory council in which TeliaSonera has three
nominees.

Estonia Fixed

     We offer fixed voice services, Internet and data communications in Estonia via Eesti Telefon, in which we have a 49 percent indirect interest.
Eesti Telefon is the leading provider of fixed line telecommunications services in Estonia. As of December 31, 2002, Eesti Telefon had
approximately 465,000 subscriber lines. In 2002, Eesti Telefon�s net sales amounted to �168 million. As of December 31, 2002, Eesti Telefon had
total assets of �158 million. On June 9, 2003, Eesti Telefon announced plans to rename the company to Elion Enterprises. The company is
scheduled to launch its new logo and corporate visual identity in the second half of August 2003.

     Until December 31, 2000, Eesti Telefon had exclusive rights to provide basic fixed line local, domestic long distance and international
telecommunications services in Estonia. The market for basic fixed line services was fully liberalized effective January 1, 2001, for which Eesti
Telefon had been actively preparing. In 2002, Eesti Telefon estimated its market share to be 70 percent of international call minutes and
88 percent of domestic call minutes.

     During the past several years, Eesti Telefon has made substantial investments in its fixed line telecommunications network. In addition, the
number of Eesti Telefon�s telephone lines connected to digital switches increased from 48 percent at the end of 1998 to approximately 75 percent
at the end of 2002. Customers connected to Eesti Telefon�s digital system can also subscribe to such services as call waiting, call forwarding,
conference calls and voice mail. Eesti Telefon also offers ISDN services in the majority of Estonia�s
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most populated regions as well as ADSL products. At December 31, 2002, Eesti Telefon had approximately 30,000 ADSL customers. In
cooperation with TeliaSonera, Eesti Telefon has created a data communications system between Estonia and Finland based on ATM technology
and has plans to develop a basic ATM network covering the entire country. Eesti Telefon also offers X.25 and frame relay data transmission
services as well as Internet access services. Eesti Telefon currently has approximately 70 percent of the market for dial-up Internet access
services in Estonia.

     We hold our indirect interest in Eesti Telefon through our shareholding in AS Eesti Telekom, a publicly listed Estonian corporation, in which
we have a 49 percent ownership. Eesti Telefon is a wholly owned subsidiary of Eesti Telekom. Other shareholders of Eesti Telekom include the
Republic of Estonia, which holds a 27.3 percent equity interest. The remaining 23.7 percent in Eesti Telekom is owned by the public. Eesti
Telekom has a ten member supervisory council elected by the annual general meeting of shareholders. TeliaSonera has four nominees and the
Republic of Estonia has two nominees on the supervisory council. Eesti Telefon also has its own five member supervisory council in which
TeliaSonera has three nominees.

TeliaSonera International

     We have made significant investments in mobile operators outside of the Nordic Region and the Baltic States that management believes have
substantial long-term growth potential and to which we can apply our technical and commercial know-how developed in our home market and in
other markets. We also report our international carrier activities within our TeliaSonera International segment.

     The following table sets forth certain information on our principal international mobile investments:

As of December 31, 2002

Percent of Number
Area Operator ownership of subscribers

(%) (in thousands)
Eurasia Fintur Holdings 58.55 1,614

-Azerbaijan      -Azercell 669
-Georgia      -Geocell 198
-Kazakhstan      -GSM Kazakhstan 615
-Moldova      -Moldcell 132

Russia MegaFon 43.8 3,030
Turkey Turkcell 37.3 15,730

Eurasia Mobile

     We have a 58.55 percent direct holding in Fintur Holdings B.V., a Dutch holding company engaging in the participation and management of
companies providing mobile communications services mainly in Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan and Moldova. The other shareholder of Fintur
is Turkcell, our associated company, of which we have a 37.3 percent interest. Our aggregate direct and indirect interest in Fintur is 74.0 percent.
In 2002, Fintur recorded revenues of SEK 2,329 million.

     Fintur was initially founded in 2000 to manage and hold Turkcell�s operations outside of Turkey and certain of the Çukurova Group�s
operations in Turkey. In February 2000, Turkcell transferred to Fintur its holdings in a number of companies, including all of its international
GSM investments other than its Northern Cyprus operations. Subsequently, Sonera became a 35 percent shareholder of Fintur through the
contribution of $127 million in cash and the Çukurova Group became a 40 percent shareholder of Fintur through the contribution of its holdings
in a number of telecommunications and multimedia companies. As a result of these transactions, Turkcell�s interest in Fintur decreased to
25 percent.

     In August 2002, Sonera and Turkcell purchased the Çukurova Group�s entire holding in Fintur for a total net consideration of $115 million
and $71 million, respectively. In addition, under the terms of the Fintur share purchase agreement, certain digital-TV, ISP and other data
transmission services businesses formerly held by Fintur were transferred to the Çukurova Group for a nominal consideration. As a result of the
transaction, we currently hold a 58.55 percent direct interest in Fintur and Fintur is consolidated into our consolidated financial statements.
Fintur�s current holdings primarily consist of mobile operators providing services in emerging
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mobile markets.

     Fintur presently holds, among others, (1) a 51.3 percent interest in Azercell Telecom B.M., which operates a GSM network in Azerbaijan,
(2) an 83.2 percent interest in Geocell LLC., which operates a GSM network in Georgia, (3) a 51 percent interest in GSM Kazakhstan LLP OAO
Kazakhtelecom, which operates a GSM network in Kazakhstan, and (4) a 100 percent interest in Moldcell S.A., which operates a GSM network
in Moldova. As of December 31, 2002, Azercell had approximately 669,000 subscribers, Geocell had approximately 198,000 subscribers, GSM
Kazakhstan had approximately 615,000 subscribers and Moldcell had approximately 132,000 subscribers to their respective GSM networks,
totaling approximately 1.6 million subscribers.

     TeliaSonera and Turkcell are parties to a shareholders� agreement regarding their respective shareholdings in Fintur. The agreement grants
Turkcell and the Çukurova Group certain rights of first refusal should we wish to sell all or part of our holding in Fintur to a third party. In
addition, we have certain rights of first refusal should Turkcell wish to sell all or part of its holding in Fintur to a third party.

     The Fintur shareholders� agreement also contains certain provisions relating to the governance and management of Fintur. Resolutions may be
passed by the shareholders� meeting by an affirmative vote of shares representing at least 51 percent of Fintur�s capital present at such meeting,
although resolutions regarding �important decisions,� which includes any amendment to Fintur�s articles of association, appointment or dismissal
of a member of the board of directors and any decision or transaction related to the public offering of Fintur shares, require a quorum of
66.67 percent of Fintur�s capital. Under the shareholders� agreement, Fintur is governed by a board of directors consisting of three members
nominated by us and two members nominated by Turkcell. Resolutions may be passed by the board with an affirmative vote of at least three
members of the board of directors, although �important decisions,� which include the approval of the annual budget and business plan and any
amendments thereto and the issue of bonds and other securities by Fintur, require a quorum of at least four board members.

Russia Mobile

     We have a 43.8 percent holding (35.6 percent directly and 8.2 percent indirectly through our holding in the holding company OAO
Telecominvest) in MegaFon. MegaFon (formerly, ZAO North-West GSM) was originally registered in St. Petersburg in June 1993 as a closed
joint stock company and began operations in December 1994 in St. Petersburg and in most of its other service areas in 1997. In August 2001,
Telecominvest, Telia, Sonera and CT Mobile entered into an agreement to combine North-West GSM, Sonic Duo and eight other regional
cellular operators to establish a nationwide cellular provider under the trade name �MegaFon.� The MegaFon merger was consummated in March
2002. In July 2002, the company was renamed �MegaFon� and registered as an open joint stock company. The other shareholders of MegaFon
include Telecominvest with a 31.3 percent holding, OOO CT-Mobile with a 25.1 percent holding, ZAO WestLink with a 1.5 percent holding and
the IPOC International Growth Fund Limited with a 6.5 percent holding.

     In the second half of 2001, MegaFon established a new 75 percent held subsidiary ZAO TTMobile, which currently operates a cellular
telecommunications network in Tajikistan. TTMobile began commercial operations in October 2001.

     The formation of the MegaFon group and the related mergers have brought about significant benefits, including a larger customer base in
Russia, the strengthening of MegaFon�s market position and synergies as a result of the elimination of overlapping mobile operations in Russia.

     For the year ended December 31, 2002, MegaFon�s revenues amounted to $406 million, as compared to revenues of $197 million for the year
ended December 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2002, MegaFon had total assets of $1,157 million.

     As of December 31, 2002, MegaFon had approximately three million subscribers, making it the third largest mobile operator in Russia as
measured by number of subscriptions. At December 31, 2002, the mobile operators comprising the MegaFon group had an approximate
65 percent market share in St. Petersburg, four percent market share in Moscow, 25 percent market share in the Volga region, 29 percent market
in the southern region and 16 percent market share in the Ural region. MegaFon offers GSM services in both GSM 900 and GSM 1800
networks. The MegaFon group�s licenses entitle it to operate in all 89 regions of Russia in a territory covering approximately 147 million people.
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     Currently, we have the joint right together with CT-Mobile to approve the general director of MegaFon, whose nomination is to be made by
Telecominvest. Additionally, we have the right to nominate two of the seven members of the board of MegaFon, while CT-Mobile and
Telecominvest have the right to nominate two and three board members, respectively. One of Telecominvest�s board members of MegaFon will
be nominated by us.

     In February 2002, Sonic Duo, currently a subsidiary of MegaFon, obtained financing from the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development (EBRD), the International Finance Corporation (IFC) and other bank lenders in the aggregate amount of $126 million, which was
completely drawn down during 2002. Sonic Duo�s shareholders initially pledged their shares in Sonic Duo to the EBRD, the IFC and the other
bank lenders involved, and Sonera also provided a limited guarantee covering Sonic Duo�s payment obligations. The Sonic Duo shareholders�
pledge has been replaced by a pledge of Sonic Duo shares by MegaFon. In addition, MegaFon has guaranteed up to $18 million of the loan, and
a majority of MegaFon�s shareholders, including TeliaSonera, have in turn jointly and severally counter-guaranteed MegaFon�s guarantee up to
$14 million. In addition, MegaFon�s shareholders, including TeliaSonera, have capital commitments of up to $33 million to Sonic Duo. In the
first quarter of 2003, Sonic Duo was in breach of certain provisions of its loan agreement with the EBRD, the IFC and other bank lenders and
MegaFon is currently in discussions with such lenders regarding the waiver or renegotiation of such loan provisions. MegaFon has significant
capital needs and will have to secure additional funding if it is to implement its current strategy of becoming a provider of nationwide GSM
services in Russia.

     In the beginning of June 2003, MegaFon announced plans to offer between five to 25 percent of its shares to the public in the future.

     In August 1998, Russia experienced a severe economic and political crisis. Although the crisis negatively affected MegaFon�s results, the
company was able to maintain profitability and to distribute profits to its shareholders during 1998 and 1999. In 2000, MegaFon experienced a
sharp increase in revenues partly due to improvements in the Russian economy. Russia, however, remains an emerging market and does not
possess the well-developed business and regulatory infrastructure that generally exist in more mature market economies. Furthermore, the
Russian government has not fully implemented the reforms necessary to create banking, judicial, tax and regulatory systems that usually exist in
more developed markets. In the event a new economic or political crisis should occur in Russia, it could have a material adverse effect upon the
value and prospects of MegaFon.

     We hold a portion of our interest in MegaFon through Telecominvest, an open joint-stock company in which we hold a 26.1 percent interest.
Telecominvest is a holding company located in St. Petersburg. Telecominvest�s other holdings include a 29 percent interest in Peter Star, which
installs and maintains local and international telephone lines and high-speed data transmission channels, and a 100 percent interest in Petersburg
Transit Telecom (PTT), a provider of capacity for both fixed and mobile telecommunications operators in St. Petersburg. Peter Star and PTT had
revenues of $56 million and $40 million, respectively, in 2002. In 2002, Telecominvest disposed of some of its non-core businesses, including
Delta-Telecom, an NMT operator in St. Petersburg. Telecominvest�s total consolidated revenues amounted to $65 million in 2002.

Turkey Mobile

     We have a 37.3 percent indirect and direct holding in Turkcell, the leading GSM mobile operator in Turkey. At December 31, 2002, Turkcell
had approximately 15.7 million subscribers, as compared to 12.2 million subscribers at December 31, 2001. Of the subscribers at December 31,
2002, approximately 11 million were pre-paid subscribers. In 2002, Turkcell recorded revenues of $1,974 million, and a net income of
$47.4 million. As of December 31, 2002, Turkcell had total assets of $3,234 million.

     Turkcell was formed in 1993 as a jointly controlled operation, whose principal owners included Sonera and the Çukurova Group, and
commenced operations in 1994. Turkcell currently operates under a 25-year GSM license (the �Turkcell License�), which it was granted in April
1998 upon payment of an up-front license fee of $500 million. Under the terms of the Turkcell License, Turkcell is obligated to pay an ongoing
license fee equal to 15 percent of its monthly gross revenues to the Treasury of Turkey. The Turkcell License also gives the Turkish Ministry of
Communications certain powers to set and approve charges for GSM services provided by Turkcell. The Ministry of Communications in Turkey
may terminate the Turkcell License under certain circumstances, including Turkcell�s failure to perform its obligations under the Turkcell
License, in which event
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Turkcell could be required to deliver its GSM system to the Ministry of Communications. Turkcell entered into a revised License Agreement
with the Telecommunications Authority on February 13, 2002. The terms of the amended Turkcell License Agreement are substantially similar
to the previous Turkcell License. In connection with the Turkcell License, Turkcell entered into an interconnection agreement with Türk
Telekom, Turkey�s state-owned monopoly fixed line operator, providing for the interconnection of Turkcell�s network with Türk Telekom�s fixed
line network, as well as the payment by Turkcell of certain other service fees to Türk Telekom. Turkcell has also entered into interconnection
agreements with other local mobile operators.

     In July 2000, Turkcell completed its initial public offering with the listing of its ordinary shares on the Istanbul Stock Exchange and its
American Depositary Shares on the New York Stock Exchange. In August 2001, Turkcell completed a rights offering of approximately
236 billion new ordinary shares, which raised approximately $178 million for the company.

     Turkcell provides comprehensive, high-density coverage to an area that, as of December 31, 2002, includes approximately 100 percent of the
Turkish population living in cities of 10,000 people or more, as well as the 81 largest Turkish cities and the majority of the country�s tourist areas
and principal intercity highways.

     Turkcell currently faces competition from Telsim Mobil Telekomunikasyon Hizmetleri A.S., Türk Telekom A.S., Aycell Haberlesme Ve
Pazarlama Hizmetleri A.S. and IS-TIM Telekomunikasyon Hizmetleri Anonim Sirketi (Aria), a joint venture formed by Telecom Italia S.p.A.
and Türkiye Is Bankasi A.S (Isbank), one of the largest private banks in Turkey. Telsim operates a GSM 900 network, Aria operates a GSM
1800 network, and Türk Telekom, which currently operates an analog network, received its GSM 1800 license in September 2000 and
established its GSM network in Turkey through its wholly owned subsidiary Aycell in August 2001. Aycell launched GSM services in
December 2001. Telsim, which is Turkcell�s principal competitor, began offering mobile services in 1994. Based on unofficial data, which
Turkcell�s management does not necessarily regard as reliable, Telsim had, as of December 31, 2002, less than 30 percent of the total Turkish
GSM market. Aria received its GSM 1800 license in September 2000 and began offering services in March 2001. It is also possible that a new
GSM 1800 license and UMTS licenses will be offered by the Turkish government in the future. In May 2003, the shareholders of Aria and
Aycell announced their preliminary agreement to merge the two companies, with the merged company being owned 40 percent by Telecom
Italia, 40 percent by Türk Telekom and 20 percent by Is Bank. If the merger is completed, there will be three GSM operators remaining in the
Turkish market.

     Turkcell has a direct ownership interest in only one GSM operator outside of Turkey, Kibris Mobile Telekomünikasyon Limited Sirketi
(Kibris Telekom, located in Northern Cyprus), in which it holds a 100 percent interest. Kibris Telekom commenced operations in July 1999 and
as of the end of 2002 had approximately 72,000 subscribers.

     In addition to TeliaSonera, the other significant shareholders of Turkcell include the Çukurova Group with an aggregate 42.3 percent
ownership interest, MV Holding A.S. with a 4.3 percent equity interest and MV Investments N.V. with a 2.0 percent equity interest. In October
1999, Sonera entered into a shareholders� agreement with the Çukurova Group providing for the establishment of a new holding company in
Turkey, Turkcell Holding A.S. Under the terms of the agreement, Sonera contributed Turkcell shares representing 24 percent of the share capital
of Turkcell to the Turkish holding company. TeliaSonera owns 47 percent of the shares of the holding company with the balance being owned
by the Çukurova Group. Turkcell Holding currently holds 51 percent of the share capital of Turkcell.

     In 2002, two banks within the Çukurova Group experienced financial difficulties, with the result that the Turkish banking authorities took
over one of the banks, Pamukbank T.A.S., and currently have a pledge on a significant percentage of the Turkcell shares held by the Çukurova
Group companies pending the injection of funds by the Çukurova Group into the banks. It is currently too early to assess what consequences the
seizure of Pamukbank by the Turkish banking authorities may have on Turkcell. Under the Turkish Bank Act, the Turkish authorities may have
the legal authority to assume management control over one or more of the Çukurova Group companies, including Turkcell. In addition, the
Turkish authorities have the power to compel the Çukurova Group to dispose of its assets to satisfy the liabilities of Pamukbank, which might
force the Çukurova Group to dispose of part or all of its shareholdings in Turkcell.

     Pursuant to the terms of a shareholders� agreement entered into with the other original shareholders of Turkcell, we are entitled to nominate
three individuals to serve on Turkcell�s seven member board of directors. The shareholders� agreement also provides for certain restrictions and
rights of refusal with respect to transfers
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of Turkcell shares. As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding guarantees to various lenders with respect to �7 million of debt incurred by
Turkcell in connection with the purchase of network equipment.

     In late November 1999, the Turkish Parliament introduced a temporary tax on mobile subscriptions (the �Special Communications Tax�). This
tax, effective from December 1, 1999, amounts to 25 percent of a subscriber�s total monthly telephone bill net of VAT and is being collected by
mobile operators from the subscribers. Turkcell�s net income in 2001 and 2002 was reduced significantly by the Special Communications Tax.
The Special Communications Tax has also had a negative impact on mobile phone usage in Turkey. The effects of the Special Communications
Tax is expected to have a negative impact on Turkcell�s net income and cash flow in 2003 and beyond, if the tax is continued. The Turkish
economy has suffered from political uncertainty and regional instability in recent years, although the Turkish economy has showed signs of
recovery from the worst of the financial turmoil of 2001. Turkcell�s management is not able to predict the extent, severity or duration of the
current economic difficulties of the Turkish economy, nor to quantify the impact that these difficulties may have on Turkcell�s financial position,
future operations or cash flows.

     Turkcell is presently subject to numerous legal and regulatory proceedings that may have a material adverse effect on its business, financial
condition and results of operations. See �Item 8.A.7 Legal and Regulatory Proceedings.�

International Carrier

Overview

     TeliaSonera International Carrier includes both Telia�s and Sonera�s international carrier operations. We are in the process of integrating these
two businesses. We have established a high quality international fiber optic backbone network based on fiber optics and wavelength technology.
Concentrated primarily in Europe, our network is suited to all types of network traffic, from basic voice transmission to advanced interactive
broadband services. Our network is based on a fully operational 19,800 kilometer long duct/cable network with repeater stations in Europe. Our
network is connected to New York via the transatlantic cable system, TAT 14, of which we own a 6.25 percent interest.

Products and Services

     Through TeliaSonera International Carrier, we offer competitive international telecommunications services to our customers, which are
primarily service providers, other carriers and mobile and fixed line operators. Our international carrier operations include three major product
areas: capacity, voice and IP services.

Capacity

     We offer wavelength services, providing up to 10 Gbps (gigabits per second) of capacity. Wavelength services are designed for customers
who require very large transport capacities between cities, but which prefer not to purchase dark fiber, which would require an investment in and
the maintenance of transmission equipment in order to transport traffic.

Voice

     We offer traditional voice services, including call termination and transit services to fixed and mobile operators and carriers. These services
enable our customers to offer worldwide reach to their end-users. Through our own Nordic base and over 100 bilateral agreements with other
telecommunication companies, we are able to terminate traffic in all countries worldwide.

IP Services

     We are one of the largest European Internet carriers and provide services on a wholesale basis to our customers, including services such as
IP-Transit, at speeds from 2 Mbps to 2.5 Gbps. Our IP Network, called TeliaNet, is a global network with multiple high speed links as well as
extensive interconnections to other Internet carriers across Europe and the United States.

Market and Industry Outlook
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     Since the late 1990s, competition in the global data and voice communications services area has increased substantially. The entry of a
considerable number of competitors has created overcapacity and has resulted in a rapid decline in the price of wholesale bandwidth capacity in
the markets where TeliaSonera International Carrier operates. As a consequence, the profitability among the pan-European players is low. The
industry is presently in a strong consolidation phase with many industry participants leaving the area. Our management expects the consolidation
to continue and the market to remain intensely competitive at least in the near future.

     We expect the demand for our capacity and IP services to be driven by the need to accommodate the growing range of bandwidth-intensive
business and entertainment applications, such as e-commerce, corporate intranets, virtual private networks, video conferencing and other IP
services. We also believe that demand for broadband transport will increase when the development of fixed broadband services is well underway
and UMTS networks are operational. We believe that these developments will create and sustain long-term revenue generating potential for
TeliaSonera International Carrier in due course.

     Despite these positive developments, we believe that volumes and earnings trends for TeliaSonera International Carrier have been and
continue to be unsatisfactory. In September 2002, Telia completed a comprehensive review of its international carrier operations, and decided to
change the strategic focus of TeliaSonera International Carrier and significantly restructure its operations. The new focus involves concentrating
our operations on wholesale capacity sales, IP and voice over the profitable segments of the wholly owned network in Europe and across the
Atlantic Ocean. We will also continue to focus on transport of Internet traffic in the IP network through our peering points in Europe and the
United States. During the fourth quarter of 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, several measures were taken to adapt the operations to reflect the
new business focus:

� Our international carrier operations in Asia were closed down. The office in Malaysia was closed in January 2003 and the offices
in Singapore and Hong Kong were closed in March 2003.

� The phase-out of our sales of domestic voice through resellers in the United Kingdom commenced.

� A phase-out plan for our international carrier co-location business was drawn up to adapt the technical facilities to the new market
conditions. Several offices were phased out in the fourth quarter of 2002.

� The offering of domestic capacity services in the United States was terminated and existing transmission equipment was
disassembled in order to reduce operating and monitoring costs.

� During the fourth quarter of 2002, several market units and customer service functions were centralized to Sweden.
     The restructuring is scheduled to be in large part completed by the end of 2003 and we expect it to enable former Telia International Carrier
to show positive cash flow on a monthly basis during 2003, adjusted for restructuring costs.

     In September 2002, Telia also decided to significantly reduce the number of commercial points of presence of its international carrier
operations, and to centralize the sales, finance, administration and customer care resources in Sweden. We estimate that, as part of the
restructuring, former Telia International Carrier will reduce its original workforce of approximately 800 persons as of September 2002 by more
than 50 percent. The strategic refocusing and restructuring will also enable TeliaSonera International Carrier to substantially scale down the
number of offices and technical facilities it maintains, as well as reduce the number of its operation and maintenance contracts and leased lines.

     Sonera�s international carrier operations include several European and trans-Atlantic submarine cables as well as a fiber optic cable
connecting Stockholm, Helsinki and St. Petersburg. In addition, Sonera�s international carrier operations include a fiber optic cable between
Moscow and St. Petersburg and operates a Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing (DWDM) -based broadband network from Moscow to St.
Petersburg, which is connected to Western Europe through Finland.

     Due to the restructuring of TeliaSonera International Carrier, we recorded SEK 3,963 million in restructuring reserves, SEK 5,307 million in
write-downs of fixed assets, and SEK 824 million in write-downs of infrastructure and network capacity for the year ended December 31, 2002.
We estimate that approximately 50 percent of the restructuring reserve will be utilized in 2003, and that the remaining portion will be used in the

41

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 69



Table of Contents

future during the phase-out of long-term contracts for submarine cables and technical facilities.

     In addition to the restructuring of the former Telia international carrier operations, the restructuring of former Sonera international carrier
operations is also in progress. The integration of these two operations is expected to result in synergies and related implementation costs.

TeliaSonera Holding

     TeliaSonera Holding is responsible for the management and rationalization of our interest in certain companies outside of our core business
areas. Currently, TeliaSonera Holding manages more than 100 investments, including investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and
other minority holdings.

     From time to time we may restructure, wind up, liquidate or sell all or a portion of our interest in some of the businesses managed by
TeliaSonera Holding. In addition, we may also from time to time acquire other non-core businesses to be managed by TeliaSonera Holding.

     The companies subject to TeliaSonera Holding�s management operate in a variety of industries, including pay phone services, credit services
and debt collection, venture capital, telecommunications security services, home electronics, and computer software. TeliaSonera Holding also
manages certain of our international investments that are not deemed to be part of our core business. Some of the companies managed by
TeliaSonera Holding derive a significant portion of their revenues from customers outside of the TeliaSonera group. Other companies managed
by TeliaSonera Holding principally provide products and services to our other business units or to customers served by our other business units.
Some of the most significant companies managed by TeliaSonera Holding, in terms of annual revenues and customers, are the following:

� Sergel Kredittjänster AB offers credit and debt collection services through secured tools for customer selection and claims
services. In 2002, Sergel Kredittjänster had revenues of SEK 305 million, of which 49 percent were derived from external sales.
Sergel Kredittjänster is a wholly owned subsidiary of TeliaSonera.

� Slottsbacken Venture Capital KB is a venture capital fund that invests in companies operating in the information and
communications market. We have a 50 percent interest in the fund. As of December 31, 2002, our share of funds under
management was SEK 85 million.

� SmartTrust AB and its affiliated companies specialize in providing infrastructure software for managing and securing wireless
services. SmartTrust�s main customers are wireless operators. SmartTrust recorded revenues of approximately SEK 200 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002, mainly from licensing fees.

In October 2002, Sonera sold an approximate 54 percent interest in SmartTrust to a group of private equity investors for a total
consideration of approximately SEK 320 million, and we currently retain the remaining approximately 46 percent of shares.

� Sonera Zed is an international mobile services business that Sonera launched in Finland in October 1999. Zed provides
entertainment and information services, such as stock quotes, weather and directory services, to mobile handsets. Zed is currently
available through mobile operators in six countries. Zed recorded revenues of approximately SEK 440 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002, mainly from SMS based services.

In August 2002, Sonera concluded an agreement with Yahoo! Inc, a leading global Internet company, whereby Yahoo! acquired a
16 percent interest in Zed and the right to increase its shareholding in Zed up to 100 percent over the next two years, at a price to
be determined based on Zed�s operational performance. Yahoo! also has the right to sell its accumulated interest in Sonera Zed to
us over the next two years at a maximum total consideration of approximately SEK 100 million.

� Telia Finans AB offers lease financing and invoicing services for telecommunications, data communications and office equipment
to hardware and software suppliers, manufacturers and wholesale and retail dealers within the telecommunications and
information technology sector. In 2002, Telia Finans had net interest income of SEK 284 million. In addition, as of the end of
2002, Telia Finans had 36,000 customers, the majority of which were external to the TeliaSonera group. Telia Finans is a wholly
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owned subsidiary of TeliaSonera.

� Telia Promotor AB is a leading supplier of customer relationship management and contact center services in the Nordic countries.
Promotor offers services that integrate telecommunications, voice and web services designed to assist customer service
departments to work more efficiently. In 2002, Promotor had revenues of SEK 266 million. Promotor is a wholly owned
subsidiary of TeliaSonera.

� Unite AB develops and maintains security services, including risk management, information security, fire protection and
admission protection. In 2002, Unite had revenues of SEK 150 million and 80 customers, the majority of which were external to
the TeliaSonera group. Currently, TeliaSonera represents approximately 80 percent of Unite�s annual revenue. Unite is a wholly
owned subsidiary of TeliaSonera.

     We also have a 49 percent interest in the Telefos Group. The most significant companies within the Telefos Group include the following:

� Swedia Networks AB, with approximately 2,550 employees, is a telecommunications construction company specializing in design,
construction and field service for electronic telecommunications infrastructure.

� Ki Consulting & Solutions AB, with approximately 800 employees, is a company providing businesses IP, Internet, intranet
Broadband, fixed and mobile software solutions.

� Validation AB, with approximately 400 employees, is a company specializing in the testing and integration of products and
product support systems including customer data, networks, IT-architecture and technical and management procedures.

     In 2001, Telia sold 91 percent of the share capital of the Orbiant Group to Flextronics Network Services Sweden AB. Flextronics acquired
Telia�s remaining nine percent interest in the Orbiant Group in July 2002. The Orbiant Group consisted of companies engaged in businesses
including the design, construction and operation of public networks, the installation of local access equipment, the integration, implementation
and operation of business systems and the provision of services to mobile access networks. We presently maintain significant and continuing
commercial and financial relationships with some of the companies held by the Telefos Group and the Orbiant Group. See �Item 7.B. Related
Party Transactions.�

     Under the terms of the sale of its partial interest in Telefos and its entire interest in Orbiant, Telia entered into commitments to purchase
pre-determined levels of products and services from Telefos and Orbiant, respectively. As is customary in negotiated sales, Telia gave
representations and warranties relating to both Telefos and Orbiant to the purchasers.

     In September 2001, KF, Skandia and Telia signed an agreement to jointly form Coop Bank, which aimed at offering services through fixed
and mobile telecommunications. In June 2003, Coop Bank had its banking license revoked. We have a 20 percent ownership interest in Coop
Bank, and have committed to make capital contributions to Coop Bank amounting to SEK 140 million, of which SEK 120 million has been paid.
We have written down our investment in the bank to zero.

     TeliaSonera Holding also holds interests in a number of companies offering other wireless communications services, such as radio services,
marine VHF (Very High Frequency) services and satellite services, which we do not consider to be core businesses.

     In addition, TeliaSonera Holding manages our non-core investments in several telecommunications companies outside our home market.
These include the following:

� Netia Holdings S.A. We currently own approximately two percent of the shares in Netia, an independent fixed line telecommunications
operator in Poland, and have entered into agreements to completely divest our holdings in Netia. As of December 31, 2002, we owned
48 percent of the shares in Netia. Our shareholding was reduced principally as a result of a financial restructuring of the company in
which creditors� claims were converted in equity. For the year ended December 31, 2002, Netia�s total consolidated revenues amounted to
Polish zloty 604 million.

Telia recorded a substantial impairment charge relating to its investment in Netia in 2001 and, subsequently,
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wrote down its investment in Netia to zero as a result of a loss in earnings from associated companies attributable to Netia.

� Infonet Services Corporation. As of December 31, 2002, we owned a 20.1 percent shareholding in Infonet, a leading provider of
cross-border managed data communications. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, Infonet provided nearly 3,000 companies
worldwide with data communication services. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2003, Infonet�s revenues amounted to $654 million.

Our ownership in Infonet is subject to a shareholder�s agreement between us and Infonet�s five other largest Class A shareholders. The
agreement provides us and certain of the other Class A shareholders with the right to appoint one director to Infonet�s board of directors.
The Class A shareholders own approximately 78 percent of the Class B shares and control approximately 96 percent of Infonet�s total
voting shares.

In July 2002, Telia was named as one of several defendants in a securities law class action suit relating to Infonet�s initial public offering.
See �Item 8.A.7 Legal and Regulatory Proceedings.�

� Tess S.A. In April 2001, Telia and its majority owned subsidiary Overseas Telecom (formerly, Telia Overseas) sold all of their economic
interest in the Brazilian mobile operator Tess for cash and notes to Telecom Americas Ltd., a consortium owned by America Moviles,
Bell Canada International and SBC Communications. To meet the requirements of the telecommunications regulatory authority in Brazil,
Agencia Nacional de Telecommunicacos, or Anatel, under Tess�s concession, Telia was required to maintain voting control in Tess until
December 2003. We and Overseas Telecom have, accordingly, retained a majority of the voting shares in Tess. As part of the transaction,
however, Telia and Overseas Telecom granted a call option to Telecom Americas to purchase our and Overseas Telecom�s voting interest
in Tess, which may be exercised in the event all Brazilian laws and regulations applicable to the transfer of the voting interest are
satisfied. At the same time, Telecom Americas granted Telia and Telia Overseas a put option granting Telia and Telia Overseas the right
to put their voting interest in Tess to Telecom Americas under substantially the same conditions. As part of the transaction, Telecom
Americas has released us from all liabilities which may arise in relation to its ownership of Tess, apart from certain legal claims brought
by former minority shareholders of Tess, and subject to representations and warranties relating to the businesses sold.

� International Portfolio of Overseas Telecom AB. Overseas Telecom, currently a subsidiary in which we hold a 65 percent interest and
three Nordic institutional investors hold the remaining 35 percent, holds interests in several mobile and/or fixed line operators with
businesses outside of the Nordic region. Overseas Telecom currently holds interests in Brazil, Hong Kong, Namibia, Sri Lanka and
Uganda. As noted above under �� Tess S.A.,� Overseas Telecom�s economic interest in Tess in Brazil was sold in April 2001. Overseas
Telecom also sold its interest in Bharti Mobile Ltd (India) in June 2003. Overseas Telecom seeks to sell its remaining holdings. In the
third quarter of 2003, Overseas Telecom is expected to become a 42 percent held associated company.

� Metro One Telecommunications Inc. We hold a 24.3 percent interest in Metro One, a developer and provider of enhanced directory
assistance and information services for the telecommunications industry based in Oregon, United States. In 2002, Metro One recorded
revenues of $258 million and net income of $26 million. As of December 31, 2002, Metro One had total assets of $199 million.

We are a party to an Investment Agreement with Metro One which provides, among other things, that we may designate two persons as
members of Metro One�s seven member board of directors. The agreement also contains restrictions on our ability to sell or transfer our
Metro One shares.

     TeliaSonera Holding also manages our investments in international UMTS joint ventures. We have investments, together with partners, in
UMTS licenses in Germany, Italy and Spain. Due to changed circumstances relating to the UMTS joint ventures, Sonera wrote off the entire
carrying value of its investments in Germany, Italy and Spain in 2002. We have also taken a number of steps to limit our future financial
exposure to our UMTS investments.

     As a result of our decision not to invest any additional funds into Group 3G and to limit our investments in Ipse 2000 and Xfera, we may
experience a dilution in the value of our interest in these companies over time if other shareholders or third parties decide to invest additional
equity capital. In addition, if our UMTS joint ventures in Germany, Italy and Spain cannot fulfill the conditions under their UMTS licenses or
obtain a
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modification to the license terms, such licenses could be revoked.

     We are continuing to evaluate other strategic alternatives regarding our holdings in UMTS joint ventures, including the possible disposition
of all or a portion of our interests in such companies. The following discussion provides a brief description of our interest in the joint ventures
that have been granted UMTS licenses.

� Germany. Group 3G, a joint venture in which we hold a 42.8 percent interest, was awarded a UMTS license as the result of an auction
process in Germany in August 2000 for a total purchase price of �8,471 million. Telefónica Móviles S.A., a subsidiary of Telefónica S.A.,
a major Spanish wireless communications company, holds the remaining 57.2 percent interest in Group 3G. Sonera paid approximately
�3,625 million for its pro rata share of the total purchase price of the license. In July 2002, the board of directors of Group 3G decided to
halt Group 3G�s commercial operations. In the second quarter of 2002, Sonera made a �3,844 million write-down of its total investment in
Group 3G, thereby reducing the carrying value of its investment in Group 3G to zero.

On November 8, 2001, Sonera entered into a new Group 3G shareholders� agreement with Telefónica in light of Sonera�s decision to cap
its investment in Group 3G. Under the shareholders� agreement, neither Sonera nor Telefónica is required to provide additional funding to
Group 3G. Should a shareholder decide not to provide funding, and the other shareholder provides substitute funding, the amount of any
equity the funding party receives will be based on the fair market value of Group 3G�s equity at the time of funding.

� Italy. Ipse 2000, a joint venture in which we hold a 12.55 percent interest, was awarded one of five national licenses by the Italian
government. The aggregate price for the license was approximately �3,269 million, approximately �2,066 million of which was paid at the
time the license was awarded, and the remaining �1,203 million of which is due in ten yearly installments, the first of which was due at the
end of 2001. In the second quarter of 2002, Sonera made a �294 million write-down of its investment in Ipse 2000, thereby reducing the
carrying value of its investment in Ipse 2000 to zero.

Ipse 2000 has committed to pay the remaining �1,203 million portion (plus interest) of the UMTS license in ten yearly installments
commencing at the end of 2001. We, together with the other shareholders of Ipse 2000, have counter-guaranteed Ipse�s remaining license
payments to the Italian government. Some of these counter-guarantees have been given in the form of pledged cash. We, together with
the other shareholders of Ipse 2000, have also issued counter-guarantees on behalf of Ipse 2000 in connection with the rental of base
station sites. Our total obligations with respect to Ipse 2000 currently amount to �160 million, of which approximately �126 million relates
to our remaining pro rata portion of the deferred purchase price for the UMTS license. In the second quarter of 2002, the carrying value
of Ipse was written down to zero, and Sonera recorded a �142 million provision for its pro rata portion of the deferred license payment.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, we notified the board of directors of Ipse 2000 that we do not intend to provide any additional funding to
Ipse 2000. We will, however, remain obligated to fund our pro rata share of the deferred purchase price of Ipse 2000�s UMTS license and
remain liable on the counter-guarantees that we issued for Ipse 2000 in the aggregate amount of �160 million.

� Spain. Xfera, a joint venture in which we hold an approximate 14.2 percent interest, was granted one of four UMTS licenses in Spain in
March 2000. Xfera paid an initial license fee of approximately �130 million, of which Sonera paid its pro rata share of �19 million. In 2002,
Sonera made a �72 million write-down of its investment in Xfera, thereby reducing the carrying value of its investment in Xfera to zero.

In addition to us, the shareholders of Xfera include a subsidiary of Vivendi, which holds a 29.5 percent interest in Xfera, and a number of
other Spanish and international financial and telecommunications groups. We hold our interest in Xfera through ACS Sonera Móviles
SA, a holding company which has an approximate 34.2 percent interest in Xfera. We own a 41.6 percent interest in ACS Sonera, and
ACS, a Spanish construction and engineering company, owns the remainder.

Under the shareholders� agreement for Xfera, we agreed to provide financing to the joint venture for ongoing operations in accordance
with the business plan adopted by the company. Based on the business plan for Xfera, we currently anticipate being obligated to
contribute an additional �226 million to the company. We, together with the other shareholders of Xfera, provided counter-guarantees to
banks that have issued guarantees on behalf of Xfera in favor of the Spanish government relating to the fulfillment of Xfera�s
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commitments in connection with its UMTS license. We expect, based on a decision announced by the Spanish government to reduce the
amount of the guarantees supporting Xfera�s performance guarantee, that our outstanding counter-guarantees with respect to Xfera will be
reduced to below �100 million from �387 million. The process of reducing the level of our counter-guarantees is currently ongoing. In
addition, we have provided counter-guarantees of approximately �29 million as our pro rata share to cover the payment of Xfera�s spectrum
fees for 2001, 2002 and 2003.

In October 2001, Xfera�s board of directors agreed to significantly curtail Xfera�s capital and operating expenditures until the necessary
UMTS technology becomes commercially available for Xfera to launch commercial UMTS services or Xfera receives the necessary
license and spectrum allocation to launch GPRS/GSM services. This is expected to defer, and possibly reduce, our existing capital
commitment to Xfera. We will, however, remain liable for the counter-guarantees we have issued on behalf of Xfera in connection with
Xfera�s fulfillment of certain conditions contained in its UMTS license.

Under the terms of the Xfera shareholders� agreement, we have the right to appoint two members to a 15 member Xfera board of directors
so long as we continue to maintain at least a ten percent equity interest in Xfera.

Should Xfera require additional financing, the Xfera shareholders� agreement provides that a majority of 86 percent of the shares held in
Xfera may decide to set the terms and conditions under which additional financing will be provided. Defaulting members of Xfera may
decide up to the time of the actual funding to provide their pro rata portion of the additional financing under the same terms and
conditions approved by those requesting the additional financing. If additional financing is necessary to prevent the award of the license
from being revoked by the Spanish authorities or if additional financing is required to avoid a forced liquidation of Xfera, then the
approval of members of Xfera representing 51 percent of the share capital will suffice to set the terms and conditions of additional
financing.

Should we breach our obligations under the Xfera shareholders� agreement, the non-breaching members of Xfera have the right to
purchase all of our Xfera shares at a 20 percent discount from the market value of the shares on the day of exercise.

Networks and Infrastructure

Mobile Infrastructure

     As of March 31, 2003, our GSM network covered approximately 85 percent of the geographical area and approximately 99 percent of the
population in Sweden, and approximately 97 percent of the geographical area and over 99 percent of the population in Finland.

Network Infrastructure

     The infrastructure of a mobile communications network, whether analog or digital, includes the following components:

� radio access network comprising base stations, which communicate by radio signal with the mobile handset, and controller nodes
(base station controllers or radio network controllers) that manage the base stations and their resources. Our radio access network
consists of more than 28,000 base stations and approximately 220 controller nodes;

� radio sites, at which the base stations are located, as well as antenna systems and masts. We have more than 14,500 radio sites in
the Nordic countries;

� core network comprising mobile switching centers, which control the traffic flow, and home location registers, which not only
contain information regarding subscribers using the network but also authorize their network usage. We have approximately 90
switching nodes in our core networks;

� transmission network comprising cabling and other transmission devices to connect different components of the network; and

� service network comprising a set of nodes designated for specific service purposes, such as SMS and
46

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 74



Table of Contents

voice mail.
UMTS Network

     We have access to a UMTS license in Sweden through our network sharing agreement with Tele2, which was established in March 2001. The
network sharing agreement gives us access to the UMTS license of the Swedish joint venture, Svenska UMTS-nät. In March 2003, Svenska
UMTS-nät requested the Swedish regulators to amend its UMTS license to push back the date by which our and Tele2�s UMTS network must be
completed. Svenska UMTS-nät has cited as primary reasons for its request its difficulty in receiving required building permits and the
unavailability of key UMTS technology. We currently estimate that the UMTS network under construction by us and Tele2 will cover
70 percent of the population of Sweden by early 2004. Our goal is that the coverage requirements in Sweden will be met by the end of 2005,
provided there are no significant changes in technological and market developments.

     Sonera opened its UMTS network for technical testing in Finland on January 1, 2002. We expect to be able to open our Finnish UMTS
network for commercial use during 2003, provided that the UMTS network technology is matured and the commercial availability of dual mode
UMTS/GSM handsets is sufficient.

     The implementation of GPRS, UMTS and WLAN technology is expected to enable mobile networks to transfer data at sufficient speeds to
support a wide range of data and media applications. We are participating in the standardization process for these new technologies and are
actively evaluating the possible applications and services that such technologies will enable.

Operation Monitoring Centers

     All of our mobile networks are continuously monitored for faults and errors. The three main centers for network monitoring are situated in
Sundsvall in Sweden, Jyväskylä in Finland and Trondheim in Norway, which provide around the clock surveillance of all components in the
networks.

Development Plan

     We view the further development of our networks in the Nordic countries as an ongoing process. We intend to continue building new base
stations, adding cells to existing base stations and updating the technology and functionality of our existing networks in the Nordic countries in
order to meet customer demands on coverage, capacity and quality. We will focus on, among other things, the improvement of indoor coverage
of our networks, in particular in areas such as shopping malls, underground parking garages and subway tunnels. In addition, we have installed a
number of base stations to improve the quality of our network coverage within the offices and production facilities of some of our major
corporate customers. In addition to our use of UMTS technology, we are exploring the possibility of updating our GMS network using EDGE
(Enhanced Data rates for GSM Evolution) technology. We will continue to build WLAN as a complement to UMTS for Intranet/Internet access
and other services.

     Value added service nodes, to the extent economically advantageous, will be centralized and commonly operated. They will serve all our
national networks via a common transport backbone. We intend to develop our infrastructure in such a way that services can be reached via a
wide array of accesses, such as GSM, GPRS, UMTS and WLAN.

Fixed-line Infrastructure

     Management believes that our Swedish and Finnish networks are among the most technologically advanced fixed line networks in the world.
Our Swedish and Finnish networks feature:

� all-digital local, trunk and international switching;

� all-digital transmission, with regional and trunk transmission based mostly on fiber optic cable infrastructure, which features
Synchronous Digital Hierarchy (also known as SDH, the European standard for high-speed digital transmission using fiber optic
cables) transmission systems and DWDM transmission systems;

� IP network;
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� ATM and Frame Relay Network;

� wide access to ISDN; and

� broadband access.
     Our nationwide fixed networks in Sweden and in Finland function as the backbone for our operations, supporting not only our local, long
distance and international traffic, but also mobile and data communications trunk traffic.

� Local Network: Our existing local networks in Sweden and Finland are fully digitalized. As of March 31, 2003, we had the
capability to provide approximately 93 percent and 99 percent of end-users in Sweden and Finland, respectively, with ISDN
access. In 2002, the number of ADSL accesses increased by 123,000 and 54,000 in Sweden and Finland, respectively. We have
approximately 7,000 and 4,100 nodes in Sweden and Finland, respectively, with installed equipment as interconnect points for
local access.

� Regional and National Trunk Network: Our regional and trunk networks are fully digitalized and mainly utilize SDH line systems
and cross-connect equipment. The SDH technology either works directly on fiber optic cables or on DWDM transmission systems
that are capable of operating at transmissions speeds of up to 40 × 10 Gbps in Sweden, and 32 x 2.5 Gbps in Finland.

     SDH allows for enhanced reliability. Through the use of a stand-by national network and restoration system and self-healing local rings, the
synchronous digital hierarchy optical network is protected against single cable failures.

     DWDM-technology provides an effective platform for SDH, IP and wavelength services.

     We also operate a number of packet switched digital networks used principally for the provision of X.25, frame relay and ATM data services.

     We operate one of the largest and fastest IP backbone networks in the world. Connectivity between super core and core nodes is from 2.4
Gbps to 10 Gbps. There are 763,000 dial-up and 321,000 broadband subscriptions connected to our Swedish network, while in Finland, there
were approximately 181,000 residential dial-up and 71,000 broadband subscriptions at the end of 2002.

     During 2001 and 2002, we endeavored to satisfy the growing demand for interactive broadband services by refining our fixed network in
terms of capacity, functionality and traffic control. Three dimensions of this effort include:

� increasing capacity in the fiber optic backbone network. During 2001, we added substantial capacity to our network in southern
Sweden and also laid fiber optic cable between Stockholm and Haparanda, Sweden;

� increasing capacity in access networks nearest the subscriber. In this respect, we expanded our fiber optic networks in larger
Swedish cities, including Stockholm, Gothenburg and Malmö. We are also expanding our ADSL access, within the reach of
75 percent of Sweden�s households at the end of 2002. In Finland, 66 percent of our fixed line customers are within the reach of
ADSL. We also obtained a license during 2001 to build broadband access networks in Sweden based on fixed radio; and

� shifting our technology to IP-based fixed networks. During 2001 and 2002, we equipped our IP network in Sweden with new
functions, such as Multicast and Quality of Service. The latter will enable our subscribers to select their level of service quality
and performance, and Multicast, which allows the IP network to be used for telecommunications and other real-time solutions. In
2001, Telia began implementation of Ipv6, a protocol that we believe will resolve the potential shortage of IP addresses in the IP
network.

International Network
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International Network

     We have established a high quality international fiber optic backbone network based on fiber optics and wavelength technology. Our network
is based on a fully operational 19,800 kilometer long duct/cable network with repeater stations in Europe. Our network is connected to New
York via the transatlantic cable system, TAT 14. In addition, our IP network, called TeliaNet, is a global network with multiple high speed links
as well as extensive interconnections to other Internet carriers across Europe and the United States.

Geographical Breakdown of Operations

     To date, we have primarily generated our revenues in Sweden and the other Nordic countries. Of our external sales in 2002, approximately
75 percent were generated in Sweden and approximately 18 percent in the Nordic region other than Sweden. The following table sets forth our
external net sales by geographic segment for the periods indicated:

For the year ended December 31,

Geographic segment 2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Sweden 44,820 46,348 46,469
Finland 2,656 1,256 1,234
Norway 5,541 4,420 1,778
Denmark 2,662 2,437 2,082
Baltic region(1) 772 133 137
Rest of Europe 2,003 1,667 1,292
Rest of world 1,029 935 1,072

Total 59,483 57,196 54,064

(1) For purposes of this table, the Baltic region comprises Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania, Poland and northwestern Russia.
     The table below sets forth external net sales, on a combined TeliaSonera basis for the full year 2002, by reporting unit based on our new
business structure. Since the completion of the merger, we generate most of our external sales in Sweden and Finland. Of our external sales in
2002, on a combined basis, approximately 51 percent were generated in Sweden, approximately 21 percent in Finland and approximately
18 percent in Norway, Denmark and the Baltic countries.

For the year ended
December 31,

2002(1)

(SEK in millions)
TeliaSonera Sweden 41,533
TeliaSonera Finland 17,295
TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and the Baltic countries

Norway 5,482
Denmark 2,593
Baltic countries 6,291

TeliaSonera International
Eurasia 847
International Carrier 5,702

TeliaSonera Holding 1,978
Corporate and adjustments (742)

Total 80,979
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(1) Excluding Com Hem and Telia Mobile Finland, each of which were divested in 2003.
Competition

Sweden

     We operate in an increasingly competitive environment in Sweden, which has resulted in strong price pressure on many of our products and
services. Sweden was among the first countries in Europe to have liberalized and deregulated its telecommunications market. Currently, there is
an almost unlimited right to provide telecommunications services in Sweden, and a number of non-Swedish controlled entities provide
telecommunications services in Sweden.
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Mobile Communications

     Our major competitors for mobile communications services in Sweden are Tele2 (Comviq), Vodafone and Hi3G Access AB (3). In the
future, we expect to face competition from additional UMTS operators and mobile service providers such as Sense Communications and Song
Networks. Orange Sverige AB, which has a UMTS license in Sweden, has recently announced its intention to withdraw from the Swedish
market. Competition in our mobile communications business in Sweden is currently based primarily on service quality, including factors such as
availability of new services, network coverage and price competition.

Internet and Data Communications

     Our major competitors in the Internet and data communications market in Sweden are Tele2, Telenordia, Utfors, B2 Bredband AB, Com
Hem AB, Chello Broadband AB, UPC Sverige AB and Spray. Of these companies, our primary competitors for broadband access are B2
Bredband, Com Hem, Chello, UPC and Utfors.

Fixed Voice Services and Fixed Networks

     Our major competitors in fixed voice services and fixed networks services in Sweden in the retail sector are Tele2, Telenordia, MCI
Corporation, Utfors, Equant Sweden AB, RSLCom Sweden AB, Rix Telecom AB (publ), Vattenfall AB (Abonnera), Supertel Sverige AB, Song
Networks, FaciliCom International Sweden AB (Tele8), TeliTel AB, CallMedia Telecom CMT AB, NETnet AB, HemEl AB and Glocalnet AB
and, in the wholesale sector, our competitors are Tele2, Song Networks, Utfors, Telenordia, Glocalnet, Rix Telecom and B2 Bredband. We
believe that competition for fixed voice services and fixed networks services in Sweden will increasingly be based on price.

     TeliaSonera International Carrier faces competition in Europe and the United States from competitors such as France Telecom, British
Telecommunications plc, COLT Telecom Group plc, Global Crossing Ltd, Cable & Wireless Plc and Level 3 Communications Ltd. Competition
in TeliaSonera International Carrier is currently based primarily on price, although we expect that as the carrier business matures, competition
will increasingly be based on quality of service.

Finland

     The telecommunications market in Finland is highly competitive, characterized by successive promotional campaigns and price competition,
with the exception of local telephone service where the market is dominated by incumbent local operators that control, with minor exceptions,
the local access market.

     Generally, our main competitor in Finland is Elisa Communications, which is the largest local access operator in Finland and whose
traditional service area is the Helsinki metropolitan area. Elisa Communications is also the parent of a number of telecommunications
companies, including Radiolinja, the second largest mobile operator in Finland.

     Another significant competitor in Finland is the Finnet Group, an alliance of local telephone companies, which after the reorganization of its
group structure is the owner of DNA and Suomen 2G Oy (a mobile network operator), among other group companies.

Mobile Communications

     Our main competitors for mobile communications services in Finland include Radiolinja and DNA. DNA acquired the GSM and WLAN
operations of former Telia Mobile Finland from us in June 2003. In addition, we compete with a number of service operators which do not
maintain their own network such as Saunalahti Group Oyj (Jippii) and RSL Com Finland Oy. We consider it likely that Radiolinja and other
competitors will continue to market their services aggressively and reduce prices for their services in the future. In addition, Radiolinja, Suomen
3G Oy and Tele2 all have UMTS licenses, and have opened their UMTS networks for technical testing purposes in the beginning of 2002 in
compliance with the terms of their UMTS licenses. Tele2 currently is not offering any GSM services in Finland but announced in June 2003 that
it had concluded a service operator agreement with Radiolinja.

     Allocation of additional frequency capacity in Finland to other operators could, in the future, increase the competitive environment in the
Finnish GSM market. At present, there are no unallocated frequencies in the
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GSM 900 MHz band that are accessible using commercially available telecommunications equipment. The Finnish authorities have indicated
that unallocated GSM 1800 frequencies, although limited, may be allocated on demand within the next few years.

     The Finnish Ministry of Transport and Communications has announced that it currently has no plans to require existing operators to give
other GSM operators and service operators mandatory national roaming rights. However, the provisioning of national roaming may become
obligatory pursuant to the new regulatory framework for electronic communicative networks and services of the European Commission. In the
event that a national roaming scheme were introduced either for current or future frequencies, local mobile operators would gain access to our
Finnish national GSM 900 network, which could result in increased competition in the Finnish mobile market. In addition, under a recently
enacted Finnish law, holders of UMTS licenses will have the right to roam on the GSM 900 and GSM 1800 networks of operators under certain
conditions, which could have the effect of increasing competition.

Internet and Data Communications

     The market for Internet and data communications services in Finland is highly competitive. With respect to consumer media services in
Finland, including Internet related services, we compete with Saunalahti Group, MTV3 Oy, Elisa Communications and the Finnet Group, among
other competitors. With respect to the provision of Internet access to business customers in Finland, we compete principally with Elisa
Communications and the Finnet Group, and expect to face increasing competition from other companies, such as a range of IT companies, in the
future.

     In data communications services market in Finland, our competitors include Elisa Communications and Finnet Group, among others, and
international telecommunications companies that provide data services to large corporate customers in Finland.

Fixed Voice Services and Fixed Networks

     In addition to TeliaSonera, there are currently approximately 60 local telephone companies that provide local telephone services in Finland.
Many of these have maintained monopolies in their traditional local service areas, which cover most of the larger towns and urban areas of
Finland. The majority of these local operators belong to either Elisa Communications or Finnet Group. These local operators generally own their
own networks and operate mainly in larger cities and towns. Traditionally, there has been only one local operator per area. Competition has not
increased materially since the opening of the local voice market in 1994 due to the high upfront costs of building a local network and the
long-term relationships between local telephone companies and their customers.

     As a result of the foregoing, competition in local markets is limited, and has focused largely on business customers. We have been installing
fiber optic cable loops in major cities in Finland and leasing lines from our competitors primarily to satisfy existing demand from our Finnish
corporate customers and to build platforms for possible future competition in local markets.

     Competition has forced the prices of long distance calls in Finland to levels considerably below the average long distance calling rates in the
other member states of the European Union. Our primary competitors for long distance voice services in Finland are the Finnet Group, Elisa
Communications and Song Networks.

     Our competitors in the provision of international voice services in Finland include Finnet International and Song Networks. The international
voice service market has been characterized by aggressive promotional campaigns and price reductions. We believe that competition will
continue to increase in the international telecommunications market, resulting in further reductions of tariffs. In addition, we face competition in
Finland from service operators, and from international telecommunications operators.

Norway

     Our main competitor for mobile communications services in Norway is Telenor. There are also several service providers and content
providers operating on the Norwegian mobile communications market.
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Denmark

     The market for mobile communications services in Denmark is highly competitive. Our main competitors in the Danish mobile
communications market are TDC, Sonofon and Orange, of which TDC is the largest. In the market for Internet services in Denmark, we face
competition from TDC, Tele 2, Sonofon and Orange A/S (formerly, Mobilix). Orange also competes with us in the area of data communications.
In the fixed network and fixed voice services market in Denmark, our major wholesale competitors are TDC, Orange, Global Connect A/S, Song
Networks, COLT and Global Crossing, and our major retail competitors are TDC, Tele2, Debitel Danmark A/S, Orange and Sonofon.

The Baltic Countries

     We have been facing increasing competition in the Baltic States due to the recent deregulation of the telecommunications markets in these
countries and the increase of competitors entering the market as it continues to develop and grow. In Lithuania, our competitors in the mobile
communications market are Bite GSM and Tele2. Our main competitor in the Latvian market for mobile communications services is Tele2.
While currently we do not have any direct major competition in the market for fixed voice services and fixed network services in Latvia and
Lithuania, the fixed communications monopoly ended in Latvia and Lithuania on January 1, 2003, and we expect several new competitors to
enter the market. In Estonia, our main competitors for mobile communications services are Radiolinja Eesti AS and Tele2 Eesti AS, while in
fixed voice services and Internet and data communications, we compete mainly with Tele2 and Uninet AS.

Marketing

Sweden

     In Sweden, we market our mobile, Internet and other services to residential and business subscribers through sales agents, independent
distributors, the Internet via our www.telia.se site and through our retail stores. Our network of retail stores in Sweden has an important role by
providing a showcase for our products and services as well as by contributing to the creation of our strong brand presence. As of December 31,
2002, our services were available through approximately 77 Telia stores and 8,000 external resellers in Sweden.

     Through www.telia.se, we are also able to offer personalized product offerings to our on-line customers based on their prior on-line use. The
www.telia.se portal also provides a convenient means for new customers to subscribe to additional services provided by us. We believe that
www.telia.se will become one of our major distribution channels for the purchase and use of our services. We also believe that the use of this
self-service channel will lead to lower operating costs than are typically associated with more traditional distribution and service channels.

     In addition, Skanova, our Swedish wholesale operator, and TeliaSonera International Carrier are each active in the Swedish market and offer
national and international network services to operators and service providers. Skanova uses a differentiated distribution channel that enables us
to separately focus on large companies, public organizations and small- and medium-sized companies.

Finland

     In Finland, we market our services to residential customers primarily through independent distributors and to corporate customers primarily
through our direct sales force. Both business and residential customers are also able to subscribe to services via the Internet.

     Our principal distributor in Finland is an independent dealer network, which has acted as the non-exclusive distributor of Sonera�s mobile
subscriptions since 1990. The network comprises approximately 1,000 outlets in Finland, including specialty stores for mobile communications
equipment, home electronic stores and department stores. In our Internet portal, customers are able to modify their subscription options, and
subscribe to additional services through Internet, WAP and SMS.

Norway, Denmark and the Baltic Countries

     In Denmark, fixed, mobile and Internet services are mainly sold through external resellers. Digital cable television access is mainly sold
through our subsidiary, Telia Stofa, as well as through antenna associations. We manage our own sales of network capacity and network services
to operators and service providers in Denmark. In Norway, sales of mobile services are carried out through a network of external resellers. In the
Baltic countries, each of our subsidiaries and associated companies operates through both its own retail stores and external resellers.
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Regulation

The European Union

General

     Sweden and Finland are members of the European Union and, as such, are required to follow European Union regulations and to enact
domestic legislation to give effect to European Union legislation that is adopted in the form of directives and decisions. Resolutions,
recommendations and opinions are not legally binding but are politically important. Recommendations are of particular importance in the field
of telecommunications.

     On May 1, 2004, ten new member states are scheduled to join the European Union, including countries in which we have significant
operations, such as Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia. European Union law, including related telecommunications legislation, will be applicable in
these countries from the date of accession.

Liberalization of Telecommunications Markets

     The liberalization of the European telecommunications sector began on June 28, 1990, when the European Commission adopted a Directive
on Competition in the Markets for Telecommunications Services (90/388/EEC) (the �Services Directive�). The Services Directive abolished
existing monopolies on, and permitted the competitive provision of, all telecommunications services with the exception of the commercial
provision to the public of direct transmission and switching of speech in real time between two points on the public network. The scope of the
Services Directive has been extended to cover satellite telecommunications services (October 13, 1994), telecommunications services provided
via cable television networks (October 18, 1995) and mobile and personal communications (January 16, 1996).

     On March 13, 1996, the Services Directive was amended by the so-called �Full Competition Directive� (96/19/EC), which permitted alternative
infrastructure providers, such as cable companies, railroads and utility companies, to resell capacity on their networks for the provision of
liberalized telecommunications services, beginning July 1, 1996.

     On September 16, 2002, the European Commission adopted Directive 2002/77/EC on competition in the markets for electronic
communications networks and services which consolidates, clarifies and repeals the Services Directive, as amended, and the Network Separation
Directive. The consolidating Directive entered into force on October 7, 2002, and European Union member states must confirm their compliance
with it by July 24, 2003.

ONP Directives

     The legislative process of the harmonization of telecommunications services and equipment began with the adoption of the ONP (Open
Network Provision) Framework Directive (90/387/EEC) on June 28, 1990. This directive concerned the conditions under which
telecommunications providers and consumers could gain open and efficient access to the state monopoly telecommunications service provider�s
public networks.

     The ONP Framework Directive was followed by ONP directives on leased lines on June 5, 1992 (Directive 92/44/EEC), and on voice
telephony on December 13, 1995 (Directive 95/62/EC). On October 6, 1997, the ONP Framework and the ONP Leased Line Directives were
modified by Directive 97/51/EC, which adapted them to a more competitive environment. On February 26, 1998, the Voice Telephony Directive
(98/10/EC) updated Directive 95/62/EC and extended ONP requirements to all voice telecommunications and to the provision of universal
telecommunications services.

     On June 30, 1997, the �Interconnection Directive� (97/33/EC) established principles for setting interconnection charges and allocating the cost
of universal service obligations and imposed accounting safeguards to avoid unfair cross-subsidization. Organizations with significant market
power (25 percent share of the relevant market) must offer interconnection services at cost-based rates on a non-discriminatory basis. This
Directive was modified on September 24, 1998, by Directive 98/61/EC, which introduced operator number portability in fixed networks
throughout the European Union and created a legal basis for the introduction of carrier pre-selection.
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     The European Commission has also issued recommendations on termination charges in the fixed network, packet switching data services and
ISDN offerings.

     As of July 25, 2003, the ONP Directives will be largely repealed by the New Communications Framework. See ��New Communications
Framework.�

Licensing

     A European Union directive on general authorizations and individual licenses in the field of telecommunications services (97/13/EC) was
adopted on April 10, 1997. It will be repealed on July 25, 2003, by the New Communications Framework. See ��New Communications
Framework.�

     On December 14, 1998, the European Parliament and the Council adopted the �UMTS Decision� (128/1999/EC), which provides for the
coordinated licensing regulatory framework of third generation mobile communication systems in the European Union member states to ensure
that users can use their third generation handsets or other devices anywhere in the European Union just as they can with GSM today. This
pan-European roaming will result from licenses being based on the coordinated allocation of frequencies and the use of European
Telecommunications Standards Institute�s (ETSI) standards. European Union member states were required to establish an authorization system
for UMTS by January 1, 2000 and to allow for UMTS services to begin as of January 1, 2002. We are involved in a UMTS joint venture in
Sweden. See ��TeliaSonera Sweden�Mobile Communications�Non-Voice Services.� We opened our UMTS network for technical testing in Finland
on January 1, 2002 and we expect to be able to open the network for commercial use during 2003. See ��TeliaSonera Finland�Mobile
Communications�Non-Voice Services.� The introduction of UMTS services is dependent upon a number of factors, including the development of
commercially viable technology and the ability of telecommunications operators to license such technology on commercially acceptable terms.

New Communications Framework

     Following a review of the telecommunications regulatory framework in 1999, the European Parliament and the Council adopted a new
regulatory framework for electronic communications networks and services (the �Communications Framework�) consisting of:

� five harmonization directives, including a framework directive and four specific directives on (1) authorization, (2) access and
interconnection, (3) universal service and users� rights and (4) privacy in electronic communications;

� a regulation on the unbundling of the local loop; and

� a decision on European Union radio spectrum policy.
     The Communications Framework will apply to all forms of communications networks carrying publicly available communications services,
whether used for voice, fax, data or images, including fixed and mobile telecommunications networks, cable television networks, networks used
for terrestrial broadcasting, satellite networks and networks using Internet protocol. It aims to bring the sector-specific rules for electronic
communications more in line with the general competition rules. For example, the �Framework Directive� (2002/21/EC) bases the notion of
significant market power on the concept of dominant position used in European Union competition law practice. The new form of significant
market power will embrace single company dominance and joint dominance. Ex ante regulatory measures will be designed to present abuse of
such dominant position, such as the leveraging of a dominant position onto an associated market.

     On July 11, 2002, the European Commission published guidelines on market analysis and the assessment of significant market power. The
Commission supplemented these guidelines with a recommendation on relevant product and service markets, issued on February 12, 2003.
National regulatory authorities (NRAs) will take the markets listed in the recommendation as the starting point for their own market analyses.
NRAs will be able to determine and designate which companies have significant market power and to impose or maintain ex ante sector-specific
obligations where ex post remedies of competition law are not adequate to meet the market problems identified.

54

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 83



Table of Contents

     The recommendation may have a material effect on our business, in particular due to the narrow definition of the relevant markets, which
includes voice call termination on individual mobile networks and the wholesale national market for international roaming on public mobile
networks. Much will depend on (i) how the relevant regulatory authority defines the market, and (ii) what measures it takes to allay any concern
that it may have on these markets. The Commission will review the need for any update to the recommendation no later than June 30, 2004.

     Directive 2002/20/EC on the authorization of electronic communications networks and services (the �Authorisation Directive�) aims to create a
legal framework to ensure the freedom to provide electronic communications networks and services. It provides that all services and networks
should be covered under a general authorization, and specific rights of use should be limited to the assignment of frequencies and numbers only.
Certain conditions may be attached to a general authorization, including, for example, financial contributions to the funding of universal service,
interoperability of services and interconnection of networks.

     Directive 2002/19/EC on access to, and interconnection of, electronic communications networks and associated facilities (the �Access
Directive�) establishes rights and obligations for operators and for seeking interconnection and/or access to their networks or associated facilities.
It requires member states to ensure that there are no restrictions that prevent entities from negotiating agreements on arrangements for access
and/or interconnection. Where an NRA has carried out a market analysis in light of the Commission�s recommendation of February 12, 2003 and
designated an operator as having significant market power, it may then impose conditions on that operator, such as a non-discrimination
obligation, a requirement for accounting separation, an access requirement for specific facilities, price control and cost accounting obligations or
a requirement for transparency of accounting information, technical specifications, network characteristics, terms and conditions, and prices.

     Directive 2002/22/EC on universal service and users� rights relating to electronic communications networks and services (the �Universal
Service Directive�) defines the minimum services to which all end-users must have access at an affordable price: connection at a fixed location to
the public telephone network enabling the end-user to make and receive local, national and international telephone calls, facsimile
communications and data communications (sufficient to permit Internet access). End-users should also have access to public telephone services
including directory enquiries and directories. Where an NRA considers that the provision of universal services represents an unfair burden on
entities designated to provide that service, member states are obliged to share the net cost between providers of electronic communications
networks and services. NRAs may maintain or impose conditions on entities identified as having significant market power, including price caps
on retail services, carrier selection and carrier pre-selection.

     The Framework, Authorisation, Access and Universal Service Directives are due to be implemented by European Union member states by
July 25, 2003. Finland will implement these Directives by means of its new Communications Market Act which was enacted on May 23, 2003,
and will enter into force on July 25, 2003. In Sweden, these Directives will primarily be implemented by means of the new Law on Electronic
Communication which will also enter into force on July 25, 2003.

Privacy and Electronic Communications

     Directive 2002/58/EC on privacy and electronic communications requires the provider of a publicly available electronic communications
service to safeguard the security of its services. It prohibits the interception and surveillance of communications without the consent of users,
unless legally authorized, although communications and traffic data may be recorded in the course of lawful business practices as evidence of a
commercial transaction. Traffic data must be erased or made anonymous when no longer needed for transmission or billing, and may be used for
marketing only with the user�s consent. Subscribers have the right to receive non-itemized bills, to restrict calling line identification, to object to
the processing of location data and to decide whether their personal data should be included in a public directory. The Directive prohibits the
sending of unsolicited communications by fax, automatic calling machines or electronic mail without the prior consent of the subscriber. The
Directive is due to be implemented into national law by the end of October 2003. In Sweden, the Directive will be implemented by the new Law
on Electronic Communication which will enter into force on July 25, 2003. According to the Finnish Ministry of Transport and
Communications, a Finnish Government bill implementing the Directive is expected to be debated by the Finnish Parliament in September 2003
but the law may not be in force by October 31, 2003.
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Spectrum Policy

     On March 7, 2002, the European Parliament and the Council adopted Decision No 676/2002/EC on a regulatory framework for radio
spectrum. This Decision facilitates the development of spectrum policy in the European Union, sets up procedures for the adoption of technical
implementing measures, provides for the coordination of spectrum policy decisions among member states and aims to ensure the efficient use of
the radio spectrum.

     More recently, Commission Recommendation of March 20, 2003 on the harmonization of the provision of public Radio Local Area Networks
(R-LAN) access to public electronic communications networks and services provides that, in applying measures under the Authorisation
Directive and the Framework Directive, member states should allow the provision of public R-LAN access to public electronic communications
networks and services in the available 2,4 GHz and 5 GHz bands to the extent possible without sector specific conditions and in any case subject
only to general authorization. The Recommendation aims to foster the development of multiple broadband access platforms.

Unbundling of the Local Loop

     On December 18, 2000, the European Parliament and the Council adopted Regulation 2887/2000 on unbundled access to the local loop (the
�ULL Regulation�), which entered into force on January 2, 2001. Local loop unbundling means the granting by incumbent operators of full
unbundled access, and shared access, to the twisted metallic pair circuit connecting the network termination point at the subscriber�s premises to
the main distribution frame or equivalent facility in the fixed public telephone network local loop.

     Under the ULL Regulation, operators with significant market power must publish and keep updated a reference offer for unbundled access to
their local loops and related facilities. They must meet reasonable requests for unbundled access to their local loops under fair conditions and,
except where specifically exempted, prices charged for unbundled access to the local loop must be cost-orientated.

     The Finnish regulatory regime already provided for �full� and �shared� access. We do not, therefore, expect the ULL Regulation to have a
material adverse effect on our business or financial results in Finland. To date, the ULL Regulation has had a positive effect on our business in
Finland, allowing us to provide ADSL services outside our traditional operational areas.

     Telia opened its access network to other operators in the spring of 2000 and in the course of 2001 modified all of its offerings to comply with
the regulation. While we have not yet experienced a significant increase in competition as a result of the new legal regime regarding unbundled
local loop access, as most competitors continue to opt to gain subscriber traffic through interconnection arrangements rather than leasing the
access lines, such opening of the local loop may have significant long-term consequences for us.

Electronic Commerce and Liability of Internet Service Providers

     The European Union�s Electronic Commerce Directive (2000/31/EC) of June 8, 2000, regulates the legal recognition of electronic contracts,
the formation of electronic contracts, the information to be provided by the service provider to the consumer, and solicited and unsolicited
commercial communications with consumers. It also contains rules that limit the liability of intermediary service providers acting as a mere
conduit, as well as for caching and hosting activities. In particular, an intermediary service provider cannot be held liable for hosting activities if
it does not know of illegal activity or information and was not aware of facts or circumstances from which illegal activity or information is
apparent. Where the provider receives such information, it can avoid liability by acting expeditiously to remove or disable access to the
information. Sweden implemented the Electronic Commerce Directive by the Act on Electronic Commerce and Other Information Technology
Services (SFS 2002:562), which entered into force on July 1, 2002 and also by minor amendments to a number of other laws. In Finland, the
Electronic Commerce Directive was implemented by the Act of Electronic Commerce, which also entered into force on July 1, 2002. The
general terms and conditions we apply to subscribers of our Internet services and to our portal disclaimers also aim to reduce exposure to
potential liabilities.
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Other

     Our business may also be affected by European Union legislation relating to copyright, encryption regulations, distance selling (which
governs contracts concluded at a distance, such as goods and services purchased and sold over the Internet) and media infrastructure and content.

Sweden

Overview

     Historically, there has been little regulation of the telecommunications sector in Sweden and few legal barriers to competition. Until 1993,
there was no telecommunications-specific legislation and no separate licenses were necessary to provide either public fixed telecommunications
services or public mobile telecommunications services.

     In 1991, a review was conducted of the telecommunications sector in Sweden under the supervision of the Swedish Commission on
Telecommunications Regulation. In 1993, legislation was enacted governing the telecommunications sector in Sweden. The current principal
legislation is the Swedish Telecommunications Act and the Swedish Radio Communications Act.

     In March 2003, the Swedish Government proposed a new Act on Electronic Communication to replace the Telecommunications Act and the
Radio Communications Act. The new Act on Electronic Communication will enter into force on July 25, 2003, and implements the legislation
relating to the new European Union Communications Framework. See ��The European Union�New Communications Framework.�

     The new Act on Electronic Communication has been designed to create a more flexible system for the supervision of the telecommunications
market. Consequently, under the new Act on Electronic Communication, fewer obligations will flow directly from the law. For example, the
new Act on Electronic Communication abandons the general requirement to obtain a license to conduct telecommunication activities. Instead,
the Swedish National Post and Telecommunications Agency or the NPTA, the Swedish regulatory authority, will be given the authority to render
specific, binding decisions imposing obligations on operators that have a significant market power.

     While the new Act on Electronic Communication will bring significant changes to telecommunications regulation in Sweden, we are not
currently in a position to assess the impact of these changes on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Licensing Requirements

     A basic principle of the Telecommunications Act is to further open the telecommunications services market to competition subject to
licensing and notification requirements. Any entity that has extensive tele-communications activities in Sweden must obtain a license from the
NPTA in order to provide certain telecommunications services within a public telecommunications network and all other providers (other than
providers of data communications and Internet services) must provide notification to the NPTA.

     Under the Telecommunications Act, separate licenses are required for the provision of public fixed telecommunications services, mobile
telecommunications services and for the provision of network capacity where the extent of these activities is considerable. Currently, we have
six licenses: one fixed telecommunications license, one network capacity license (including leased lines) and four mobile licenses (NMT 450
service, GSM 900 and other mobile services, GSM 1800 service and terrestrial flight telecommunications service). In addition, we own
50 percent of Svenska UMTS-nät , which has a wholly owned subsidiary that holds a UMTS license.

     A license under the Telecommunications Act may be revoked, in whole or in part, if the operator violates the terms of the
Telecommunications Act or the operator violates any condition of the license. However, the NPTA must notify the operator and provide the
operator an opportunity to rectify the violation before any revocation can take effect. The NPTA also may impose conditional fines on license
holders in connection with injunctions and prohibitions to ensure compliance with the conditions set forth in the licenses.

     Our license to provide public fixed telecommunications services is valid for an unlimited period of time. The license is subject to certain
conditions, which will expire on December 31, 2003. Some of the principal conditions include: (1) the requirement to provide fixed line
telecommunications services on similar conditions to anyone requesting the service; (2) the requirement to publish a printed catalogue with
subscriber information;
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(3) the requirement to provide customer access to an emergency number at no charge; (4) a prescribed cost accounting system to ensure that our
prices are cost-based; and (5) conditions relating to protection measures and services for the disabled.

     Our license to provide network capacity in Sweden is valid for an unlimited period of time. The license is subject to certain conditions, which
will expire on December 31, 2003. Some of the principal conditions include: (1) the requirement to provide a minimum set of leased lines and
supply other operators with network capacity to the extent we have �available� capacity; and (2) a prescribed cost accounting system to ensure that
our prices are cost-based.

     We are licensed to provide NMT 450 and GSM 900/1800 services in Sweden. Our GSM 900 license will expire on December 31, 2004, and
our GSM 1800 license will expire on December 31, 2005. Our NMT license will expire on December 31, 2007. We have no reason to believe
the licenses will not be prolonged or renewed. All these licenses are subject to certain conditions, which will expire on December 31, 2003.
Some of the principal conditions include: (1) the requirement to provide certain minimum coverage in Sweden; (2) a prescribed cost accounting
system to ensure that we are able to identify the separate costs associated with our NMT and GSM systems; (3) the requirement to provide
customer access to an emergency number at no charge; and (4) conditions relating to protection measures and services for the disabled.

     Under the new Act on Electronic Communication, the general requirement for operators that have extensive telecommunications activities in
Sweden to obtain a license from the NPTA will be abandoned. However, there will be additional obligations on all service providers to notify
their activities to the NPTA.

Universal Service

     As mentioned above, as part of our licensing conditions, we are required to provide universal basic telecommunications services to a fixed
point of network connection on similar terms and conditions to anyone requesting the service. We can satisfy this requirement with our fixed
line and our NMT 450 services. Currently, no other fixed telecommunications operator in Sweden is required to provide this universal service.

     Under the new Act on Electronic Communication, the universal services requirement will no longer be a licensing condition. However, the
NPTA may oblige any appropriate telecommunications operator to provide universal services.

Retail Price Regulation

     Currently, we are not subject to any special regulation capping our prices or any other similar regulation. However, Swedish regulation
requires our tariffs for basic fixed line telecommunications and leased lines to be cost-based.

     The new Act on Electronic Communication will increase the NPTA�s power to regulate prices applied by telecommunications operators that
have significant market power on an end-user market. The NPTA will have the power to impose a lowest or highest price on an operator, or
oblige an operator to apply a specific price within a certain geographical area. However, the NPTA will only have the power to regulate the
prices applied by an operator if its clear that other measures, such as interconnection obligations, are insufficient to ensure efficient competition
and to fulfil the public interest on the end-user market. Under the new Act on Electronic Communication, there is no general rule requiring
tariffs for basic fixed line telecommunications and leased lines to be cost-based. However, the NPTA will have the power to impose a
requirement for cost-based services on operators that have significant market power.

Access to Infrastructure

Interconnection

     One principle underlying the Telecommunications Act is that a notified or licensed telecommunications service provider must allow
interconnection to its network and services by other service providers. A service provider holding a significant market position must offer
interconnection on a non-discriminatory basis, and in particular may not put other service providers in a worse position than its internal
departments or affiliates. In Sweden, both fixed line and mobile interconnection access and rates are subject to regulation. If operators are unable
to negotiate voluntary interconnect agreements, the NPTA has the power to mediate and decide the
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matter. The Telecommunications Act requires operators with significant market power to meet certain conditions, which include publishing
tariffs for fixed interconnection services and offering equivalent terms to operators requesting interconnection services. In addition, all
interconnection rates for fixed and mobile telecommunications charged by us must be cost-based. We are also required to maintain separate
accounts for our fixed interconnection business in Sweden. The Telecommunications Act imposes cost-based pricing requirements for traffic
terminating on mobile networks of operators with significant market power in the national market for interconnection. In a ruling in February
2002, the NPTA found that Telia, Vodafone and Tele2 all have such a market position. The ruling was appealed and the Administrative Court
reversed the ruling of the NPTA in May 2003, finding that Tele2 and Vodafone do not have significant market power in the mobile
telecommunications market in Sweden.

     The NPTA has the authority to decide upon interconnection charges to be applied by operators. On January 30, 2002, the NPTA ruled that we
must reduce our mobile interconnection tariffs to 0.92 SEK per minute, effective March 1, 2002. We filed an appeal with the Administrative
Court seeking to reverse the ruling and in the interim, injunctive relief. On February 26, 2002, the Administrative Court denied our injunctive
relief and as a consequence Telia lowered its interconnection tariffs on March 1, 2002, to 0.92 SEK per minute. In May 2002, the Administrative
Court rejected our appeal to reverse the NPTA�s ruling. We have filed an appeal with the Administrative Court of Appeal. The NPTA has also
stated that it will continue its review of our mobile interconnection tariffs. On October 1, 2002, we lowered our mobile interconnection tariff to
SEK 0.88 per minute. There is no assurance that we will not be required to reduce our interconnection tariffs in the future.

     The new Act on Electronic Communication does not include a general obligation for operators of public communication networks to allow
interconnection to their network, by other service providers. Instead, the NPTA will have the power to impose an obligation on operators that
control access to end-users to allow interconnection to its network at market price. The NPTA may also impose additional obligations on an
operator that has significant market power in order to ensure efficient competition. For example, an operator with significant market power may
be required to apply cost-based prices when allowing interconnection or other forms of access to its network.

National Roaming

     GSM operators, if granted a UMTS license, are required to offer other UMTS operators roaming on their GSM networks at market price. This
legislation entered into force in July 2000. Since we were not granted a UMTS license, we are not obliged to offer national roaming. It is unclear
whether Svenska UMTS-nät has such an obligation.

Carrier Pre-selection

     The NPTA required license holders operating fixed networks to implement carrier pre-selection by September 11, 1999. Carrier pre-selection
refers to the ability of a user to choose a local, long distance, mobile or international carrier independent of its local loop provider. Currently,
carrier pre-selection is available for all national, international and fixed-to-mobile calls in Sweden. The Telecommunications Act contains
provisions that address carrier pre-selection for mobile services. However, they require further regulations in order to become effective. In
February 2002, carrier pre-selection for local calls was introduced in Sweden.

     The new Act on Electronic Communication will not introduce any substantial amendments as regards carrier pre-selection.

Number Portability

     Number portability, allows an end-user to change local exchange or mobile carriers while retaining the same telephone number. The
introduction of number portability for fixed telecommunications access (including access to TeliaSonera�s ISDN lines), premium rate calls and
free-phone services began in July 1999 and was completed in December 1999. In May 2000, the NPTA adopted regulations for mobile number
portability, which was implemented in September 2001. The regulations apply to all operators offering digital mobile telecommunications
subscription, prepaid and short message services.

     The new Act on Electronic Communication will allow a provider transferring a number to recover the entire costs incurred by the transfer.
According to the existing Telecommunications Act, a service provider transferring a number is only allowed to recover half of the cost incurred
by the transfer.
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Regulatory Institutions

     Responsibility for regulating the telecommunications sector and the promotion of fair and open competition in Sweden has been allocated
among several regulatory bodies. The primary body under the Telecommunications Act is the NPTA. The NPTA is responsible for the
day-to-day oversight of the telecommunications sector in Sweden. The NPTA falls, for various administrative purposes, under the responsibility
of the Swedish Government (Ministry of Industry, Employment and Communications).

     The NPTA is a fully independent governmental authority. The director general, who is the head of the NPTA, is appointed for a fixed term of
six years, subject to extension for an additional three to six years. Because the director general is not a political appointee, he or she is not
required to resign upon changes in government.

     Under the Swedish constitution, the Swedish Government, the Ministry of Industry, Employment and Communications and individual
ministers are not permitted to intervene in the day-to-day affairs of the NPTA. On other issues the Swedish Government may issue instructions
to a government agency such as the NPTA. The Swedish Government determines budget allocations. However, since NPTA regulatory
operations are fully funded by licensing and notification fees, the Swedish Government has little impact on the NPTA�s budget as a practical
matter.

     Other relevant regulatory bodies are the Swedish Competition Authority and the Swedish Consumer Agency. The Swedish Competition
Authority is the central administrative authority in Sweden in charge of competition issues, including the application of the European Union
competition regulations. The Swedish Consumer Agency is the central authority in charge of consumer issues. It serves as a monitoring agency
on issues affecting consumers, such as marketing practices, and enforces consumer market legislation in most areas.

     The NPTA has been given certain powers relating to interconnection to enable a more speedy resolution of disputes between operators. For
example, upon request by either party in an on-going interconnection negotiation, the NPTA will set a time limit within which the negotiations
must be concluded. If a final agreement has not been reached within this time limit, the NPTA must mediate between the parties and, upon
request by either party, determine the relevant terms of the agreement. Decisions may be appealed to the relevant court of law, but the terms of
the NPTA decision apply during the appeal.

     The new Act on Electronic Communication does not introduce any substantial amendments as regards the regulatory institutions.

Finland

Overview

     We are subject to the comprehensive regulatory regime applicable to the Finnish telecommunications industry under the Finnish
Communications Market Act (396/1997), as amended (the �Communications Market Act�), and related regulations, decrees and administrative
decisions. In 1994 the Finnish telecommunications market was fully liberalized and, since then, every segment of the market has been subject to
competition.

     In September 2002, the Finnish Government submitted a proposal to the parliament for a totally reformed Finnish Communications Market
Act. The main goal of this reform is to implement the European regulatory framework for electronic communications networks and services. The
new laws have been approved by the Finnish Parliament and the Finnish President. The totally reformed Communications Market Act
(393/2003) and the amendments to the other acts will come into effect as from July 25, 2003.

     Under the new Communications Market Act, the obligations imposed on telecommunications operators will principally apply to
telecommunications operators with significant market power. The Finnish Communications Regulatory Authority (FICORA) is given the
authority to decide, based on its market analysis, which obligations will be necessary to apply to telecommunications operators. These
obligations will principally include the obligation to give access to the network elements or the capacity of the network as defined in the new
Communications Market Act. Pricing of such access by the telecommunications operators may also be regulated. In addition, operators may be
obligated to establish national roaming from UMTS networks to GSM
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networks, provide international roaming and publish their terms and conditions of supply and tariffs as well as provide cost-oriented and
non-discriminatory pricing. Furthermore, users will be entitled to certain universal service, including the right to demand access to the general
telephone network. Reasonably priced directory services and emergency calls free of charge will also be available to users. A user will have the
right to retain its existing number when changing mobile operators. The Market Court may order, on the proposal of the FICORA,
telecommunications operators that violate the new Communications Market Act to pay penalties in certain circumstances. The penalty may not
be more than five per cent of telecommunications operator�s previous year�s turnover for communications networks and services.

     As part of its objective to promote further competition, the current Communications Market Act encourages new market entrants by
introducing the concept of �significant market power,� holders of which are subject to a higher degree of transparency in their accounting, more
stringent fair pricing requirements and the obligation not to discriminate. In practice, telecommunications operators with a market share
exceeding 25 percent in a relevant market have been presumed to have significant market power in that market. By ministerial decision, we
currently are deemed to have significant market power in long distance, international, mobile telecommunications and cable network television
throughout Finland and in local telecommunications in our traditional service areas. The concept of significant market power will change with
the new Communications Market Act. We are currently not in a position to assess the impact of these changes on our business, financial
condition or results of operations. See ��The European Union�New Communications Framework.�

     Rights and obligations under the current Communications Market Act are applicable until FICORA has finalized its market analysis and
decided on the obligations to be imposed on significant market power operators as well as other operators under the new Communications
Market Act. While the new legislation will bring significant changes to telecommunications regulation in Finland, we are currently not in a
position to assess the impact of these changes on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Licensing Requirements

     Under the Communications Market Act, a license from the Ministry of Transport and Communications is required for the provision of
telecommunications network services in the public mobile network. Licenses granted have a maximum term of 20 years and are renewable. Our
current GSM license was granted in December 2002 and is in force until 2017. The license covers the DCS, GSM 900 and GSM 1800 networks
in Finland. The license does not contain any additional conditions other than those set forth in the Communications Market Act relating to the
financial condition of an operator and the network coverage.

     In 1999, we received a third generation mobile license for a term of 20 years. Our license currently covers the operation of a public third
generation mobile network throughout Finland. The license is conditional upon obtaining necessary permits to possess radio transmitters. Such
permits were granted to us by the FICORA in October 2001 and they are valid until October 2006. According to our UMTS license in Finland,
we were required to commence the provision of our third generation mobile network services in January 2002 at the latest. Our license could
have been revoked if such services had not commenced by January 2002. We commenced technical testing services of our UMTS network in
January 2002. Based on our discussions with the Ministry of Transport and Communications, which oversees mobile network licenses, we are
confident that the commencement of such technical network services is sufficient to maintain our UMTS license in Finland. We expect to be
able to open the network for commercial use during 2003, provided that the UMTS network technology is matured and the commercial
availability of dual mode UMTS/GSM handsets is sufficient.

Universal Service

     Universal service, as required by the Universal Service Directive, entails an obligation to provide access to the public telephone network and
to deliver an affordable telephone service to all users reasonably requesting it. See ��The European Union.� However, neither mobile services, with
the exception of free emergency calls and directory assistance, nor Internet services are included in the universal service requirement.

     Currently, the Finnish telecommunications regulations do not specifically require us to offer universal service. However, the Communications
Market Act sets forth a general objective that telecommunications services should be provided in accordance with the reasonable needs of users
and be reasonably priced. The current interpretation by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications of this requirement is that fixed
network operators that possess significant market power are obliged to provide basic services, but do not have an obligation to set rates below
their competitive market rates nor to establish uniform nationwide tariffs and subscription charges.
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     Under the new Communications Market Act, an operator with significant market power in a fixed network in a particular area has a universal
service obligation to provide a subscriber connection at the user�s permanent place of residence/location at a reasonable price. The connection
provided is required to allow outgoing and incoming local, long-distance, international and other ordinary calls, as well as outgoing and
incoming facsimile transmissions and an appropriate internet connection. ISDN or ADSL connections are currently not universal service
obligations. If there is no operator with significant market power in a particular area, the universal service obligation applies to the operator with
the largest market share calculated on the basis of the number of subscriptions.

     To control the costs of operating our extensive fixed network, we have examined more cost-effective ways of providing network connections
to our most remote service areas. The Ministry of Transport and Communications noted that telephone operators will not have the right to
change the type of technology used in the provision of services without the subscriber�s permission, except when the standard of service and the
level of pricing for their services remains the same. However, there is no guarantee that we will not, in the future, be required to offer fast data
connections using a fixed network. If this were to take place on terms and conditions that do not provide an adequate return on the possible new
investments required in the fixed network of our remote service areas, it could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Access to Infrastructure

Interconnection

     Under the Communications Market Act and related decisions, operators of public telecommunications networks in Finland have an obligation
to negotiate interconnection agreements with each other for the purpose of offering their telecommunications services. Interconnection should be
granted without delay at the requested interface following a written request. Significant market power telecommunications network operators are
under an obligation to behave in a transparent and non-discriminatory manner and to offer interconnection with their networks to all
telecommunications network operators on non-discriminatory terms and at a reasonable price in view of costs. Significant market power
telecommunications network operators may not refuse a request for interconnection if the proposed terms are reasonable. In addition,
telecommunications network operators with significant market power have to provide subscribers with access to all local, long distance, mobile
and international telecommunications services provided in their area.

     All telecommunications network operators with significant market power must publish the technical and pricing terms on which they will
provide interconnection to other telecommunications network operators in a so-called �Reference Interconnection Offer� (the �RIO�). In addition,
there is an obligation for telecommunications network operators with significant market power to separately determine reference fees for
incoming (terminating) and outgoing (access) interconnection traffic. The aim of the ministerial decision is to create a regulatory platform that
would enable telecommunications network operators to offer end-to-end pricing for their services. The decision does not apply: (1) with respect
to access, (A) to communications without prefix or pre-selection transmitted from a local telecommunications network to another local
telecommunications network or service within the same telecommunications area nor (B) to communications from a mobile communications
network to a local telecommunications network or service or to another mobile communications network or its service, and (2) with respect to
termination, to communications transmitted from a local telecommunications network to a mobile telecommunication network or its service. The
corresponding regulation will be included in the new Communications Market Act.

     Effective April 2001, the Communications Market Act was amended to require telecommunications network operators to lease a portion of
their unused subscriber line transfer capacity in the fixed voice network (shared use of the local loop) to third parties for, for example, the
provision of parallel high-speed subscriber lines. The obligation to lease does, under certain conditions, also require fixed telecommunications
network operators to provide space for other operators� equipment on their property (co-location) to allow other service providers to connect to a
subscriber connection with the necessary technical equipment. The cost payable by the lessee for shared access to subscriber lines can be no
more than half of the cost of the use of such subscriber connection for all purposes, unless the telecommunications network operator is able to
show to the FICORA that its costs for allowing parallel access are higher than this.
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     Because the FICORA has not concluded its market analysis and has not imposed obligations on operators under the new Communications
Market Act, we are currently not in a position to assess the impact of new interconnection regulation contained in the new Communications
Market Act on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

National Roaming

     Roaming means the provision of one licensed telecommunications network services in a mobile communications network to another licensed
telecommunications network operator. Using roaming, the mobile telecommunications operator may provide mobile connections to its own
subscribers while they are outside of its own network coverage. As a result of amendments to the Communications Market Act that entered into
force in April 2001, holders of third generation mobile telecommunications licenses have a right to allow its subscribers to roam on the GSM
network of operators with a significant market power. This enables third generation license holders to provide services available through GSM
networks on a nationwide basis before the license holders have completed the build-out of their third generation networks. A third generation
mobile license holder must be granted the right to roam on GSM networks if its own third generation network covers at least one-fifth of the
population in the licensed area, as defined in the respective license. Owners of GSM networks are not required to grant roaming rights in an area
where the requesting party already has its own digital network or roaming access from its third generation mobile network to a GSM network
through a separate agreement with a third party.

     The terms upon which any national roaming scheme will be offered may influence the development of competition on the Finnish mobile
telecommunications market. The availability and cost of roaming may affect existing operators� decisions of whether to build their own
nationwide networks or simply to rely on the networks we or other nationwide mobile network operators provide. In the event national roaming
were to be mandated on terms and conditions that do not provide an adequate return on our investment in our GSM networks, the business,
financial condition and results of operations of our mobile communications operations in Finland could be materially adversely affected.

Carrier Pre-selection

     Carrier selection refers to the ability of a user to choose a local, long distance, mobile or international carrier independent of its local loop
provider. This can be achieved in different ways: (1) by pre-selection, where the carrier is chosen by the user; (2) by call-by-call procedures,
where the user typically inserts a prefix before a dialed number; or (3) by random based on the carriers� market shares of local or long distance
and international calls.

     Fixed network operators with significant market power must offer upon request carrier pre-selection. Thus, a call dialed without any prefix or
with the �00� prefix is automatically routed to a local, long distance or an international telecommunications service selected by the user. Where the
user neither selects a prefix nor has made a pre-selection of an operator for long distance or international telecommunications services, traffic is
allocated proportionally among the operators whose services can be used without a separate service agreement. This proportional allocation
system will terminate at the beginning of 2004, after which time a fixed network operator with significant market power may allocate such
traffic to a long distance or international service provider of its choice. Mobile operators with significant market power are also required to offer
carrier selection and pre-selection for international calls. However, they are not obligated to offer carrier selection or pre-selection for national
calls including calls between mobile networks.

Number Portability

     The FICORA is responsible for overseeing number portability in Finland. Geographic number portability in the public switched network has
been mandatory in the whole of Finland since September 1998. The regulatory framework requires local number portability (within an existing
numbering area) and nation-wide number portability using a separately allocated numbering area. Operators with significant market power are
required to offer number portability at cost oriented prices.

     According to the new Communications Market Act and FICORA�s regulations, operators offering mobile services must in cooperation
establish a master database available for storing all ported mobile numbers of the mobile networks. Mobile number portability should be
introduced by July 2003.
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Data Protection

     The Telecommunications Data Privacy Act entered into force in July 1999. The purpose of the Telecommunications Data Privacy Act is to
protect the confidentiality of communications ensuring, among other things, the user�s right to protect his or her telecommunications messages by
technical means such as encryption. The Telecommunications Data Privacy Act also contains strict rules regarding a telecommunications
operator�s right to process user data.

     The Ministry of Transport and Communications is currently preparing a proposal for a new Act on Data Privacy in Electronic
Communications, which will, if adopted, replace the Telecom Data Privacy Act. The new law will implement the European Union Directive on
Privacy and Electronic Communications. See ��The European Union�Privacy and Electronic Communications.� The goal of the new law is to
increase the protection of privacy and communication confidentiality in electronic communications. The proposal also seeks to clarify the data
privacy liabilities of telecommunications operators and electronic communications service providers. A governmental bill is expected to be
presented to the Finnish parliament in autumn 2003.

Regulatory Institutions

     Regulatory authority under the Communications Market Act is divided between the Ministry of Transport and Communications and the
FICORA. We are also subject to Finnish and European Union competition law, which is applied by the Finnish Competition Authority (the
�FCA�) and the European Commission (DG Competition), respectively.

     The Ministry of Transport and Communications is responsible for drafting legislation and issuing Ministry decrees in certain matters. The
Finnish Government grants licenses for public mobile network operations and digital terrestrial mass communications operations. The FICORA
is an agency under the Ministry of Transport and Communications with responsibility for radio, telecommunications, information security,
electronic media, Internet and postal administration and television license management. With respect to telecommunications, the powers of the
FICORA include supervising operators in the market, administering fixed network operator and service operator notifications, issuing additional
regulations based on certain telecommunications regulations, market analysis, significant market power designations, imposing obligations on
operators, establishing and administering the numbering plan, assigning frequencies, overseeing technical standards, administering type
approvals for telecommunications equipment and supervising the protection of privacy in telecommunications.

     The FCA has general jurisdiction under the Act on Competition Restrictions (480/1992) to investigate complaints by competitors or act on its
own initiative with respect to competition law issues. In certain respects, the FCA and the FICORA have overlapping jurisdiction to investigate
and resolve disputes involving our relationships with our competitors and subscribers. Although the telecommunications and the competition
authorities have independent legislative mandates and responsibilities, the Communications Market Act establishes a mechanism for
inter-agency cooperation through a referral procedure where the FICORA may transfer certain parts of an investigation to the FCA.

     Under the new Communications Market Act, the Ministry of Transport and Communications and the FICORA are required to work in
cooperation with the competition authorities and the consumer authorities wherever necessary.

Norway and Denmark

     The regulatory environment in Norway and Denmark is similar to the regulatory environment in Sweden and Finland. Both Norway, as a
party to the European Economic Area Agreement, and Denmark, as a member of the European Union, are obliged to adopt regulatory measures
in line with the current telecommunications directives of the European Union.

     Both countries are scheduled to implement the European Union�s new regulatory framework for electronic communications by July 25, 2003.

The Baltic Countries

     As candidate countries to the European Union, the three Baltic countries, namely, Lithuania, Latvia and Estonia, have agreed to implement
the European Union�s current regulatory framework for telecommunications in their national legislation. The Baltic countries are required to
implement the new regulatory framework
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before May 1, 2004, their scheduled date of entry into the European Union. There can be no assurance that the interpretation and implementation
of the new telecommunications legislations in the Baltic countries will not have an adverse effect upon our business, financial condition or
results of operations in the Baltic region.

Competition Laws

     We are subject to the competition laws in the countries in which we operate and, in particular, Swedish, Finnish and general European Union
competition legal framework and to special provisions, regulations and directives relating specifically to telecommunications.

The European Union

     The main principles in the European Union competition rules are contained in Articles 81 and 82 of the EC Treaty (formerly, Articles 85 and
86 of the Treaty of Rome). These European Union competition rules have the force of law in member states and are therefore applicable to our
operations in Sweden and Finland. Article 81 prohibits agreements or collusive behavior between companies that may affect trade between
members states and which restrict, are intended to restrict or have an effect of restricting, competition within the European Union. Article 82
prohibits any abuse of a dominant position within a substantial part of the European Union that may affect trade between member states. These
rules are enforced by the European Commission in cooperation with the national competition authorities (i.e., in Sweden, the Swedish
Competition Authority and , in Finland, the FCA). The European Commission may impose fines in the event of a breach amounting to up to ten
percent of a company�s revenues on a consolidated basis in the preceding financial year. In addition, national courts have jurisdiction to apply
European Union competition law and award damages in the event of a breach.

     For so long as the Kingdom of Sweden exercises a significant influence over our company, the European Commission will have the authority
to address individual decisions to the Kingdom of Sweden to ensure that we comply with European Union competition rules. In this regard, the
European Commission will be able to initiate proceedings against us directly under Articles 81 and 82 of the EC Treaty, or against the Kingdom
of Sweden under Article 86 of the EC Treaty (formerly, Article 90 of the Treaty of Rome). As a result, we may have to face two different
proceedings, one of which we cannot directly influence and in which we are not a party.

     Given that the Finnish and Swedish States hold 45.3 percent and 19.1 percent respectively, of our shares, it cannot be excluded that our
competitors will allege that transactions between us and either the Finnish or the Swedish State involve an element of state aid or that the
European Commission, at its own initiative, will commence a formal investigation on any such transaction. The European Union state aid rules
are designed to prevent member states of the European Union from granting aid that distorts or threatens to distort competition. To fall within
the scope of the state aid rules, the aid must be granted by a public authority, result in a transfer from state resources or in the state receiving less
resources, lead to an economic advantage for the beneficiary, distort competition by favoring certain companies and affect trade between
European Union member states. The rules do not apply where a state contributes capital in circumstances that would be acceptable to a private
investor operating under normal market economy conditions.

     For example, at least one of our competitors in Finland is known to have complained that the Finnish State�s participation in the Sonera 2001
rights offering constituted illegal state aid. We understand that the Finnish State responded to an inquiry from the European Commission, stating
that it was acting as a private investor operating under market conditions in taking up the offer. We do not believe the Finnish State�s
participation in the rights offering constitutes state aid under any applicable regulatory regime, including but not limited to the rules applied by
the European Commission. However, it cannot be excluded that the European Commission would subsequently take a different view.

     The European Commission has the power to order suspension of payments and demand recovery of aid already granted including accrued
interest. In addition, national courts have the power to ensure that the procedural rules are followed and can order suspension or recovery
including accrued interest in the event of a breach.

Sweden

     On July 1, 1993, a new Competition Act entered into effect in Sweden. The Competition Act prohibits the abuse of a dominant position in a
market, and any such abuse may be subject to a fine of up to ten percent of annual revenues. The Swedish Competition Authority, the regulatory
authority under the Competition Act, is
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empowered to issue injunctions and to enjoin a party to discontinue immediately practices that are not permitted under the Competition Act. The
Competition Act is based on and generally conforms to the rules of competition of the European Commission. The Swedish Competition
Authority and the NPTA cooperate in order to facilitate investigations of anti-competitive behavior in the area of telecommunications services.

Finland

     Finnish competition law, including the Act on Competition Restrictions, prohibits the abuse of a dominant market position, restrictive
practices relating to prices and agreements or collusive behavior among market participants restricting competition. The Communications
Market Act provides that the Ministry of Transport and Communications and the FICORA may refer any matter, to the extent that it may
infringe the competition law, to the FCA.

     The FCA monitors the application of the competition law and in the event of an infringement, the FCA may propose to the Finnish Market
Court (formerly, the Competition Council) that it order the infringing parties to pay a fine or enjoin the infringing behavior, or both. The
maximum fine may be increased where justified on the basis of the seriousness of the infringement and the prevailing circumstances, but the
amount cannot exceed ten percent of the preceding year�s turnover of the parties involved, on a consolidated basis. A company that has violated
the Finnish Act on Competition Restrictions could be required to compensate for any damages caused to another entity by such violation. The
compensation for damages could be required to cover any expenses, any difference between the actual prices and permissible prices, any lost
profits and any other direct or indirect damages resulting from the violation.

     The new Finnish Market Court began its operations in March 2002, to which the duties of the earlier Market Court and the Competition
Council were passed. The new Market Court handles initiatives made by the Finnish Competition Authority to remove competition restraints and
additionally initiatives to prohibit concentrations. It is also the tribunal of first instance when appealing decisions of the FCA.

International Obligations

     Over 70 member countries of the World Trade Organization (WTO) representing over 90 percent of the world�s basic telecommunications
revenues, including the members of the European Union and the United States, have entered into a Basic Telecommunications Agreement, or
BTA, to provide market access to some or all of their basic telecommunications services. This agreement was signed by all the member states of
the European Union as well as the United States, and took effect on February 5, 1998. BTA is the fourth protocol of the General Agreement on
Trade in Services, which is administered by the WTO. Under BTA, Sweden, Finland and the other signatories have made commitments to
provide �market access,� under which they are to refrain from imposing certain quotas or other quantitative restrictions in specified
telecommunications services sectors and to provide �national treatment,� under which they are to avoid treating foreign telecommunications
service suppliers differently from national service suppliers. In addition, a number of signatories, including Sweden and Finland, agreed to abide
by certain pro-competitive principles set forth in a reference paper relating to the prevention of anti-competitive behavior, interconnection,
universal service, transparency of licensing criteria, independence of the regulator and non-discriminatory allocation of scarce resources.

Environmental Matters

     In 1997, Telia completed the environmental remediation and decontamination of a chemical coating (impregnation) plant in Sweden where its
operations were conducted until the mid-1980s. We believe that we do not have any further responsibility for the decontamination of sites
formerly used for impregnating poles in Sweden.

     In Finland, a few coating sites have been decontaminated by Sonera in recent years and there are several impregnation sites and storing places
for impregnated poles where the responsibility for the decontamination is not finally determined.

     Telia has also investigated the possible environmental effect of lead cables and impregnated poles used in its operations. These investigations
have indicated that any spread of substances from lead cables or impregnated poles is essentially negligible and indicated that no environmental
problems were present at the time of the investigation.
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     As mobile phone use has increased, an active debate has emerged on the possible health risks posed by electromagnetic fields from mobile
handsets or base stations. We are carefully monitoring developments in this field. In 1999, Telia organized a scientific council to study the
possible health risks associated with electromagnetic fields. The council monitors the research in this area and serves as a reference group. See
�Item 3.D Risk Factors� for a discussion of the possible health risks associated with mobile phone use.

     We do not currently conduct any business operations in Sweden that require a permit in accordance with Chapter 9, Section 6 of the Swedish
Environmental Code, which regulates the need for permission and notification when conducting environmentally hazardous operations. The
situation in Finland is the same.

     The principal environmental impact of our operations arises from vehicle use, travel, transport, energy use and the consumption and use of
materials. In 2002, carbon dioxide emissions from our operations in Sweden and Finland totaled 130,000 tons.

     All of our waste materials and residue products are handled by environmentally certified contractors and source-sorting is applied in all larger
office buildings.

4.C Organizational Structure

     TeliaSonera AB is the ultimate parent company of the TeliaSonera group and is also responsible for carrying out our Swedish fixed network
operations. TeliaSonera carries out the remainder of its operations through subsidiaries, the most significant of which are listed below:

External net sales
for the year ended

Name of company Domicile Ownership
December 31,

2002(1)

(%) (SEK in millions)
Parent Company:
TeliaSonera AB Stockholm, Sweden � 4,096
Significant Subsidiaries:
Telia Mobile AB Nacka, Sweden 100.0 11,786
Sonera Corporation Helsinki, Finland 100.0 11,534
Telia Partner AB Stockholm, Sweden 100.0 5,943
NetCom AS Oslo, Norway 100.0 5,482
TeliaSonera Sverige AB Gothenburg, Sweden 100.0 4,857
Sonera Carrier Networks Ltd. Helsinki, Finland 100.0 4,031
AB Lietuvos Telekomas Vilnius, Lithuania 60.0 2,544
Fintur Holdings B.V Capelle aan den IJssel, 74.0(2) 2,329

the Netherlands
Telia Online AB Stockholm, Sweden 100.0 1,867
UAB Omnitel Vilnius, Lithuania 55.0 1,840
Latvijas Mobilais Telefons SIA Riga, Latvia 60.3(2) 1,815
TeliaSonera International Carrier AB Stockholm, Sweden 100.0 1,532
Telia Internet Services AB Stockholm, Sweden 100.0 1,480
TeliaSonera International Carrier UK Ltd. London, England 100.0 1,124
Com Hem AB(3) Stockholm, Sweden 100.0 1,069

(1) Presented on a full-year basis.

(2) Includes direct and indirect holdings.

(3) In 2003, we sold Com Hem AB to the Swedish investment fund EQT Northern Europe for approximately SEK 2.2 billion.
4.D Property, Plants and Equipment

     TeliaSonera�s principal executive offices are located in Farsta in Stockholm, Sweden, where we lease 100,000 square meters of office space.
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     As of December 31, 2002, our real estate fixed assets had a total book value of SEK 3,805 million. Our real estate holdings include
approximately 4,200 properties, mainly in Sweden and Finland. The substantial majority of these properties are used for telecommunications
installations, computer installations, research centers and service outlets.
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     We also own a limited number of office premises. Most of our office space is leased rather than owned. At the end of 2002, our office space
and technical site leases covered approximately 1,010,000 square meters. Apart from certain short-term leases, our lease terms range mainly
between three to 15 years with an average term of approximately five years. Each of our leases have been entered into on conventional
commercial terms. Certain contracts include renewal options for various periods of time. We engage in some limited subleasing of office space.

ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

5.A Operating Results

     TeliaSonera was created as a result of the merger of Telia AB and Sonera Corporation in December 2002. On March 26, 2002, Telia and
Sonera entered into a combination agreement in which the two companies agreed to merge. To effect the merger, Telia made an offer to acquire
all of the outstanding shares of Sonera in exchange for Telia shares. In the exchange offer, which was completed on December 9, 2002, Telia
acquired approximately 95.0 percent of the share capital of Sonera. Upon completion of the exchange offer, Telia changed its name to
TeliaSonera. In February 2003, TeliaSonera completed a mandatory redemption offer under Finnish law for all of the remaining shares of
Sonera. At the completion of the mandatory redemption offer, TeliaSonera held approximately 99.4 percent of the share capital of Sonera on a
fully diluted basis. In addition, in December 2002, TeliaSonera commenced a separate compulsory acquisition proceeding under Finnish law
pursuant to which the remaining holders of Sonera shares will be required to surrender their remaining Sonera shares to TeliaSonera for
redemption at a fair price as determined under Finnish law. As required under Finnish law, an arbitral panel was appointed to hear and resolve
any disputes concerning TeliaSonera�s right of redemption and the redemption price in the compulsory acquisition proceeding. On March 20,
2003, at the request of the arbitral panel, TeliaSonera issued a counter-indemnity for a bank guarantee for the payment of the redemption price
plus accrued interest with respect to all of outstanding Sonera shares not held by TeliaSonera. According to Finnish law, as a result of the arbitral
panel�s acceptance of the bank guarantee as security for the payment of the redemption price and accrued interest, TeliaSonera became the sole
record and beneficial owner of Sonera�s shares.

     TeliaSonera�s new organization has been operational since January 1, 2003. As from January 1, 2003, TeliaSonera has also changed its
method of presenting segment information and as from such date presents segment information based on the following principally
geographical-based reporting units: (1) Sweden, (2) Finland, (3) Norway, (4) Denmark, (5) the Baltic countries, (6) Eurasia, (7) Russia,
(8) Turkey, (9) TeliaSonera International Carrier and (10) TeliaSonera Holding.

     The merger has been accounted for by TeliaSonera as TeliaSonera�s acquisition of Sonera using the purchase method of accounting. Under the
purchase method of accounting, as of March 31, 2003, TeliaSonera has allocated the approximately SEK 59.1 billion to acquire Sonera,
including transaction costs, to Sonera�s assets and liabilities based on their respective fair values. The determination of fair values has been
determined on the basis of an independent appraisal. The financial results of Sonera and the new Baltic subsidiaries, Omnitel, Lietuvos
Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons, as a result of the merger have been included in TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements since
December 3, 2002.

     This annual report contains TeliaSonera�s audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001
and 2000, which have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards, or IAS. These financial statements represent the
results of operations of the newly merged group beginning December 3, 2002. Consequently, TeliaSonera�s historical financial statements for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 are not representative of the business of newly merged company. Therefore, to provide
additional information relating to our operating results, we also present a brief discussion of our consolidated operating results and cash flows as
if Telia and Sonera had been a combined company in 2002 and 2001.
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Reorganization of Business Structure

     As of January 1, 2003, we implemented a new reporting unit structure principally based on the geographic areas in which we operate:

� Sweden

� Finland

� Norway

� Denmark

� the Baltic countries

� Eurasia

� Russia

� Turkey

� TeliaSonera International Carrier

� TeliaSonera Holding
     Prior to January 2003, we had organized our operations into four business areas: (1) Telia Mobile; (2) Telia Internet Services; (3) Telia
Networks and (4) Telia International Carrier. In addition, until April 2002, we treated Telia Equity, which was responsible for managing our
non-core ownership interests and business operations outside of our core business, as a separate business area. With the completion of our �refine
and focus� initiative in 2001, in which a substantial portion of our non-core assets were divested, Telia Equity ceased being treated as a separate
business area, and was renamed Telia Holding. As of January 1, 2003, Telia Holding was renamed TeliaSonera Holding.

     The business segment information presented below for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is based on our reporting
structure prior to January 1, 2003. We have not restated our business segment information to correspond to the new business structure after the
merger.

Restructuring Costs

New Focus for the Danish Fixed Network Operations

     We conducted a review of our Danish fixed network operations in 2002 with a view to valuing the operations� assets and assessing the
strategic focus of the operations. As a result of such review, we decided to restructure and streamline our fixed network operations in Denmark.
In particular, we have shut down certain unprofitable businesses in Denmark and significantly reduced the number of full and part-time
employees. We expect to see the full benefits of the restructuring in Denmark starting at the end of 2003.

     Each of the elements of the Danish fixed network refocusing costs resulted in future cash outflows, except for write-downs, which are
non-cash in nature. The material elements of the refocusing costs are as follows:

Restructuring Cash Change in
charges outflow restructuring
2002 2002 provision

(SEK in millions)
Restructuring provision, beginning of period � � �
Workforce reduction 45 � 45
Leasing and service contracts, technical sites 113 (39) 74
Leasing contracts, offices 11 � 11
Dismantling of technical sites and offices 157 � 157
Other costs 193 � 193
Exchange rate differences � � 6
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Restructuring provision, end of period � � 486

Write-downs and write-offs of tangible and intangible fixed assets 3,033 �

Total 3,552 (39)
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Strategic Refocusing of the International Carrier Operations

     The entry of a considerable number of competitors in the markets where our international carrier business operates has created overcapacity
and has resulted in a rapid decline of the price of wholesale bandwidth capacity. These market conditions led us to write down the carrying value
of the international carrier business by approximately SEK 3 billion in 2001. Due to continued adverse market developments in the international
carrier operations in 2002, we undertook a comprehensive review of Telia International Carrier�s operations to clarify how the international
carrier operations could achieve a positive cash flow as quickly as possible. As a result of such review, which was completed in early September
2002, we decided to change the strategic focus of Telia International Carrier and significantly restructure its operations. As part of the
restructuring program, we are closing down Telia International Carrier�s Asian operations as well as its domestic voice reseller business in the
United Kingdom and Germany, discontinuing its offering of domestic network services in the United States and terminating its co-location
business. We are also centralizing Telia International Carrier�s sales, administration and customer care resources by moving them to Sweden. The
strategic refocusing and restructuring aims at enabling our international carrier operations to substantially scale down the number of offices and
technical facilities, as well as reducing operation and maintenance costs and the number of leased lines. We estimate that, as part of the
restructuring, former Telia�s international carrier operations will reduce its original workforce of approximately 800 persons as of September
2002 by more than 50 percent. As of December 31, 2002, our international carrier operations had 736 employees. We expect to complete the
restructuring program relating to our international carrier operations in large part by the end of 2003.

     Each of the elements of the restructuring costs relating to our international carrier operations resulted in future cash outflows, except for
write-downs, which are non-cash in nature. The material elements of the international carrier restructuring costs are as follows:

Restructuring Change in

charges
Cash
outflow restructuring

2002 2002 provision

(SEK in millions)
Restructuring provision, beginning of period � � �
Workforce reduction 303 (40) 263
Leasing and service contracts, technical sites and land 2,860 (66) 2,794
Leasing contracts, offices 186 (2) 184
Dismantling of technical sites and offices 230 � 230
Customer compensation 233 � 233
Legal and similar fees 151 (1) 150

Restructuring provision, end of period � � 3,854

Write-downs of intangible and tangible fixed assets 5,307 �
Write-downs of financial fixed assets 824 �

Total 10,094 (109)

Streamlining the Core Business

     In the beginning of 2002, Telia began implementing a plan to streamline its core businesses. In particular, Telia focused on making its sales
and distribution channels more efficient, concentrating customer service centers in fewer locations, streamlining its delivery processes and
increasing sales of standardized products and services through the Internet and through sales channels using interactive voice response. Telia cut
back on its offerings that did not generate sufficient profits. While most of the costs relating to the streamlining efforts were expensed as
incurred, Telia also recorded some restructuring provisions in 2002.

     In 2002, in connection with these streamlining efforts, Telia reduced the number of its employees in Sweden by 774. Telia Resources and
Redeployment, a unit that supports redundant employees in Sweden in their efforts to find new employment, identified an additional 323
employees as redundant. Telia Resources and Redeployment�s costs principally include retraining, as well as severance and early retirement
costs. In connection with the streamlining efforts, Telia instituted a hiring freeze of both full and part-time staff and consultants.
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     In connection with the streamlining efforts of its core operations, Telia also closed down certain businesses and sold certain operations in
2002.

     Each element of the streamlining effort costs, except write-off items, which are non-cash in nature, resulted in immediate or future cash
outflows. The material elements of these streamlining effort costs are as follows.
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Restructuring Change in

charges
Cash
outflow restructuring

2002 2002 provision

(SEK in millions)
Restructuring provision, beginning of period � � �
Workforce reduction 389 (75) 314
Other 53 (2) 51
Reversal, non-utilized � � (78)

Restructuring provision, end of period � � 287

Workforce reduction 302 (302)
Administrative support systems write-off 57 �
Customer and Internet services equipment write-off 114 �

Total 915 (379)

Close-down of Satellite-related Activities

     At the end of 2001, management decided on a plan to cease Telia�s Swedish-based satellite-related activities. Implementing this plan involved
the termination of employees, evaluating the usefulness of satellite station equipment, terminating contractual commitments and incurring legal,
accounting and similar fees. We have substantially completed the implementation of this plan, including the termination of employees in
connection with the plan, although the termination of one satellite capacity contract may be delayed until 2004.

     The satellite division�s employees include operating and product development personnel and corporate staff. The restructuring plan affects a
total of 48 employees who will be made redundant. As of December 31, 2002, 25 people were employed by the satellite division.

     As a consequence of closing down our satellite-related activities, we wrote off the value of our satellite station equipment. Termination of
various satellite capacity contracts is expected to trigger penalty payments.

     Each of the elements of satellite restructuring costs resulted in future cash outflows, except for equipment write-offs, which are non-cash in
nature. The material elements of satellite restructuring costs are as follows:

Restructuring Change in

charges
Cash
outflow restructuring

2001 2002 provision

(SEK in millions)
Restructuring provision, beginning of period � � 455
Workforce reduction 39 (19) (19)
Leasing contracts, satellite capacity 357 (192) (192)
Site restoration, customer compensation, other costs 59 (21) (21)
Reversal, non-utilized � � (138)

Restructuring provision, end of period � � 85

Satellite station equipment write-off 45 �

Total 500 (232)
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Realigning Measures in 2000

     For the year ended December 31, 2000, Telia recorded restructuring costs totaling SEK 210 million related to the implementation of
management�s plan to realign a portion of TeliaSonera�s business strategy, which resulted in certain equipment being written-off or being subject
to accelerated depreciation due to economic obsolescence. These items were non-cash in nature.

Write-downs Relating to Netia Holdings S.A.

     Netia, a fixed-line telecommunications provider in Poland in which we previously held a 48 percent interest, suffered serious financial
setbacks in 2001. In March 2002, Netia negotiated a restructuring plan with its principal noteholders, financial creditors and Netia�s largest
shareholders, including us, which subsequently received the requisite approval of 95 percent of the holders of its existing notes. Largely as a
result of the implementation of the restructuring plan through the issuance of newly issued shares to certain of Netia�s debt holders in January
2003, our ownership interest in Netia was diluted from 48 percent to approximately four percent. We currently hold approximately two percent
of the shares in Netia, and have entered into agreements to completely divest our holdings in Netia.
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     We recorded a substantial impairment charge relating to our investment in Netia in 2001, and subsequently wrote down our investment in
Netia to zero as a result of a loss in earnings from associated companies attributable to Netia. In 2001, we recorded a total loss in earnings from
associated companies of SEK 2,464 million with respect to our investment in Netia. We record the carrying value of our investment in Netia at
zero, and do not expect to be required to make any further impairment charges with respect to our investment in Netia.

Recent Acquisitions, Investments and Divestitures

     We have made a number of significant acquisitions and equity investments as well as divestitures since the beginning of 2000. Our most
significant transaction during the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, was the merger of Telia and Sonera in December 2002.

Acquisitions, Investments and Divestitures by Telia

     Telia�s most significant investments during 2000 to 2002 before the merger of Telia and Sonera include its acquisition of the Norwegian
mobile operator NetCom in 2000, its investment in the joint-venture company Svenska UMTS-nät in 2001 and its acquisition of the Danish fixed
line infrastructure company Powercom A/S in 2001. As part of the implementation of its refine and refocus initiative in 2000 and 2001, Telia
divested a number of businesses and operations outside of its core operations. Telia�s principal divestitures included the sale of its economic
interest in the Brazilian mobile operation Tess in 2001, its sale of its entire interest in its directory services subsidiary Eniro AB in 2000 and
2001, and its sale of a 51 percent interest in its former subsidiary Telefos, which was responsible, among other things, for Telia�s IT consulting
businesses, directory assistance services, and infrastructure design, construction and maintenance services.

Principal Acquisitions and Investments

     Telia�s principal acquisitions and investments since the beginning of 2000 included:

� In February 2000, Telia acquired a 29.5 percent interest in First National Holding S.A., which held interests in several mobile and
fixed network operators in Northwestern Russia, for SEK 700.2 million.

� In the second half of 2000, Telia acquired NetCom, the second largest mobile operator in Norway. The aggregate purchase price for
the acquisition was SEK 24,577 million.

� In June 2001, Telia purchased all of the shares of Powercom for 457 million Danish kroner.
     In addition, Telia also made significant investments in UMTS licenses in 2000, 2001 and 2002. In 2000, Telia invested NOK 200 million to
acquire a UMTS license in Norway. During 2001, Telia was awarded a UMTS license in Denmark for a total purchase price of SEK
1,024 million. While Telia was not granted a UMTS license in connection with the UMTS tender by the Swedish State in 2000, it entered into a
joint venture with Tele2 in March 2001 to exploit the UMTS license awarded to Tele2. The joint venture is owned on an equal basis by the
parties.

     We and Tele2 will, on a pro rata basis, finance the construction of the UMTS infrastructure through capital contributions and issuance of
guarantees that are necessary in order for Svenska UMTS-nät to obtain third party financing. As of December 31, 2002, we had made an
aggregate capital contribution of SEK 501 million to Svenska UMTS-nät. On September 19, 2002, Svenska UMTS-nät signed a SEK 11 billion
term loan and revolving credit facility for the construction of its UMTS network infrastructure in Sweden. As security for certain amounts
borrowed by Svenska UMTS-nät under the facility, we and Tele2 have issued guarantees to the lenders and have granted pledges of their shares
of Svenska UMTS-nät. We are not contractually required to provide any further capital contributions to or guarantees in favor of Svenska
UMTS-nät.

Principal Divestitures

     Telia�s principal divestitures since the beginning of 2000 included:

� Effective January 1, 2000, Telia sold its fixed telephone operations in Norway to Enitel ASA for $252.6 million and realized a gain of
SEK 1,375 million.
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� In October-November 2000, Telia sold 50.9 percent of its shareholding in its directory services subsidiary, Eniro, through an initial
public offering of Eniro�s shares, which generated net proceeds to Telia of approximately SEK 6.2 billion and a capital gain of SEK
6,022 million. In the second half of 2001, Telia sold its remaining interest in Eniro for an aggregate price of SEK 7.26 billion and
recorded capital gains of SEK 5,447 million. In addition, during 2001 but prior to such sale, Eniro acquired operations in Germany and
Finland paying with its own newly issued shares. The resulting dilution of Telia�s ownership interest in Eniro generated non-cash
capital gains of SEK 486 million. In total for 2000 and 2001, Telia recorded capital gains of SEK 11,955 million in relation to Eniro.

� In February 2001, Telia�s partially owned subsidiary Telia Overseas AB sold its 29 percent interest in the Slovenian mobile company
SI.Mobil to Mobilkom Austria for �50.1 million. Telia realized a capital gain of SEK 380 million in connection with this sale.

� In April 2001, Telia and its majority owned subsidiary Telia Overseas sold all of their economic interest in the Brazilian mobile
operator Tess SA for cash and notes to Telecom Americas Ltd., a consortium owned by America Moviles, Bell Canada International
and SBC Communications. To meet the requirements of Agencia Nacional de Telecommunicacos or Anatel, the telecommunications
regulatory authority in Brazil, under Tess�s concession, Telia was required to maintain voting control in Tess until December 2003.
Telia and Telia Overseas have, accordingly, retained a majority of the voting shares in Tess. As part of the transaction, however, Telia
and Telia Overseas granted a call option to Telecom Americas to purchase Telia�s and Telia Overseas� voting interest in Tess, which
may be exercised in the event all Brazilian laws and regulations applicable to the transfer of the voting interest are satisfied. At the
same time, Telecom Americas granted Telia and Telia Overseas a put option granting Telia and Telia Overseas the right to put their
voting interest in Tess to Telecom Americas under substantially the same conditions.

The total face value of the consideration for the sale of Tess was $681.9 million, of which 66 percent was paid in cash upon signing,
with the remaining 34 percent paid in the form of promissory notes issued by Telecom Americas and guaranteed by America Moviles,
Bell Canada International and SBC, respectively. As agreed between the parties, Telia and Telia Overseas have resold their notes
during 2001. As a result, Telia and Telia Overseas have received an aggregate of $625.9 million in cash proceeds from the sale of their
Tess interests. Telia realized a capital gain of SEK 2,786 million in connection with the Tess divestiture. Telia�s capital gain from its
sale of Tess was, however, a consequence of equity losses that Telia had previously recorded from its holding in Tess. Between 1998
and 2001, Telia recorded equity losses from its holding in Tess in the aggregate amount of SEK 3,623 million.

� In May 2001, Telia sold its call center operations in Sweden, Norway, Denmark and Finland for approximately SEK 100 million and
realized a capital gain of SEK 55 million.

� In May 2001, Telia acquired the remaining shares of the Polish directory company Panorama Polska Sp.z.o.o., in which Telia
previously owned a 49 percent interest, for SEK 812 million. In accordance with an option agreement with Eniro, all shares in
Panorama were transferred immediately thereafter to Eniro, which paid for the purchase in cash and newly issued shares in Eniro.
Telia realized a capital gain of SEK 103 million in connection with the sale of Panorama Polska. Following the transaction, Telia
disposed of its holding in Eniro, as described above, and, at the end of 2001, Telia had no remaining shareholding in Eniro.

� In May 2001, Vodafone Plc finalized the acquisition of Eircell 2000 plc, the mobile operations within Eircom Plc. The acquisition of
Eircell by Vodafone resulted in Telia acquiring an indirect shareholding in Vodafone. Telia has since disposed of all of its
shareholdings in Vodafone, realizing net proceeds of approximately SEK 3,500 million and a capital loss of SEK 314 million. In
November 2001, Telia sold its holding in Eircom Plc to Valentia Telecommunication Ltd. for SEK 3,900 million. Telia realized a
capital gain of SEK 1,070 million in connection with the sale. Telia originally held its shares in Eircom via Comsource UnLtd. In
April 2002, Telia sold its 40 percent interest in Comsource to the other shareholder, the Dutch telecom operator Royal KPN N.V.,
realizing a capital gain of SEK 153 million.

� In June 2001, Telia sold all of its shares in Telia Finland Oy, which was responsible for Telia�s Finnish fixed-line operations, to Song
Networks for SEK 445 million, resulting in a capital gain of SEK 65 million.
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� In June 2001, Telia sold a 51 percent interest in its subsidiary Telefos to Industri Kapital 2000 Ltd. We presently maintain significant
and continuing commercial and financial relationships with some of the companies held by the Telefos Group that are more fully
described in �Item 7.B Related Party Transactions.� Due to these relationships, we have not calculated any capital gain or loss in
connection with the sale of the Telefos Group.

� In December 2001, Telia sold all of its interest in the Internet service provider Scandinavian Online AB to Eniro for SEK 128 million
and realized a capital gain of SEK 53 million.

� In December 2001, Telia sold 91 percent of its interest in the Orbiant Group, which installs and services network infrastructure and
other telecommunications equipment, to Flextronics Network Services Sweden AB for SEK 1,046 million. Telia recorded a capital
gain of SEK 653 million in connection with this transaction. Flextronics acquired Telia�s remaining nine percent interest in the Orbiant
Group in July 2002 for a purchase price of SEK 106 million.

� In April 2002, Telia sold its 26 percent interest in Bharti Mobile to Telia Overseas, a 65 percent owned subsidiary of Telia, for SEK
526 million. Telia realized a capital gain of SEK 176 million in connection with this transaction. In May 2002, Telia Overseas
announced the sale of its 26 percent interest in Bharti Mobile to Bharti Tele-Ventures Ltd. The transaction was completed in June
2003, generating a capital gain of approximately SEK 330 million.

Acquisitions, Investments and Divestitures of Sonera

     Before the merger of Telia and Sonera, Sonera had made a number of significant acquisitions and equity investments as well as divestitures,
including the following:

Sonera�s U.S. Investments and Divestitures

� Between 1998 and 2001, Sonera held minority interests in the U.S. GSM operators Aerial Communications, Inc., VoiceStream
Wireless Corporation, Powertel Inc. and Eliska Wireless Ventures Holding Company, Inc. Sonera�s aggregate cash investments into
these operators totaled �1,234 million.

� After the merger of VoiceStream and Aerial, and the acquisition of VoiceStream and Powertel by Deutsche Telekom AG in 2001,
Sonera disposed of its interests in the U.S. GSM operators. Sonera received part of the sales consideration in Deutsche Telekom
shares, which it sold in several transactions during 2001 and 2002. Sonera received total cash proceeds of �2,237 million from the sale
of its interests in U.S. GSM operators, realizing a total cash gain of �1,003 million.

Sonera�s UMTS Investments

� In 2000, Sonera participated in various consortia in UMTS license auctions and beauty contests in several European countries. As a
result, Sonera acquired minority positions in UMTS license- holding companies in Germany, Italy, Spain and Norway. Sonera�s
aggregate cash investments in the acquisition of licenses and the start-up of operations during the period from 2000 to 2002 were
approximately �4.0 billion.

� In 2001 and 2002, Sonera recorded write-downs on all of its UMTS investments, reducing the carrying value of these investments to
zero. Write-downs and provisions totaled �12 million in 2001 and �4,352 million in 2002.

Other Investments

� In May 2000, Sonera invested $127 million in Fintur, acquiring a 35.3 percent holding in the company, the principal purpose of which
was to hold certain non-GSM investments in Turkey and Turkcell�s GSM investments outside Turkey.
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� In the first quarter of 2001, Sonera acquired a 24.1 percent interest in Loimaan Seudun Puhelin Oy, a local telephone operator based in
south-western Finland, for approximately �25 million. In January 2002, Sonera purchased an additional five percent interest in Loimaan
Seudun Puhelin for approximately �4 million raising its total holding to 29.1 percent.

� In February 2001, Sonera acquired a 25.5 percent holding in Metro One, a provider of directory services for mobile handset
subscribers in the United States for �72 million.

� In August 2002, Sonera completed the purchase of an additional 23.24 percent interest in Fintur from the Çukurova Group, raising its
total holding in Fintur to 58.55 percent. As part of the transaction, Fintur�s loss making technology and media businesses were sold to
the Çukurova Group. Sonera paid a net consideration of approximately �117 million as a result of the transaction, and assumed
interest-bearing net debt of Fintur of approximately �125 million.

Other Divestitures

� In July 2000, Sonera sold a portion of its interest in Turkcell as part of Turkcell�s initial public offering. Prior to the offering, Sonera
made a capital contribution to Turkcell in the amount of �113 million. In the offering, Sonera sold part of its shares, decreasing its
interest from 41.6 percent to 37.3 percent, and received �735 million. Sonera recorded a capital gain from the sale of �680 million.

� In March 2001, Sonera sold all of its remaining equity interest in TietoEnator Corporation for �424 million and recorded a capital gain
of �286 million.

� In February 2002, Sonera sold its shares in Pannon GSM to Telenor Mobile realizing total net cash proceeds of approximately
�310 million. As a result, Sonera recorded a gain of approximately �220 million.

� In March 2002, Sonera sold its directory assistance business Sonera Info Communications, including its interests in Intra Call Center
S.A., Suomen Keltaiset Sivut Oy and Suomen Numeropalvelu Oy, to a consortium led by 3i plc of the United Kingdom. In separate
transactions in March 2002, Sonera also divested its minority holdings in two directory assistance businesses, Conduit plc and 118
Ltd., which formerly were a part of Sonera Info Communications business. The total consideration Sonera received for the sales
amounted to approximately �113 million. Sonera recorded a gain of approximately �90 million in connection with the sales.

� In May 2002, Sonera sold its former wholly owned subsidiary Primatel Ltd to YIT Corporation for a consideration of �34 million.
Sonera recorded a gain of �31 million from the sale.

� In May 2002, Sonera sold Sonera Gateway�s financing business to Nordea Rahoitus Suomi Oy. Leasing property and the related lease
agreements were transferred to Nordea for a total consideration of �114 million. Sonera did not record a significant gain from the sale.

� In June 2002, Sonera sold its 14 percent holding in Libancell, one of two GSM operators in Lebanon, to Lebanese
Telecommunications Company SARL for a total consideration of approximately �24 million. Sonera recorded a gain of �20 million from
the sale.

� In August 2002, Sonera sold a 16 percent interest in its former wholly owned subsidiary, Sonera Zed, to Yahoo!. The transaction was
effected through a primary issue of new Sonera Zed shares to Yahoo!. Pursuant to the terms of the investment agreement, Yahoo! has
the right to purchase up to 100 percent of Sonera Zed over the next two years, at a price to be determined by Sonera Zed�s operational
performance. Yahoo! also has the right to sell its accumulated interest in Sonera Zed to Sonera by December 2003 at a maximum total
consideration of �11 million.

� In October 2002, Sonera sold an approximate 54 percent interest in its former wholly owned subsidiary SmartTrust to a group of
private equity investors for �35 million. Sonera recorded a capital gain of approximately �18 million from the transaction.
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Regulatory and Other Legal Developments

     The information discussed below is presented based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic
subsidiaries, Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons, only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     Our business has been and continues to be heavily influenced by the regulatory regime applicable to telecommunications service providers in
Sweden and Finland. In particular, laws and regulations covering the pricing of fixed network services, interconnection access and pricing,
unbundling of the local loop, carrier pre-selection and number portability have affected our business and results of operations.

     The most significant regulatory developments with respect to Telia Mobile�s results of operations for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2002 have been interconnection pricing and number portability. We are required to provide interconnection to our mobile and
fixed networks for calls to and from competing domestic operators. Under interconnection agreements with other operators, we receive fees for
terminating incoming calls that originate from other operators. Because we are deemed to have significant market power in Sweden, we are
obliged to offer interconnection to our networks at cost-based pricing terms. In June 1999, the Swedish regulatory authority, or the NPTA,
required us to reduce our mobile interconnection tariffs by 15 percent to reflect better our actual cost of terminating calls. We have since lowered
our mobile interconnection tariffs on several occasions, effective July 1, 2001, March 1, 2001 and March 31, 2002, from an average
interconnection rate of SEK 1.80 per minute to SEK 0.92 per minute in response to NPTA rulings. This has resulted in a sharp decline in our
mobile interconnection revenues. While we appealed the recent ruling of the NPTA to reduce our mobile interconnection tariffs from SEK 1.18
to SEK 0.92 per minute in May 2002, the County Administrative Court rejected our appeal. We have filed an appeal with the Administrative
Court of Appeal. Effective October 1, 2002, we lowered our mobile interconnection tariff to SEK 0.88 per minute.

     In its ruling dated February 21, 2002, the NPTA found that our principal competitors in the Swedish GSM market, Vodafone and Tele2, also
have significant market power in the national market for interconnection. Vodafone and Tele2 have appealed this ruling and the Swedish
Administrative Court has granted injunctive relief relating to the effectiveness of the NPTA�s ruling pending the conclusion of the court appeals
process. In June 2003, the NPTA further ruled that Tele2 is required to provide interconnection to its network at reduced rates. Tele2 has stated
that it will appeal the NPTA�s decision with the Swedish Administrative Court.

     A number of regulatory developments have increased competition in the fixed network retail market. Effective September 1999, the NPTA
has mandated the offering of carrier pre-selection for national, international and fixed-to-mobile calls. In addition, carrier pre-selection covering
local calls was introduced on February 2, 2002. Carrier pre-selection has had a significant effect on the net sales and profitability of Telia
Networks as competitors have attracted significant amounts of subscriber traffic away from Telia Networks.

Critical Accounting Policies

     The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with IAS. The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.
We base these estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that management believes are reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

     After discussing the development and selection of the critical accounting estimates, and related management�s discussion and analysis
disclosure, with the board of directors, management believes that the following critical accounting policies affect the significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

� revenues;

� valuation of intangible and other long-lived assets;

� provisions for pensions;

� income taxes; and

� litigation and contingent liabilities.
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Revenues

     Our recording of net sales is described in Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements. We maintain a reserve for doubtful receivables for
estimated losses that result from the inability of our customers to make required payments. We base our reserve on the likelihood of
recoverability of accounts receivable based on past experience and taking into account current collection trends. If economic or specific industry
conditions worsen beyond our estimates, we could increase our reserve by recording additional expense.

     Fiber and duct are sold as part of the operations of our international carrier business. We have decided to view these as integral equipment.
Under the terms of the commercial agreements relating to our international carrier business, title is not transferred to the lessee. The transactions
are therefore reported as operating lease agreements. The contracted sales price is chiefly paid in advance and is recognized as revenue during
the period of the agreement. Sales not recognized as revenue are reported as long-term liabilities and prepaid income. See also Note 28 to our
consolidated financial statements.

     Within our international carrier operations, swap contracts for infrastructure and capacity are signed with other carriers. Evenly balanced
swap-deals and the non-cash part of unbalanced swap-deals are not recorded as revenue or expense in our consolidated accounts, as the contracts
refer to assets of similar nature and value. Therefore, they are recognized based on the carrying value of the assets exchanged, rather than at fair
value. In an unbalanced swap-deal, any cash paid is recorded as an asset and any cash received is recorded as deferred revenue. These amounts
are recognized in operations over the term of the related contracts on a straight-line basis. In transactions where the monetary consideration
received is at least 25 percent of the fair value of the exchange, and the fair value of the assets transferred is reasonably determinable, the
exchange is treated as part monetary and part non-monetary. Until both parties have fulfilled all deliveries as agreed, the value provided might
differ from the value received. The value of the unfulfilled deliveries in a swap-deal is recorded as a current liability (net received) or a current
receivable (net provided). The corresponding asset or deferred revenue is not amortized until delivery has occurred. As of December 31, 2002
and 2001, we had, through non-cash swapping, net received infrastructure and network capacity with a book value of SEK 54 million and SEK
334 million, respectively.

Valuation of Intangible and Other Long-lived Assets

     The following table presents our long-term assets as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Intangible fixed assets 68,106 26,816 25,198
Tangible fixed assets 56,175 47,314 43,807
Financial fixed assets 48,534 20,784 22,335

Total long-lived assets 172,812 94,914 91,340

     The carrying value of intangible fixed assets is mainly attributable to goodwill and other intangible fixed assets arising from the merger of
Telia and Sonera in December 2002 and the acquisition of NetCom in June 2000. See Note 40 to our consolidated financial statements for a
description of the purchase price allocation process in connection with the merger of Telia and Sonera. On December 31, 2002, the carrying
value of Sonera goodwill and other intangible assets was SEK 30,068 million and SEK 4,753 million, respectively. The carrying value of
NetCom goodwill and other intangible fixed assets was SEK 24,456 million, SEK 23,998 million and SEK 23,185 million on December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Other intangible fixed assets consist mainly of licenses, patents, administrative support systems and
leaseholds.

     Tangible fixed assets mainly consist of fixed and mobile telecommunications equipment and related assets.

     Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible long-lived assets are based on the assets� historical acquisition value, with
appropriate adjustments for impairment and taking into account the estimated economic life of the assets. For assets acquired during a year,
amortization and depreciation is calculated from the date of acquisition. Amortization and depreciation is mainly recorded on a straight-line
basis. See also Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements.
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     Financial fixed assets mainly consist of investments in associated companies, financial leasing receivables, operating leasing receivables and
deferred tax assets. See ��Income Taxes� below.

     The carrying value of investments in associated companies is accounted for using the equity method. As of December 31, 2002 (see also Note
41 to our consolidated financial statements), the largest individual carrying values of investments in associated companies were as follows:

As of
December 31,

2002

(SEK in millions)
Turkcell (direct and indirect holdings) 12,174
Infonet 2,732
Eesti Telekom 2,447
MegaFon (direct and indirect holdings) 2,345
Lattelekom 1,006
Telecominvest 807

     Financial leasing receivables comprise information technology related equipment, including PABXs (Private Automatic Branch Exchange),
personal computers and other office equipment leased to customers under financial leasing contracts. These assets are reported at the gross
investment cost in the lease, less unearned financial revenues. Some of the leasing receivables have been securitized. Based on the terms of the
securitization contracts, the leasing receivables have been included in the consolidated balance sheet. See also Note 28 to our consolidated
financial statements.

     We review our long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may
not be recoverable, in which case we estimate the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the
present value of the expected cash flows is less than the carrying value of the asset, a write-down is recognized in an amount by which the asset�s
carrying value exceeds the sum of the expected future cash flows, discounted with a discount rate determined by management. The discount rate
is derived from our cost of capital plus an appropriate risk premium.

     As a result of such impairment analysis, in the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, we recorded write-downs amounting to SEK
10,023 million and SEK 5,425 million, respectively.

     In 2002, in light of the ongoing turbulence in the market, we undertook a comprehensive review of Telia International Carrier�s operations to
clarify how the international carrier operations could achieve a positive cash flow as quickly as possible. As a result of such review, which was
completed in early September 2002, we decided to change the strategic focus of Telia International Carrier and significantly restructure its
operations. In addition, we wrote down the value of our fixed assets relating to our international carrier operations by SEK 6,131 million in
2002. Further, we reviewed the Danish fixed network operations in order to value their assets and determine a new focus for the operations. As a
result of the review, the recoverable value was found to be SEK 3,033 million lower than the book value, and a corresponding impairment was
recognized. Furthermore, a write-down of SEK 536 million was taken against Telia�s Finnish mobile operations to reflect its estimated market
value.

     In 2001, poor profitability in Telia International Carrier and surplus capacity in the industry resulted in Telia recording a write-down of SEK
3,027 million attributed to telecommunications assets owned by the business area. Telia also recorded a write-down of SEK 1,820 million
related to all remaining goodwill in the associated company Netia due to the deterioration of the financial position of the company.

     As a consequence of the decrease in the market valuations of mobile operators generally, we also tested our investment in NetCom for
impairment. In performing the impairment analysis of goodwill, we used a discounted cash flow (DCF) model to estimate the fair value of
NetCom as we believed this to be the most relevant measure to use to assess its fair value. A number of significant assumptions and estimates
are involved in the application of the DCF model to forecast operating cash flows, including market growth rates, revenue volumes, market
prices for telecommunications services, costs to maintain and develop communications networks and working capital requirements. Forecasts of
future cash flows are based on our best estimates of future revenues and operating expenses using historical trends, general market conditions,
industry trends and forecasts and other information. These assumptions are subject to review by our management and the audit committee of our
board of directors. The cash flow forecasts are adjusted by an appropriate discount rate derived from our cost of capital plus an appropriate risk
premium at the date of evaluation.
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     The use of a DCF model required us to make numerous assumptions about NetCom�s future cash flows and related costs necessary to generate
such estimated cash flows. The selection of one or more differing assumptions could result in a significantly different estimate of fair value.
Critical assumptions used by us to estimate the fair value of NetCom as of December 31, 2002, include the weighted average cost of capital
(WACC) of 9.52 percent.

     We estimated the fair value of NetCom to be in excess of its carrying value at December 31, 2002, and therefore concluded that the related
goodwill was not impaired. The results of the DCF calculations revealed, however, that the estimated fair value of NetCom was not significantly
greater than its carrying value. As a result, should actual future results differ from our assumptions, or changes in certain assumptions be
required in response to future events, we may be required to recognize a material impairment charge related to the NetCom goodwill in the
future. Accordingly, we plan to regularly monitor actual versus planned results of this business.

     Furthermore, based on the market value of Infonet�s publicly traded Series B shares, the carrying value of our investment in Infonet is higher
than its current market valuation. However, our investment in Infonet also includes unlisted Series A shares which carry ten times the votes of
the Series B shares. In addition, we currently believe that Infonet has a strong current financial position. We will carry out a thorough
impairment analysis of our investment in Infonet on a regular basis assessing facts and circumstances should they change.

     If the projections for future cash flows for any of our long-lived assets change as a result of changes in our business model or strategy,
competitive pressures, or regulatory environment, we may have to recognize impairment charges on our intangible, tangible and financial
long-lived assets.

Provisions for Pensions

     Almost all of our employees in Sweden, Finland and Norway are covered by defined benefit plans. Provisions for these benefits represent
obligations that will not be definitively settled for a long period of time. Pension obligations are calculated annually, on the balance sheet date,
based on actuarial principles. Our obligations for defined benefit plans in these countries are mainly secured by pension fund arrangements. The
assets of the fund, primarily consisting of various marketable securities, constitute plan assets for pensions and are valued at fair market value.
See also Note 22 to our consolidated financial statements.

     The most significant assumptions management makes in connection with calculation of pension benefit obligations are the discount rate used
to calculate future obligations, the expected annual rate of increase in compensation, the expected return on plan assets, expected annual
adjustments to pensions, and the expected employee turnover rate. The actuarial calculation of pension obligations and pension expenses was
based on the following principal assumptions:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(%)
Weighted average discount rate 5.5 5.5 6.0
Expected rate of compensation increase 3.5 3.0 3.0
Expected return on plan assets 6.5 7.5 7.5
Annual adjustments to pensions 2.0 2.0 2.0
Employee turnover rate 3.8 5.0 5.0

     The discount rate reflects the rates at which the pension benefits could be effectively settled, which means a period somewhere from 15 to
30 years. We have chosen to base the estimated discount rate on the yields of applicable national government bonds, as management regards
such bonds as high-quality fixed income investments currently available and expected to be available during the period to maturity of the
pension benefits. However, the longest term of these bonds is 15 years. The yields for terms over 15 years have been estimated from the current
markets rates along the yield curve. The final decision on discount rates is then made after analyzing the relationship of the spread of the yields
between national government bonds and a benchmark of euro government bonds (which are available at terms of longer than 15 years).

     The expected annual rate of compensation increase reflects expected future salary increases as a compound of inflation, seniority and
promotion. Management�s estimate is based on historical data on salary increases and on the expected future inflation rate.
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Historical data is also the basis for estimating the expected employee turnover rate, which reflects the expected level of employees leaving the
company through natural attrition.

     The expected return on plan assets reflects the average rate of earnings expected on the investments made (or to be made) to provide for the
pension benefit obligations that are secured by the pension fund. The asset portfolio is balanced primarily between equity and fixed income. The
asset allocation is composed to give the expected return, based on historical data.

     Expected annual adjustments to pensions reflect the inflation rate. In determining this rate, management has chosen to use the inflation target
rates set by the national and European central banks.

     Changes in these key assumptions may have a significant impact on the projected benefit obligations, funding requirements and periodic
pension cost.

Income Taxes

     As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate income taxes in each of the jurisdictions
in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting
from the different valuation of certain assets and liabilities in our financial statements and tax returns. These differences result in deferred tax
benefits and liabilities, which are included in our consolidated balance sheet. Management must also assess the likelihood that the deferred tax
benefits will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent management believes that recovery is not probable, these assets are
recognized only in part or not at all. To the extent the likely recovery of deferred tax benefits changes, an expense or benefit is included in the
income tax account in our consolidated income statement for the relevant period.

     Significant management judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes, deferred tax benefits and liabilities and the
valuation of deferred tax benefits in particular.

The total deferred tax liability recognized at December 31, 2002 was SEK 10,673 million, which related principally to untaxed reserves
recognized under Swedish tax legislation. The total deferred tax benefit of SEK 15,931 million primarily related to the deferred tax benefit
associated with impairment losses recognized under Finnish tax legislation. Hence, the net deferred tax benefit on December 31, 2002 was SEK
5,258 million. See �Item 3.A Risk Factors � We may not be able to fully realize anticipated tax benefits resulting from recent asset write downs.�

     In the event that actual results differ from these estimates due to future changes in income tax legislation or results from the final review of
our tax returns by tax authorities, we may need to establish an additional valuation reserve or may need to decrease a portion of the valuation
reserves previously established. These events would impact our income tax amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements for the
relevant period.

Litigation and Contingent Liabilities

     Determination of the treatment of contingent liabilities in our consolidated financial statements is based on management�s view of the
expected outcome of the applicable contingency. Management consults with legal counsel on matters related to litigation and other experts both
within and outside the company with respect to matters in the ordinary course of business. A provision is recognized if an adverse outcome is
probable and the amount is estimable. If the likelihood of an adverse outcome is less than probable but reasonably possible, or an estimate is not
determinable, the matter is disclosed in the notes to our consolidated financial statements provided that the matter is material.

Principal Differences Between IAS and U.S. GAAP

     TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with IAS.

     Our net loss in 2002 under IAS was SEK 8,067 million, as compared to net income of SEK 1,869 million in 2001 and SEK 10,278 million in
2000. Under U.S. GAAP, we would have reported a net loss of SEK 8,755 million in 2002, compared to net income of SEK 4,443 million in
2001 and SEK 9,991 million in 2000.
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     The principal differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP that affect or net income or loss, as well as our shareholders� equity, relate to the
treatment of revenue from access, connection and similar fees, impairment charges, sale and leasebacks, stock compensation expense,
restructuring costs, financing of associated companies and amortization and impairment of goodwill. See note 45 to our consolidated financial
statements included in Item 18 of this Form 20-F for a description of the principal differences between IAS and U.S. GAAP as it relates to us
and for a description of the anticipated impact on the consolidated financial statements of the adoption of recently issued U.S. GAAP accounting
standards.

Overview of the Year 2002

     The information discussed below is presented based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic
subsidiaries Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     Our net sales increased by SEK 2,287 million, or four percent, from SEK 57,196 million in 2001 to SEK 59,483 million in 2002. The merger
of Telia and Sonera and the related consolidation of the new Baltic subsidiaries Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons
generated additional net sales of SEK 2,345 million between December 3, 2002 and December 31, 2002. For Telia�s former core business areas,
which included Telia Mobile, Telia Internet Services, Telia Networks and Telia International Carrier, but excluded Telia Holding, the increase in
comparable net sales was approximately five percent, taking into account divested operations. The increase was primarily attributable to
customer growth and traffic revenue in Telia Mobile, as well as strong demand for broadband services. Telia International Carrier also recorded
net sales growth, despite turbulence in the industry, as the build-out of Telia�s international carrier network approached completion and
management increased focus on the marketing of such services. While the retail portion of Telia Networks experienced a decline in net sales,
wholesale fixed network sales increased.

     In 2002, our operating income decreased by SEK 16,355 million, from operating income of SEK 5,460 million in 2001 to an operating loss of
SEK 10,895 million in 2002. The decrease was largely the result of extensive write-downs and restructuring costs. Depreciation and write-downs
increased from SEK 13,975 million in 2001 to SEK 20,844 million in 2002 principally due to the write-down of the carrying value of Telia
International Carrier. Other operating expenses also increased from SEK 1,312 million in 2001 to SEK 15,152 million in 2002 primarily due to a
provision for restructuring costs relating to our international operations. Income from associated companies decreased from SEK 6,136 million
in 2001 to SEK 528 million in 2002. Income from associated companies in 2001 included capital gains from the divestment of companies that
previously reported losses. Income from associated companies in 2001 also included a write-down of SEK 1,820 million relating to our holding
in Netia.

     Our net interest-bearing liability increased from SEK 10,661 million as of December 31, 2001 to SEK 25,034 million as of December 31,
2002, mainly as a result of our assumption of Sonera�s debt. Accordingly, our net debt increased from SEK 20,004 million as of December 31,
2001 to SEK 38,075 million as of December 31, 2002. Net interest-bearing liability is a measure intended to illustrate the net amount of capital
that generates interest income, interest expenses, or capital gains or losses in the financial net portion of our income statement. Net debt, which
equals interest-bearing debt less cash and short-term investments, is a measure intended to illustrate our net indebtedness from a liquidity
viewpoint.

Recent Developments

     On May 8, 2003, we announced our results for the three months ended March 31, 2003. Net sales for the three months ended March 31, 2003
were SEK 20,349 million, a four percent increase from net sales of SEK 19,642 for the same period in 2002 assuming Telia and Sonera had been
a combined company and Com Hem and Telia Mobile Finland had been divested as of January 1, 2001. The growth in net sales was principally
generated in our mobile operations in Norway and by the consolidation of our Eurasian mobile operations, the majority of which we acquired in
August 2002.

     Our operating income totaled SEK 3,227 million for the three months ended March 31, 2003, a decrease of 30 percent as compared to
operating income of SEK 4,625 million for the same period in 2002 assuming Telia and Sonera had been a combined company and Com Hem
and Telia Mobile Finland had been divested as of January 1, 2001. Our operating income in the first three months was significantly higher in
2002 than in 2003 primarily due to capital gains of SEK 2,798 million recorded in the first three months of 2002.
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     Our cash flow from operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2003, was SEK 5,586 million compared to cash flow from
operating activities of SEK 2,326 million for the same period in 2002 assuming Telia and Sonera had been a combined company and Com Hem
and Telia Mobile Finland had been divested as of January 1, 2001. Cash used in capital expenditure decreased by 35 percent to
SEK 1,689 million for the three months ended March 31, 2003, as compared to cash used in capital expenditure of SEK 2,615 million for the
same period in 2002 assuming Telia and Sonera had been a combined company and Com Hem and Telia Mobile Finland had been divested as of
January 1, 2001. As a result, our free cash flow, measured as cash flow from operating activities less capital expenditure, increased to
SEK 3,897 million for the three months ended March 31, 2003, from negative free cash flow of SEK 289 million for the same period in 2002
assuming Telia and Sonera had been a combined company and Com Hem and Telia Mobile Finland had been divested as of January 1, 2001.
Our improved free cash flow enabled us to strengthen our financial position and to reduce our net debt by SEK 3,427 million as compared to
December 31, 2002 to SEK 34,648 million as of March 31, 2003.

     To obtain clearance for the merger of Telia and Sonera from the European Commission, we agreed to dispose of our Com Hem cable
business, including our cable broadband services in Sweden, and Telia Mobile Finland. In June 2003, we sold Com Hem to the Swedish
investment fund EQT Northern Europe Ltd. for approximately SEK 2.2 billion. In June 2003, we also sold Telia Mobile Finland to Finnet.

Results of Operations (Combined)

     The following discussion relates to the combined results of Telia and Sonera as if the merger had occurred as of January 1, 2001, in order to
present certain comparable financial information on a combined basis for 2002 and 2001. The combined financial information presented below
assumes that TeliaSonera held a 100 percent interest in Sonera for the periods presented and that Com Hem and Telia Mobile Finland were
divested as of January 1, 2001.

Combined Condensed Income Statement Information

     The following table sets forth the unaudited condensed combined income statement information of TeliaSonera for 2002 and 2001:

For the years ended
December 31,

2002 2001

(SEK in millions)
Net sales 80,979 80,925
Operating income (45,958) 9,586
Income after financial items (46,791) 5,253
Net income (32,890) 2,143

     In 2002, we experienced a strong growth in our mobile communications, Internet and broadband operations in the Nordic countries and the
Baltic countries, as well as strong growth in our mobile operations in Eurasia which we consolidated as of September 2002. Our net sales,
however, increased by only 0.1 percent in 2002 as compared to 2001 due to the disposal of certain business operations by both Telia and Sonera.

     On a combined basis, operating income decreased by SEK 55,544 million from an operating profit of SEK 9,586 million in 2001 to an
operating loss of SEK 45,958 million in 2002. The decrease was primarily due to write-downs and other expenses associated with our
restructuring and streamlining efforts, which totaled SEK 55,049 million in 2002. Additionally, our net capital gains from asset sales of SEK
3,588 million in 2002 were significantly lower than in 2001 when we recorded approximately SEK 18 billion of net capital gains from asset
sales.

     On a combined basis, income after financial items decreased by SEK 52,044 million from an income after financial items of SEK
5,253 million in 2001 to a loss after financial items of SEK 46,791 million in 2002. The decrease in 2002 was primarily due to the decrease in
operating income.

     On a combined basis, net income decreased by SEK 35,033 million from a net income of SEK 2,143 million in 2001 to a net loss of SEK
32,890 million in 2002. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease in operating income, partly offset by a deferred tax benefit recorded in
2002.
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Combined Condensed Cash Flow Information

     The following table sets forth the unaudited condensed combined statements of cash flows of TeliaSonera for 2002 and 2001:

For the years ended
December 31,

2002 2001

(SEK in millions)
Cash flow from operating activities 20,717 14,181
Capital expenditure (11,183) (21,189)

Free cash flow 9,534 (7,008)
Other investing activities 7,685 35,200
Cash flow from financing activities (21,889) (20,511)

Change in cash (4,670) 7,681

     On a combined basis, our cash flow from operating activities increased by 46 percent in 2002 as compared to 2001 principally due to
increased margins in our mobile operations and due to reduced losses in many loss-making businesses, especially in the former Sonera Service
Businesses.

     On a combined basis, our capital expenditures decreased by 47 percent in 2002 as compared to 2001 due to lower level of investment activity
throughout all operations, especially in the former Telia International Carrier and Networks operations.

     As a result of the increased cash flow from operating activities and the reduced capital expenditures, the free cash flow (cash flow from
operating activities less capital expenditure) increased by SEK 16,524 million from negative free cash flow of SEK 7,008 million in 2001 to
positive free cash flow of SEK 9,534 million in 2002.

     On a combined basis, cash flow from other investing activities decreased by SEK 27,515 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 principally due
to significantly higher proceeds from asset sales in 2001.

     On a combined basis, we used SEK 21,889 million in financing activities in 2002, principally to repay our debt. In 2001, we used SEK
20,511 million in financing activities on a net basis, taking into account Sonera�s rights issue which raised approximately SEK 9 billion.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 (Historical)

     The information discussed below is presented based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic
subsidiaries, Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons, only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     Following our �refine and focus� initiative in 2001, in which a substantial portion of our non-core operations were divested, we began, at the
start of 2002, focusing greater attention on rationalizing and streamlining our core operations. Efforts in Sweden were mainly focused on the
sales and distribution channels, concentrating customer services in fewer locations, streamlining the delivery process and increasing sales of
standardized products and services through web and interactive voice response.

     In 2002, the number of employees in Telia decreased by 1,241, with a reduction of 774 employees in Sweden. The restructuring measures in
our Danish operations and Telia International Carrier reduced the number of employees by more than 200. Telia Resources and Redeployment
identified an additional 323 employees as redundant at year-end. During the year, we reduced the number of consultants used as temporary
employees by almost 400.

     The measures taken thus far had a positive impact on earnings for 2002, although the full impact is expected to become evident in 2003 as the
efficiency programs continue.
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Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Net sales 59,483 57,196 54,064
Costs of goods and services sold (38,182) (40,435) (33,028)
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Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Gross income 21,301 16,761 21,036
Selling, administrative and research and development expenses (18,667) (17,943) (16,326)
Other operating revenues and expenses (14,057) 506 8,493
Income from associated companies 528 6,136 (1,197)

Operating income (10,895) 5,460 12,006
Financial revenues and expenses (721) (652) (289)

Income after financial items (11,616) 4,808 11,717
Taxes 3,619 (2,917) (1,447)
Minority interests (70) (22) 8

Net income (8,067) 1,869 10,278

Net Sales

     The following table sets forth our external net sales by business area and business unit and the percentage change therein for the periods
indicated:

Year ended
December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Telia Mobile 20,163 17,857 13,791 12.9 29.5
Telia Networks 27,263 29,159 28,379 (6.5) 2.7
Telia Internet Services 4,174 3,288 2,501 26.9 31.5
Telia International Carrier 4,369 3,652 3,124 19.6 16.9
Telia Holding 906 3,072 6,057 (70.5) (49.3)
Other 2,608 168 212 NA (20.8)

Total Sales 59,483 57,196 54,064 4.0 5.8

     Total group sales increased by four percent in 2002 as compared to 2001, and total group sales increased by six percent in 2001 as compared
to 2000. The increase in 2002 was primarily attributable to customer growth and increased traffic revenue in Telia Mobile, strong demand for
broadband services, as well as the merger of Telia and Sonera and the related consolidation of the new Baltic subsidiaries, which in total
generated net sales of SEK 2,345 million between December 3, 2002 and December 31, 2002. The increase in total group sales in 2001 was
primarily attributable to high customer growth and increased traffic revenue in Telia Mobile and the full year effect of the acquisition of the
NetCom in June 2000, as well as increased demand for broadband Internet access in Telia Internet Services. Increases in group sales in 2002 and
2001 were partially offset by the divestiture of many non-core operations carried out as part of our refine and focus initiative.

Telia Mobile

     The following table sets forth net sales for Telia Mobile by source and the percentage change therein for the periods indicated:
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Year ended
December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Mobile communications:

Sweden 10,520 10,047 8,868 4.7 13.3
Norway 5,482 4,287 1,655 27.9 15.9
Finland 933 648 364 44.0 78.0
Denmark 852 633 442 34.6 43.2
Business Solutions 1,842 1,450 1,426 27.0 1.7
Other 534 792 1,036 (32.6) (23.6)

Total external sales 20,163 17,857 13,791 12.9 29.5
Intra group sales 1,475 1,973 2,233 25.2 (11.6)

Total sales 21,638 19,830 16,024 9.1 23.8
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     The following table sets forth selected operational data for Telia Mobile for the periods indicated:

As at or for the
year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Sweden:
Total subscriptions (in thousands) 3,604 3,439 3,257
Total GSM (in thousands) 3,467 3,295 3,076

of which, subscriptions 1,680 1,759 1,755
of which, prepaid 1,787 1,536 1,321

Total NMT 450 (in thousands) 137 144 154
Subscribers via external service providers (in thousands) 88 74 48
Average traffic per subscriber per month (minutes) 130 127 123
Total SMS messages (in millions) 488 389 185
Customer churn (%) 12 8 8
ARPU (SEK) 277 285 308
Norway:
Total subscriptions, GSM (in thousands) 1,088 970 850

of which, subscriptions 542 469 417
of which, prepaid 546 501 433

Subscribers via external service providers (in thousands) 90 112 50
Average traffic per subscriber per month (minutes) 156 136 139
Total SMS messages (in millions) 756 501 302
Customer churn (%) 29 29 29
ARPU (NOK) 345 310 308
Other Nordic:
Subscriptions, Denmark (in thousands) 466 288 263
SMS messages, Denmark (in millions) 175 61 39
Subscriptions, Finland (in thousands)(1) 300 239 149
SMS messages, Finland (in millions)(1) 82 57 28

(1) The operations of Telia Mobile Finland were sold in June 2003 in accordance with the commitment made to the European Commission
in connection with the merger of Telia and Sonera.

     External net sales by Telia Mobile increased by 13 percent in 2002, as compared to 2001, and external net sales increased by 29 percent in
2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in external net sales in 2002 was primarily attributable to increased traffic per subscriber, increased
demand for SMS services as well as subscriber growth. The increase in external net sales in 2001 was primarily attributable to an increase in the
number of subscribers and the acquisition of NetCom, an increase in the number of subscribers from external service providers, increased traffic
per subscriber and increased demand for SMS services.

     The number of subscribers in the Nordic region increased by 522,000 to 5,458,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by 417,000 to 4,936,000
in 2001 as compared to 2000. The number of subscribers from external service providers, which are not included in the total number of
subscribers in the Nordic region, decreased by 8,000 to 178,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and increased by 88,000 in 2001 to 186,000 as
compared to 2000.

Sweden

     External net sales from mobile telecommunications in Sweden were SEK 10,520 million in 2002, an increase of SEK 473 million, or five
percent, over external net sales of SEK 10,047 million in 2001, and in 2001, external net sales increased by SEK 1,179 million, or 13 percent,
over external net sales of SEK 8,868 million in 2000. The increase in external net sales in 2002 was primarily attributable to an increase in the
number of prepaid subscribers, traffic per subscriber and demand for SMS services. This increase was partially offset by reduced interconnection
fees, which led to a four percent decline in the total price level in 2002 as compared to 2001. The increase in external net sales in 2001 was
primarily attributable to an increase in the number of prepaid subscribers, traffic per subscriber and demand for SMS services.

     The number of mobile subscribers increased by 165,000 to 3,604,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by 182,000 to 3,439,000 in 2001 as
compared to 2000. The average traffic per subscriber per month increased by three minutes to 130 minutes per month in 2002 as compared to
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2001 and by four minutes to 127 minutes in 2001 as compared to 2000. Monthly average revenue per subscriber decreased by SEK 8 to SEK
277 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by SEK 23 to SEK 285 in 2001 as compared to 2000. The rate of customer churn was 12 percent in 2002
as compared to eight percent in 2001 and 2000.
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Norway

     External net sales from mobile telecommunications in Norway were SEK 5,482 million in 2002, an increase of SEK 1,195 million, or
28 percent, over external net sales of SEK 4,287 million in 2001, and in 2001, external net sales increased by SEK 2,632 million, or 159 percent,
over external net sales of SEK 1,655 million in 2000. The increase in external net sales in 2002 was primarily attributable to subscriber growth,
higher traffic per customer and higher demand for SMS services. The increase in external net sales in 2001 was primarily attributable to the
inclusion of NetCom�s results of operations for the full year in 2001 as well as to steady subscriber growth, higher traffic per customer and higher
demand for SMS services.

     The total number of subscribers increased by 118,000 to 1,088,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by 120,000 to 970,000 in 2001 as
compared to 2000. The number of subscribers from external service providers decreased by 22,000 to 90,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and
the number of subscribers from external service providers increased by 62,000 to 112,000 in 2001 as compared to 2000. A total of 756 million
SMS messages were sent in 2002, an increase of 51 percent over 2001, and a total of 501 million SMS messages were sent in 2001, an increase
of 66 percent over 2000. Average monthly revenue per user rose to NOK 345 in 2002 as compared to NOK 310 in 2001. Average monthly
revenue per user was NOK 308 in 2000.

Denmark

     External net sales from mobile telecommunications in Denmark were SEK 852 million in 2002, an increase of 35 percent over external net
sales of SEK 633 million in 2001, and in 2001, external net sales increased by 43 percent over external net sales of SEK 442 million in 2000.
The increase in external net sales in 2002 was primarily attributable to an increase in the number of subscribers and higher demand for SMS
services. The increase in external net sales in 2001 was primarily attributable to an increase in the number of subscribers. The total number of
subscribers increased by 178,000 to 466,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and the total number of subscribers increased by 25,000 to 288,000 in
2001 as compared to 263,000 subscribers in 2000.

     A significant portion of our new sales in 2002 in Denmark were as a result of The Choice household subscription, a new service launched in
2002 that allows subscribers to create their own service packages. We also launched Telia Mobiz in the first quarter of 2002, which targets
business subscribers and combines a flat rate for traffic with a telephone lease offer. In addition, the GSM network was completed during 2002,
enabling us to offer services at competitive prices throughout Denmark.

Finland

     External net sales from mobile telecommunications in Finland were SEK 933 million in 2002, an increase of SEK 285 million, or 44 percent,
over external net sales of SEK 648 million in 2001, and in 2001, external net sales were increased by 78 percent over external net sales of SEK
364 million in 2000. The increase in external net sales in 2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to subscriber growth and the resulting higher
traffic.

     The total number of subscribers increased by 61,000 to 300,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and the total number of subscribers increased
by 90,000 to 239,000 in 2001 as compared to 2000. In June 2002, we switched from Radiolinja�s network to our own network and a roaming
agreement was signed with Suomen 2G.

     In connection with the merger of Telia and Sonera, we made a commitment to the European Commission to divest our Telia Mobile Finland
operations, also including handset sales and other services. We completed the divestment of such operations in June 2003. In 2002, external net
sales from these operations were SEK 1,042 million.

Business Solutions

     Telia�s Business Solutions unit markets and sells products and services such as PBX�s and Centrex that combine fixed and mobile
functionality. External net sales by Business Solutions increased by SEK 392 million to SEK 1,842 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and
external net sales increased by SEK 24 million to SEK 1,450 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in 2002 was primarily
attributable to a change in sales operations in which equipment sales that we previously sold on commission started to be sold directly by us.
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Telia Networks

     The following table sets forth net sales for Telia Networks by source for the periods indicated:

Year ended
December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Retail:
Sweden:

Fixed voice services:
Fixed charges 7,705 7,749 7,489
Domestic calls 3,851 5,126 5,875
International calls 635 680 1,047
Calls to mobile telephones 3,138 3,101 3,363
Other calls 739 779 654
Total call charges 8,363 9,686 10,939
Other 1,716 1,664 1,320

Total fixed voice services 17,784 19,099 19,748
Network capacity 1,349 1,652 1,571
Customer premises equipment 716 573 574
Data communications, information technology services and other 2,381 2,432 2,541

Total Sweden 22,230 23,756 4,686
Other Nordic countries 638 926(1) 1,044
Baltic region 13 14 29
Rest of Europe 0 106 16

Total retail 22,881 24,802 25,523

Wholesale:
Sweden Fixed voice services 2,030 1,812 1,591

Network capacity 1,300 1,136 776
Other 605 1,002 301

Subtotal 3,935 3,950 2,668
Other Nordic countries 447 407 188

Total wholesale 4,382 4,357 2,856

Total external sales 27,263 29,159 28,379
Intra-group sales 5,891 4,906 9,403

Total sales 33,154 34,065 37,782

(1) Telia divested its fixed line operations in Finland in June 2001.
     The following table sets forth selected operational data for the Telia Networks business area for the periods indicated:

As at or for the
year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
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Sweden:
Fixed voice services, PSTN subscriptions (thousands) 5,558 5,663 5,783
Fixed voice services, ISDN channels (thousands) 883 922 838
Fixed voice services, calls (millions of minutes)

Domestic calls 19,838 26,533 31,360
International calls 460 503 520
Calls to mobile telephones 1,770 1,744 1,590

Connected broadband ADSL for ATM (thousands) 7 9 8
Connected broadband ADSL/LAN via Service Providers (thousands) 107 47 7
Denmark:
Fixed voice services, prefix and contract customers, Denmark (thousands) 257 264 232

     External net sales by Telia Networks decreased by SEK 1,896 million to SEK 27,263 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and external net
sales increased by SEK 780 million to SEK 29,159 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. External net sales in 2001 were higher than in 2002
primarily due to reduced fixed traffic volumes in Sweden as a result of local carrier pre-selection which was introduced on February 2, 2002 as
well as the positive effect on external net sales in 2001 of the transfer of materials from Telia Networks to an associated company, Telefos,
relating to network infrastructure. The increase in external net sales in 2001 as compared to 2000 was primarily due to the transfer of materials
from Telia Networks to Telefos as well as to the half-year effect on sales of the acquisition of Powercom in the middle of 2001. The increase
was partially offset by the half-year effect of the divestment of Telia�s fixed line operations in Finland. Excluding these effects, sales were
essentially unchanged between 2000 and 2001. Continued growth in the wholesale business and higher sales of value-added services partially
compensated for reduced traffic revenues in the Swedish retail market.
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Retail

     External net sales in the retail market decreased by eight percent in 2002 to SEK 22,881 million from external net sales of SEK
24,802 million in 2001 and external net sales decreased by three percent in 2001 to SEK 24,802 million from external net sales of SEK 25,523 in
2000. The decrease in 2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to reduced traffic revenues from fixed voice services in Sweden. Traffic
revenues from fixed voice services in Sweden decreased 14 percent to SEK 8,363 million in 2002. The decrease was primarily due to the
introduction of local carrier pre-selection in February 2002. Traffic revenues from fixed voice services in Sweden decreased 12 percent to SEK
9,686 million in 2001. The decrease was primarily due to the introduction of pre-selection for national long distance, international and fixed to
mobile calls in September 1999.

     The number of PSTN subscriptions in Sweden decreased by 105,000 to 5,558,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 while the number of ISDN
channels decreased by 39,000 to 883,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001. The number of PSTN subscriptions and ISDN channels decreased as
customers chose mobile subscriptions over fixed lines and a growing number of ISDN customers switched to ADSL or LAN connections. In
2001, the numbers of PSTN subscriptions decreased by 120,000 to 5,663,000 as compared to 2000 while the number of ISDN channels
increased by 84,000 to 922,000 as compared to 2000. External nets sales from PSTN and ISDN subscriptions decreased by one percent to SEK
7,705 million in 2002 as compared to 2001, while external nets sales in 2001 increased by three percent to SEK 7,749 million as compared to
2000 due to price increases for retail subscribers in the beginning of 2001.

     Demand for value-added services such as Caller ID, Telesvar, telemeetings and videoconferencing was strong and sales increased in 2002
and 2001.

     The market for data communications was characterized by strong price pressure in 2002 and 2001 and sales for data communications and
other IT services decreased in both years.

Wholesale

     External net sales in the wholesale market increased by one percent to SEK 4,382 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and external net sales
increased by 53 percent in 2001 to SEK 4,357 million as compared to 2000. Excluding the effects of the transfer of materials from Telia
Networks to Telefos and the acquisition of Powercom in the middle of 2001, the increase in net sales in 2002 as compared to 2001 was
16 percent and the increase in net sales in 2001 as compared to 2000 was 19 percent.

     External net sales from interconnection traffic in Sweden increased by 12 percent in 2002 to SEK 2,030 million and external net sales
increased by 14 percent to SEK 1,812 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in external net sales from interconnection traffic in
2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to the effects of local carrier pre-selection introduced in February 2002 and pre-selection for national
long distance, international and fixed to mobile calls introduced in September 1999, which resulted in an increase in the demand for our network
from other operators that provided connectivity to retail users.

     External net sales of network capacity in Sweden increased by 14 percent to SEK 1,300 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and external net
sales increased by 46 percent to SEK 1,136 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in 2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to
the effects of carrier pre-selection, which resulted in an increase in the demand for our network capacity from other operators in Sweden.

     During 2002, we delivered a total of 181,000 ADSL/LAN broadband connections in Sweden, including 60,000 to external service providers.
At December 31, 2002, a total of 431,000 customers were connected to our broadband network via ADSL/LAN, an increase of 72 percent from
December 31, 2001.
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Telia Internet Services

     The following table sets forth net sales for Telia Internet Services by source for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Sweden:

Internet access 2,379 1,820 1,396
Internet services 123 136 35
Cable television 898 786 666
Other 118 60 47

Other Nordic Countries 656 486 357

Total external sales 4,174 3,288 2,501
Intra-group sales 32 17 292

Total sales 4,206 3,305 2,793

     The following table sets forth selected operational data for Telia Internet Services for the periods indicated:

As at and for the
year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except as specified)
Sweden:
Dial-up:

Subscriptions, dial-up access: 763 747 687
Traffic, dial-up access (millions of minutes) 6,022 7,117 7,072

Broadband and cable television:
ADSL/LAN access 317 194 27
Fixed access (ProLane) 4 3 2
Cable television subscriptions 1,395 1,378 1,358

of which, broadband Internet users 72 48 22
Denmark:
Dial-up Internet access subscriptions 94 89 78
Cable television subscriptions 188 179 175

of which, broadband Internet users 81 58 30
Total Nordic dial-up Internet access subscriptions 857 836 765
Total Nordic broadband Internet access subscriptions 474 303 81
Total Nordic Internet access subscriptions 1,331 1,139 846

     External net sales by Telia Internet Services increased by 27 percent in 2002 to SEK 4,174 million from external net sales of SEK
3,288 million in 2001. External net sales increased 31 percent in 2001 from external net sales of SEK 2,501 million in 2000. The increase in
2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to strong demand for Internet access accounts, particularly broadband access, and higher average price
levels.

     During 2002, Internet services that did not show satisfactory profitability, such as content services, portal services and payment services,
were restructured or removed from the product mix. We instead increased our focus on development and sales of Internet accesses, where we
have particular competence and a strong market position.
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     External net sales of Internet accesses increased by 33 percent to SEK 2,608 million in 2002 from external net sales of SEK 1,959 million in
2001 and external net sales increased by 31 percent in 2001 from external net sales of SEK 1,488 million in 2000.

     In 2002 and 2001, demand for broadband access was strong in both the residential and business segments.

     The total number of broadband subscribers increased by 171,000 to 474,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and the total number of broadband
subscribers increased by 222,000 to 303,000 in 2001 as compared to 2000. Demand for dial-up also increased and the number of subscriptions
increased by 21,000 to 857,000 in 2002 as compared to 2001 and increased by 71,000 to 836,000 in 2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in
2002 was primarily due to the introduction of a new service, Telia Internet för Alla, which provides Internet access to any phone line subscriber
for which the subscriber is charged only for time used on the network. The increase in 2001 was primarily due to a growing number of our
subscribers upgrading their fixed line connections to broadband service.
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     At the end of 2002, we had a total of 1,331,000 Internet subscribers, an increase of 17 percent from 1,139,000 subscribers in 2001, which in
turn was an increase of 35 percent from 846,000 subscribers in 2000.

     During 2002, we entered into agreements with parties including Apoteksbolaget, the Swedish National Courts Administration and SEB for
delivery of virtual private networks based on the Internet (IP-VPN). In 2002, we also launched an IP exchange that handles both voice and data
using the same infrastructure.

Cable television

     External net sales from cable television increased by 17 percent to SEK 1,316 million in 2002 from net sales of SEK 1,129 million in 2001
and external net sales increased by 21 percent in 2001 from SEK 929 million in 2000. The increase in sales in 2002 was primarily attributable to
price increases. The increase in sales in 2001 was primarily attributable to higher average revenue per property owner, increased number of
digital television subscribers and increased use of pay-per-view services.

     In connection with the merger of Telia and Sonera, we made a commitment to the European Commission to divest our Swedish cable TV
business Com Hem. In 2002, Com Hem�s external net sales were SEK 1,069 million. We completed the divestment of Com Hem in June 2003.

Telia International Carrier

     The following table sets forth net sales for Telia International Carrier for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Total external sales 4,369 3,652 3,124
Intra-group sales 819 980 944

Total sales 5,188 4,632 4,068

     The following table below sets forth selected operational data for Telia International Carrier for the periods indicated:

As at and for the year
ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except as indicated)
Fiber network, Europe (kilometers) 22,300 16,000 13,000
Fiber duct installation, Europe (kilometers) 14,400 10,000 5,300
Fiber network, United States (kilometers) 18,000 18,000 18,000
Fixed voice services, traffic minutes (millions of minutes) 4,983 3,997 2,911

     The international carrier market was characterized by major turbulence and uncertainty during 2002. As a means to adapt the operations to
new market conditions, management made the decision in the third quarter of 2002 to change the strategic focus of Telia International Carrier.
This entailed writing down the value of fixed assets relating to our international carrier operations by approximately SEK 6.0 billion. In addition,
we made a provision of approximately SEK 4.0 billion as restructuring reserves.

     The new strategic focus of Telia International Carrier involves concentrating our operations on wholesale capacity sales, IP and voice over
the profitable segments of the wholly owned network in Europe and across the Atlantic Ocean. We will also continue to focus on the transport of
Internet traffic in the IP network through our peering points in Europe and the United States. During the fourth quarter of 2002 and the first
quarter of 2003, measures were taken to adapt its operations to the new business direction. See �Item 4.B Business Overview � International
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� Our international carrier operations in Asia were closed down. The office in Malaysia was closed in January 2003 and the offices in
Singapore and Hong Kong were closed in March 2003.

� The phase-out of our sales of domestic voice through resellers in the United Kingdom is underway.

� A phase-out plan for our international carrier co-location business was drawn up to adapt the technical facilities to the new market
conditions. Several offices were phased out in the fourth quarter of 2002.
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� The offering of domestic capacity services in the United States was terminated and existing transmission equipment is being
disassembled in order to reduce operating and monitoring costs.

� During the fourth quarter of 2002, several market units and customer service functions were centralized to Sweden.
     External net sales by Telia International Carrier in 2002 increased by 20 percent to SEK 4,369 million from 2001 and external net sales in
2001 increased to SEK3,652 million or by 17 percent from 2000. The increase in external net sales in 2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable
to increased sales in network capacity and IP-traffic.

     Net sales of network capacity are mainly derived from sale of data transmission and wave-length services to customers who require large data
transport capacity. Capacity is normally sold either under short (typically yearly) lease contracts or through indefeasible rights of use (IRUs), in
which case revenue is recognized over the length of the IRU contract, normally ten years or more. Cash flow from IRU contracts normally does
not coincide with reported revenue.

     There is a trend among customers to purchase IP traffic and network capacity instead of infrastructure, due to the relatively high upfront costs
for the customer related to the equipment necessary to activate the acquired infrastructure.

     We expect that our refocusing and streamlining efforts will have the effect of reducing the revenues generated by our international carrier
operations in the near future.

Telia Holding

     Telia Holding was responsible for Telia�s investments outside of our core business areas. Telia Holding comprised a number of consolidated
businesses, including Finans/Credit, Sergel Kredittjänster, Division Satellit, Division Offentlig Telecom, Overseas and Suntel as well as several
associated companies, including Slottsbacken, INGroup, Drutt Corp, Telefos, AUCS Communications Services (AUCS), Infonet Services and
COOP Bank.

     External net sales of the Telia Holding business unit were SEK 906 million in 2002, a decrease of SEK 2,166 million from external net sales
of SEK 3,072 million for the same period in 2001. External net sales in 2000 were SEK 6,057 million. The decrease in external net sales in 2002
and 2001 was attributable to the divestiture of our non-core business operations, which were formerly a part of the Telia Holding business unit.

Operating Expenses

     The following table sets forth our operating expenses by function and the percentage change in operating expenses for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Production(1) 38,182 40,435 33,028 (5.6) 22.4
Sales 9,225 8,738 8,277 (5.6) 5.6
Administration 8,275 7,902 6,485 4.7 21.9
Research and development 1,167 1,303 1,564 (10.4) (16.7)

Total 56,849 58,378 49,354 (2.6) 18.3

(1) Production includes all costs for services and products sold as well as for installation, maintenance, service and support.
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     The following table sets forth our operating expenses by type of cost and the percentage change in operating expenses for the periods
indicated:

Year ended December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Total goods and services purchased 22,736 18,822 15,456 20.8 21.8
Personnel expenses 9,933 13,158 14,507 (24.5) (9.3)
Depreciation and write-downs 12,356 13,921 8,012 (11.2) 73.8
Other expenses 11,824 12,477 11,379 (5.2) 9.6

Total 56,849 58,378 49,354 (2.6) 18.3

     Our operating expenses amounted to SEK 56,849 million in 2002 as compared to SEK 58,378 million in 2001 and SEK 49,354 million in
2000. Operating expenses in 2002 were lower than in 2001 because of the write-down in 2001 in the carrying value of Telia International Carrier
in the amount of SEK 3,027 million. Excluding depreciations and write-downs, operating expenses were on the same level in 2002 and 2001.
The increase in operating expenses in 2001 as compared to 2000 was primarily attributable to a write-down in the carrying value of Telia
International Carrier and higher depreciation. Excluding depreciation and write-downs, operating expenses in 2001 increased by 7.5 percent. The
cost of goods and services purchased increased in 2002 and 2001 primarily as a result of the need to purchase network maintenance and support
services from the Orbiant Group following the divestiture of such operations in 2001 as part of Telia�s �refine and focus� initiative. This divestiture
also led to reduced personnel expenses in 2002 and 2001.

     Goods and services purchased include interconnection fees, mobile terminals and PABXs as well as network expenses relating to the cost of
network maintenance and services and other installation and support services which we purchase from the Orbiant Group. Other expenses
primarily include marketing expenses, consultants� services, IT expenses and rent and leasing fees.

     The following table sets forth the major components of our personnel costs and percentage change therein for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Personnel expenses:
Salaries and remuneration 6,732 8,852 9,543 (23.9) (7.2)
Social security expenses 1,804 2,614 3,055 (31.0) (14.4)
Pension costs 971 613 901 58.4 (32.0)
Other personnel costs 426 1,079 1,008 (60.5) 7.0

Total 9,933 13,158 14,507 (24.5) (9.3)

Average full-time equivalent employees 17,299 24,979 30,307 (30.7) (17.6)
Headcount at period end 29,173 17,149 29,868 70.1 (42.6)

     Our total personnel expenses decreased by 24 percent in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by nine percent in 2001 as compared to 2000. The
decrease in personnel expenses in 2002 and 2001 was primarily attributable to the divestiture of our non-core operations as part of our refine and
focus initiative.

Other Operating Revenues and Expenses

     The following table sets forth the components of other operating revenues and expenses for the periods indicated:
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2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Other operating revenues:

Capital gains 298 1,347 8,031
Exchange rate gains 521 183 161
Other revenues 276 288 776

Total 1,095 1,818 8,968

Other operating expenses:
Capital losses (384) (572) (27)
Exchange rate losses (438) (152) (43)
Restructuring costs and other expenses (14,330) (588) (405)

Total (15,152) (1,312) (475)

Net effect on income (14,057) 506 8,493
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     Other operating revenues decreased by SEK 723 million to SEK 1,095 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by SEK 7,150 million to
SEK 1,818 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. The decrease in other operating revenues in 2002 was mainly due to lower capital gains from
divestments. Other operating revenues were significantly higher in 2000 than 2001 primarily due to the capital gains from the initial public
offering of Eniro and the sale of fixed telephone operations in Norway.

     Other operating expenses increased by SEK 13,840 million to SEK 15,152 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and by SEK 837 million to
SEK 1,312 million in 2001 as compared to 2000. The increase in other operating expenses in 2002 was primarily due to impairment charges and
restructuring provisions relating to our international carrier operations and our fixed network operations in Denmark. See ��Restructuring Costs.�
The increase in 2001 was primarily due to the capital losses from the sales of Telia Internet Inc. and Telia Iberia and the costs for winding up our
satellite business.

Income from Associated Companies

     The following table sets forth the effect on income from our share of earnings after taxes in our associated companies for the periods
indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Share in net income for the period 293 (903) (879)
Amortization and write-down of goodwill (145) (2,285) (549)
Capital gains 380 9,324 231

Net effect on income 528 6,136 (1,197)

     Income from associated companies was SEK 528 million in 2002 as compared to income of SEK 6,136 million in 2001 and a loss of SEK
1,197 million in 2000. Income from associated companies in 2002 included capital gains of SEK 380 million, and income from associated
companies in 2001 included capital gains of SEK 9,324 million and a write-down of goodwill in Netia of SEK 1,820 million. Excluding capital
gains and the write-down of goodwill in Netia, the improvement in income in 2002 was SEK 1,516 million, which was primarily as a result of
the divestment in 2001 of associated companies that previously reported losses, such as Tess, Eircom and Scandinavia Online. In addition, we
currently record the carrying value of our investment in Netia at zero and no longer record our share of Netia�s losses in our consolidated
financial statements.

Depreciation, Amortization and Write-downs

     The following table sets forth our depreciation and amortization, which is included in operating expenses and other operating expenses above,
distributed among functions and percentage change therein for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Production 11,184 13,061 7,325 (14.3) 78.3
Sales 503 366 343 37.4 6.7
Administration 589 467 283 26.1 65.0
Research and development 80 27 61 196 (55.8)

Operating expenses 12,356 13,921 8,012 (11.2) 73.8
Other operating expenses 8,488 54 210 NA (74.3)

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 136



Total 20,844 13,975 8,222 49.2 70.0
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     The following table sets forth our total depreciation, amortization and write-downs and percentage change therein for the periods indicated,
according to the following types of fixed assets:

Year ended December 31, Change

2002 2001 2000 2002/2001 2001/2000

(SEK in millions) (%)
Goodwill 1,938 1,403 656 38.1 114
Other intangible assets 738 340 212 117 60.4
Buildings and land improvements 447 142 102 215 39.2
Fixed and mobile networks 15,500 9,868 5,631 57.0 75.2
Other machinery and equipment 2,221 2,222 1,621 0 37.1

Total 20,844 13,975 8,222 49.2 70.0

     We amortize goodwill according to original useful lives determined for each asset individually, but not longer than 20 years. In addition, we
reassess goodwill annually to determine if additional write-downs are required. Amortization periods for mobile and fixed line licenses equal the
period of the license. Other intangible fixed assets are amortized according to their useful lives generally over a period of five to ten years.

     Depreciation, amortization and write-down expense was SEK 20,844 million in 2002, an increase of 49 percent from SEK 13,975 million in
2001, which in turn was an increase of 70 percent from SEK 8,222 million in 2000. The increase in depreciation, amortization, and write-down
expense in 2002 was primarily due to write-downs of the values of fixed assets relating to Telia�s mobile operations in Finland, the restructuring
of our international carrier operations and fixed network operations in Denmark, and increased depreciation. The increase in 2001 was mainly
attributable to the write-down in the carrying value of Telia International Carrier and increased depreciation.

Operating Income

     Our operating loss was SEK 10,895 million in 2002 as compared to operating income of SEK 5,460 million in 2001, which in turn was a
decrease of 54 percent from operating income of SEK 12,006 million in 2000.

Segment Reporting of Underlying EBITDA and Operating Income

     Management has used underlying EBITDA and operating income as the principal measures for monitoring profitability in internal operations.
Underlying EBITDA consists of EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) net of items not reflecting the
underlying business operations and excluding income from associated companies. Management believes that, besides operating income,
underlying EBITDA is also one of the measures commonly reported and widely used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the
telecommunications industry. Accordingly, underlying EBITDA is presented to enhance the understanding of our historical operating
performance. Underlying EBITDA, however, should not be considered as an alternative to operating income as an indicator of our operating
performance. Similarly, underlying EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of
liquidity. Underlying EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under IAS or U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures for other companies. Underlying EBITDA is not meant to be predictive of potential future results.

     For illustrative purposes, the following table sets forth the relationship between underlying EBITDA and operating income for the periods
indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Underlying EBITDA 15,692 12,915 13,087
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs (20,844) (13,975) (8,222)
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Items not reflecting the underlying business operations (6,271) 384 8,338
Income from associated companies 528 6,136 (1,197)

Operating income (10,895) 5,460 12,006
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     The following table sets forth items not reflecting the underlying business operations:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Phase-out of operations and personnel redundancy costs(1) (5,924) (478) �
Certain pension-related items (248) 88 854
IPO/integration expenses (13) � (144)
Capital gains/losses(2) (86) 774 7,628

Total (6,271) 384 8,338

(1) Excluding depreciation, amortization and write-downs.

(2) Excluding associated companies.
     The following table sets forth underlying EBITDA, operating income and the percentage change (or percentage point change for margins)
therein for our company, its four business areas and Telia Holding for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Underlying EBITDA (SEK millions):
Telia Mobile 6,123 4,705 3,285
Telia Networks 11,090 11,710 11,515
Telia Internet Services (486) (970) (1,201)
Telia International Carrier (1,287) (1,569) (423)
Telia Holding 426 265 1,535
Other group-wide (174) (1,226) (1,624)

Total 15,692 12,915 13,087

Underlying EBITDA margin (%):
Telia Mobile 28.3 23.7 20.5
Telia Networks 33.5 34.4 30.5
Telia Internet Services (11.6) (29.3) (43.0)
Telia International Carrier (24.8) (33.9) (10.4)
Telia Holding 23.5 2.5 8.1
Other group-wide �(1) �(1) �(1)
Total 26.4 22.6 24.2
Operating income (loss) (SEK millions):
Telia Mobile 1,665 1,632 1,506
Telia Networks 1,495 3,854 6,761
Telia Internet Services (1,288) (1,649) (1,307)
Telia International Carrier (12,027) (5,159) (641)
Telia Holding 227 7,403 6,773
Other group-wide (967) (621) (1,086)

Total (10,895) 5,460 12,006
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Operating income margin (%):
Telia Mobile 7.7 8.2 9.4
Telia Networks 4.5 11.3 17.9
Telia Internet Services (30.6) (49.9) (46.8)
Telia International Carrier (231.8) (111.4) (15.7)
Telia Holding 12.5 69.3 35.7
Other group-wide �(1) �(1) �(1)
Total (18.3) 9.5 22.2

(1) The underlying EBITDA margin and operating income margin for other group-wide are not meaningful for any of the periods indicated.
     Our underlying EBITDA increased by 21.5 percent to SEK 15,692 million in 2002 as compared to 2001 and decreased by one percent to SEK
12,915 million in 2001 as compared to 2000.

Telia Mobile

     Underlying EBITDA for Telia Mobile was SEK 6,123 million in 2002, an increase of SEK 1,418 million, or 30 percent, from underlying
EBITDA of SEK 4,705 million in 2001, which in turn was an increase of SEK 1,420 million, or 43 percent, from underlying EBITDA of SEK
3,285 million in 2000. The increase in underlying EBITDA in 2002 and 2001 was primarily due to continued subscriber growth, increased traffic
per
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subscriber, as well as reduced costs as a result of our streamlining efforts. Underlying EBITDA also improved in 2001 as a result of the full year
effect of the acquisition of NetCom in June 2000.

     Depreciation and amortization was SEK 4,422 million, SEK 3,385 million and SEK 1,965 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase
in 2002 was primarily due to a write-down of SEK 536 million with respect to Telia�s Finnish mobile operations to reflect estimated market
value. The increase in 2001 was primarily due to full year effect of amortization of goodwill from the acquisition of NetCom and write-downs of
technology platforms for mobile portals. Telia has tested its investment in NetCom for impairment and management believes that there are no
grounds for recording write-downs with respect to NetCom as of December 31, 2002.

     Income from associated companies was SEK 321 million, SEK 361 million and SEK 166 million in 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively.
Items not reflecting the underlying business operations was negative SEK 357 in 2002, of which streamlining costs, including provisions for
redundant personnel, totaled SEK 201 million. In 2001 and 2000, items not reflecting the underlying business totaled negative SEK 49 million
and SEK 20 million, respectively. Operating income totaled SEK 1,665 million, SEK 1,632 million and SEK 1,506 in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

     In Sweden, underlying EBITDA in the mobile operations increased by seven percent to SEK 5,484 million in 2002 and underlying EBITDA
increased by 24 percent to SEK 5,132 in 2001 . Underlying EBITDA margin increased to 46 percent in 2002 from 44 percent in 2001. Continued
subscriber growth, higher traffic per subscriber and our streamlining efforts had a positive effect on the underlying EBITDA in 2002 and 2001.

     In Norway, underlying EBITDA in the mobile operations increased by 54 percent to SEK 2,132 million in 2002, and underlying EBITDA
increased by 193 percent to SEK 1,381 million in 2001. Underlying EBITDA margin increased seven percentage points to 39 percent in 2002
and underlying EBITDA margin increased four percentage points to 32 percent in 2001. The increase in underlying EBITDA and underlying
EBITDA margin in 2002 was primarily attributable to continued volume growth and cost management. The increase in underlying EBITDA and
underling EBITDA margin in 2001 was primarily attributable to the acquisition of NetCom which occurred in June 2000 and to continued
subscriber growth and higher traffic per subscriber.

     In Denmark, underlying EBITDA in the mobile operations improved from negative SEK 602 million in 2001 to negative SEK 505 million in
2002. Underlying EBITDA in Denmark in 2000 was negative SEK 475 million. The improvement in Denmark in 2002 was primarily
attributable to strong net sales, and the decrease in 2001 was primarily attributable to restructuring costs and write-downs of telephone
inventories. Underlying EBITDA in Finland increased to negative SEK 233 million in 2002 from SEK negative 412 million in 2001. Underlying
EBITDA in Finland in 2000 was SEK negative 494 million. The increase in Finland in 2002 was primarily attributable to increased revenues and
decreased costs resulting from a roaming agreement with Suomen 2G, and the increase in 2001 was primarily attributable to subscriber growth.

Telia Networks

     Underlying EBITDA for Telia Networks was SEK 11,090 million in 2002, a decrease of SEK 620 million, or five percent, from underlying
EBITDA of SEK 11,710 million in 2001. Underlying EBITDA for Telia Networks increased by SEK 195 million, or two percent, in 2001 from
SEK 11,515 million in 2000. Underlying EBITDA margin decreased one percentage points to 33.5 percent in 2002 from 34.4 percent in 2001,
which in turn was an increase of four percentage points from 2000. The decrease in underlying EBITDA in 2002 was primarily due to losses in
Denmark, and the increase in underlying EBITDA in 2001 was primarily due to increased efficiency measures.

     Our network operations in Denmark are the subject of a refocus program. Our Danish network operations are being focused on sales of fixed
voice services to businesses and consumers and wholesale network capacity to operators and service providers, with a goal of achieving positive
underlying EBITDA on a monthly basis by the end of 2003. In the fourth quarter of 2002, unprofitable products, such as ADSL, customer
premises equipment and some data products, were discontinued or put into suspension. The number of employees in our Danish network
operations has been reduced by 91 to 336 employees. In addition, our Danish network operations ceased employing consultants and temporary
staff affecting more than 100 people. In the third and fourth quarters of 2002, the value of the current assets of our Danish network operations
was written down and accounting adjustments, such as a reclassification of leasing contracts totaling SEK 699 million were made. Furthermore,
the value of fixed assets was written down by SEK 3,033 million and provisions for restructuring costs of SEK 519 million were made in
connection with the refocus program.
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     Depreciation, amortization and write-downs were SEK 8,682 million, SEK 5,422 million and SEK 4,786 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

     Income from associated companies was SEK 66 million, as compared to loss from associated companies of SEK 2,363 million and SEK
1,309 million in 2001 and 2000, respectively. Income from associated companies in 2002 was positively affected by a capital gain of SEK
153 million from the divestment of Comsource, while income from associated companies in 2001 was negatively affected by the write-down of
the remaining goodwill in Netia and the equity loss from Telia�s holding in the associated company Eircom.

     Items not reflecting the underlying business operations were negative SEK 979 million in 2002, which included restructuring reserves of SEK
519 million for our Danish operations and SEK 227 million for streamlining costs in our Swedish operations. In 2001 and 2000, items not
reflecting the underlying business operations totaled negative SEK 71 million and SEK 1,341 million, respectively.

     Operating income totaled SEK 1,495 million, SEK 3,854 and SEK 6,761 in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Operating income in 2000
was positively affected by capital gains from the divestiture of our fixed network operations in Norway.

Telia Internet Services

     Underlying EBITDA for Telia Internet Services was negative SEK 486 million, negative SEK 970 million and negative SEK 1,201 million in
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The improvement in underlying EBITDA in 2002 was primarily attributable to a price increase in the Cable
TV business, reduced development costs and efficiency measures. The improvement in underlying EBITDA in 2001 was primarily attributable
to improved efficiency in subscriber support, as well as decreased expenditures relating to the development of broadband services.

     Depreciation, amortization and write-downs was SEK 611 million, SEK 606 million and SEK 191 million 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

     Losses from associated companies were SEK 56 million, SEK 45 million and SEK 21 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

     Items not reflecting the underlying business operations were negative SEK 135 million in 2002, which included restructuring costs such as
provisions for redundant personnel totaling SEK 121 million. In 2001 and 2000, items not reflecting the underlying business operations were
negative SEK 28 million and SEK 106 million, respectively. Operating income totaled negative SEK 1,288 million, negative SEK 1,649 million
and negative SEK 1,307 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Telia International Carrier

     Underlying EBITDA for Telia International Carrier was negative SEK 1,287 million, negative SEK 1,569 million and negative SEK
423 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The improvement in underlying EBITDA in 2002 was attributable to increased sales as well
as the streamlining of operations. The decrease in underlying EBITDA in 2001 was primarily attributable to the fact that Telia International
Carrier was in a build-up phase and was completing the Viking Network and establishing local market organizations. Most of the restructuring
of Telia International Carrier is scheduled to be completed by the end of 2003 and is expected to enable Telia International Carrier to attain
positive cash flow on a monthly basis during 2003, adjusted for restructuring costs.

     Depreciation, amortization and write-downs were SEK 5,960 million, SEK 3,589 million and SEK 199 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Write-downs of the carrying value of Telia International Carrier totaled SEK 5,307 million and SEK 3,027 million in 2002 and
2001, respectively.

     Items not reflecting the underlying business operations were negative SEK 4,780 million in 2002, which included SEK 3,963 million in
restructuring reserves, and SEK 824 million in write-downs of infrastructure and network capacity. In both 2001 and 2000, items not reflecting
the underlying business operations were negative SEK 1 million.
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     There was no income from associated companies in 2002 and 2001 and the loss from associated companies was SEK 20 million in 2000.
Operating loss totaled SEK 12,027 million, SEK 5,159 million and SEK 641 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Financial Net

     The following table sets forth financial income and expense items for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Dividends 5 1 14
Capital gains (1) 4 10
Write-downs (185) (147) �

Total (181) (142) 24

Other financial revenues:
Interest on financial leases 662 600 598
Other interest income 474 964 864
Exchange rate gains 138 129 85

Total 1,274 1,693 1,547

Other financial expenses:
Interest expenses (1,697) (2,168) (1,742)
Capitalized interest 19 81 19
Exchange rate losses (136) (116) (137)

Total (1,814) (2,203) (1,860)

Net financial expenses (721) (652) (289)

     Our financial net effect on income was negative SEK 721 million, negative SEK 652 million and negative SEK 289 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. The increase in net financial expenses in 2002 was mainly due to a decrease in interest income, partly offset by lower
interest expenses. The increase in net financial expenses in 2001 was primarily due to interest expenses on loans raised to acquire NetCom in
Norway in June 2000.

Income Taxes

     We recorded an income tax benefit of SEK 3,619 million in 2002 and income tax expense of SEK 2,917 million and SEK 1,447 million in
2001 and 2000, respectively. The change in 2002 was primarily due to recognition of deferred tax benefits related to impairment charges and
restructuring provisions in our international carrier operations and our fixed network operations in Denmark, offsetable against future taxable
profits.

     The former Telia Group has been subject to a routine tax audit in Sweden for the fiscal year 2000 and earlier. The audit was recently finalized
without any requests for substantial changes. The former Sonera Group has been subject to a routine tax audit in Finland for the fiscal year 2001
and earlier. The tax auditors have now filed their last report without any requests for substantial changes.

5.B Liquidity and Capital Resources
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     The information discussed below is presented based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic
subsidiaries, Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons, only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     The following table sets forth selected cash flow data for the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(SEK in millions)
Cash flow from operating activities 12,449 10,416 10,152
Cash flow from investing activities (5,553) 3,632 (37,121)

Cash flow before financing activities 6,896 14,048 (26,969)

Cash flow from financing activities (10,344) (6,608) 26,818
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Cash and cash equivalents, opening balance 8,923 1,437 1,575
Cash flow for the period (3,448) 7,440 (151)
Exchange rate difference in cash and cash equivalents (10) 46 13

Cash and cash equivalents, closing balance 5,465 8,923 1,437

     Our principal source of liquidity is cash generated from operations. Our liquidity requirements arise primarily from the need to fund capital
expenditures for the maintenance of our facilities, to expand our business should management deem that such an expansion is in the interest of
shareholders, to fund our working capital requirements and to make dividend payments.

     Cash flow from operating activities was SEK 12,449 million in 2002, an increase of SEK 2,033 million as compared to SEK 10,416 million
in 2001. Cash flow from operating activities increased by SEK 264 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from SEK 10,152 million in
2000.

     Cash used in investing activities was SEK 5,553 million in 2002, a significant change as compared to cash flow from investing activities of
SEK 3,632 million in 2001. The change was primarily a result of significantly smaller proceeds from asset sales in 2002 as compared to
proceeds from asset sales in 2001. Cash flow from investing activities increased significantly in 2001 as compared to cash used in investing
activities of SEK 37,121 million in 2000. This change was due principally to the higher proceeds from asset sales in 2001 as compared to 2000,
and due to lower expenditure on acquisitions in 2001 as compared to 2000.

     Cash used in financing activities was SEK 10,344 million in 2002, compared to SEK 6,608 million in 2001. The increase was primarily as a
result of higher repayment of loans in 2002 as compared to 2001. Cash provided by financial activities was SEK 26,818 million in 2000, mainly
due to new borrowings and an equity issue during the year. The need for cash in 2000 was primarily due to the acquisition of NetCom in June
2000.

     We believe that our bank credit facilities and open-market financing programs are sufficient for our present liquidity requirements. We have
the following primary means of external borrowing:

Committed Facilities

� Bank Credit Facilities

Outstanding Facility

� In March 2003, we entered into a new committed �1,400 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks, which has
a final maturity date of March 2008. To date, we have not drawn any amounts under this facility.

Recently Repaid/Cancelled Facilities

� We previously had a committed $1,000 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks, which had a final maturity
date of July 2003. As of December 31, 2002, we had not drawn any amounts under this facility. This facility was cancelled in
March 2003.

� We previously had a committed �92 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks, which had a final maturity
date of March 2004. We consolidated this credit facility as a result of the merger of Telia and Sonera in December 2002. As
of December 31, 2002, �92 million had been drawn under this facility. This facility was fully repaid in March 2003 and
cancelled in April 2003.

� We previously had a committed �511 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks, which had a final maturity
date of April 2005. We consolidated this credit facility as a result of the merger of Telia and Sonera in December 2002. As of
December 31, 2002, �200 million had been drawn under this facility. This facility was fully repaid in March 2003 and
cancelled in April 2003.

Uncommitted Facilities

� EMTN Programs
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� We previously maintained a $3,000 million Euro Medium Term Note (�EMTN�) program. As of December 31, 2002, we had
total borrowings equivalent to $1,170 million under this EMTN program, with an average term to maturity of approximately
2.7 years. In May 2003, we increased the program size to �5,000 million.

� We also maintain an additional �3,000 million EMTN program under the name of Sonera Corporation. We consolidated this
EMTN program as a result of the merger of Telia and Sonera in December 2002. As of December 31, 2002, we had total
borrowings equivalent to �1,800 million under this EMTN program, with an average term to maturity of approximately
2.6 years. As of May 2003, we can no longer borrow additional funds under this program and our intention is to allow the
issued and outstanding bonds under the program to remain outstanding until their scheduled maturity and then refinance
these bonds at the TeliaSonera AB level.

� ECP Programs

� We maintain a $1,000 million Euro Commercial Paper (�ECP�) program for short-term borrowings. We had no borrowings
under this ECP Program as of December 31, 2002.

� We also previously had an additional �500 million ECP program. We consolidated this ECP program as a result of the merger
of Telia and Sonera in December 2002. As of December 31, 2002, we had total borrowings equivalent to �24 million under
this ECP program with an average remaining maturity of approximately 0.3 years. This program was cancelled in May 2003.

� FTN Program. We maintain a SEK 12,000 million Flexible Term Note (�FTN�) program. As of December 31, 2002, our total
outstanding borrowings under this program amounted to SEK 7,040 million with an average remaining maturity of approximately
2.5 years.

� FCP Program. We maintain a �500 million domestic Finnish Commercial Paper (�FCP�) program for short-term borrowings under the
name of Sonera Corporation. We consolidated this FCP program as a result of the merger of Telia and Sonera in December 2002. We
had no borrowings under the FCP program as of December 31, 2002.

     We had cash and cash equivalents of SEK 5,465 million as of December 31, 2002. In addition, the aggregate principal unutilized amount we
had available under our committed credit facilities amounted to approximately SEK 12,000 million as of December 31, 2002. These have been
substituted by the new committed �1,400 million revolving credit facility signed in March 2003.

Merger of Telia and Sonera

     In December 2002, in connection with the merger of Telia and Sonera, all of the outstanding debt of Sonera was consolidated into
TeliaSonera�s financial position. The face value of the Sonera debt was approximately SEK 21.3 billion on the date of the merger.

     Our intention is that TeliaSonera AB will in the future refinance the outstanding Sonera debt as well as any new financing required for
Sonera�s operations.
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Contractual Obligations

     The table below sets forth certain information on our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2002:

More than
More
than

Total 1 year 3 years
Amount Within but within but within After

Outstanding 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years

(SEK in millions)
Long-term loans 32,124 � 19,484 7,158 5,482
Short-term loans(1) 12,608 12,608 � � �
Operating leases 9,319 2,080 2,714 2,111 2,414
Financial leases 342 80 120 91 51
License fees 545 74 148 148 175
Unconditional purchase obligations 3,416 1,893 1,523 � �
Other contractual obligations(2) 2,875 319 2,556 � �

Total contractual cash obligations 61,229 17,054 26,545 9,508 8,122

(1) Including short-term portion of long-term loans

(2) Including commitments for capital expenditures relating to tangible assets of SEK 210 million.
     We had long-term loans amounting to SEK 32,124 million as of December 31, 2002. Of such amount, SEK 508 million was in the form of
loans incurred through long-term financial leasing, foreign currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps. Further, SEK 23,567 million was
in the form of other foreign currency loans and EMTN program loans and SEK 2,914 million was in the form of other loans in euro. Finally,
SEK 5,135 million was in the form of FTNs and other loans in SEK. Our short-term loans include loans from associated companies, short-term
financial leasing, the ECP and FCP programs, short-term FTNs, short-term EMTNs, loans, foreign currency interest rate swaps and interest rate
swaps. Operating leases concern primarily the lease of offices, land and computers.

     Our total interest-bearing liabilities were SEK 44,956 million as of December 31, 2002 compared to SEK 31,482 million as of December 31,
2001, and SEK 37,567 million as of December 31, 2000.

     In general, our policy is to place debt at the parent company level. However, as of December 31, 2002, our wholly owned subsidiary Sonera
Corporation had interest-bearing liabilities equivalent to approximately SEK 21.3 billion outstanding. These credit facilities were assumed as a
result of the merger of Telia and Sonera in December 2002. Additionally, our non-wholly owned subsidiaries in the Baltic countries had external
interest-bearing debt of approximately SEK 1,200 million as of December 31, 2002.

     The table below sets forth certain information on our other commercial commitments as of December 31, 2002:

More
than

More
than

Total 1 year 3 years

Amount Within
but

within
but

within After
Committed 1 year 3 years 5 years 5 years

(SEK in millions)
Lines of credit(1) 1,723 150 225 1,348 �
Credit and performance guarantees 6,006 502 2,408 1,315 1,781

(1) A total of SEK 1,553 million has been utilized as of December 31, 2002.
     We have issued financial guarantees that, if exercised or called, would affect our liquidity. As of December 31, 2002, such guarantees
amounted to SEK 6,006 million.
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     Under the shareholders� agreement among the shareholders of Xfera, we currently have an existing capital commitment to Xfera of
approximately SEK 2.1 billion through 2004. Should we breach our obligations under the shareholders� agreement, the non-breaching
shareholders have the right to purchase all our shares in Xfera at fair value. We believe that our investments pursuant to our contractual capital
commitment pursuant to the shareholders� agreement will enable Xfera to meet the performance requirements in relation to its UMTS license.
Therefore, we do not expect that we would have to make any significant additional payments with respect to our guarantees on behalf Xfera�s
commitments. On March 21, 2003, the Spanish government decided to reduce the amount of bank guarantees issued in support of Xfera�s
performance guarantees in connection with the requirements under the UMTS license. Accordingly, we expect that the principal amount of our
counter-guarantees will be reduced from �387 million to an amount below �100 million. The process of reducing the level of our
counter-guarantees with respect to Xfera is currently ongoing.
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     On September 19, 2002, Svenska UMTS-nät, our 50-50 joint venture with Tele2, signed a SEK 11 billion term loan and revolving credit
facility for the construction of its UMTS network infrastructure in Sweden. TeliaSonera and Tele2 have each severally but not jointly guaranteed
up to a maximum of SEK 5.5 billion of the principal amount borrowed by Svenska UMTS-nät under the credit facility and have pledged their
shares in Svenska UMTS-nät as security for such amount. The indebtedness under the credit facility may become due on an accelerated basis,
under certain circumstances, including if either TeliaSonera or Tele2 ceases to hold, directly or indirectly, 50 percent of Svenska UMTS-nät,
unless the lenders provide their advance consent.

     In February 2002, Sonic Duo obtained financing from the EBRD, the IFC and other bank lenders in the aggregate amount of $126 million.
MegaFon has pledged its shares in Sonic Duo to the EBRD, the IFC and the other bank lenders involved. MegaFon has also guaranteed up to
$18 million of the loan, and a majority of MegaFon�s shareholders, including TeliaSonera, have in turn jointly and severally counter-guaranteed
MegaFon�s guarantee up to $14 million. In addition, MegaFon�s shareholders, including TeliaSonera, have funding obligations of up to
$33 million to Sonic Duo.

Credit Ratings

     On March 26, 2002, Moody�s Investor Services, or Moody�s, placed Telia�s long-term and short-term ratings on review for a possible
downgrade. On January 8, 2003, Moody�s lowered its long-term credit rating of TeliaSonera from A1 to A2 and confirmed its short-term rating
of Prime-1. Moody�s ratings outlook remains negative.

     On April 18, 2002, Standard & Poor�s Ratings Services, or S&P, lowered its long-term credit rating of Telia from AA to A+ and its short-term
rating from A-1+ to A-1. On February 5, 2003, S&P issued a long-term credit rating of A and a short-term credit rating of A-1 for TeliaSonera.
The ratings remained on CreditWatch with negative implications until May 23, 2003, when S&P affirmed TeliaSonera AB�s long-term rating of
A and short-term rating of A-1. S&P�s ratings outlook is stable.

Financial Leasing Activities

     We own assets, such as computers, office equipment, PABXs and related IT and telecommunications equipment that we lease to customers
under financial leasing agreements. We record these assets at the gross investment cost of the lease less unearned financial revenues relating to
the lease. As of December 31, 2002, the present value of the future minimum lease payment receivables under financial leasing agreements was
SEK 7,566 million, as compared to SEK 6,928 million as of December 31, 2001. Most of our leasing activities are carried out through our
wholly owned subsidiary Telia Finans AB.

     See Note 28 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 18 of this annual report on Form 20-F for additional information
relating to our financial leasing activities.

Capital Expenditures and Investments

     The information discussed below is presented based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic
subsidiaries only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     In 2002, TeliaSonera�s capital expenditures decreased by 19 percent to SEK 14,345 million, as compared to SEK 17,713 million in 2001.
Adjusted for the effects of the merger of Telia and Sonera, capital expenditures were SEK 8,321, a decrease by 53 percent compared to 2001.
The decrease was primarily as a result of reduced investments in Telia International Carrier and Telia�s fixed network in Sweden as well as
slightly lower levels of investment in TeliaSonera�s mobile infrastructure in Sweden and Denmark.

     Capital expenditures with respect to Telia Mobile in 2002 were SEK 2,369 million, a decrease of SEK 1,972 million, or 47 percent, compared
to capital expenditures of SEK 4,341 million in 2001. The greatest part of the investments in 2002 was attributable to TeliaSonera�s expansion of
network capacity in Norway, Denmark and Sweden. The increase in capital expenditures with respect to Telia Mobile in 2001 was SEK
2,074 million, or 92 percent, compared to SEK 2,267 million in 2000. The majority of the investments in 2001 was attributable to TeliaSonera�s
UMTS license in Denmark and to capacity increases in existing networks.
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     Capital expenditures with respect to Telia Internet Services in 2002 were SEK 384 million, a decrease of SEK 452 million, or 54 percent,
compared to capital expenditures of SEK 836 million in 2001. The decrease in capital expenditures was primarily attributable to reductions in
investment in the TV network infrastructure. The decrease in capital expenditures with respect to Telia Internet Services in 2001 was SEK
76 million, or eight percent, compared to SEK 912 million in 2000.

     Capital expenditures with respect to Telia International Carrier decreased by 80 percent, or SEK 4,003 million, to SEK 1,034 million for 2002
as compared to SEK 5,037 million for 2001. The decrease in capital expenditures with respect to Telia International Carrier in 2001 was SEK
1,063 million, or 17 percent, compared to SEK 6,100 million in 2000. The build-up phase of Telia International Carrier�s network is largely
complete, and investments with respect to Telia International Carrier in 2002 primarily related to the build-out of network capacity in the
European network required due to customer demand.

     Capital expenditures with respect to Telia Networks in 2002 were SEK 3,859 million, a decrease of SEK 2,908 million, or 43 percent,
compared to SEK 6,767 million in 2001. Capital expenditures in Telia Networks increased in 2001 by SEK 1,623 million, or 32 percent, from
capital expenditures of SEK 5,144 million in 2000. A significant portion of Telia�s capital expenditures in Telia Networks in 2002 and 2001 were
attributable to the expansion of its ADSL infrastructure in Sweden and to capacity reinforcements of its fiber-optic backbone network in larger
cities. However, as a result of lower investment in the expansion of ADSL in Sweden and the more efficient use of capital, capital expenditures
with respect to Telia Networks were significantly lower in 2002 as compared to 2001.

     In 2002, TeliaSonera�s total investments increased to SEK 54,438 million compared to SEK 20,735 million in 2001. This sharp increase was
attributable to the merger of Telia and Sonera, which entailed non-cash investments in goodwill and other intangible assets amounting to SEK
28,524 million and SEK 4,717 million, respectively.

5.C Research and Development, Patents and Licenses

     The information discussed below is presented based on TeliaSonera�s historical results, which include the results of Sonera and the new Baltic
subsidiaries, Omnitel, Lietuvos Telekomas and Latvijas Mobilais Telefons, only for the period beginning December 3, 2002.

     We recorded SEK 1,167 million in research and development expenses in 2002, compared to SEK 1,303 million and SEK 1,564 million in
2001 and 2000, respectively. Our research and development is focused on understanding customer needs and technology development in the
following areas:

� mobile communications, networks and services;

� Internet and electronic business services;

� residential services; and

� broadband services and networks.
     As of December 31, 2002, we had more than 700 patent �families� and over 2,000 patents and patent applications worldwide, none of which,
individually, is material to our business. However, some of our subsidiaries have patents and other intellectual property that are material to their
respective businesses. Although our intellectual property is, as a general matter, protected at a level in line with the standards of international
telecommunications companies, we plan to continue to leverage our investment in research and development by seeking, where appropriate,
international patent protection with respect to our innovations. There can be no assurance, however, that any patent, if granted, will not be
invalidated, circumvented, opposed or canceled or that the steps taken by us to protect our rights will be adequate to prevent unauthorized use of
our technology or to preclude competitors from developing products with features similar to its products. Since 1995, the number of patents held
by us has doubled. In recent years, we have filed approximately 50 to 70 priority patent applications per year.
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5.D Trend Information

     Our business and results of operations have been affected during the last several years by a number of important trends. The global
communications market has experienced rapid growth, especially as the areas of voice and data transmission have converged and become
digitalized. Overall growth, however, has slowed down in our main markets, namely Sweden and Finland, but has continued to be rapid in the
Norwegian, Danish, Baltic, Russian and Eurasian mobile services markets.

     Within the Swedish and Finnish mobile communications market, growth has slowed down principally due to high penetration levels.
Management believes that future growth depends on the increased usage of new services as well as the potential for continuing to increase
mobile voice traffic, which continues to represent only a small portion of the total voice traffic. The non-voice share of mobile revenue has been
growing and management believes that there is further potential for growth as we introduce new, more attractive services to the market.
However, price erosion has had and will continue to have a negative effect on our revenue growth.

     Retail revenues from our fixed network operations in Sweden continued to decline in 2002 principally as a result of the introduction of local
carrier pre-selection in February 2002 as well as fierce competition, which together contributed to our declining market shares within fixed line
traffic. The competition within the Swedish fixed line traffic market is expected to continue to be intense, although management believes that it
will be possible for us to regain market shares in selected segments. In Finland, our fixed network traffic has steadily decreased over the past few
years, mainly due to fixed-to-mobile migration and people moving out from our traditional service areas in Eastern and Northern Finland.
Management expects this trend to continue in the future.

     The Swedish and Finnish broadband market has continued to expand with high demand for ADSL accesses. On the other hand, the move
from dial-up Internet to ADSL has decreased usage of our fixed line operations.

     Our mobile operations in Norway have experienced revenue growth due to expanded customer base, increased average minutes of use, and
substantial increase in the use of SMS messaging. Management believes that lower interconnection fees could have a hampering effect on
growth in 2003.

     In our Danish mobile operations, fast customer growth and a new GSM 900 network have contributed to an increase in revenues, but further
customer growth is needed before the operations can reach profitability. Our Danish fixed network business is currently undergoing a
restructuring program, which management expects to improve its results during 2003.

     Our consolidated and non-consolidated Baltic mobile operations continued to show growth in 2002. As a consequence, however, our Baltic
fixed network operations suffered from fixed-to-mobile migration and declining revenues. The shift was especially dramatic in Lithuania.
Management believes that due to relatively low penetration levels, there is additional growth potential in the Baltic countries, especially in the
mobile communications, Internet access and broadband markets.

     Our Eurasian mobile operations in Azerbaijan, Georgia, Kazakhstan and Moldova have continued to show customer growth. These countries
currently have low GDP per capita and have been exhibiting strong economic development.

     Russia, where our associated company MegaFon operates, has continued to exhibit strong customer growth. The mobile penetration rate in
Russia is still low, and management believes that there is growth potential in this market.

     Our TeliaSonera International Carrier operations still face difficult market conditions. However, our restructuring efforts have started to yield
results and losses are being reduced. The closing down of unprofitable businesses within TeliaSonera International Carrier has, however,
resulted in declining revenues. For the remaining businesses, including IP traffic, revenues have continued to grow.

     The levels of our capital expenditure were significantly lower for the whole group during 2002 as compared to the past few years. Even
though we will begin to invest more heavily in the roll-out of UMTS networks and services in 2003, management expects that our overall capital
expenditures for 2003 will be approximately at the same level as in 2002.
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ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

6.A Directors and Senior Management

Board of Directors

     Under the Swedish Companies Act, the TeliaSonera board of directors is responsible for TeliaSonera�s organization and the management of
TeliaSonera�s affairs. The members of the board of directors are elected by TeliaSonera�s shareholders and the board of directors must, according
to TeliaSonera�s articles of association, consist of no fewer than four and no more than nine directors and no more than three deputy directors.

     Swedish law provides that the unions that represent TeliaSonera�s employees may appoint three additional directors and three deputy
directors.

     Under Swedish law, the managing director and at least half of the members of the board of directors must be resident in a European
Economic Area country unless the Swedish Patent and Registration Office grants an exemption. Under Swedish law, a director�s term of office
(other than a union appointee) may not be more than four years, but is normally one year. TeliaSonera�s articles of association provide that
directors shall be elected at the annual general meeting of shareholders for a period of one year. A director may, however, serve any number of
consecutive terms. The unions representing TeliaSonera�s employees may decide the term for the union-appointed directors, which may not
exceed four years, and such directors may also serve any number of consecutive terms. Directors elected by the general meeting of the
shareholders may be removed from office by a general meeting of the shareholders at any time, and vacancies on the board of directors, except
when filled by a deputy director, may only be filled by a resolution of the shareholders.

     At present, TeliaSonera�s board of directors has 12 ordinary members, three of whom are employee representatives and, as such, union
appointees. TeliaSonera also has three deputy directors who are each union appointees. The current members of our board of directors and
certain information relevant to such persons is set forth below:

Number of shares
Year owned as of

Name born May 26, 2003 Position

Ordinary Members:
Tapio Hintikka 1942 0 Chairman
Carl Bennet 1951 11,000(1) Vice Chairman
Ingvar Carlsson 1934 400 Director
Eva Liljeblom 1958 999 Director
Sven-Christer Nilsson 1944 0 Director
Paul Smits 1946 0 Director
Caroline Sundewall 1958 1,000 Director
Roger Talermo 1955 0 Director
Tom von Weymarn 1944 4,316 Director
Yvonne Karlsson 1959 175 Director(2)
Berith Westman 1945 650 Director(2)
Elof Isaksson 1942 750(1) Director(2)
Deputy Members:
Magnus Brattström 1953 0 Deputy Director(2)
Stefan Carlsson 1956 650 Deputy Director(2)
Arja Kovin 1964 0 Deputy Director(2)

(1) Including shareholdings by spouse and affiliated persons.

(2) Employee representative appointed by the trade unions.
     Below is a summary biography of the members of the board of directors of TeliaSonera:
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Tapio Hintikka is the Chairman of the board of directors of TeliaSonera. Mr. Hintikka was elected to the board of TeliaSonera in 2002 and
elected Chairman of the board of directors of Sonera in 2001. In addition to being the Chairman of the board of TeliaSonera, Mr. Hintikka is the
Chairman of the board of Teleste Corporation, a member of the boards of Onninen Oy and Evli Bank Plc and a member of the supervisory board
of Finpro. Mr. Hintikka has prior experience from Hackman Oyj, where he served as President and Chief Executive Officer from 1997 to 2002.
In addition, Mr. Hintikka has held several positions at Nokia Corporation between 1990 to 1996, amongst others as President of Nokia General
Communication Products.
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Carl Bennet is the Vice Chairman of the board of directors of TeliaSonera. Mr. Bennet was elected to the TeliaSonera board of directors in
2000. In addition to being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Mr. Bennet is the Chairman of the board of directors of Boliden
AB, Elanders AB, Getinge Industrier AB, University of Halmstad, Lifco AB, Scanrec AB, Sorb Industri AB and Håells Modul-System, and a
board member of AMS (the National Labor Market Board) and SNS (Center for Business and Policy Studies). Mr. Bennet is also a member of
the Swedish Government�s Research Advisory Council. Mr. Bennet served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Getinge Industrier AB
between 1989 and 1997.

Ingvar Carlsson was elected to the TeliaSonera board of directors in 2000. Mr. Carlsson is the former Prime Minister of Sweden, a position
he held from 1986 to 1991 and from 1994 to 1996. In addition to being a member of the board of TeliaSonera, Mr. Carlsson is the Chairman of
the Olof Palme International Center.

Eva Liljeblom was elected to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2002 and elected to the board of directors of Sonera in 2001. In addition
to being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Ms. Liljeblom is Professor of Finance and the Head of the Department of Finance
and Statistics at the Swedish School of Economics and Business Administration in Helsinki, Finland. Furthermore, Ms. Liljeblom is a member
of the boards of Stockmann Oyj, Fennia Mutual Insurance Company and Municipal Finance (Kuntarahoitus). Ms. Liljeblom is also the Official
Controller of the HEX-index for the Helsinki Stock Exchanges (HEX) and a member of the investment Committee of the Finnish Government
Pension Fund.

Sven-Christer Nilsson was elected to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2003. Mr. Nilsson was the Chief Executive Officer and
President of Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson in 1998 and 1999. He is the founder, a partner and a member of the board of directors of
Startupfactory BV, a member of the boards of directors of Assa Abloy AB and Parthus Ceva, Inc. Mr. Nilsson is also the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Swedish Foundation for Public Broadcasting Services.

Paul Smits was elected to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2003. Mr. Smits was the Chairman of the board of directors and Chief
Executive Officer of Royal KPN N.V. between 2000 and 2002. In addition to being a board member of TeliaSonera, Mr. Smits is a member of
the supervisory boards of Travel Unie International, Enertel BV Rotterdam and Unit 4 Agresso, a member of the advisory board of Rabo Bank
NV, a member of the board of Stichting Fevenoord Rotterdam; Chairman of the advisory board of Media Plaza and Chairman of the board of
Stichting Centrale Discotheek Rotterdam.

Caroline Sundewall was elected to the TeliaSonera board of directors in 2001. In addition to being a member of the TeliaSonera board of
directors, Ms. Sundewall is a board member of Lifco AB, Strålfors AB, Haldex AB and Perbio Science AB. Ms. Sundewall has previously
served as business editor for Finanstidningen and business commentator and business editor of Sydsvenska Dagbladet. Ms. Sundewall has also
held the position of business controller of Ratos AB.

Roger Talermo was elected to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2002 and to the board of directors of Sonera in 2001. In addition to
being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Mr. Talermo is the President, Chief Executive Officer and a board member of Amer
Group Plc.

Tom von Weymarn was elected to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2002 and to the board of directors of Sonera in 2001. In addition to
being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Mr. von Weymarn is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Oy Rettig Ab, the
Chairman of the board of directors of Lännen Tehtaat Plc. and a board member of Oy Rettig Ab, Oy Sinebrychoff Ab, Oy Telko Ab, CPS Color
Group Oy and the Federation of Finnish Engineering and Electrotechnical Industries. Mr. von Weymarn served as Executive President of Cultor
Plc between 1991 and 1997.

Yvonne Karlsson, an employee representative, was appointed by the trade union to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2002. In addition
to being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Ms. Karlsson is the Vice Chairman of the Swedish Union of Clerical and Technical
Employees in Industry, telecommunications section (SIF-TELE).

Berith Westman, an employee representative, was appointed by the trade union to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 1995. In addition to
being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Ms. Westman is the Chairman SIF-TELE and a board member of Telia Pension Fund.
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Elof Isaksson, an employee representative, was appointed by the trade union to the board of directors of TeliaSonera in 2000. In addition to
being a member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Mr. Isaksson is the Chairman of the Union of Service and Communication Employees
(SEKO) within TeliaSonera and a board member of the Telia Pension Fund.

     Below is a summary biography of the deputy members of the TeliaSonera board of directors:

Magnus Brattström, an employee representative, was appointed by the trade union to serve as a deputy member of the board of directors of
TeliaSonera in 2001. In addition to being a deputy member of the board of directors of TeliaSonera, Mr. Brattström is the Vice Chairman of the
Union of Service and Communication Employees (SEKO) within TeliaSonera.

Stefan Carlsson, an employee representative, was appointed by the trade union to serve as a deputy member of the board of directors of
TeliaSonera in 2002.

Arja Kovin, an employee representative, was appointed by the trade union to serve as a deputy member of the board of directors of
TeliaSonera in 2002.

     No member or deputy member of the board of directors currently holds a management position in TeliaSonera. No member or deputy
member of the board of director has a family relationship with any other board member or any group management member.

     Pursuant to a shareholders� agreement, dated as of March 26, 2002, by and between the Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland, as
amended, the principal shareholders of TeliaSonera agreed that Tapio Hintikka and Carl Bennet will serve as Chairman of the board of directors
and Deputy Chairman of the board of directors, respectively, at least until TeliaSonera�s annual general meeting of shareholders in 2005. In
addition, the shareholders� agreement provides that the current members of the board of directors, other than the Chairman and Vice Chairman
shall be re-elected at the annual general meeting of shareholders in 2004, provided that they continue to satisfy certain criteria set forth in the
shareholders� agreement.

     Except as noted above, no board member has been elected pursuant to an arrangement or understanding with any major shareholder,
customer, supplier or other person.

Executive Management and Group Vice Presidents

     The members of our executive management and group vice presidents, and certain information relevant to such persons is set forth below:

Number of Shares
Year owned

Name born as of May 26, 2003 Principal Occupation

Anders Igel 1951 25,100 President and Chief Executive Officer
Harri Koponen 1962 12,069 Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Responsible for Marketing, Products and Services
Kim Ignatius 1956 3,028 Chief Financial Officer
Lars-Gunnar Johansson 1944 2,550(1) Group Vice President Responsible for

Corporate Networks and Technology
Rune Nyberg 1949 � Group Vice President Responsible for

Corporate Human Resources
Michael Kongstad 1960 1,000 Group Vice President Responsible for

Corporate Communications
Jan Henrik Ahrnell 1959 2,500 Group Vice President and General

Counsel Responsible for Corporate Legal Affairs
Marie Ehrling 1955 1,000 President of TeliaSonera Sweden
Anni Vepsäläinen 1963 1,500 President of TeliaSonera Finland
Kenneth Karlberg 1954 2,000(1) President of TeliaSonera Norway,

Denmark and the Baltic Countries
Aimo Eloholma 1949 28,095 President of TeliaSonera International

(1) Including shareholdings by spouse and minor.
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     Below is a summary biography of the members of the executive management and group vice presidents:

Anders Igel is President and Chief Executive Officer of TeliaSonera. Previously, Mr. Igel has served as President and Chief Executive Officer
of Esselte AB and, before that, Executive Vice President of Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson. While at Ericsson, Mr. Igel was, over the course
of his career, the Head of Infocom Systems, which was one of Ericsson�s three global business areas comprising fixed networks, Internet and
IP-communication, the Head of Ericsson�s Public Networks business area, the Head of Ericsson UK, and an operations executive for Ericsson in
the Middle East, South-East Asia and Latin America. Mr. Igel left Ericsson to become the President and Chief Executive Officer of Esselte in
1999.

Harri Koponen is Deputy Chief Executive Officer of TeliaSonera responsible for the corporate unit Marketing, Products and Services.
Mr. Koponen was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of Sonera in 2001. Mr. Koponen joined Sonera from Ericsson, where he was
employed in various positions beginning in 1994. As from 1999, Mr. Koponen was the Executive Vice President and General Manager of
Ericsson�s consumer products division beginning in 1998 and responsible for Ericsson�s sales and marketing in North America. Prior to joining
Ericsson, Mr. Koponen held various positions at Hewlett-Packard.

Kim Ignatius is Chief Financial Officer of TeliaSonera. Mr. Ignatius was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Sonera in 2000. Prior to joining Sonera, Mr. Ignatius was Chief Financial Officer and a member of the executive board of Tamro Corporation.
Mr. Ignatius has also held various management positions at Amer Group Plc.

Lars-Gunnar Johansson is a Group Vice President and head of the unit Corporate Networks and Technology. Mr. Johansson has been
employed by TeliaSonera since 1969 and was previously head of TeliaSonera�s wholesale business Skanova, head of business area Carrier and
Networks, responsible for network planning with Telia Region Väst and head of network planning in the Gothenburg telecom district.

Rune Nyberg is a Group Vice President and head of Corporate Human Resources. Mr. Nyberg was employed by TeliaSonera in 2003. Prior to
joining TeliaSonera, Mr. Nyberg was Group Vice President of Human Resources at Sandvik AB, President of Pair Ltd. and Personnel Manager
at Sandvik, JS Saba and Distributions AB DAGAB.

Michael Kongstad is a Group Vice President and head of Corporate Communications. Mr. Kongstad joined TeliaSonera and became a
member of the group management team in 2001. He has served as managing director of the Burson-Marsteller International Inc.�s Swedish
operations and as communications director for Posten AB, WASA Försäkring and the OM Group.

Jan Henrik Ahrnell is a Group Vice President and General Counsel of TeliaSonera. Mr. Ahrnell has been employed by TeliaSonera since
1989 and has served as General Counsel since 1999. Prior to his service as General Counsel, Mr. Ahrnell was the head of various legal
departments within the TeliaSonera group and served as corporate counsel in various TeliaSonera companies.

Marie Ehrling is President of TeliaSonera Sweden. Ms. Ehrling was employed by TeliaSonera in 2003 and previously held the position of
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of SAS AB and Head of SAS Airline. Ms. Ehrling has held several executive positions within SAS. In addition,
Ms. Ehrling has served as Information Officer at the Swedish Ministry of Finance and the Swedish Ministry of Education and Science and as
financial analyst for the Fourth National Pension Insurance Fund (Fjärde AP-fonden).

Anni Vepsäläinen is President of TeliaSonera Finland. Ms. Vepsäläinen has been employed by Sonera since 1987 and has been a member of
Sonera�s Executive Management Team since 2001. Ms. Vepsäläinen has held several executive positions within Sonera, including Head of
Products and Services and Head of Human Resources and Competencies, and was in charge of Sonera�s former business unit Mobile Operations
in Finland.

Kenneth Karlberg is President of TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and the Baltic countries. Mr. Karlberg has been employed by TeliaSonera
since 1987 and a member of the Group Executive Management since 1999. Previously, Mr. Karlberg has served as Vice President of
TeliaSonera and Head of the Telia Mobile business area. Mr. Karlberg has been active in the mobile communications area since 1995, first as
regional head and production manager and subsequently as business area head of Telia and President of Telia Mobile.
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Aimo Eloholma is President of TeliaSonera International. Mr. Eloholma has been employed by Sonera since 1974 and has served as Sonera�s
Chief Operating Officer, Deputy Chief Executive Officer and Head of Sales and Marketing. Mr. Eloholma has held a number of positions in
various fields of operation within Sonera, including within data communications, business services, business development and corporate
planning.

     The business address of each of the members of the TeliaSonera board of directors, the President and Chief Executive Officer of TeliaSonera
and each other member of TeliaSonera�s executive management and group vice presidents is c/o TeliaSonera AB, Mårbackagatan 11, S-123 86
Farsta Sweden, telephone +46-8-713-1000.

     In certain cases, management�s areas of responsibility comprise more than one reporting unit. The areas of responsibility for TeliaSonera
Sweden and TeliaSonera Finland cover the reporting unit Sweden and Finland, respectively. The TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and the Baltic
countries area of responsibility covers each of the reporting units Norway, Denmark and the Baltic Countries. The TeliaSonera International area
of responsibility covers the reporting units Eurasia, Russia, Turkey and TeliaSonera International Carrier. Our Chief Financial Officer is
responsible for TeliaSonera Holding.

     No member of the executive management and group vice presidents has a family relationship with any other member of the executive
management and group vice presidents or any board member.

6.B Compensation

     The following table shows the aggregate compensation of the Chairman of the board of directors, the President and Chief Executive Officer
and the other corporate officers of TeliaSonera for the year ended December 31, 2002. �Other corporate officers,� as the term is used below, refers
to the ten individuals who, along with the President and Chief Executive Officer, constituted Telia group executive management up to
December 9, 2002.

President and
Chief

Chairman of
the Executive Other corporate

board of
directors Officer(1) officers Total

(SEK)
Base salary/board remuneration 481,456 2,834,027 22,977,384 26,292,867
Variable salary � � 7,680,179 7,680,179
Other benefits (2) � 530,372 534,154 1,064,526
Pension expenses (3) � 2,368,640 15,194,601 17,563,241

Total 481,456 5,733,039 46,386,318 52,600,813

(1) The compensation for the President and Chief Executive Officer shown above is based on the compensation for Anders Igel, the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the company as of July 1, 2002. In addition, Marianne Nivert, the former Chief Executive
Officer of Telia who retired on August 31, 2002, was paid SEK 6,014,757 in salary and other benefits during 2002, of which SEK
1,804,000 was a bonus for 2001. During the period from September 1, 2002 up to and including December 31, 2002, pension benefits in
the amount of SEK 1,262,736 were paid to Ms. Nivert, corresponding to her contractual pension benefits for the period equal to
70 percent of her last annual salary.

(2) Other benefits refer chiefly to company car benefits and, for the President and Chief Executive Officer, reimbursement of the costs of
relocation to Sweden.

(3) TeliaSonera provides only defined benefit pension plans. Pension expense refers to the expense that affected earnings for the year. See
below for further disclosures concerning the terms and conditions of pensions.

     At TeliaSonera�s annual general meeting held on May 8, 2003, the following director�s fees were approved. The Chairman of the board of
directors of the company is to receive SEK 750,000 per year in compensation, the Deputy Chairman is to receive SEK 550,000 per year in
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paid to directors for committee work. Directors appointed as employee representatives are not remunerated.

     The compensation of the President and Chief Executive Officer and other members of the executive management and group vice presidents
consists of a base salary, certain taxable benefits, variable salary and pension benefits.
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     Our President and Chief Executive Officer is eligible for variable salary that is capped at an amount equal to 50 percent of the base salary.
For other members of the executive management and group vice presidents, such adjustable compensation is capped at 35 percent of the base
salary. Variable salary is based on the financial performance of the Group and individual performance objectives.

     Our President and Chief Executive Officer Anders Igel has a fixed yearly salary set at SEK 5,600,000, which was paid pro rata for the year
2002, with a maximum bonus of 50 percent of his fixed salary. Mr. Igel�s employment contract may be terminated with six months� prior written
notice and with a subsequent severance payment equivalent to 24 months� fixed salary. Mr. Igel is guaranteed early retirement at the age of 60,
pursuant to which his total annual pension payments will equal 70 percent of his fixed salary. From the age of 65, pension benefits will be paid
under the ITP-Tele scheme as well as a supplementary pension, which will be paid for the portion of his salary that exceeds 20 base amounts, as
that term is defined under Swedish law, so that the total annual pension equals 50 percent of the fixed salary. One base amount currently equals
SEK 38,600 and is subject to annual adjustments based on the rate of inflation.

     In addition to general employment benefits, TeliaSonera offers the following benefits to members of the executive management and group
vice presidents: health insurance (including coverage for the spouse of an employee), an annual medical examination, a telephone subscription
for private use free of charge and the choice of the following: use of a company car, domestic service or a salary increase of an equivalent
amount. All benefits, except for health insurance for the employee and the annual medical examination, are treated as taxable income in Sweden.
The members of the executive management and group vice presidents that have their employment contracts with Sonera have standard local
benefits provided to other Sonera managers.

Stock Options

     Employee stock options have been allotted to members of the executive management and group vice presidents on terms equal to those
applicable to other employees. However, stock options have not been allotted to the President and Chief Executive Officer, Anders Igel.
Members of the executive management and group vice presidents who had their employment contracts with Sonera and had Sonera stock
options before the merger hold separate TeliaSonera stock options that they received when Sonera stock options were exchanged into
TeliaSonera stock options. For a further description of the stock options, see subsection ��Employee Stock Option Plans,� below.

Bonuses

     Our President and Chief Executive Officer, Anders Igel, was not paid a bonus for 2002. Bonuses were paid to other members of the executive
management and group vice presidents corresponding to approximately 30 percent of their aggregate base salary. Members of the executive
management and group vice presidents who had their employment contract with Sonera during 2002 were paid a performance bonus of
approximately 80 percent of their aggregate base salary, and a transaction bonus equaling 12 months� salary related to the merger of Telia and
Sonera. Bonuses paid during 2002 were based on the financial performance of the group, financial performance in each officer�s area of
responsibility, and individual performance objectives for 2001.

Pensions

     The early retirement age for members of the executive management and group vice presidents other than the President and Chief Executive
Officer varies between 60 and 62. Annual pension benefits are to equal 70 percent of pensionable salary between age 60 (62) and 65. Annual
pension benefits after age 65 are to be paid in accordance with the ITP plan with supplementary benefits, amounting to 32.5 percent of the
pensionable salary, for that part of salary exceeding 20 base amounts. Pensionable salary includes base salary and bonus. However, members of
the executive management and group vice presidents who have their employment contracts in Finland have pension benefits that provide for
early retirement at age 60 and a maximum level of 60 percent of the highest pensionable salary in accordance with the statutory scheme in
Finland.

Severance Pay

     TeliaSonera�s employment contract with our President and Chief Executive Officer, Anders Igel, requires both parties to provide six months�
notice of resignation or termination of employment. Upon termination by the company, the President and Chief Executive Officer shall be
entitled to severance pay equal to his fixed monthly salary for a period of 24 months. Other income shall be deducted from the severance
amount. If the
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     President and Chief Executive Officer resigns his position, he shall not be entitled to severance pay. TeliaSonera�s employment contract with
other members of the executive management and group vice presidents requires a period of notice of six months from the employee and
12 months from TeliaSonera with respect to resignation or termination of employment. Upon termination by TeliaSonera, such member of the
executive management and group vice presidents will be entitled to severance pay equal to 12 months� salary. Other income shall be deducted
against the severance amount. If a member of the executive management and group vice presidents resigns his or her position, he or she shall not
be entitled to severance pay.

Planning and Decision Process

     The compensation of our President and Chief Executive Officer for 2002 was decided by our board of directors based on the recommendation
of the compensation committee of the board of directors. The compensation of other members of the executive management and vice presidents
is decided by our President and Chief Executive Officer in consultation with the compensation committee.

Employee Stock Option Plans

2001 Employee Stock Option Program. Our shareholders at the 2001 annual general meeting voted in favor of establishing an employee stock
option program involving the issuance of debt instruments that carry the right to subscribe for shares in TeliaSonera. A total of 1,000 stock
options were allotted free of charge to all employees with a permanent employment contract as of December 31, 2001. A portion of the options
was issued to employees on May 15, 2001, and a second portion was sent out to all other employees during the first half of 2002. Due to legal
and/or administrative reasons, stock options could not be offered to employees in certain countries and in certain states in the United States.

     The program encompasses the issuance of a maximum of 21,000,000 options, which entitle the holder thereof to acquire a corresponding
number of shares in TeliaSonera. The options are exercisable between May 31, 2003 and May 31, 2005. In addition, up to a maximum of
6,500,000 additional options may be issued and sold in the open market to compensate for any social costs incurred in connection with the
option program.

     The increase in share capital following a full subscription under the stock option plan would amount to SEK 88,000,000, or 0.9 percent of the
total number of TeliaSonera shares. The current subscription price is set at SEK 69 per TeliaSonera share, however, the subscription price may
be subject to adjustment following new issuances of shares, stock-splits and similar transactions.

     As of May 31, 2003, the employee representatives of the board of directors and the following members of the executive management and
group vice presidents had been allotted the 1,000 stock options under the 2001 Stock Option Plan: Lars-Gunnar Johansson, Michael Kongstad,
Jan Henrik Ahrnell and Kenneth Karlberg.

2002 Stock Option Plan � series 2002/2005:A-B. In exchange for Sonera warrants of series 1999A and 1999B, the extraordinary meeting of
our shareholders held on November 4, 2002 adopted a resolution to issue a maximum of 7,500,000 warrants of series 2002/2005:A and a
maximum of 5,846,847 of series 2002/2005:B warrants, respectively. In March 2003, the board of directors decided that series 2002/2005:B
warrants were not exercisable, based on the interpretation by the board of directors that the performance criteria set for the series had not been
met.

     Each series A warrant entitles the warrant holder to subscribe for 1.5 new shares in TeliaSonera. The current subscription price is set at SEK
71.62 per TeliaSonera share for series A warrants. Series A warrants are exercisable and they were listed on the Helsinki Stock Exchange on
December 9, 2002. A warrant holder can sell series A warrants on the stock exchange at a price determined by public quotes.

2002 Stock Option Plan � series 2002/2008:A-F and 2002/2010:A-F. In exchange for Sonera warrants of series 2000/A1-C2 and 2000/A3-C4,
the extraordinary meeting of our shareholders held on November 4, 2002 adopted a resolution to issue a maximum of 11,456,200 warrants of
series 2002/2008:A-F and a maximum of 6,417,272 of series 2002/2010:A-F warrants, respectively.

     Each warrant entitles the warrant holder to subscribe for 1.5 new shares in TeliaSonera. The increase in share capital following a full
subscription of the 2002/2008 and 2002/2010 option plans would be no more than SEK 78 million, or 0.5 percent of the total number of
TeliaSonera shares. The exercise price as well as the number of new shares that each warrant entitles its holder to subscribe for may be
recalculated as a consequence
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of share issues, cash dividends, etc. The current subscription prices for the 2002/2008 and 2002/2010 option plans vary between SEK 33.64 and
SEK 347.38 per TeliaSonera share.

     All 2002/2008 and 2002/2010 warrants have certain performance criteria related to estimated share price development of Sonera stand-alone,
which have to be met for the warrants to become exercisable.

     As of May 31, 2003, the following members of the executive management and group vice presidents held the following number of
2002/2005, 2002/2008 and 2002/2010 warrants:

2002/2005 A 2002/2008 A-C 2002/2010 A-F

Harri Koponen 255,000 � 560,000
Kim Ignatius 112,500 150,000 180,000
Anni Vepsäläinen 117,500 150,000 146,688
Aimo Eloholma 122,500 150,000 180,000

Pension Benefits

     Almost all of our employees in Sweden, Finland and Norway are covered by defined pension benefit plans, providing a guaranteed pension
equal to a certain percentage of the employee�s salary. The pension plans mainly include old-age pension, disability pension and family pension.
The pension obligations are secured mostly by pension funds, but also by provisions in the balance sheet and by insurance premiums.

     TeliaSonera�s employees outside Sweden, Finland and Norway are usually covered by defined contribution pension plans. Contributions to
these plans are normally set at a certain percentage of the employee�s salary.

Sweden. Currently, substantially all of TeliaSonera�s employees in Sweden are eligible for retirement benefits under a benefit plan called
ITP/ITP-Tele. TeliaSonera and most of its subsidiaries in Sweden use the ITP-Tele plan.

     The rules set out by the FPG/PRI systems are used to calculate the amount of the pension commitments. Similar rules also govern those
employees retired from public service for whom TeliaSonera has assumed responsibility for payment of their pensions. Substantially all of the
TeliaSonera group�s pension commitments in Sweden are funded through the Telia Pension Fund.

Finland. TeliaSonera�s employees in Finland are entitled to statutory pension benefits pursuant to the Finnish Employees� Pension Act
(395/1961), as amended, a defined benefit pension arrangement with retirement, disability, unemployment and death benefits. In addition,
certain employees have additional pension coverage through a supplemental pension plan.

     Statutory pension obligations as well as certain supplemental pension obligations for substantially all of TeliaSonera�s employees in Finland
are funded through the Sonera Pension Fund. TeliaSonera makes monthly contributions to the pension fund in Finland.

6.C Board Practices

The Board of Directors

     TeliaSonera�s articles of association stipulate that the board of directors shall consist of, besides employee representatives appointed in
accordance with Swedish law, no less than four and no more than nine members and no more than three deputy members. The members and
deputy members are elected annually at the annual general meeting to serve until the end of the following annual general meeting.

     TeliaSonera�s board of directors currently has nine ordinary members. In addition, the employee organizations are represented by three
ordinary members and three deputy members. The current term of office of the members expire at the end of the annual general meeting in 2004,
at which point each member may be re-elected for consecutive one-year terms. For information on the period during which each person has
served on the board of TeliaSonera, see �Item 6.A Directors and Senior Management.�

     Except for the employee representatives, the members of the board of directors of TeliaSonera are not employed by TeliaSonera. No service
contracts providing for benefits upon termination of employment exist between the company or any of its subsidiaries, on one hand, and any
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     The board of directors held seven ordinary meetings during 2002 as well as a number of extra meetings. The guidelines for the work of the
board of directors and instructions defining the responsibilities of the board members and our President and Chief Executive Officer, and the
provisions governing the President and Chief Executive Officer�s reporting to the board, are provided by the standing orders adopted by the board
on December 6, 2002. The standing orders lay down rules regarding the number of ordinary board meetings (at least five ordinary meetings per
calendar year), the business on the agenda of ordinary board meetings, responsibilities within the board, including the obligations of the
Chairman of the board, responsibilities of members of the board and the President and Chief Executive Officer, and how work is carried out by
committees.

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee

     The board of directors appointed an audit committee on January 7, 2003. The audit committee is to consist of independent and qualified
non-executive members of the board. The Committee currently consists of the following three members of the board, each of whom is
independent and qualified: Tapio Hintikka, Eva Liljeblom and Caroline Sundewall.

     The purpose of the audit committee is to assist the board in fulfilling its responsibilities to oversee the accounting and financial reporting
processes of TeliaSonera. These include the oversight of the quality and integrity of TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements and related
disclosure and the performance of its internal control and risk management and audit functions. The audit committee further oversees the
performance, qualifications and independence of TeliaSonera�s external auditor. Under Swedish law, the external auditor is elected by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting. The audit committee holds meetings at least four times per year according to the schedule approved
by it at the first meeting following the audit committee�s nomination. The audit committee also meets with representatives of management and
the external auditor at least once annually.

The Nomination Committee

     The shareholders at the annual general meeting of TeliaSonera held on May 10, 2001 resolved to establish a nomination committee consisting
of representatives from the four largest shareholders in TeliaSonera from time to time and the Chairman of the TeliaSonera board of directors.
The primary purpose of the nomination committee is to nominate the TeliaSonera board of directors and present proposals regarding the
compensation of members of the TeliaSonera board of directors. The nomination committee of the board of directors also devotes special
attention to the need for greater equality between women and men. The recommendations of the nomination committee are to be reported in the
notice of the annual general meeting and at the annual general meeting.

     At the extraordinary meeting of the shareholders on November 4, 2002, it was decided that the Company�s nomination committee should be
comprised of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman. As a result, the current nomination committee members are Tapio Hintikka and Carl Bennet.

The Compensation Committee

     The TeliaSonera board of directors has appointed a compensation committee, which considers certain matters relating to compensation and
submits recommendations to the board of directors. In particular, the committee is responsible for matters that affect remuneration paid to the
President and Chief Executive Officer and certain senior managers. Its responsibilities also include incentive programs that target a broader
group of employees within the TeliaSonera group. The current members of the compensation committee are Tapio Hintikka, Carl Bennet, Ingvar
Carlsson, Roger Talermo and Tom von Weymarn.

6.D Employees

     The merger of Telia and Sonera resulted in a substantial increase in the Company�s employees. As of December 31, 2002, the TeliaSonera
group had 29,173 employees as compared to 17,149 as of December 31, 2001. Due to ongoing streamlining efforts the number of employees in
Sweden decreased by 696 in 2002.
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Outside Sweden, the number of employees increased by 12,720 in 2002. When adjusted for operations acquired and divested, the number of
employees decreased by 889 in 2002, of which 482 employees were located in Sweden.

     The table below lists the number of employees by business area based on our historical organizational structure prior to January 1, 2003:

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Mobile 4,305 4,813 4,700
Networks 7,268 7,910 8,319
Internet Services 1,376 1,369 1,132
International Carrier 736 777 611
Holding 1,425 1,576 14,281
Other Group-wide 798 704 825
Sonera 7,639 NA NA
Baltic Entities 5,626 NA NA

Total 29,173 17,149 29,868

     The table below lists the number of employees by reporting unit as if our current organizational structure were in effect at the end of 2002:

As of
December 31,

2002(1)

TeliaSonera Sweden 11,030
TeliaSonera Finland 6,235
TeliaSonera Norway, Denmark and Baltic countries

Norway 734
Denmark 1,105
The Baltic countries 5,691

Telia Sonera International
Eurasia 879
Russia 1
Turkey 3
International Carrier 914

TeliaSonera Holding 1,641
Corporate 227

Total 28,460

(1) Excluding Com Hem and Telia Mobile Finland.
Sweden. The TeliaSonera group is a member of ALMEGA, the Swedish employer association of the IT Trade & Industry. There are three

Swedish trade unions at the TeliaSonera group level, namely Seko, Sif-Tele and Akademikerna i Telia. Approximately 70 percent of
TeliaSonera group�s Swedish employees were trade union members as of January 1, 2003. In addition to the Swedish Co-determination at Work
Act, there is a TeliaSonera group agreement with the trade unions regarding active union participation, negotiating procedure and working
environment. According to the Swedish Act on Board Representation for Private Sector Employees, the unions are entitled to appoint members
of TeliaSonera�s board of directors. There are currently two board members from Sif-Tele and one from Seko on TeliaSonera�s board of directors.
TeliaSonera considers its relations with its employees and the trade unions to be good.
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     As the telecommunications and data communications markets in Sweden have become increasingly competitive, adjustment and adaptation to
this competitive environment has involved considerable changes for the personnel in Sweden. From 1990 to 2002, we reduced our labor force in
Sweden by more than 70 percent, from approximately 49,000 employees to 12,669 employees as of December 31, 2002. Between 1996 and
1998, under the Telia Redeployment Concept Project, we coordinated an in-depth group-wide skills redeployment campaign involving
approximately 6,500 employees. The project resulted in the redeployment of approximately 2,800 people while 3,700 chose to leave the
company. In total, we invested approximately SEK 5,200 million in this project from 1996 through 1999.

114

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 168



Table of Contents

     In Sweden, we have entered into a new redeployment agreement with the trade unions effective as of April 1, 2002, in order to continue to
develop its human resources to keep TeliaSonera competitive. Our strategy is to create favorable conditions for skills development,
redeployment and increased employee mobility.

Finland. As of May 31, 2003, approximately 56 percent of our employees in Finland were members of trade unions, with the majority of
unionized workers belonging to the Finnish Telecommunications Union. All employees in Finland, with the exception of some top officers, are
covered by one collective bargaining agreement that is valid until February 15, 2005. We consider our relations with our employees and the
trade unions in Finland to be good.

     Between 1991 and 1994, Sonera carried out a major reorganization of its workforce, which resulted in a 32 percent reduction in the average
number of employees, from 10,174 in 1991 to 6,930 in 1994. The reorganization was driven by a number of factors, including the opening of the
Finnish telecommunications market to competition, the digitalization of the network, which lessened the need for construction and maintenance
staff, and a severe economic recession in Finland from 1991 to 1993. Since 1994, the average number of persons that Sonera employed rose
gradually, reaching 8,169 for the year ended December 31, 2002.

6.E Share Ownership

     Please see �Item 6.A Directors and Senior Management� and �Item 6.B Compensation.�

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

7.A Major Shareholders

     As of April 30, 2003, TeliaSonera�s issued and outstanding share capital was SEK 14,960,742,620.80 consisting of 4,675,232,069 TeliaSonera
shares with a par value of SEK 3.20 each. The shares are registered with the Swedish Central Securities Depository & Clearing Organization
(VPC).

     Each share of TeliaSonera represents one vote at the general meeting of the shareholders and thus no shareholder has different voting rights
than what such shareholder�s respective shareholding represents.

     According to information provided by Citigroup, there were 1,431,220 ADSs outstanding as of May 31, 2003, and 41 registered holders of
such ADSs. Each ADS represents five TeliaSonera shares. A significant number of the ADSs are held of record by brokers and other nominees.
Based on available information from Citigroup, the number of beneficial owners of ADSs as of May 31, 2003, was approximately 4,500.

     The calculation of percentages in the �Percentage of outstanding shares� column in the table below is based upon the number of TeliaSonera
shares issued and outstanding on April 30, 2003, plus TeliaSonera shares subject to options held by the respective persons or entities on
March 31, 2003, and exercisable within 60 days of that date. The following table sets forth the shareholders known by TeliaSonera to hold five
percent or more of the voting rights of TeliaSonera as of April 30, 2003, and their respective holdings:

Percent of
Number of outstanding

Shareholder Shares/Votes shares

(%)
Swedish State(1) 2,118,278,261 45.3
Finnish State(2) 891,800,230 19.1
Other shareholders 1,665,153,578 35.6

Total 4,675,232,069 100.0
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(1) The business address and telephone number of the Swedish State is c/o The Swedish Ministry of Industry, Employment and
Communications, Jacobsgatan 26, SE-103 33 Stockholm, Sweden, +46-8-4051000.

(2) The business address and telephone number of the Finnish State is c/o The Finnish Ministry of Transport and Communications,
Eteläesplanadi 16-18, FIN-00131 Helsinki, Finland, +358-9-16002.
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     During the past three years, the only shareholders we have known to hold five percent or more of our voting securities have been the Swedish
State and, following the merger of Telia and Sonera, the Finnish State. See �Item 4.A History and Developments of the Company.�

Interest of TeliaSonera�s Management

     As of May 26, 2003, members and deputy members of TeliaSonera�s board of directors and members of the TeliaSonera executive
management and group vice presidents in aggregate held 98,782 shares of TeliaSonera, including shares of TeliaSonera held by affiliated
persons of such members, which represented an insignificant percentage of the outstanding shares of TeliaSonera. See �Item 6. Directors, Senior
Management and Employees.�

7.B Related Party Transactions

     Described below are certain transactions between us and our affiliates and other related parties since the beginning of 2000. See also Note 9
to our consolidated financial statements.

The Swedish State and the Finnish State

     The Swedish State currently owns 45.3 percent and the Finnish State 19.1 percent of the shares in TeliaSonera AB. Our services and products
are offered to the Swedish and Finnish State, their agencies, and state-owned companies in competition with other operators and on commercial
terms. Certain state-owned companies run businesses that compete with us. Likewise, we buy services from state-owned companies at market
prices and on otherwise commercial terms. Neither the Swedish State, the Finnish State, their agencies, or state-owned companies represent a
significant share of our net sales or income.

     The Swedish telecommunications market is governed by the Swedish Telecommunications Act and the Swedish Telecommunications
Regulation as well as by conditions for permits issued by the NPTA. According to the conditions for those permits, we must maintain, without
special compensation, a certain level of service for public phones in sparsely populated regions. Our costs for operating these public phones
were SEK 10 million in 2002 and SEK 15 million for each of 2001 and 2000. According to Swedish telecommunications regulations, operators
that have significant influence on the overall Swedish market for services and that have to be registered with the NPTA are required to pay a fee
to finance measures to prevent serious threats and disruptions to telecommunications services during peacetime. To date, we have been the only
operator with a significant influence as described by law. The required fee was SEK 50 million in 2002 and SEK 100 million for each of 2001
and 2000. In addition, we, in accordance with the Telecommunications Act and the Radio Communications Act and, effective 2001, the Radio
and Telecommunications Terminal Equipment Act, pay annual fees to the NPTA to fund its activities, as do other operators subject to
registration with the NPTA. We paid fees of SEK 64 million, SEK 59 million and SEK 56 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

     The Finnish telecommunications market is governed mainly by the Finnish Communications Market Act and the Finnish Act on the
Protection of Privacy and Data Security in Telecommunications as well as by regulations, decisions and technical directions in accordance with
these acts. In 2002, we paid �2.5 million for the use of radio frequencies and �1.3 million for the use of numbers to the FICORA.

Unisource N.V./AUCS

     We previously held an equal interest in Unisource N.V. together with Swisscom and KPN. All operations in Unisource, with the exception of
AUCS and its subsidiaries, were sold or shut down in 1999 and Unisource was dissolved on July 1, 2000. In May 2003, we and the other
shareholders of AUCS approved a liquidation plan for the AUCS group of companies.

     Unisource and its joint owners, including us, signed a three-year management agreement with Infonet Services Corp. in 1999 on the
operations in AUCS. The agreement provides for the sale of a large part of AUCS�s operations to Infonet. The management agreement was
supplemented in December 2002 by a termination agreement, valid until the first quarter of 2004. Under the terms of various contracts,
Unisource is required to provide services to Infonet. Unisource and its joint owners are also liable for any losses in AUCS and are required to
pay Infonet a bonus if the losses are lower than a specified level. Under these agreements, our minimum share of Unisource�s expenses is SEK
1,348 million. We received compensation for these undertakings through the acquisition of shares in Infonet at a price less than market value
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shortly prior to Infonet�s listing on the New York Stock Exchange. Based on the selling price at the time of Infonet�s listing, the value of the
Infonet shares was SEK 2,758 million. We paid SEK 110 million for the acquisition of the Infonet shares. The future profit on this transaction,
that is, the difference between the market value of the shares after deducting the purchase price (SEK 2,648 million) and the obligations that we
have undertaken (SEK 1,348 million), will be recorded as share of earnings in AUCS over the term of the management agreement and other
agreements.

     As of December 31, 2002, we had interest-bearing claims against AUCS of SEK 158 million. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, we sold services to
AUCS representing a value of SEK 27 million, SEK 44 million and SEK 51 million, respectively.

Infonet Services Corp.

     As described above, we hold a participating interest in Infonet. In 2002, 2001 and 2000, we sold services and products to Infonet totaling
SEK 41 million, SEK 29 million and SEK 38 million, respectively, and purchased services and products totaling SEK 260 million, SEK
320 million and SEK 264 million, respectively. In July 2002, Telia was named as one of several defendants in a securities law class action suit
relating to the initial public offering of Infonet. The suit alleges, among other things, that the prospectus used in connection with Infonet�s initial
public offering contained material misstatements or omission relating to the AUCS business, a part of which was transferred by Unisource, a
company in which we had a minority interest, to Infonet in 1999. See �Item 8.A.7 � Legal and Regulatory Proceedings� for a further discussion of
this legal proceeding.

Comsource/Eircom

     Until April 2002, we held a 40 percent interest in Comsource. In April 2002, Comsource partly redeemed the shares held by us and paid
�87.0 million to us, of which �84.4 was used to satisfy outstanding loans made by Comsource in favor of us. Shortly thereafter, we sold our interest
in Comsource to KPN, which held the remaining 60 percent interest in Comsource, for �13.5 million in cash. Comsource owned a 35 percent
interest in Eircom plc, the leading Irish fixed-line telecommunications operator, which it divested in November 2001 in connection with a cash
tender offer made by Valentia Telecommunications for all outstanding shares in Eircom. In addition to having net interest-bearing debt
obligations to Comsource in the principal amount of �84.4 million as of March 31, 2002, we sold services to Eircom worth SEK 16 million in
2000. We did not sell any services to Eircom in 2001 and 2002.

     See �Item 5.A Operating Results � Recent Acquisitions, Investments and Divestitures� for a discussion of our divestment of its interest in
Eircom.

Telefos AB

     We own 49 percent of the shares of Telefos, which was formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of Telia. As of December 31, 2002, we had
interest-bearing claims against the Telefos Group of SEK 1,553 million and had signed a limited supplementary guarantee of SEK 150 million
for the credit-insured pension commitments of the Telefos Group. These interest-bearing obligations of the Telefos Group are secured by
Telefos�s shareholdings in its various subsidiaries as well as guarantees from Telefos�s subsidiaries. In addition, Telefos has pledged all its claims
of payment against various companies within the TeliaSonera group to us.

     In June 2001, we sold a 51 percent interest in Telefos to Industri Kapital 2000 Ltd for a purchase price of SEK 205.2 million. In 2001,
following our sale of the 51 percent interest in Telefos, we sold products and services totaling SEK 279 million to the Telefos Group and bought
services from the Telefos Group totaling SEK 1,210 million. In 2002, we sold services and products to the Telefos Group worth SEK
324 million and bought services and products from the Telefos Group totaling SEK 3,534 million. Some of the services purchased by us from
the Telefos Group relate to the construction of capital assets.

Eniro AB

     Until November 2000, Eniro was a wholly owned subsidiary of Telia. In 2000 and 2001, we completely divested our shareholding in Eniro.
During the same period, we transferred to Eniro all of our shareholdings in our directory businesses. In 2000, we also granted Eniro an option to
purchase shares held by us in the Polish directory company Panorama Polska should we become the sole shareholder of Panorama Polska.
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After we acquired a 100 percent interest in Panorama Polska in May 2001, we promptly thereafter sold our Panorama Polska shares to Eniro
under the terms of the option.

     In addition, in accordance with our statutory obligation to provide directories containing basic subscriber information to all fixed telephony in
Sweden, we appointed Eniro as the official publisher of all such information, which includes the directories Vita Sidorna and Rosa Sidorna.
Since July 1, 2000, Eniro receives a fixed payment for these services in the amount of SEK 20 million per year.

     See �Item 5.A Operating Results � Recent Acquisitions, Investments and Divestitures� for a discussion of our divestment of Eniro.

Svenska UMTS-nät AB

     On March 15, 2001, we entered into a joint venture with Tele2 to develop the UMTS license awarded to Tele2. The joint venture will operate
through a jointly owned Swedish limited liability company, Svenska UMTS-nät, of which each party owns 50 percent of the shares. We and
Tele2 will, on a pro rata basis, finance the construction of the UMTS infrastructure through capital contributions and the issuance of guarantees
that are necessary in order for Svenska UMTS-nät to obtain third party financing to build a UMTS network in accordance with the license
conditions. As of December 31, 2002, we had made an aggregate capital contribution of SEK 501 million to Svenska UMTS-nät.

     On September 19, 2002, Svenska UMTS-nät signed a SEK 11 billion term loan and revolving credit facility for the construction of its UMTS
network infrastructure in Sweden. We and Tele2 have each severally but not jointly guaranteed up to a maximum of SEK 5.5 billion of the
principal amount borrowed by Svenska UMTS-nät under the credit facility and have pledged their shares in Svenska UMTS-nät as security for
such amount. The indebtedness under the credit facility may become due on an accelerated basis, under certain circumstances, including if either
we or Tele2 ceases to hold, directly or indirectly, 50 percent of Svenska UMTS-nät, unless the lenders provide their advance consent.

     We are not contractually required to provide any further capital contributions to or guarantees in favor of Svenska UMTS-nät.

INGROUP Sweden AB

     We hold an indirect 37 percent participating interest in INGROUP Sweden AB (IN), which was formerly a wholly owned subsidiary of Telia.
In 2002 and 2001, we sold services and products to IN totaling SEK 46 million and SEK 67 million, respectively, and in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
we bought services and products from IN totaling SEK 267 million, SEK 245 million and SEK 113 million, respectively.

Xfera Móviles S.A.

     We have entered into services agreement with Xfera to provide a variety of services, including managerial and administrative services,
financial, accounting and information management and planning services, personnel services, marketing services, and technical services in
connection with its experience in building and managing UMTS networks. One such service agreement specifically includes Sonera�s
contribution to the design and development of Xfera�s radio network planning for Xfera�s UMTS system. Under the terms of the service
agreements, Sonera�s personnel remain employees of Sonera, and Sonera remains responsible for directing their activities.

Turkcell Iletisim Hizmetleri A.S.

     As of December 31, 2002, we had outstanding guarantees to various lenders with respect to �7 million in debt incurred by Turkcell in
connection with the purchase of network equipment.

Lattelekom SIA

     Tilts Communications A/S, our wholly owned subsidiary for which the only significant asset is a 49 percent equity interest in the Latvian
telecommunications provider Lattelekom, provides Lattelekom management services, employee training and assistance in the procurement of
equipment and supplies for which we receive fees. Tilts has also agreed to improve Lattelekom�s network and infrastructure, and we have
provided performance guarantees to Lattelekom in respect of Tilts�s foregoing obligations.
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Other Relationships

     In addition, we sell and buy services and products to a limited extent to and from other associated companies. The transactions between us
and these associated companies, as well as the transactions mentioned above, are based on commercial terms, unless otherwise indicated.

7.C Interests of Experts and Counsel

     Not applicable.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

8.A Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information

8.A.1 See Item 18 for our audited consolidated financial statements.

8.A.2 See Item 18 for our audited consolidated financial statements, which cover the last three financial years.

8.A.3 See page F-3 for the audit report of our accountants entitled �Report of Independent Accountants.�

8.A.4 Not applicable.

8.A.5 Not applicable.

8.A.6 See Note 6 to our consolidated financial statements included in Item 18 of this Form 20-F for the amount of our export sales.

8.A.7 Legal and Regulatory Proceedings

     We are involved in a number of legal proceedings in the ordinary course of our business. These proceedings primarily involve claims arising
out of commercial law issues and regulatory matters. We are also involved in administrative proceedings relating principally to competition law
and consumer protection issues. Except for the proceedings described below, we or our subsidiaries are not involved in any legal, arbitration or
regulatory proceedings which management believes could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

     The following is a brief summary of certain regulatory proceedings to which we or one of our subsidiaries is a party:

� In November 1998, Telia Finland filed a complaint with the FICORA relating to the termination charges Sonera applied on calls
terminating in its mobile network. Sonera denied the allegations in responses submitted to the FICORA. In April 2001, the
FICORA issued a decision in which it stated that the interconnection fees Sonera charged for calls terminating on its domestic
mobile network are not reasonable in relation to the actual costs of providing such services and ordered Sonera to revise its
interconnection fees. Sonera appealed the FICORA�s decision to the Helsinki Administrative Court in May 2001. In September
2002, the Helsinki Administrative Court affirmed the decision of the FICORA. Sonera appealed the decision of the Helsinki
Administrative Court to the Supreme Administrative Court of Finland. The decision of the FICORA and the Helsinki
Administrative Court are not binding on Sonera until the Supreme Administrative Court has issued a final decision.

� In September 1999, MTV 3-Tele Oy filed a complaint against Sonera with the FCA claiming that the fees Sonera charged for
commercial SMS services were excessive. In May 2000, in a related action, Televerkko Oy filed a complaint with the FCA
against Sonera claiming that it is abusing its dominant market position in the market for mobile services in connection with the
pricing of its SMS services to content providers. Because of these complaints, the FCA is investigating the pricing of Sonera�s
SMS services as well as the actual costs it incurs to provide SMS services to content providers. According to a preliminary
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competition analysis carried out by the FCA, Sonera has a dominant market position in the market for SMS based content services
provided in its own network. However, these complaints are still pending. We are not currently in a position to assess when the
proceedings will be brought to a conclusion or what the final outcome of the proceedings will be.

� During 1999, the European Commission initiated an investigation of Telia�s actions in the market for group high speed Internet
access. The investigation was initiated because of complaints from Bredbandsbolaget, a Swedish provider of broadband services.
The investigation is ongoing and our position is that we did not undertake any prohibited measures with respect to the matter.

� In 2000, Tele2 filed a claim with the NPTA claiming that Telia should reimburse Tele2 for all mobile traffic transferred by Telia
to Tele2�s mobile network. The NPTA upheld such claim and further ruled that Telia is also entitled to be reimbursed by Tele2 and
the other Swedish operators who have transferred mobile traffic onto Telia�s network. After prevailing in the lower administrative
court in this matter, Tele2 brought an action in the Swedish civil courts seeking SEK 514 million, excluding VAT, in
reimbursement. Telia has appealed the decision of the NPTA and the case is currently under review by the Swedish
Administrative Court of Appeal. A decision is expected in the summer of 2003. Tele2�s civil action in this matter has been stayed
pending the decision of the Swedish Administrative Court of Appeal. Telia has paid to Tele2 amounts aggregating SEK
224 million for the mobile traffic transfers at issue. Should the ruling of the NPTA stand, Telia would be required to reimburse
Tele2 for the full amounts of its claim as well as for other such traffic transferred by Telia onto the networks of other mobile
operators in Sweden. Telia would in turn be entitled to claim corresponding reimbursements from other operators. However, the
reimbursement would take place only after we have first paid Tele2, resulting in us possibly facing a credit risk of up to SEK
200 million. In related proceedings, Tele2 and Vodafone have filed claims regarding charges for termination of calls on their
respective mobile networks originated in Telia�s networks. Tele2 and Vodafone claim that the termination charges should be
approximately SEK 1.40 per minute, while we believe that the charges should be no more than SEK 0.88 per minute. These
claims are still pending.

� During the second half of 2001, a number of operators filed complaints against Telia with the Swedish Competition Authority and
the Swedish Competition Authority initiated an investigation regarding Telia�s pricing of ADSL services. The complaints suggest
that the difference between Telia�s wholesale prices and retail prices is too low to effectively enable competition in the retail
market. Our position is that we have not engaged in any prohibited pricing activities. A decision from the Swedish Competition
Authority is expected in the summer of 2003.

� In May 2002, Sonera received a request for information from the FCA dealing with Sonera�s mobile termination fees and their
pricing principles. Sonera responded to the request in June 2002. In addition, Sonera has responded to supplementary requests for
information made by FCA in November 2002.

� In October 2002, a leading Finnish newspaper Helsingin Sanomat published an article claiming that Sonera�s corporate security
had unlawfully used identification information relating to telecommunications. Sonera requested the National Bureau of
Investigation to investigate the matter. Sonera received a request for information concerning the allegations, to which Sonera
responded. FICORA subsequently published its findings stating that there was a reason to believe that identification information
has been unlawfully used. FICORA also requested Sonera to renew its procedures concerning the processing of identification
information. A police investigation concerning the matter is still ongoing. Some current officers and employees, including a
former Chief Executive Officer of Sonera, are suspected of gross violation of privacy in telecommunications under Finnish law.
Sonera, as a company, is not an official party to the investigation. Management is currently not in a position to assess when the
proceedings will be brought to a conclusion and what the outcome of the proceedings will be.

� In October 2002, the FCA issued a request for information concerning Sonera�s broadband pricing. According to the request, Elisa
has required the FCA to investigate whether Sonera Carrier Networks Oy has violated Finnish competition law in connection with
its wholesale broadband services and the pricing thereof. The FCA is investigating whether Sonera misused its dominant
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market position in the ADSL wholesale market or otherwise violated Finnish competition law when providing its wholesale
ADSL services to other operators.

� In January 2003, the NPT issued an advance notification to NetCom regarding its mobile termination prices. The NPT claims that
NetCom has significant market power on the overall national market for interconnection in Norway. According to Norwegian law,
an operator designated as having significant market power will be required to have cost-oriented termination rates. NetCom
objected to the advance notification. In May 2003, the NPT issued a formal decision in which NetCom was designated as an
operator with significant market power in the Norwegian market for interconnection. NetCom has appealed the decision. Should
the decision of the NPT stand, mobile termination prices charged by NetCom and consequently the income of NetCom may be
significantly affected.

     The following is a brief summary of certain legal proceedings to which we or one of our subsidiaries is a party:

� In August 2000, Tilts, Sonera�s wholly owned Danish subsidiary, commenced arbitration proceedings against the Republic of
Latvia. The arbitration proceeding relates to an agreement signed in 1994 between the Republic of Latvia, Tilts and Lattelekom.
According to this agreement, the Latvian fixed line operator, Lattelekom, of which Tilts owns 49 percent and the Republic of
Latvia owns 51 percent, has exclusive rights to provide basic fixed line telecommunications services in Latvia until December 31,
2013. However, contrary to the agreement, the Republic of Latvia has made a commitment to the World Trade Organization and
terminated Lattelekom�s exclusive rights as of January 1, 2003. Tilts claims compensation in the aggregate of �152 million from the
Republic of Latvia for losses suffered as a consequence of this breach and other breaches to the agreement. The Republic of
Latvia has asserted counterclaims in the aggregate of �1 billion against Tilts alleging, among other things, that Tilts breached its
contractual obligations by failing to digitalize and otherwise improve Lattelekom�s network in accordance with its commitments.
In September 2001, Sonera was joined by the arbitration tribunal in the proceeding, together with Lattelekom and Cable &
Wireless Plc. Sonera and Cable & Wireless have guaranteed the performance by Tilts of its obligations under its agreement with
the Republic of Latvia. Sonera has also made an indemnification commitment to Cable & Wireless when acquiring its shares in
Tilts in 1998. In May 2002, the parties filed their main claims with the arbitral tribunal and the claims will be re-presented during
the summer of 2003. A decision by the tribunal is not expected until the summer of 2004 at the earliest. We are currently not in a
position to predict with any certainty the likely outcome of these arbitration proceedings.

� In July 2002, Telia was named as one of several defendants in a securities law class action suit relating to the initial public
offering of Infonet, in which Telia holds a 20 percent interest. The suit alleges, among other things, that the prospectus used in
connection with Infonet�s initial public offering contained material misstatements or omissions relating to its AUCS business, a
part of which was transferred by Unisource, a company in which Telia had a minority interest, to Infonet in 1999. The complaint
seeks, among other things, compensatory damages and/or rescission, requesting, in particular, that the selling shareholders,
including Telia, be required to disgorge profits allegedly gained through the sale of Infonet common stock in the offering. The
sale resulted in aggregate proceeds to the selling shareholders of over $400 million, including total proceeds of $53.8 million to
Telia as a selling shareholder. We deny the allegations contained in the suit and intend to vigorously contest the suit.

� In August 2002, Radiolinja initiated an arbitration proceeding against Telia Mobile�s branch in Finland, claiming damages for an
alleged breach of contract on the part of Telia Mobile with regards to the service operator agreement between Radiolinja and Telia
Mobile. The proceeding is still in the early stages. We deny the claims of Radiolinja and intend to vigorously contest such claims.

� In November 2002, the bankruptcy estate of Broadband filed a lawsuit in a district court in Norway seeking compensation of
NOK 332 million plus interest against Sonera and Enitel. The plaintiff alleges that Sonera and Enitel failed to meet certain
financial commitments undertaken by them in connection with their UMTS investments through Broadband. In particular, the
plaintiff claims that Sonera and Enitel had a contractual obligation to supply Broadband with capital to meet its
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obligations. In August 2001, Broadband was declared bankrupt as a result of not having sufficient capital to meet its undertakings.
The alleged obligation is vigorously denied by Sonera and Enitel. Enitel was declared bankrupt in August 2001. Sonera holds a
50 percent interest in Broadband. The hearing of the case is expected to take place at the end of 2003.

� We are also involved in disputes relating to our divested or partially divested businesses. One of our majority owned subsidiaries
is currently involved in litigation with one of the former shareholders of Tess relating to such shareholders� disposal of its
investment in Tess as well as certain subscription rights in Tess. The litigation, which was initiated in 1998, is still in the
procedural stage. In addition, Industri Kapital, which purchased a 51 percent interest in Telefos from us in 2001, has notified us
that it is reserving the right to make certain claims in the aggregate amount of approximately SEK 500 million under the Telefos
share purchase agreement. This aggregate amount of the potential claims by Industri Kapital regarding Telefos is exclusive of any
set-offs, counterclaims or other defenses available. We believe that Industri Kapital�s claims are unfounded and intend to
vigorously defend against such claims.

     In addition to the legal and regulatory proceedings described above, our associated company, Turkcell, is presently subject to numerous legal
and regulatory proceedings relating to, among other things, the following:

� a class action lawsuit filed against Turkcell in the United States concerning the prospectus used in connection with Turkcell�s
initial public offering;

� the calculation of payments owed by Turkcell to the Turkish Treasury and the Ministry of Transportation with respect to Turkcell�s
ongoing license fees;

� certain payments by Turkcell relating to the VAT on its upfront license fee to the Turkish Tax Office;

� license fees on value-added services and other charges claimed by the Turkish Treasury and the Ministry of Transportation against
Turkcell;

� license fees on interconnection revenues claimed by the Turkish Treasury, the Ministry of Transportation and the
Telecommunications Authority against Turkcell;

� fees charged between Turk Telekom and Turkcell for access to Turk Telekom�s transmission lines;

� interconnection fees paid by Turk Telekom to Turkcell;

� demands relating to national roaming;

� certain allegedly anticompetitive activities of Turkcell relating to its business dealings with KVK, the primary distributor of
Ericsson GSM handsets in Turkey;

� the collection of frequency usage fees from pre-paid customers on behalf of the Telecommunications Authority;

� the determination of Turkcell�s gross revenue calculation base; and

� the base unit price of calls originating from fixed lines and terminating on Turkcell�s networks.
     There can be no assurance that these or other proceedings will be determined in favor of Turkcell. Turkcell�s failure to successfully defend
itself against any such proceedings could have a material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, results of operations, liquidity and
prospects.

8.A.8 Dividend Policy

     The annual general meeting of shareholders of TeliaSonera approved a dividend payment of SEK 0.40 per TeliaSonera share, totaling SEK
1,870 million, with respect to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.
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     At an annual general meeting of shareholders of TeliaSonera, shareholders may declare dividends upon the recommendation of the
TeliaSonera board of directors. The amount of dividends may not exceed the amount proposed or approved by the TeliaSonera board of directors
and is limited by Swedish law.

     According to Swedish law, shareholders� equity is divided into funds available for distribution, which are called non-restricted funds, and
funds not available for distribution, which are called restricted funds. TeliaSonera�s shareholders can receive as a distribution only the
non-restricted funds of the parent company or the group, whichever is lower. Restricted equity is made up of the share capital, the share
premium reserve and the statutory or legal reserve. TeliaSonera�s non-restricted equity in the consolidated accounts includes only that part of a
subsidiary�s non-restricted equity that can be assigned to the parent company without having to write down the value of the shares in the
subsidiary.

     TeliaSonera records the equity component of untaxed reserves on its balance sheet as restricted equity. Earnings in associated companies that
have not been distributed are reported in TeliaSonera�s equity as an equity reserve in restricted reserves. The equity effect of reporting financial
instruments at fair value is attributed to a fair value reserve in restricted reserves. Likewise, the difference in equity effect between TeliaSonera�s
principles for accounting for pensions and relevant Swedish standards is reported in restricted reserves.

     According to our dividend policy, the board of directors are required to take into consideration the outlook for operating cash flow
generation, capital expenditure requirements, earnings growth and the amount of funds available for distribution when proposing the level of
dividend to the annual general meeting of shareholders. Our intention is to increase the dividend annually.

     Although we currently intend to pay annual dividends on our shares, we cannot assure you that dividends will be paid or of the amount of any
dividends. Future dividends will depend on a number of factors, including:

� the then-existing general business conditions;

� current and expected future financial performance;

� cash provided by operating activities;

� funding and investment requirements;

� applicable restrictions on the payment of dividends under Swedish law; and

� other factors that our board of directors considers to be relevant.
     As of December 31, 2002, the total non-restricted funds of TeliaSonera AB amounted to SEK 21,751 million and, for TeliaSonera on a
consolidated basis, SEK 17,129 million.

     The following table sets forth the annual dividends paid per share with respect to each of the fiscal years indicated.

Dividend paid per
Year TeliaSonera share

SEK $ (1)
1998 0.49 0.06
1999 0.52 0.06
2000 0.50 0.05
2001 0.20 0.02
2002 0.40 0.05

(1) Dividend amounts have been translated into U.S. dollars at the Noon Buying Rate for the relevant dividend payment date.
     Because we will pay dividends in Swedish kronor, exchange rate fluctuations will affect the U.S. dollar amounts received as dividends by
holders of our ADSs.
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8.B Significant Changes

     No significant changes have occurred since the date of our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report. See �Item 5.D
Trend Information.�

ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING

9.A Offer and Listing Details

     The principal trading market for TeliaSonera�s shares is the Stockholm Exchange. The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the
reported high and low market quotations for our shares on the Stockholm Exchange.

Price Per Share

Low High

(in Swedish
kronor)

2000 (beginning June 13, 2000) 49.60 94.00
2001 36.00 71.00
2002 21.10 48.60
2001
First Quarter 45.50 64.50
Second Quarter 49.50 71.00
Third Quarter 36.00 57.00
Fourth Quarter 44.10 54.00
2002(1)
First Quarter 33.00 48.60
Second Quarter 21.20 36.80
Third Quarter 21.10 32.20
Fourth Quarter 24.00 36.20
December 2002 34.30 36.20
2003
First Quarter 23.70 34.90
January 30.10 34.90
February 25.90 34.50
March 23.70 29.90
Second Quarter (through June 25) 24.00 33.40
April 24.00 29.60
May 27.80 32.80
June (through June 25) 30.80 33.40

(1) Prior to December 9, 2002, TeliaSonera traded under the name Telia AB under the symbol �TLIA.� Upon completion of the merger of
Telia and Sonera on December 9, 2003, Telia�s Stockholm Exchange symbol was changed to �TLSN.�

     Since December 9, 2002, TeliaSonera�s shares have been traded in Finland on the Helsinki Exchanges under the symbol �TLS� and in the
United States on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol �TLSN� in the form of ADSs, which are evidenced by ADRs. Each TeliaSonera
ADS represents five TeliaSonera shares. The depositary for the TeliaSonera ADSs is Citibank, N.A.

     The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported high and low market quotations for our shares on the Helsinki Exchanges.
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Price Per Share

Low High

(�)
2002 (from December 9) 3.30 4.15
2003
First Quarter 2.57 3.80
January 3.27 3.80
February 2.84 3.78
March 2.57 3.26
Second Quarter (through June 25) 2.60 3.68
April 2.60 3.25
May 3.05 3.59
June (through June 25) 3.33 3.68

     The table below sets forth, for the periods indicated, the reported high and low closing sales prices for the TeliaSonera ADSs on the Nasdaq
National Market.

Low High

(U.S. dollars
per ADS)

2002 (from December 9) 17.35 18.51
2003
First Quarter 14.05 20.00
January 17.60 20.00
February 15.24 19.76
March 14.05 17.00
Second Quarter (through June 25) 14.80 21.49
April 14.80 17.50
May 17.25 20.25
June (through June 25) 19.67 21.49

9.B Plan of Distribution

     Not applicable.

9.C Markets

     The principal trading markets for the shares are the Stockholm Exchange and the Helsinki Exchanges, in the form of shares, and the Nasdaq
National Market, in the form of ADSs.

9.D Selling Shareholders

     Not applicable.

9.E Dilution

     Not applicable.
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9.F Expenses of the Issue

     Not applicable.

ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

10.A Share Capital

     Not applicable.
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10.B Memorandum and Articles of Association

Organization and Register

     TeliaSonera is a public limited company organized under the laws of Sweden. TeliaSonera is registered in the Swedish Trade and Industry
Register kept by the Companies Department of the Swedish Patent and Registration Office, under the company registration number
556103-4249.

Line of Business

     Pursuant to Section 3 of TeliaSonera�s articles of association, TeliaSonera�s corporate purpose is to offer, directly and indirectly, in a broad
sense, telecommunications services and thereto related information services, as well as to conduct other activities which are compatible with
such services.

Corporate Governance

     TeliaSonera�s articles of association do not stipulate anything regarding: (1) a director�s power to vote on a proposal, arrangement or contract
in which the director is materially interested; (2) borrowing powers exercisable by the directors; (3) retirement or non-retirement of directors;
and (d) shareholding requirements for a director�s qualifications.

     Pursuant to TeliaSonera�s articles of association, the general meeting of shareholders decides on the amount of compensation for the members
of the board of directors and, as a result, the directors do not have the power to vote regarding their own compensation.

     Matters pertaining to corporate governance are mainly regulated under the Swedish Companies Act. Pursuant to the Companies Act,
members of our board of directors are prohibited from participating in the preparation or making of decisions in which they have a personal
interest. This prohibition includes the participation in the negotiation or performance of contracts between TeliaSonera and a third party if such
member of the board of directors would receive a material benefit in conflict with our interests. In addition, pursuant to the Companies Act the
company is prevented from lending money to shareholders, board members or the president. Consequently there are no borrowing powers
exercisable by the directors.

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions

     Dividends are declared and paid annually on the basis of income and retained earnings as of the end of the preceding year. For a description
of TeliaSonera�s dividend policy and the dividend rights attached to the shares, see �Item 8.A Consolidated Statement and Other Financial
Information.�

     Each share confers the right of one vote at the general meetings of the shareholders. Each of the shares also confers an equal right to share in
TeliaSonera�s profits.

     In connection with future offerings of TeliaSonera shares for cash, the existing shareholders have a pre-emptive right to subscribe for shares
offered in proportion to the amount of shares in their possession. However, a general meeting of the shareholders may vote, by a majority of
two-thirds of the votes cast and two-thirds of the shares represented at the meeting, to waive this pre-emptive right.

     Pursuant to the Companies Act, preferential rights attached to certain shares or pre-emptive rights to the existing shareholders, which is not
conferred upon the shareholders by law, must be stated in the company�s articles of association. Our current articles of association do not confer
any such rights nor do they restrict the pre-emptive right described in the preceding paragraph.

     Amendments to the articles of association generally require a decision by the general meeting of the shareholders, supported by two-thirds of
the votes cast and two-thirds of the shares represented at such meeting. For certain changes to the articles of association, for example changes
creating pre-emptive or preferential rights, the decision has to be supported by all the shares represented at the general meeting of the
shareholders provided that such represented shares constitute nine-tenths of all the shares of the company. Similarly, decisions limiting voting
rights must be supported by two-thirds of the votes cast and nine-tenths of the shares represented at the general meeting of the shareholders.
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Possible Unavailability of Pre-Emptive Rights For U.S. Holders

     U.S. holders of TeliaSonera shares and ADSs may not be able to exercise any preemptive rights and preferential rights in respect of their
shares unless a registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is effective with respect to these rights or an exemption from
the registration requirements thereunder is available.

General Meeting of Shareholders

     Under the Companies Act, shareholders exercise their power to decide on corporate matters at the general meeting of the shareholders. At the
annual general meeting, financial statements, including the income statement, balance sheet and annual report and the consolidated income
statement and balance sheet, and the auditor�s report are presented to the shareholders for adoption. Also at the annual general meeting, the
shareholders decide any measure warranted by the profit or loss shown in the adopted balance sheet or consolidated balance sheet, discharge
members of the board of directors and the chief executive officer from liability, decide on the number of members of the board of directors and
their remuneration and elect members of the board of directors. When required, the number of auditors and deputy auditors is decided and they
are elected.

     Under our articles of association, a shareholder must give notice to TeliaSonera of his or her intention to attend a general meeting no later
than 4:00 p.m. on the day stated in the notice of the general meeting. This day must not be a Saturday, Sunday, Midsummer Eve, Christmas Eve,
New Year�s Eve or other public holiday and not fall earlier than the fifth working days before the general meeting. Under our articles of
association, a notice of an annual general meeting and a notice of any extraordinary general meeting at which resolutions to amend TeliaSonera�s
articles of association will be considered, shall be issued no earlier than six weeks and no later than four weeks prior to the meeting in question.
Notice of any other extraordinary general meeting shall be issued no earlier than six weeks and no later than two weeks prior to the meeting.
Notice of a general meeting shall be made in the form of an advertisement placed in the Swedish Official Gazette, the Swedish newspapers
Dagens Nyheter and Svenska Dagbladet or, if it is not possible to advertise in any of these publications, another Swedish daily newspaper with
daily national coverage.

     In order to have the right to attend a general meeting, a shareholder must be registered on the tenth day prior to the relevant general meeting
in the register of shareholders kept by VPC and must also notify TeliaSonera of their intention to attend the meeting in the manner stated in the
previous paragraph. At the general meeting, the shareholders may be accompanied at the meeting by at most two persons to assist them, but only
if the shareholder notifies TeliaSonera of the number of accompanying persons in the manner stated in the previous paragraph.

Voting

     Each shareholder is at the general meeting entitled to vote for the total number of shares he or she owns or represents. Each share is entitled
to one vote. A shareholder may attend and vote at the general meeting in person or by proxy. Proxies are not valid for a longer period than one
year from the date of issuance.

     Voting rights may not be exercised by a shareholder if such shareholder�s shares are registered in the name of a nominee, as is the case for
registered holders and beneficial owners of the ADSs. A registered holder or a beneficial owner of the ADSs, like other beneficial owners whose
shares are registered in the name of a nominee, may vote such shares provided that such holder or owner arranges to have his or her name
temporarily entered in the register of shareholders as of the record date of meeting, which must be on the tenth day prior to a general meeting.

     Pursuant to the Companies Act, most resolutions at a general meeting are passed by a simple majority of the votes cast with the chairman of
the meeting having the decisive vote (except in the situation of an election where a tie is decided by coin-toss or similar methods). Certain
resolutions require a higher rate of approval amongst the shareholders in order to be passed.

     Normally, resolutions to amend the articles of association will require two-thirds of the votes cast as well as two-thirds of the shares present
or represented at the meeting. However, under certain circumstances where such resolution limits shareholders� right to dividends or other asset
distribution, restricts the transferability of shares or alters the legal relationship between shares, unanimous support by the shareholders attending
the meeting, which has to constitute nine-tenths of all shares in the company, is required. In addition, under certain circumstances where such
resolution restricts the voting rights or requires the company to retain a larger amount
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of the net profit than otherwise required under the Companies Act or amends shareholders� rights in a liquidation or dissolution, approval by
shareholders representing two-thirds of the votes cast and nine-tenths of the shares present or represented at the meeting is required. Slightly
different supermajority requirements are applied in situations where the resolution described above will only adversely affect certain groups of
shareholders.

     In addition, the following resolutions will normally require a two-thirds majority of votes cast at the general meeting as well as two-thirds of
the shares present or represented at the meeting: (1) a resolution to issue, approve or authorize the issuance for cash of new shares or convertible
debt or debt instruments with the right to subscribe for new shares, if such issuance deviates from the preferential right for existing shareholders
under the Companies Act; (2) a resolution to redeem any or all of the outstanding share capital of the company; and (3) a resolution approving
the merger of the company with another entity. A resolution described in (2) above, may under certain circumstances require the unanimous
approval of the shareholders present at the meeting, with nine-tenths of all outstanding shares present or represented at the meeting.

Disclosure of Shareholder Ownership

     Pursuant to prevailing market practice in Sweden, which takes the form of recommendations issued by the Swedish Industry and Stock
Exchange Committee (NBK), any seller or purchaser of securities of a Swedish limited company listed on the Stockholm Exchange is required
to disclose any transaction in which such purchaser or seller acquires or disposes of five percent or any subsequent percentage that is a multiple
of five, up to and including 90 percent, of either the voting rights of all shares or the total number of shares in the company. Disclosure shall be
made no later than 9:00 a.m. on the day following the trading on the Stockholm Exchange and in the form of reports to the Stockholm Exchange
and the company and press releases to an established news agency and to a nationally published newspaper in Sweden.

     In addition, pursuant to the Swedish Financial Instruments Trading Act, a person acquiring or disposing of certain numbers of shares in a
Swedish limited company with shares listed on a stock exchange within the European Economic Area or otherwise quoted on an exchange or an
authorized market place in Sweden, shall within seven days thereafter report in writing such acquisition or transfer to the company and the
Swedish exchange or market place in question (and to the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority, if the shares are not quoted on a Swedish
exchange or market place). The relevant thresholds for the reporting requirement is acquisitions where the acquirer reaches or exceeds ten, 20,
33 1/3, 50 and 66 2/3 percent of the number of votes for all shares in the company or where the transferor�s shareholding falls below any such
number.

     Pursuant to the Swedish Act on Reporting Obligations Regarding Certain Holdings of Financial Instruments, certain individuals who own
shares representing ten percent or more of the share capital or the voting rights in a publicly traded Swedish limited company shall report such
shareholding and any changes thereto to the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority.

Liquidation

     If TeliaSonera were to be liquidated, any liquidation proceeds remaining after all of our liabilities were paid would be distributed to our
shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

Purchase Obligations

     Pursuant to prevailing market practice in Sweden, which takes the form of recommendations issued by NBK, a person who obtains 40 percent
or more of the votes for all shares in a publicly traded Swedish limited company as a result of purchase, subscription, conversion or some other
form of acquisition of shares in the company, either alone or together with a related party, must make a public offer both for the acquisition of all
remaining shares in the company, not held by the company or its subsidiaries, and for other financial instruments issued by the company whose
price might be materially affected if listing of shares covered by the offer were to cease. The terms of such mandatory offer shall be the same as
the terms of the acquisition triggering the mandatory offer.

     Pursuant to the Companies Act, a Swedish limited company owning more than 90 percent of the shares in another Swedish limited company
may initiate a compulsory acquisition process for the remaining minority shareholdings. Similarly, the holders of such minority interest may
require the Swedish parent company to acquire their holdings in the company.
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Restrictions of Foreign Ownership

     There are no restrictions of foreign ownership of TeliaSonera shares under Swedish law.

10.C Material Contracts

     On March 15, 2001, Telia entered into a joint venture agreement with Tele2, the holder of a UMTS license in Sweden, to build and operate a
UMTS network in Sweden. Under the joint venture agreement, the parties have organized a Swedish limited liability company, Svenska
UMTS-nät, to carry out the building and operations relating to the UMTS network in Sweden. The joint venture is owned on an equal basis by
the parties. The UMTS license is held by a wholly owned subsidiary of Svenska UMTS-nät. The cooperation between Telia and Tele2 has been
reviewed by the Swedish Competition Authority and, in March 2002, the cooperation was given a five year exemption from the anti-competitive
agreements prohibition under the Swedish Competition Act. The exemption ends in February 2007, at which time the cooperation is required to
be reviewed by the Competition Authority. Telia and Tele2 will, on a pro rata basis, finance the construction of the UMTS network through
capital contributions and the issuance of guarantees that are necessary in order for Svenska UMTS-nät to obtain third party financing to build a
UMTS network in accordance with the license conditions. Telia has made an aggregate capital contribution of SEK 500 million to Svenska
UMTS-nät.

     On September 19, 2002, Svenska UMTS-nät signed a SEK 11 billion term loan and revolving credit facility for the construction of its UMTS
network infrastructure in Sweden. Telia and Tele2 have each severally but not jointly guaranteed up to a maximum of SEK 5.5 billion of the
principal amount borrowed by Svenska UMTS-nät under the credit facility and have pledged their shares in Svenska UMTS-nät as security for
such amount. The indebtedness under the credit facility may become due on an accelerated basis, under certain circumstances, including if either
Telia or Tele2 ceases to hold, directly or indirectly, 50 percent of Svenska UMTS-nät, unless the lenders provide their advance consent. Telia is
not contractually required to provide any further capital contributions to or guarantees in favor of Svenska UMTS-nät.

     In June and September 2002, Telia entered into agreements with each of the Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland granting them
identical registration rights with respect to their shares of Telia. Pursuant to these agreements, the Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of
Finland have the right to severally require Telia to file a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission covering offers
and sales of their shares in a public offering in the United States. Under the agreements, the Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of Finland
have the right to demand one registration of at least 2.5 percent of their respective shares of Telia in any six month period up to a maximum of
two registrations. In addition to the demand registration rights and subject to certain conditions, the Kingdom of Sweden and the Republic of
Finland were also granted piggy-back registration rights that entitle them to sell their shares as part of any registered offering in the United
States either by Telia or by Telia on behalf of another party. Telia has agreed to pay, subject to certain exceptions, all expenses reasonably
incurred by the Kingdom of Sweden, the Republic of Finland or both parties in connection with any demand registration or piggy-back
registration.

10.D Exchange Controls

     There are currently no Swedish laws which may affect the import or export of capital, or the remittance of interest or other payments.

10.E Taxation

     The following summary is based on the tax laws of Sweden and the United States as of the date of this report, and is subject to changes in
Swedish or U.S. law, including changes that could have a retroactive effect. The following summary is not exhaustive and does not take into
account or discuss the tax laws of any countries other than Sweden or the United States. Prospective investors and current holders of TeliaSonera
shares, TeliaSonera ADSs or TeliaSonera warrants are advised to consult their own tax advisors as to Swedish, U.S. or other tax consequences of
the purchase, ownership and disposition of TeliaSonera shares, including, in particular, the effect of tax laws in any other jurisdiction.

Swedish Taxation

     The following is a description of the material Swedish income and net wealth tax consequences with respect to holders of TeliaSonera shares,
that are not Swedish residents (�Non-residents�). This section applies only to
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holders of portfolio investments representing less than 10 percent of the capital and votes of TeliaSonera and is not applicable if the TeliaSonera
shares pertain to a permanent establishment or fixed base of business in Sweden. Holders of TeliaSonera shares should consult their own tax
advisors regarding the Swedish and other tax consequences of acquiring, owning and disposing of shares.

     The description below is based on the Income Tax Act (1999:1229), the Net Wealth Tax Act (1997:323), the Withholding Tax Act
(1970:624) and relevant tax treaties as currently in effect.

Taxation of Capital Gains

     Non-residents are generally not liable for Swedish capital gains taxation with respect to the sale of TeliaSonera shares. However, under
Swedish tax law, capital gains from the sale of certain Swedish securities, such as the TeliaSonera shares, by private individuals may be taxed in
Sweden if such individuals have been residents of Sweden or have lived permanently in Sweden at any time during the year of the sale or the ten
calendar years preceding the year of the sale. This provision may, however, be limited by tax treaties which Sweden has concluded with other
countries. The Nordic tax treaty currently in force reduces this period to the five years following the year when the individual became a
Non-resident. The tax treaty currently in force between Sweden and the United States gives Sweden the right to tax gains at any time during the
ten years following the date on which the individual has ceased to be a resident of Sweden. Capital losses are deductible if the Non-resident
would have been taxable for a corresponding capital gain.

Taxation of Dividends

     According to Swedish internal law, a dividend withholding tax at a rate of 30 percent is imposed on dividends paid by a Swedish company,
such as TeliaSonera, on Non-residents. Exemption from the withholding tax or a lower tax rate may apply by virtue of a tax treaty. Under both
the current Nordic tax treaty and the tax treaty currently in force between Sweden and the United States, the withholding tax on dividends paid
on portfolio investments, to eligible U.S. holders or Nordic holders, as the case may be, is limited to 15 percent.

     Under all Swedish tax treaties, with the exception of the tax treaty currently in force between Sweden and Switzerland, the withholding tax at
the applicable treaty rate should be withheld by the payer of the dividends. With regard to dividends paid for shares in companies registered with
the VPC (such as the TeliaSonera shares), a reduced rate of dividend withholding tax under a tax treaty is generally applied at the source by VPC
or, if the shares are registered with a nominee, the nominee, so long as the person entitled to the dividend is registered as a Non-resident and
sufficient information regarding the tax residency of the beneficial owner is available to VPC or the nominee.

     In those cases where Swedish tax is withheld at the rate of 30 percent and the person that received the dividends is entitled to a reduced rate
of withholding tax under an applicable tax treaty, a refund may be claimed from the Swedish tax authorities not later than at the end of the fifth
calendar year after the distribution.

     The Swedish withholding tax provisions are currently under review, and new or amended provisions may be introduced as a result of this
review.

     It should be noted that due to technical issues, a Swedish withholding tax of 30 percent will also be withheld for dividends and similar
payments to Swedish tax residents on TeliaSonera shares that are registered at the Finnish Central Securities Depositary.

Net Wealth Taxation

     Swedish net wealth tax is based on the conditions at the end of each calendar year. The TeliaSonera shares are not subject to Swedish net
wealth taxation in the hands of a holder that is not a resident in Sweden at the end of a calendar year.

United States Federal Income Taxation

     The following is a description of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences that may be relevant with respect to the acquisition,
ownership and disposition of our shares or ADSs, which are evidenced by American Depositary Receipts. This description addresses only the
U.S. federal income tax considerations of holders that are initial purchasers of our shares or ADSs at the initial issue price and that will hold
shares or
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ADSs as capital assets. This description does not address tax considerations applicable to holders that may be subject to special tax rules, such
as:

� financial institutions,

� insurance companies,

� real estate investment trusts,

� grantor trusts,

� regulated investment companies,

� dealers or traders in securities or currencies,

� tax-exempt entities,

� persons that will hold our shares or ADSs as part of a �hedging� or �conversion� transaction or as a position in a �straddle� for U.S. federal
income tax purposes,

� persons that have a �functional currency� other than the U.S. dollar or

� holders that own (or are deemed to own) ten percent or more (by voting power or value) of the stock of TeliaSonera.
     Moreover, this summary does not address the U.S. federal estate and gift or alternative minimum tax consequences of the acquisition,
ownership and disposition of shares or ADSs. This summary is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the �Code�), U.S.
Treasury Regulations and judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, in each case as in effect and available on the date hereof. All of the
foregoing are subject to change, which change could apply retroactively and could affect the tax consequences described below.

     The U.S. Treasury Department has expressed concern that depositaries for American Depositary Receipts, or other intermediaries between
the holders of shares of an issuer and the issuer, may be taking actions that are inconsistent with the claiming of U.S. foreign tax credits by U.S.
holders of such receipts or shares. Accordingly, the analysis regarding the availability of a U.S. foreign tax credit for Finnish taxes and sourcing
rules described below could be affected by future actions that may be taken by the U.S. Treasury Department.

     For purposes of this summary, a �U.S. Holder� is a beneficial owner of our shares or ADSs that, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, is:

� a citizen or resident of the United States,

� a partnership or corporation created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof (including the District of
Columbia),

� an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source or

� a trust, if such trust validly elects to be treated as a U.S. person for U.S. federal income tax purposes or if (i) a court within the United
States is able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and (ii) one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all
of the substantial decisions of such trust.

     A �Non-U.S. Holder� is a beneficial owner of our shares or ADSs that is not a U.S. Holder.

     If a partnership (or any other entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) holds Notes, the tax treatment of the
partnership and a partner in such partnership will generally depend on the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Such partner
or partnership should consult its own tax advisor as to its consequences.

Ownership of ADSs in General

     For U.S. federal income tax purposes, a holder of ADSs generally will be treated as the owner of the shares represented by such ADSs.

Distributions
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     Subject to the discussion below under �Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations,� if you are a U.S. Holder, for U.S. federal income
tax purposes, the gross amount of any distribution by TeliaSonera of cash or property (other than certain distributions, if any, of our shares or
ADSs distributed pro rata to all shareholders of TeliaSonera including holders of ADSs) with respect to your shares or ADSs will be includible
in your income as dividend income to the extent such distributions are paid out of the current or accumulated

131

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 189



Table of Contents

earnings and profits of our Company as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Subject to the discussion below under ��Passive
Foreign Investment Company Considerations,� individuals who are U.S. Holders may be taxed on certain distributions received in a taxable year
ending after December 31, 2002 at the lower rates applicable to long-term capital gains. Such dividends will not be eligible for the dividends
received deduction generally allowed to corporate U.S. Holders. Subject to the discussion below under ��Passive Foreign Investment Company
Considerations,� to the extent, if any, that the amount of any distribution by our Company exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and
profits as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles, it will be treated first as a tax-free return of your adjusted tax basis in your shares
or ADSs and thereafter as capital gain. TeliaSonera does not maintain calculations of our earnings and profits under U.S. federal income tax
principles.

     If you are a U.S. Holder, any such dividend paid in Swedish kronor (or any currency other than U.S. dollars) will be included in your gross
income in an amount equal to the U.S. dollar value of the Swedish kronor (or, if not Swedish kronor, the currency in which the dividend was
paid) on the date of receipt, which, in the case of ADSs, is the date they are received by the depositary. The amount of any distribution of
property other than cash will be the fair market value of such property on the date of distribution.

     If you are a U.S. Holder, dividends paid to you with respect to your shares or ADSs will be treated as foreign source income, which may be
relevant in calculating your foreign tax credit limitation. Subject to certain conditions and limitations, any Swedish tax withheld on dividends
may be deducted from your taxable income or credited against your U.S. federal income tax liability. The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for
credit is calculated separately with respect to specific classes of income. For this purpose, dividends distributed by us generally will constitute
�passive income,� or, in the case of certain U.S. Holders, �financial services income.�

     Subject to the discussion below under �Backup Withholding Tax and Information Reporting Requirements,� if you are a Non-U.S. Holder of
shares or ADSs, you generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax on dividends received by you on your shares or
ADSs, unless you conduct a trade or business in the United States and such income is effectively connected with that trade or business.

Shares received by Employees Subject to U.S. Taxation

     Any employee who is subject to U.S. federal income tax on his or her compensation from TeliaSonera who purchases our shares or ADSs at a
price representing a discount from the fair market value of those shares or ADSs will be subject to U.S. federal income and employment taxes
with respect to such discount. Such employee should recognize ordinary income at the time of the receipt of such shares or ADSs equal to the
fair market value of such shares or ADSs minus the amount paid for such shares or ADSs. The issuance of such shares or ADSs at a discount to
such employee may be subject to U.S. wage withholding.

Sale or Exchange of Shares or ADSs

     Subject to the discussion below under �Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations,� if you are a U.S. Holder, you generally will
recognize gain or loss on the sale or exchange of your shares or ADSs equal to the difference between the amount realized on such sale or
exchange and your adjusted tax basis in your shares or ADSs. Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss. If you are a noncorporate U.S.
Holder, the maximum marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to such gain will be lower than the maximum marginal U.S. federal
income tax rate applicable to ordinary income (other than certain dividends received in a taxable year ending after December 31, 2002) if your
holding period for such shares or ADSs exceeds one year. Gain or loss, if any, recognized by you generally will be treated as U.S. source income
or loss for U.S. foreign tax credit purposes. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

     If you are a U.S. Holder, the initial tax basis of your shares or ADSs will be the U.S. dollar value of the euro denominated purchase price
determined on the date of purchase. If the shares or ADSs are treated as traded on an �established securities market,� a cash basis U.S. Holder (or,
if it elects, an accrual basis U.S. Holder) will determine the dollar value of the cost of such shares or ADSs by translating the amount paid at the
spot rate of exchange on the settlement date of the purchase. If you are a U.S., the conversion of U.S. dollars to euros and the immediate use of
that currency to purchase shares or ADSs generally will not result in taxable gain or loss.

     With respect to the sale or exchange of shares or ADSs, the amount realized generally will be the U.S. dollar value of the payment received
determined on (1) the date of receipt of payment in the case of a cash basis U.S.
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Holder and (2) the date of disposition in the case of an accrual basis U.S. Holder. If the shares or ADSs are treated as traded on an �established
securities market,� a cash basis taxpayer (or, if it elects, an accrual basis taxpayer) will determine the U.S. dollar value of the amount realized by
translating the amount received at the spot rate of exchange on the settlement date of the sale.

     Subject to the discussion below under �Backup Withholding Tax and Information Reporting Requirements,� if you are a Non-U.S. Holder of
shares or ADSs, you generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax on any gain realized on the sale or exchange of such
shares or ADSs unless (1) such gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States or (2) you are an
individual Non-U.S. Holder and you have been present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of such sale or exchange
and certain other conditions are met.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Considerations

     A Non-U.S corporation will be classified as a passive foreign investment company, or a PFIC, for U.S. federal income tax purposes in any
taxable year in which, after applying the look-through rules for 25 percent or more owned subsidiaries, either (1) at least 75 percent of its gross
income is passive income or (2) on average at least 50 percent of the gross value of its assets is attributable to assets that produce passive income
or are held for the production of passive income. Passive income for this purpose generally includes dividends, interest, royalties, rents and gains
from commodities and securities transactions.

     We believe that we were not a PFIC in our 2002 taxable year. Our status in future years will depend on our assets and activities in those
years. We have no reason to believe that our assets or activities will change in a manner that would cause us to be classified as a PFIC. However,
since our status will depend on the nature of our income, assets and business from time to time, we can not give you assurance that we will not
be a PFIC in any future year.

     Notwithstanding the discussions above under the captions �Distributions� and �Sale or Exchange of Shares or American Depositary Shares,� if
we were to become a PFIC, and you are a U.S. Holder of our shares or ADSs, you generally would be subject to imputed interest charges and
other disadvantageous tax treatment (including the denial of the taxation of certain dividends received from such PFIC at the lower rates
applicable to long-term capital gains (as discussed above under ��Distributions�)) with respect to any gain from the sale or exchange of, and excess
distributions with respect to, your shares or ADSs. If we were to become a PFIC and you are a U.S. Holder of our shares or ADSs, you could
make a variety of elections that may alleviate the tax consequences referred to above, and one of these elections may be made retroactively.

     However, it is expected that the conditions necessary for making some of these elections will not apply in the case of our shares or ADSs.
You should consult your own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences that would arise if we were to become a PFIC.

Backup Withholding Tax and Information Reporting Requirements

     U.S. backup withholding tax and information reporting requirements generally apply to certain payments to certain noncorporate holders of
stock. Information reporting generally will apply to payments of dividends on, and to proceeds from the sale or redemption of, shares or ADSs
made within the United States to a holder of shares or ADSs (other than an �exempt recipient,� including a corporation, a payee that is not a U.S.
person that provides an appropriate certification and certain other persons). A payor will be required to withhold backup withholding tax from
any payments of dividends on, or the proceeds from the sale or redemption of, shares or ADSs within the United States to a holder (other than an
�exempt recipient�) if such holder fails to furnish its correct taxpayer identification number or otherwise fails to comply with such backup
withholding tax requirements. The backup withholding tax rate is 30 percent for year 2002 and will be 28 percent for years 2003 through 2010.

     In the case of such payments made within the United States to a foreign simple trust, foreign grantor trust or foreign partnership (other than a
payment to a foreign simple trust, foreign grantor trust or foreign partnership that qualifies as a �withholding foreign trust� or a �withholding
foreign partnership� within the meaning of the applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations and a payment to a foreign simple trust, foreign grantor trust
or foreign partnership that is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business in the United States), the beneficiaries of the foreign
simple trust, the persons treated as the owners of the foreign grantor trust or the partners of the foreign partnership, as the case may be, will be
required to provide the certification discussed
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above in order to establish an exemption from backup withholding tax and information reporting requirements. Moreover, a payor may rely on a
certification provided by a payee that is not a U.S. person only if such payor does not have actual knowledge or a reason to know that any
information or certification stated in such certificate is incorrect.

The above description is not intended to constitute a complete analysis of all tax consequences relating to the acquisition, holding and
disposing of our shares or ADSs. You should consult your own tax advisor concerning the tax consequences of your particular situation.

10.F Dividends and Paying Agents

     Not applicable.

10.G Statement by Experts

     Not applicable.

10.H Documents on Display

     The documents referred to in this report can be read at the Securities and Exchange Commission�s public reference facilities at Room 1024,
450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549.

10.I Subsidiary Information

     Not applicable.

ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

     Our financial policy contains guidelines for interest rates and the average maturity of borrowings. The TeliaSonera group�s policy is that the
duration of interest-bearing loans should be from six months to four years. The TeliaSonera group arrived at this duration interval by balancing
the estimated running cost of borrowing and the risk of significant negative impact on earnings should there be a sudden, major change in
interest rates. The basic goal is to optimize interest rate risk for the TeliaSonera group as a whole. The TeliaSonera group uses Swedish kronor
as its accounting currency. TeliaSonera AB�s borrowings are therefore normally converted into or denominated in Swedish kronor, unless
directly linked to the setting-up or financing of international operations or similar events. If the available loan form does not directly reflect the
desired loan portfolio structure, in terms of interest or currency, various forms of derivative instruments are used to adapt the structure in terms
of duration and currency. This adaptation is achieved chiefly through interest rate swaps and foreign currency interest rate swaps. Foreign
currency interest rate swaps relate to loans denominated in foreign currencies that are swapped into Swedish krona, and thus do not entail any
currency risk.

     We typically use our uncommitted facilities for our financing needs, since we normally have good access to those market facilities.

     Normally, TeliaSonera AB�s borrowings denominated in foreign currencies are swapped into Swedish kronor, except for funds borrowed to
finance our operations outside of Sweden.

     The following table sets forth our portfolio of foreign currency interest rate swaps represented by the following currencies, including maturity
dates, as of December 31, 2002:
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Maturities
Later

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 years Total

(SEK in millions)
Foreign currency interest rate swaps, received:
Buy EUR 4,620 � 3,021 2,597 � 1,527 11,765
Buy DEM 836 566 � � � � 1,402
Buy GBP 710 � � � � � 710
Buy USD � 324 � 88 � � 412
Buy JPY � � � � � 222 222

Total received 6,166 890 3,021 2,685 � 1,749 14,511
Foreign currency interest rate swaps, paid (5,623) (925) (2,712) (2,756) � (1,651) (13,667)

Net position 543 (35) 309 (71) � 98 844

     As of December 31, 2002, borrowings by TeliaSonera AB had a present value of SEK 21,294 million (SEK 24,888 million in 2001) and the
weighted average time to maturity of borrowings was approximately 2.4 years.

     Borrowings by Sonera Corporation had a present value of �2,406 million (�3,509 million in 2001) as of December 31, 2002, and the weighted
average time to maturity of borrowings was approximately 2.6 years.

     The average cost of outstanding long-term and short-term borrowings as per the balance sheet date in the past three years was as follows.

As of December 31,

2002 2001 2000

(%)
TeliaSonera AB (SEK)
Long-term borrowings 5.92 5.62 5.81
Short-term borrowings 5.48 5.03 4.38

Sonera Corporation (EUR)
Long-term borrowings 4.93 4.76 5.37
Short-term borrowings 4.81 4.28 5.43

     As of December 31, 2002, TeliaSonera AB and Sonera Corporation had interest-bearing liabilities of SEK 42,644 million with duration of
interest of approximately 1.3 years, including derivatives. The volume of loans exposed to changes in interest rates over the next 12-month
period was at the same date approximately SEK 25,900 million, assuming that existing loans maturing during the year are refinanced and after
accounting for derivatives. The exact effect of a change in interest rates on the financial net depends on the timing of maturity of the debt as well
as reset dates for floating rate debt, and that the volume of loans may vary over time, thereby affecting the estimate. Fair value of the loan
portfolio would, however, change by approximately SEK 500 million, should the level in market interest rates make a parallel shift of one
percentage point, and assuming the same volume of loans and a similar duration on those loans as per year-end 2002.

     The following table sets forth our portfolio of long-term and short-term borrowings (including accrued interest):

As of December 31,2002

Book value Fair value

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 193



(SEK in millions)
Long-term loans 32,122 32,630
Short-term loans 12,680 12,717
Interest rate swaps, gains (527) (527)
Foreign currency interest rate swaps, gains (1,059) (1,059)
Interest rate swaps, losses 215 215
Foreign currency interest rate swaps, losses 215 215
Other currency derivatives (net losses) 1 1

Total borrowings (including derivatives) 43,647 44,192

     The TeliaSonera group has an operational need to net purchase foreign currency which exposes us to transaction exposure, primarily due to
deficits in settlements for international telecommunications traffic and the import of equipment and supplies. The TeliaSonera group�s
operational net transaction exposure is not significant at present, but it is expected to increase over time, as will its potential impact on our
earnings. Assuming an operational net transaction exposure equivalent to that for the applicable year and provided that no
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hedging measures were taken, the negative impact on pre-tax income of our Swedish operations would have been approximately SEK
160 million for the year 2002 and SEK 300 million for the year 2001 on a full-year basis if the Swedish kronor weakened by ten percentage
points against all the transaction currencies of our Swedish operations.

     The following table sets forth our portfolio of foreign exchange derivatives hedging loans, investments and operational transaction exposure
represented by the following currencies, including maturity dates, as of December 31, 2002:

Maturities

Later
2003 2004 2005 years Total

(SEK in millions)
Sell EUR 5,378 8 1 � 5,387
Sell DKK 4,895 � � � 4,895
Sell NOK 1,110 � � � 1,110
Sell USD 628 � � � 628
Sell GBP 553 � � � 553
Sell CZK 397 � � � 397
Sell LVL 100 � � � 100
Sell CHF 68 � � � 68
Sell PLN 56 � � � 56
Sell HUF 22 � � � 22
Sell LTL 16 � � � 16
Sell SGD 10 � � � 10
Sell HKD 1 � � � 1

Sell total 13,234 8 1 � 13,243

Buy EUR (15,879) � � � (15,879)
Buy DKK (2,896) � � � (2,896)
Buy NOK (2,709) � � � (2,709)
Buy USD (191) (6) � � (197)
Buy GBP (171) � � � (171)
Buy CHF (26) � � � (26)
Buy LVL (7) � � � (7)
Buy PLN (2) � � � (2)

Buy total (21,881) (6) � � (21,887)

Net position (8,647) (2) 1 � (8,644)

     TeliaSonera Treasury is responsible for group-wide financial risk management, including netting and pooling of capital requirements and
payment flows. TeliaSonera Treasury also seeks to optimize the cost of financial risk management, which in certain cases may mean that an
intra-group financing or hedging transaction is not replicated with an identical transaction outside the group. TeliaSonera Treasury�s risk
mandates are clearly defined by our board of directors, and the impact on earnings of any deals made within those mandates is therefore not
deemed to be substantial. TeliaSonera Treasury�s risk mandate in the currency markets is currently capped at the equivalent of a nominal plus or
minus SEK 200 million. As of December 31, 2002, the risk mandate was utilized by less than SEK 50 million.

     Our conversion exposure has increased significantly due to the merger of Telia and Sonera, and is expected to continue to grow due to
ongoing expansion of our operations outside of Sweden. We do not typically hedge our conversion exposure, unless the exposure would be
short-term and relate to a large amount of a freely-convertible foreign currency of a country with smoothly-functioning financial markets.

     Net foreign assets, which is the sum of equity and goodwill from acquisitions, amounts as of December 31, 2002 to SEK approximately SEK
115.9 billion (and as of December 31, 2001 to approximately SEK 55.7 billion). The positive impact on the TeliaSonera group�s equity would be
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approximately SEK 11.6 billion based on the exposure after hedges as of December 31, 2002, and approximately SEK 5.5 billion based on the
exposure after hedges as of December 31, 2001, if the Swedish krona weakened by ten percentage points against all the currencies related to net
foreign assets. This impact on the TeliaSonera group�s equity does not include any potential negative impact due to our operational need to net
purchase foreign currency.
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     The TeliaSonera group employs derivatives in its financial management activities. Derivatives are primarily used to obtain the duration of
interest desired on the loans within the portfolio, and the risk profile desired in foreign exchange dealings. We accept only creditworthy
counterparties for financial transactions such as interest rate swaps, foreign currency swaps and other transactions in derivatives. We require
each counterparty to have an approved rating and an International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. (ISDA) agreement. The permitted
exposure to each counterparty depends on the rating of that counterparty. As of December 31, 2002, TeliaSonera group�s aggregate exposure to
counterparties in derivatives was SEK 1,942 million, calculated as the sum of net claims on all of the respective counterparties.

     The credit risk with respect to our trade receivables is diversified among a large number of customers, both private individuals and companies
in various industries. Solvency information is required for credit sales to minimize the risk of unnecessary bad debt expense and is based on
group-internal information on payment behavior and, if necessary, credit and business information derived from external sources. Bad debt
expense in relation to consolidated revenues was 1.4 percent, 1.6 percent and 0.8 percent in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURITIES

     Not applicable.

PART II

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES

     None.

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

     None.

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

     Our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of the Group�s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in U.S. Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(c)) within 90 days of the date of this annual report on Form 20-F, have
concluded that, as of such date, TeliaSonera�s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to ensure that material information relating to
TeliaSonera was made known to them by others within TeliaSonera particularly during the period in which this annual report on Form 20-F was
being prepared.

     There were no significant changes in TeliaSonera�s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent
to the date our President and Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer completed their evaluation, nor were there any significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses in TeliaSonera�s internal controls requiring corrective actions.

     In connection with the audit of our financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, our auditors brought to our attention
certain weaknesses in internal controls relating in particular to our international carrier business and our Danish mobile and fixed line operations.
While we do not believe the weaknesses cited by our auditors constitute significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the Group�s internal
controls, we are taking steps, including training of staff, to address these weaknesses.

ITEM 16. [RESERVED]

PART III
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     Not applicable.

137

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 198



Table of Contents

ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

     The following financial statements are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 20-F:

Consolidated Financial Statements of TeliaSonera AB and subsidiaries

   Report of Independent Auditors
   Consolidated Income Statements
   Consolidated Balance Sheets
   Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
   Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders� Equity
   Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements of Netia Holdings S.A.

   Report of Independent Accountants
   Consolidated Balance Sheets
   Consolidated Statements of Operations
   Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders� Equity
   Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
   Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Annex A: Consolidated Financial Statements of Sonera Corporation and subsidiaries

   Independent Auditors� Report
   Consolidated Income Statements
   Consolidated Balance Sheets
   Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
   Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors
and shareholders of TeliaSonera AB.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeliaSonera AB as of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 and the related
consolidated income statements, statements of cash flows and statements of changes in shareholders� equity for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the historical cost basis consolidated balance sheet of
Sonera Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary, representing 23% of consolidated assets at December 31, 2002. That balance sheet is presented
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Finland. We also did not audit the financial statements of Netia Holdings, S.A.,
an associated company, representing 28% of consolidated net income for the year ended December 31, 2001. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to amounts included for Sonera
Corporation (before conversion to International Accounting Standards) and Netia Holdings, S.A., is based solely on the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation
(including the conversion of the balance sheet of Sonera Corporation to International Accounting Standards). We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of TeliaSonera AB at December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002, in conformity with International Accounting
Standards, which differ in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (see Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Ernst & Young AB

Torsten Lyth
Authorized Public Accountant

Stockholm, Sweden
March 19, 2003
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TELIASONERA AB AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Income Statements

January-December

SEK in millions, except per share data Note 2002 2001 2000

Net sales 6,34,35 59,483 57,196 54,064
Costs of production 7,11 -38,182 -40,435 -33,028

Gross income 21,301 16,761 21,036
Sales, administrative, and research & development expenses 7,11 -18,667 -17,943 -16,326
Other operating revenues and expenses 8,11 -14,057 506 8,493
Income from associated companies 10,34,35 528 6,136 -1,197

Operating income 34,35 -10,895 5,460 12,006
Financial revenues and expenses 13 -721 -652 -289

Income after financial items -11,616 4,808 11,717
Income taxes 14 3,619 -2,917 -1,447
Minority interests -70 -22 8

Net income -8,067 1,869 10,278

Loss/Earnings per share (SEK) 21
Basic -2.58 0.62 3.50
Diluted -2.58 0.62 3.50
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TELIASONERA AB AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

SEK in millions Note 2002 2001 2000

Assets
Intangible fixed assets 15 68,106 26,816 25,198
Tangible fixed assets 16,28 56,172 47,314 43,807
Equity participations in associated companies 17,30 23,027 9,927 13,298
Other financial fixed assets 17,28,30 25,507 10,857 9,037

Total fixed assets 172,812 94,914 91,340

Inventories, etc. 18 580 636 773
Receivables 19,28,30 26,607 23,521 29,072
Short-term investments 20 3,826 7,602 178
Cash and bank 2,831 1,518 1,352

Total current assets 33,844 33,277 31,375

Total assets 206,656 128,191 122,715

Equity and liabilities
Restricted equity
Share capital 14,738 9,604 9,604
Restricted reserves 76,962 36,261 34,143
Non-restricted equity
Non-restricted reserves 25,196 12,151 1,963
Net income -8,067 1,869 10,278

Total equity 108,829 59,885 55,988

Minority interests in equity 5,120 204 320

Provisions for pensions and employment contracts 22 224 2,358 3,525
Deferred tax liability 14,23 10,673 6,940 6,761
Other provisions 23 7,509 3,809 1,065

Total provisions 18,406 13,107 11,351

Interest-bearing liabilities
Long-term loans 24,28,30 32,124 25,193 20,876
Short-term loans 25,28,30 12,608 3,931 13,166
Non-interest-bearing liabilities
Long-term liabilities 26,28 2,350 3,049 1,029
Current liabilities 27,30 27,219 22,822 19,985

Total liabilities 74,301 54,995 55,056

Total equity and liabilities 206,656 128,191 122,715
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Contingent assets 31 � � �
Collateral pledged 31 373 91 12
Contingent liabilities 31 6,006 785 1,324
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TELIASONERA AB AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

January-December

SEK in millions Note 2002 2001 2000

Net income -8,067 1,869 10,278
Adjustments:

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 21,029 14,147 8,323
Capital gains/losses on sales/discards of fixed assets -88 -769 -8,223
Income from associated companies -528 -5,848 1,357
Pensions and other provisions 2,791 -1,132 -811
Financial items 33 -425 286 74
Income taxes 33 -3,741 2,286 -1,252
Minority interest, miscellaneous non-cash items 140 -567 -157

Cash flow before change in working capital 11,111 10,272 9,589

Increase (-)/Decrease (+) in operating receivables 4,102 -5,007 -2,185
Increase (-)/Decrease (+) in inventories etc. 382 12 -252
Increase (+)/Decrease (-) in operating liabilities -3,146 5,139 3,000

Change in working capital 1,338 144 563

Cash flow from operating activities 12,449 10,416 10,152

Intangible and tangible fixed assets acquired -8,572 -16,922 -15,997
Intangible and tangible fixed assets divested 218 1,316 603
Compensation received for divested IRU 13 � 263
Compensation paid for acquired IRU -48 -996 -332
Shares, participations and operations acquired 33 363 -2,241 -30,841
Shares, participations and operations divested 33 1,271 15,631 9,325
Loans made and other investments -20 -33 -314
Repayment of loans made and other investments 1,355 482 248
Investment in financial leasing receivables -4,590 -4,031 -3,010
Amortization of financial leasing receivables 3,474 3,448 3,095
Payment to/Compensation from pension fund -1,011 502 1,050
Net change in advances and short-term loans to associated companies etc. 1,994 6,476 -1,211

Cash flow from investing activities -5,553 3,632 -37,121

Cash flow before financing activities 6,896 14,048 -26,969

Dividend -600 -1,501 -1,470
New share issue � � 12,429
Transactions with minority shareholders -1,059 � 838
Loans raised 5,678 4,107 8,905
Loans amortized -12,840 -62 -159
Net change in interest-bearing liabilities with short maturities -1,523 -9,152 6,275

Cash flow from financing activities -10,344 -6,608 26,818

Cash flow for the year -3,448 7,440 -151
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Cash and cash equivalents, opening balance 8,923 1,437 1,575
Cash flow for the year -3,448 7,440 -151
Exchange rate differences in cash and cash equivalents -10 46 13

Cash and cash equivalents, closing balance 33 5,465 8,923 1,437
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Acc.
exchange

Acc.
exchange

Share Other rate diff., Non- rate diff.,
Share premium Equity restricted restricted restricted non-restricted Total

SEK in millions capital reserve reserve reserves reserves equity reserves equity

Closing balance,
December 31, 1999 8,800 1,855 1,174 15,387 26 5,506 145 32,893
New share issue expenses
after taxes � -231 � � � � � -231
Transactions with
non-related parties � � -82 � � � � -82
Share of earnings in
companies previously
outside the Group � � 29 � � � � 29
Exchange rate difference
(Note 21) � � � � 1,414 � 407 1,821
Total change in earnings
not recorded in the
income statement � -231 -53 � 1,414 � 407 1,537
Dividend � � � � � -1,470 � -1,470
Stock dividend 324 � � � � -324 � �
New share issue 480 12,270 � � � � � 12,750
Transfer between
restricted and
non-restricted equity � � 176 2,125 � -2,301 � �
Net income � � � � � 10,278 � 10,278
Closing balance,
December 31, 2000 9,604 13,894 1,297 17,512 1,440 11,689 552 55,988
Changes in accounting
principles (Note 21) � � � -342 � � � -342
Adjusted closing balance,
December 31, 2000 9,604 13,894 1,297 17,170 1,440 11,689 552 55,646
New share issue expenses
after taxes � -16 � � � � � -16
Transactions with
non-related parties � � -155 � � � � -155
Exchange rate difference
(Note 21) � � � � 3,286 � 499 3,785
Reporting financial
instruments at fair value
(Note 21) � � � 257 � � � 257
Total change in earnings
not recorded in the
income statement � -16 -155 257 3,286 � 499 3,871
Dividend � � � � � -1,501 � -1,501
Transfer between
restricted and
non-restricted equity � � -655 -257 � 912 � �
Net income � � � � � 1,869 � 1,869
Closing balance,
December 31, 2001 9,604 13,878 487 17,170 4,726 12,969 1,051 59,885
New share issue expenses
after taxes � 16 � � � � � 16
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Transactions with
non-related parties � � � � � -57 � -57
Exchange rate difference
(Note 21) � � � � 1,692 � 35 1,727
Reporting financial
instruments at fair value
(Note 21) � � � 20 � � � 20
Total change in earnings
not recorded in the
income statement � 16 � 20 1,692 -57 35 1,706
Dividend � � � � � -600 � -600
New share issue 5,134 50,771 � � � � � 55,905
Transfer from restricted to
non-restricted equity
decided by EGM � -11,957 � � � 11,957 � �
Transfer between
restricted and
non-restricted equity � � 130 29 � -159 � �
Net income � � � � � -8,067 � -8,067
Closing balance,
December 31, 2002 14,738 52,708 617 17,219 6,418 16,043 1,086 108,829
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis for Presentation
General

TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IAS).

Accounting principles

The applied accounting principles are described in the respective notes.

Discrepancies between Swedish, Finnish and U.S. GAAP and the accounting principles that TeliaSonera applies are discussed in separate notes.

Amounts and dates

Unless otherwise specified, all amounts are in millions of Swedish kronor (SEK) or other currency specified and are based on the twelve-month
period ended December 31 for income statement items and as of December 31 for balance sheet items, respectively.

Changes and innovations

New accounting standards

The �asset ceiling� amendment to IAS 19 �Employee Benefits� was published on May 31, 2002. The amendment takes effect for accounting periods
ending on or after May 31, 2002. The amendment prevents the recognition of gains solely as a result of deferral of actuarial losses or past service
cost, and prohibits the recognition of losses solely as a result of deferral of actuarial gains. The amendment did not affect TeliaSonera�s financial
statements.

The interpretations SIC-30 �Reporting Currency � Translation from Measurement Currency to Presentation Currency� and SIC-33 �Consolidation
and Equity Method - Potential Voting Rights and Allocation of Ownership Interests�, published in 2001, became effective on January 1, 2002.
The interpretation SIC-32 �Intangible Assets � Web Site Costs� was issued on March 13, 2002 and became effective on March 25, 2002.
Application of these interpretations did not entail any changes to the comparative figures.

During 2000 IAS 41 �Agriculture� was published, which goes into effect on January 1, 2003. IAS 41 does not affect TeliaSonera�s operations.

Restated accounts

Some adjustments of the Group�s business organization have been implemented during the year ended December 31, 2002. Hence, the business
area figures in this annual report have been restated.

2. Use of Estimates
To be able to prepare accounts according to generally accepted accounting principles, Management must make estimates and assumptions that
affect the asset and liability items and revenue and expense items recorded in the final accounts as well as other information, such as that
provided on contingent liabilities. Actual outcomes may differ from these estimates.
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3. Consolidated Financial Statements
General

The consolidated financial statements comprise the parent company TeliaSonera AB and all companies in which TeliaSonera directly or
indirectly controls more than 50 percent of the voting rights or otherwise has control. TeliaSonera�s consolidated financial statements are based
on accounts prepared by all Group companies as per December 31, and have been prepared using the purchase method of accounting, as in
previous years.

Values for companies acquired or divested during the year are included in the consolidated income statement only for the period during which
they were owned. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign entities are considered to be denominated in the
foreign currency.

In subsidiaries not wholly owned, the share of equity and untaxed reserves owned by external shareholders is recorded as minority interest. The
income statement shows the minority share of income after tax.

Internal sales and other intercompany transactions and profits within the Group have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency translation

A majority of the Group�s subsidiaries outside Sweden are independent. Several subsidiaries in the Group have independent branch offices
outside Sweden. The accounts for foreign operations are kept in the currency used for the normal conduct of business by that Group unit.

The income statements and balance sheets of foreign independent operations (subsidiaries, associated companies, and branch offices) are
translated into Swedish kronor (SEK) based on the current method, that is, the exchange rate prevailing on the balance sheet date (closing rate) is
used to convert all items in the balance sheets except for equity, which is converted at the historical rate. Each income statement is translated
using the average rate for that period. Differences resulting from translation, as well as realized and unrealized gains or losses after tax on
financial instruments used to hedge net foreign investments, do not affect income but are charged directly to equity.

When the measurement currency for a subsidiary or an associated company is the currency of a hyperinflationary economy, the reported
non-monetary assets and liabilities, and equity are restated in terms of the measuring unit current at the balance sheet date. The restated financial
statements are translated into SEK at the closing rate. The restating effects are recorded as financial revenue or expense and in income from
associated companies, respectively.

Associated companies

Companies in which the TeliaSonera Group has a long-term interest and directly or indirectly owns shares or participations granting control of
20-50 percent of the voting rights are recorded as associated companies.

Holdings in associated companies are recorded in the consolidated income statement and balance sheet according to the equity method of
accounting. In the income statement, the Group�s share of net income in associated companies is recorded in operating income because the
operations of associated companies are related to telecommunications and it is the Group�s strategy to capitalize on industry know-how by means
of investing in jointly owned operations. The income statement item Income from associated companies also includes amortization and
write-down of goodwill and similar assets on consolidation in associated companies as well as gains and losses on the sale of participations in
associated companies.

Any internal profits are eliminated in relation to the share of equity owned.
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Business segments

The Group�s operations are managed and reported primarily by business area and secondarily by geographic market. Segments are consolidated
based on the same principles as the Group as a whole. When operations are transferred from one business area to another, comparative period
figures are restated.

4. Transactions in Foreign Currencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Swedish kronor (SEK) at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of each
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and related forward contracts for foreign exchange are translated at
the closing rate, any resulting exchange rate differences being charged to income. Accordingly, realized as well as unrealized exchange rate
differences are recorded in the income statement. Exchange rate differences arising from operating receivables or liabilities are recorded in
operating income, while differences attributable to financial assets or liabilities are recorded as earnings or losses on financial investments.

5. Changes in Group Composition
Events in 2002 and 2003

Comsource

On April 18, 2002, TeliaSonera sold its 40 percent stake in Comsource UnLtd to the other shareholder, the Dutch telecom operator KPN.

Orbiant

On July 1, 2002, TeliaSonera�s remaining nine percent shareholding in the Orbiant Group was sold to the other shareholder Flextronics.

Sonera

On March 26, 2002, Telia AB and the leading Finnish telecom operator Sonera Oyj announced plans to merge. On September 30, 2002, Telia
issued the prospectus setting forth the terms and conditions of an exchange offer being made to all Sonera shareholders through which the
merger between Sonera and Telia would be effected. As announced on December 9, 2002, to effect the merger, Telia had completed the offer to
acquire all of the outstanding shares, including shares in the form of American depository shares, or ADSs, and certain warrants of Sonera Oyj,
in exchange for Telia shares, including Telia ADSs, and Telia warrants. As a result of the completion of the exchange offer, which commenced
on October 7, 2002 and expired on November 15, 2002, after a five-business day extension, Telia acquired 1,059,532,967 Sonera shares,
including shares in the form of ADSs, representing 95.0 percent of the total voting rights attaching to Sonera shares outstanding (see also note
�Merger with Sonera Oyj�). In connection with the completion of the exchange offer, Telia AB changed its name to TeliaSonera AB and the
TeliaSonera share and certain warrants were listed on the Helsinki Stock Exchange and the TeliaSonera ADSs quoted on NASDAQ in the
United States.

As the result of TeliaSonera�s acquisition of Sonera shares representing more than two-thirds of the total voting rights attaching to Sonera shares,
in accordance with the Finnish Securities Market Act, TeliaSonera was required to offer to purchase the remaining Sonera shares and Sonera
warrants, that were not tendered in the exchange offer. TeliaSonera made, accordingly, a mandatory redemption offer to acquire all the
outstanding shares, including shares in the form of ADSs, and warrants of Sonera for either TeliaSonera shares, in the form of TeliaSonera
shares or TeliaSonera ADSs, or TeliaSonera warrants; or cash. As a result of the mandatory redemption offer, which commenced on
December 30, 2002 and expired on January 31, 2003, TeliaSonera acquired 48,441,495 Sonera shares, including shares in the form of ADSs,
representing 4.4 percent of the shares and votes in Sonera. Following the completion of the mandatory redemption offer, TeliaSonera�s total
holding of Sonera shares represents 99.4 percent of the shares and votes.
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On March 20, 2003, the arbitral tribunal appointed in the compulsory acquisition proceeding concerning the remaining outstanding Sonera
shares initiated by TeliaSonera AB determined the amount to be placed as guarantee for the payment of the redemption price and accrued
interest to the shareholders of Sonera pursuant to Chapter 14, Section 21 of the Finnish Companies Act. On March 20, 2003, TeliaSonera AB
issued a counter-idemnity for a bank guarantee for the payment of the amount approved by the arbitral tribunal. Pursuant to Chapter 14,
Section 21 of the Finnish Companies Act, TeliaSonera AB obtained the ownership of all shares in Sonera as from the placing of the guarantee.
Simultaneously, the Sonera share was delisted from the main list of Helsinki Exchanges.

Com Hem/Telia Mobile Finland

On June 5, 2003, TeliaSonera sold its Swedish cable TV operator Com Hem AB to EQT Northern Europe and on June 6, 2003, Telia�s Finnish
mobile operations were sold to Finnet Oy. Telia agreed to dispose of these operations as part of its undertakings to the European Commission in
the context of the merger between Telia and Sonera.

Bharti

In May 2002, an agreement was signed with the Indian company Bharti Tele-Ventures for the sale of TeliaSonera�s holding of 26 percent of the
shares in the mobile operator Bharti Mobile Ltd. The transaction was completed on June 16, 2003.

Netia

In the beginning of March, 2002, a group of lenders and the largest shareholders, including TeliaSonera, came to an agreement for a financial
restructuring of the Polish company Netia Holdings S.A. that primarily entailed a conversion of the lenders� claims to equity in the company. As
of December 31, 2002, TeliaSonera owned 48 percent of the share capital in Netia. The loan conversion was completed on January 30, 2003,
reducing TeliaSonera�s shareholding to 4.4 percent. On May 16, 2003, the final step of Netia�s restructuring, which required the issuance of
warrants to pre-restructuring shareholders of Netia, including TeliaSonera, was completed. TeliaSonera received 15,650,266 two-year
subscription warrants and 15,650,266 three-year subscription warrants, entitling it to acquire an aggregate of 31,300,532 Netia shares.

On May 22, 2003, TeliaSonera�s 11 percent stake in the Polish long-distance operator Netia 1 Sp z o.o. was sold to the other shareholder Netia.

On June 5, 2003, TeliaSonera sold some of its shares and subscription warrants in Netia to Warburg Pincus, reducing its shareholding in Netia to
1.8 percent. Assuming that all subscription warrants issued by Netia will be exercised and exchanged for shares, TeliaSonera would hold
6.4 percent of Netia�s share capital. TeliaSonera has entered into agreements to completely divest its holdings in Netia.

Major acquisitions and divestitures during 2000-2002

In fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, TeliaSonera acquired and divested a number of companies and businesses from and to independent parties
outside the Group. Apart from the acquisitions of NetCom ASA in 2000 and Sonera Oyj in 2002 (see also note �Merger with Sonera Oyj�), none
of those acquisitions or divestitures, individually or collectively, was of a size that would have had a material effect on the Group�s pro forma net
sales or net income for the year in which the transaction was executed or the year immediately preceding. The following table shows the
TeliaSonera Group pro forma net sales, net income and earnings per share, had the acquisition of NetCom taken place at January 1, 2000 and the
acquisition of Sonera at January 1, 2001, including the effects of the fact that due to the merger, three entities in Latvia and Lithuania that were
previously associated companies to Telia and Sonera, became controlled subsidiaries to TeliaSonera.

January-December

SEK in millions, except per share data 2002 2001 2000

Pro forma net sales 83,090 82,200 55,443
Pro forma net income -34,049 1,140 9,928
Pro forma basic and diluted loss/earnings per share (SEK) -10.90 0.38 3.39
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6. Net Sales
Net sales are recorded at the sales value, adjusted for discounts granted, sales-related taxes and the effects of foreign exchange rate differences.
Sales principally consist of traffic charges including interconnect and roaming, subscription fees, connection fees, and service charges as well as
sales of customer premises equipment and, up to 2000, advertising space in directories.

Revenue is recognized for the period in which the service is performed or the product is delivered. Subscription fees are recognized as revenue
over the subscription period. Sales relating to pre-paid phone cards, primarily mobile, are deferred and recorded in revenue based on the actual
usage of the cards. Revenues in the directory operations owned through 2000 were recorded in the period in which the relevant directory was
published.

Customer cable TV hookup fees are recorded as cost reductions over the depreciation schedule for the facility in question. Other connection and
installation fees received from new or existing subscribers are recognized as revenue at the time of sale to the extent of direct costs incurred.
Direct costs consist primarily of technical installation work, changes in customer support systems, costs for modems, SIM cards and other
equipment, distributor commissions and credit checks, and costs for supplying the customer with the printed telephone directory and a printed
customer information package. To date, direct costs associated with connection fees have exceeded such revenues. Therefore, no connection
revenues have been deferred.

In the portal operations, ad swapping with another portal provider is not recognized as revenue. Within the international carrier operations, sales
of Indefeasible Rights of Use (IRU) regarding fiber and ducts are recognized as revenue over the period of the agreement (see also note
�Contractual Obligations and Leasing Agreements�). When entering into swap contracts for infrastructure and capacity with other carriers, evenly
balanced swap-deals and the non-cash part of unbalanced swap-deals are not recorded as revenue or expense in the consolidated accounts, as the
contracts refer to assets of similar nature and value. Therefore, they are recognized based on the carrying value of the assets exchanged, rather
than at fair value. In an unbalanced swap-deal, any cash paid is recorded as an asset and any cash received is recorded as deferred revenue.
These amounts are recognized in operations over the term of the related contracts on a straight-line basis. In transactions where the monetary
consideration received is at least 25 percent of the fair value of the exchange, and the fair value of the assets transferred is reasonably
determinable, the exchange is treated as part monetary and part non-monetary. Until both parties have fulfilled all deliveries as agreed, the value
provided might differ from the value received. The value of the unfulfilled deliveries in a swap-deal is recorded as a current liability (net
received) or a current receivable (net provided). The corresponding asset or deferred revenue is not amortized until delivery has occurred.

Sales are broken down by business segment in the �Business Area Breakdown� note. The following is a breakdown of the net sales per product
category.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Mobile communications 19,297 15,702 11,820
Fixed telephony 24,840 24,642 25,437
Internet 2,882 2,264 1,697
Network capacity 4,622 4,619 3,340
Data communications 1,948 1,977 2,021
Cable TV 1,531 1,161 1,030
Service, installation 980 1,551 1,624
Customer equipment 1,344 3,181 3,018
Consulting 155 273 595
Directory services 2 � 1,728
Financial services 276 301 492
Other 1,606 1,525 1,262

Total 59,483 57,196 54,064
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Invoiced advertising tax totaled SEK 0 million, SEK 1 million and SEK 116 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The distribution of sales growth between volume effects, structural effects, exchange rate effects, and price effects was as follows.

January-December

% 2002 2001 2000

Sales growth 4.0 5.8 3.7
of which volume growth 7.0 8.3 10.4

structural changes -0.8 -1.0 0.8
exchange rate effects 0.2 1.4 -0.1
price reductions -2.2 -2.7 -6.7

Sales in and exports to markets outside Sweden were distributed among economic regions as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions, except for percentages 2002 2001 2000

European Union (EU) 8,343 6,371 5,711
European Economic Area (EEA) 5,798 4,670 2,048
Rest of Europe 1,422 555 313
North-American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA) 682 636 754
Rest of world 753 509 776

Total 16,998 12,741 9,602

Proportion of total net sales (%) 28.6 22.3 17.8

Sales (including exports) in Nordic markets outside Sweden equaled SEK 11,582 million, SEK 8,512 million and SEK 5,658 million for the
years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, while sales in the Baltic states, Poland and Russia in the years mentioned were SEK 1,206 million,
SEK 358 million and SEK 216 million. Sales are broken down by geographic business segment in the �Geographic Segment Breakdown� note.

7. Operating Costs
The production function includes all costs for services and products sold as well as for installation, maintenance, service, and support.

Costs for commissions to retailers, advertising, and other marketing are expensed as incurred. The same applies to expenses for maintenance and
adaptation of existing software for euro conversion. Costs for customer-specific product development and applied research are expensed in the
period in which they occur.

Operating costs were distributed by function as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Production 38,182 40,435 33,028
Other functions
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Sales 9,225 8,738 8,277
Administration 8,275 7,902 6,485
Research and development 1,167 1,303 1,564

Total other functions 18,667 17,943 16,326

Total 56,849 58,378 49,354
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Each function includes depreciation, amortization, and write-downs as specified in note �Depreciation, Amortization, and Write-Downs.� This is
also broken down by class of asset.

Operating costs were distributed by nature as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Goods purchased 13,444 9,566 8,091
Network expenses 9,203 9,182 7,323
Change in inventories 89 74 42

Total 22,736 18,822 15,456
Salaries and remuneration 6,732 8,852 9,543
Employer�s social security contributions 1,804 2,614 3,055
Capitalized work by employees -74 -139 -99
Pension expenses 971 613 901
Other personnel expenses 500 1,218 1,107

Total 9,933 13,158 14,507
Rent and leasing fees 1,540 1,572 1,574
Energy expenses 223 205 184
Travel expenses 529 760 860
Consultants� services 2,075 2,579 2,784
Marketing expenses 2,364 2,024 1,990
Bad debt expense 814 908 442
Information technology 2,427 1,804 961
Other expenses 1,852 2,625 2,584

Total 11,824 12,477 11,379
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs 12,356 13,921 8,012

Total 56,849 58,378 49,354

Costs for advertising totaled SEK 524 million, SEK 417 million and SEK 452 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

8. Other Operating Revenues and Expenses
Other operating revenues and other operating expenses include: gains and losses on the sale of shares or operations in companies that are not
associated companies (cf. note �Income from Associated Companies�), gains or losses on the sale or retirement of intangible or tangible fixed
assets, and public grants. Exchange rate differences on operating transactions are also recorded here, including value changes in derivatives for
hedging operational transaction exposure and possible hedging inefficiencies (see note �Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management�).
This item also includes restructuring costs, non-capitalizable costs related to the merger with Sonera in 2002 and to the IPO in 2000, residual
costs incurred related to the canceled merger with Telenor in 1999 and other items of a non-recurring nature.

The nominal value of the Group�s share of client company funds held by Alecta (formerly SPP) was SEK 535 million, of which SEK 121 million
was settled in cash during 2000. Since the funds may be used over a three-year period, the amount was discounted using an interest factor of
5.5 percent. The discounted amount, SEK 518 million, was recorded as other revenue. SEK 387 million was recorded as an asset in the balance
sheet, divided into current and long-term receivables. After settlement of pension disbursements in 2002 and 2001, the remaining claim was
SEK 7 million as of December 31, 2002.
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Other operating revenues and expenses were distributed as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Other operating revenues
Capital gains, shares 220 776 6,568
Capital gains, divested operations 17 59 1,361
Capital gains, other 61 512 102
Exchange rate gains 521 183 161
Commissions, etc. 171 152 114
Grants, etc. 3 8 60
Recovered accounts receivable 55 42 47
Damages received 47 86 37
Alecta funds � � 518

Total 1,095 1,818 8,968
Other operating expenses
Capital losses, shares -40 -459 -9
Capital losses, divested operations -22 -10 -1
Capital losses, other -322 -103 -17
Provisions for loss making contracts 11 -49 -51
Exchange rate losses -438 -152 -43
Sonera merger expenses -13 � �
IPO related expenses, etc. � � -144
Restructuring costs -14,321 -524 -210
Damages paid -7 -15 �

Total -15,152 -1,312 -475

Net effect on income -14,057 506 8,493

9. Related Party Transactions
Group companies

Commercial terms and market prices apply for the supply of goods and services between Group companies. Intercompany sales totaled SEK
53,852 million, SEK 52,794 million, and SEK 57,759 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

The Swedish state and the Finnish state

The Swedish state currently owns 45.3 percent and the Finnish state 19.1 percent of the shares in TeliaSonera AB. The TeliaSonera Group�s
services and products are offered to the Swedish and Finnish state, their agencies, and state-owned companies in competition with other
operators and on conventional commercial terms. Certain state-owned companies run businesses that compete with TeliaSonera. Likewise,
TeliaSonera buys services from state-owned companies at market prices and on otherwise conventional commercial terms. Neither the Swedish
and Finnish state and their agencies, nor state-owned companies represent a significant share of TeliaSonera�s net sales or income.
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The Swedish telecommunications market is governed by the Telecommunications Act and the Telecommunications Regulation as well as by
conditions for permits issued by Post- och Telestyrelsen (PTS; the Swedish National Post and Telecom Agency). According to the conditions for
those permits, Telia must maintain, without special compensation, a certain level of service for public phones in sparsely populated regions.
Telia�s costs for operating these public phones were SEK 10 million in 2002 and SEK 15 million per year in 2001 and 2000. The permit
conditions were limited in 2002. According to telecom regulations, operators that have significant influence on the overall Swedish market for
services that must be registered with PTS are required to pay a fee to finance measures to prevent serious threats and disruptions to
telecommunications during peacetime. To date, Telia has been the only operator with a significant influence as described by law. The required
fee was SEK 50 million in 2002 and SEK 100 million per year in 2001 and 2000. In addition, Telia, in accordance with the Telecommunications
Act and the Radio Communications Act and, effective 2001, the Radio and Telecommunications Terminal Equipment Act, pays annual fees to
PTS to fund the Agency�s activities, as do other operators subject to registration with PTS. Telia paid fees of SEK 64 million in 2002, SEK 59
million in 2001 and SEK 56 million in 2000.

The Finnish telecommunications market is governed mainly by the Communications Market Act and the Act on the Protection of Privacy and
Data Security in Telecommunications as well as by regulations, decisions and technical directions in accordance with these acts. In 2002, Sonera
paid EUR 2.5 million for the use of radio frequencies and EUR 1.3 million for the use of numbers to the Finnish Communications Regulatory
Authority.

Unisource/AUCS

TeliaSonera previously held equal stakes in Unisource N.V. together with Swisscom and KPN of the Netherlands. All operations in Unisource,
with the exception of AUCS Communications Services (AUCS) and its subsidiaries, were sold or shut down in 1999 and the company was
dissolved on July 1, 2000. In May 2003, TeliaSonera and the other shareholders of AUCS approved a liquidation plan for the AUCS group of
companies.

Unisource and its joint owners, including TeliaSonera, signed a three-year management agreement with Infonet Services Corp. in 1999 (see
below) on the operations in AUCS. The agreement provides for the sale of a large part of AUCS�s operations to Infonet. The management
agreement was supplemented in December 2002 by a termination agreement, valid until the first quarter of 2004. Under the terms of various
contracts, Unisource is required to provide services to Infonet. Unisource and its joint owners will also be liable for any losses in AUCS and will
pay Infonet a bonus if the losses are lower than an amount specified in the contract. In total, this means that TeliaSonera�s share of Unisource�s
expenses as per the agreement will be at least SEK 1,348 million. TeliaSonera received compensation for these undertakings through the
acquisition of shares in Infonet at a price less than market value shortly prior to Infonet�s listing on the stock exchange. Based on the selling price
at the time of listing, the value of the shares was SEK 2,758 million, while Telia paid SEK 110 million. The future profit on this transaction, that
is, the difference between the market value of the shares after deducting the purchase price (SEK 2,648 million) and the obligations that Telia
has undertaken (SEK 1,348 million, as explained above), will be recorded as share of earnings in AUCS over the term of the management
agreement and other agreements.

As of December 31, 2002, TeliaSonera had interest-bearing claims on AUCS of SEK 158 million. In 2002, 2001 and 2000 TeliaSonera sold
services to AUCS worth SEK 27 million, SEK 44 million and SEK 51 million, respectively.

Infonet

TeliaSonera owns a participating interest in the American company Infonet Services Corp. In 2002, 2001 and 2000 TeliaSonera sold services
and products to Infonet worth SEK 41 million, SEK 29 million and SEK 38 million, respectively, and purchased services and products worth
SEK 260 million, SEK 320 million and SEK 264 million, respectively.
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Telefos

Since June 2001, TeliaSonera owns 49 percent of the shares in the former subsidiary Telefos AB. As of December 31, 2002, TeliaSonera had
interest-bearing claims on the Telefos Group of SEK 1,553 million and had signed a limited supplementary guarantee of SEK 150 million for the
credit-insured pension commitments of Telefos companies. In 2002 and for 2001, in the period after the change in ownership, TeliaSonera sold
services and products to the Telefos Group worth SEK 324 million and SEK 279 million, respectively, and bought services and products worth
SEK 3,534 million and SEK 1,210 million. Some of the services purchased by TeliaSonera relate to construction of capital assets.

IN

Since November 2000, TeliaSonera has held an indirect participating interest in its former subsidiary INGROUP Sweden AB (IN). In 2002 and
2001 TeliaSonera sold services and products to IN worth SEK 46 million and SEK 67 million, and in 2002, 2001 and 2000 bought services and
products from IN worth SEK 267 million, SEK 245 million and SEK 113 million.

Service Factory

In 2002 and 2001, TeliaSonera bought services from the associated company Service Factory SF AB worth SEK 32 million and SEK 94 million,
respectively.

Other relations

In addition, TeliaSonera sells and buys services and products to a limited extent to and from other associated companies. The transactions
between TeliaSonera and these associated companies, as well as the transactions mentioned above, are based on commercial terms.

10. Income from Associated Companies
Shares of earnings are calculated on the associated companies� net income. Earnings for each associated company are based on the company�s
most recent accounts, adjusted for any discrepancies in accounting principles, and with estimated adjustments for significant events and
transactions up to TeliaSonera�s close of books.

This item also includes amortization of goodwill and other consolidation adjustments made upon the acquisition of associated companies as well
as gains or losses on the divestiture of stakes in associated companies.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Share in net income for the year 293 -903 -879
Amortization and write-down of goodwill etc. -145 -2,285 -549
Net capital gains 380 9,324 231

Net effect on income 528 6,136 -1,197

Income is broken down by business segments in the notes �Business Area Breakdown� and �Geographic Segment Breakdown.�

As of September 30, 2001, TeliaSonera discontinued recognition of its share of losses in Netia Holdings S.A. For the year and the 15-month
period ended December 31, 2002, the unrecognized share of losses in Netia was SEK 1,459 million and SEK 2,182 million, respectively.
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Large individual stakes (including stakes held through subsidiaries) have impacted earnings as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Eniro AB, Sweden -3 6,052 185
Scandinavia Online AB, Sweden -1 -226 89
COOP Bank AB, Sweden -126 -14 �
Wireless MainGate AB, Sweden -24 -12 -33
AS Eesti Telekom, Estonia 133 135 136
Lattelekom SIA, Latvia 61 � �
Latvijas Mobilais Telefons SIA, Latvia 126 118 103
AB Lietuvos Telekomas, Lithuania -115 -43 -20
UAB Omnitel, Lithuania 13 -15 -30
OAO MegaFon, Russia 51 153 5
Netia Holdings S.A., Poland 0 -2,464 -411
Unisource N.V./AUCS, the Netherlands 38 -372 1,445
Turkcell Iletisim Hizmetleri A.S., Turkey 115 � �
Infonet Services Corp., USA 18 40 8
Comsource UnLtd/Eircom plc, Ireland 151 126 -933
Tess S/A, Brazil 0 2,359 -1,630
Bharti Mobile Ltd., India 184 10 -41
SI.MOBIL, Slovenia � 372 -51
Other holdings -93 -83 -19

Net effect on income 528 6,136 -1,197

Due to the merger with Sonera Oyj; Latvijas Mobilais Telefons SIA, AB Lietuvos Telekomas and UAB Omnitel are consolidated subsidiaries
since December 3, 2002. See also note �Financial Fixed Assets� and note �Specification of Shareholdings and Participations.�

11. Depreciation, Amortization and Write-Downs
Scheduled depreciation on tangible assets and amortization on intangible assets are based on the historical acquisition value (purchase cost) and
the estimated economic life of various classes of assets. No general changes in depreciation schedules were applied in 2002, 2001 or 2000. For
assets acquired during the year, depreciation is calculated from the date of acquisition. Depreciation is charged on the straight-line basis at the
following rates.

Goodwill Individual evaluation, minimum 5%
� Sonera and NetCom goodwill 5%
Trade names Individual evaluation, minimum 10%
Licenses for fixed and mobile telephony and related goodwill License period, minimum 5%
Other intangible assets 7.1-20%
Buildings 2-10%
Land improvements 5-20%
Expenditure on improvements to property not owned by the Group Remaining term of corresponding lease
Fixed networks
� Switching systems and transmission systems 10-33%
� Transmission media (cable) 5-12.5%
� Equipment for special networks 20-33%
� Usufruct agreements of limited duration Agreement period or time corresponding to the

underlying tangible fixed asset
� Other installations 3-33%
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Mobile networks
� Base stations 9.5-14.3%
� Other installations 10-33%
Cable TV networks and alarm systems 10-33%
Equipment, tools, and installations 12.5-33%
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The book values of the Group�s intangible, tangible, and financial fixed assets are continuously reassessed using analyses for individual assets or
classes of assets that naturally belong together. If an analysis indicates that the value recorded is too high, the asset�s recoverable value is set,
which is the greater of the net realizable value of the asset and its value in use. Value in use is measured as anticipated discounted future cash
flows. A write-down consists of the difference between book value and recoverable value.

Prior to the merger with Sonera Oyj, substantially all goodwill recorded (see specification in note �Intangible Fixed Assets�) was recognized in
connection with the acquisition of NetCom ASA in 2000. NetCom constitutes a cash-generating unit. Lower market valuations of mobile
operators triggered testing the carrying value of NetCom for impairment on a quarterly basis, starting in 2002. The recoverable value of NetCom
was measured as value in use, applying a DCF model. Using a DCF model requires a number of assumptions about future cash flows and related
costs necessary to generate such estimated cash flows. WACC used in calculating the recoverable value was 13.2 percent. Using what
management believes are reasonable assumptions based on the best information available as of the date of the financial statements, the
recoverable value of NetCom was found to be in excess of its carrying value at December 31, 2002 and therefore the related goodwill was not
impaired.

The whole of business area Telia International Carrier constitutes a cash-generating unit. Weak profitability in the business area and surplus
capacity in the industry in 2001 led Telia to review the need for write-downs in the operations. The recoverable value, measured as the value in
use as there was no market, was found to fall short of the book value by SEK 3,027 million. The amount was recognized as cost in the
Production function and the Fixed networks class of assets. The discount rate (WACC) was 11.2 percent. In 2002, TeliaSonera completed a
comprehensive review of the international carrier operations. Management decided to change the strategic focus of Telia International Carrier
and significantly restructure its operations (see also note �Restructuring Costs�). Under the new strategic focus the recoverable value of assets was
found to fall SEK 6,131 million below book value, which was written down (of which SEK 824 million refers to financial assets). The amount
was recognized as Other operating expenses in the Fixed networks class of assets. WACC used in calculating the recoverable value was
16.2 percent.

In 2002, the Danish fixed network operations were reviewed in order to value their assets and determine a new focus (see also note �Restructuring
Costs�). As a result of the review, the recoverable value was found to be SEK 3,033 million lower than the book value. The resulting write-down
was recognized as Other operating expenses in the Goodwill, Other intangible assets, Fixed assets and Other machinery and equipment classes
of assets. In calculating the recoverable value, WACC used was 13,7 percent.

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs on intangible and tangible fixed assets were distributed by function as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions, except for percentages 2002 2001 2000

Production 11,184 13,061 7,325
Sales 503 366 343
Administration 589 467 283
Research and development 80 27 61
Other operating expenses 8,488 54 210

Total 20,844 13,975 8,222

Proportion of net sales (%) 35.0 24.4 15.2

Depreciation, amortization and write-downs are broken down by business segments in the notes �Business Area Breakdown� and �Geographic
Segment Breakdown.�
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Depreciation, amortization and write-downs were distributed by asset class as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Goodwill 1,938 1,403 656
Other intangible assets 738 340 212
Buildings 430 136 98
Land improvements 17 6 4
Fixed networks 12,866 8,061 4,473
Mobile networks 2,634 1,807 1,158
Other machinery and equipment 2,221 2,222 1,621

Total 20,844 13,975 8,222

Accelerated depreciation, to the extent allowed by tax legislation, is recorded in the individual Group companies as appropriations and untaxed
reserves (see corresponding section in note �Income Taxes�).

12. Reconciliation of Underlying EBITDA to Operating Income
These financial statements include information on �underlying EBITDA� and on other similar �underlying� measures of TeliaSonera�s results of
operations. Underlying EBITDA equals operating income before depreciation, amortization and write-downs, net of items not reflecting the
underlying business operations and excluding income from associated companies. Items not reflecting the underlying business operations
include capital gains and losses, cost for phasing out operations, personnel redundancy costs, and non-capitalized expenses in conjunction with
the merger with Sonera in 2002 and the initial public offering in 2000. Internally, TeliaSonera�s management uses underlying EBITDA and
operating income as the principal measures for monitoring profitability in operations. Management believes that, besides operating income,
underlying EBITDA is also a measure commonly reported and widely used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the
telecommunications industry. Accordingly, underlying EBITDA is presented to enhance the understanding of TeliaSonera�s historical operating
performance.

Underlying EBITDA, however, should not be considered as an alternative to operating income as an indicator of operating performance.
Similarly, underlying EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
Underlying EBITDA is not a measure of financial performance under IAS or U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to other similarly titled
measures for other companies. Underlying EBITDA is not meant to be predictive of potential future results.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Underlying EBITDA 15,692 12,915 13,087
Depreciation, amortization and write-downs -20,844 -13,975 -8,222
Items not reflecting underlying business operations -6,271 384 8,338
Income from associated companies 528 6,136 -1,197

Operating income -10,895 5,460 12,006
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The following table sets forth items not reflecting the underlying business operations.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Phase-out of operations (excluding depreciation, amortization and write-downs on intangible and
tangible assets) and personnel redundancy costs -5,924 -478 �
Certain pension-related items -248 88 854
Merger expenses -13 � �
IPO related expenses, etc. � � -144
Capital gains/losses (excluding associated companies) -86 774 7,628

Total -6,271 384 8,338

13. Financial Revenues and Expenses

     Financial items are expensed in the period they occur, with the exception of interest during installation periods, which is capitalized (see also
note �Intangible Fixed Assets� and note �Tangible Fixed Assets�).

     Revenues and costs relating to guarantee commissions are included in Other interest income and Interest expense. Interest expenses include
loan-related bank fees and fees to rating institutions and market makers. The interest component of the change in fair value of derivatives is
included in Other interest income (gain) and Interest expense (loss). The corresponding exchange rate components are recorded in Exchange rate
gains and Exchange rate losses, respectively. This item also includes any hedging inefficiencies. See also note �Financial Instruments and
Financial Risk Management.�

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Earnings from financial investments
Dividends 5 1 14
Capital gains -1 4 10
Write-downs -185 -147 �

Total -181 -142 24
Other financial revenues
Interest on financial leases 662 600 598
Other interest income 474 964 864
Exchange rate gains 138 129 85

Total 1,274 1,693 1,547
Other financial expenses
Interest expenses -1,697 -2,168 -1,742
Capitalized interest 19 81 19
Exchange rate losses -136 -116 -137

Total -1,814 -2,203 -1,860

Net effect on income -721 -652 -289
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14. Income Taxes
Tax expense

The income statement item Income Taxes shows paid and deferred corporate income tax for Swedish and foreign Group units. TeliaSonera
Group companies are liable for taxation under current legislation in the countries where they are domiciled. The corporate income tax rate in
Sweden was 28 percent in 2002, 2001 and 2000, and is applied to the nominal income recorded, plus non-deductible items and less non-taxable
revenues and other deductions, mainly tax-free dividends from subsidiaries.
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The liability method is used to report income taxes. According to this method, deferred tax liabilities and benefits are recorded for all temporary
differences between book values and tax-effective values of assets and liabilities and for other tax-effective deductions or losses. Deferred tax
liabilities and benefits are calculated based on the tax rate expected when the temporary difference will be reversed. The effects of changes in
applicable tax rates are charged to income in the period when the change is required by law. Deferred tax benefits are reduced by means of a
valuation reserve to the extent that the company cannot determine the likelihood of being able to realize the underlying tax benefit within the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed earnings in foreign subsidiaries are not recorded if such retained earnings are regarded as permanently
invested in the countries in question. Deferred tax liabilities for undistributed earnings in Swedish companies and foreign associated companies
are not recorded because such retained earnings can be withdrawn as non-taxable dividends.

Pre-tax income was distributed as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Sweden, Group companies (including foreign branch offices) -3,405 -1,700 6,220
Sweden, associated companies -307 -423 5

Total Sweden -3,712 -2,123 6,225
Finland, Group companies 36 68 -956
Finland, associated companies 3 � �
Rest of world, Group companies -8,396 9,628 7,880
Rest of world, associated companies 453 -2,765 -1,432

Total outside Sweden -7,904 6,931 5,492

Total -11,616 4,808 11,717

The tax expense recorded was distributed as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Current tax
Sweden 156 644 1,602
Finland -256 11 37
Rest of world 694 290 77

Total 594 945 1,716
Deferred tax
Sweden -2,284 -28 81
Finland -602 12 9
Rest of world -1,327 1,988 -359

Total -4,213 1,972 -269

Total -3,619 2,917 1,447
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Current tax expenses for each fiscal year attributable to the previous years� earnings and tax booked directly to equity were as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Tax attributable to previous year -1 43 10
Tax booked directly to equity -16 -186 -215
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The difference between the nominal rate of Swedish taxation and the effective tax rate comprises the following components.

January-December

% 2002 2001 2000

Swedish income tax rate 28.0 28.0 28.0
Differences in tax rates on foreign operations 2.9 4.1 0.2
Adjustment of taxes for previous periods 3.8 2.5 -1.5
Adjustment for new tax legislation � 10.1 �
Losses for which deferred tax benefits were not taken into account -2.6 70.3 5.0
Profits for which deferred tax liabilities were not taken into account 0.2 -5.9 -2.8
Non-deductible expenses -5.2 9.5 3.0
Non-taxable revenues 4.1 -57.9 -19.6

Tax rate as per the income statement 31.2 60.7 12.3
Tax booked directly to equity -0.1 -3.9 -1.8

Effective tax rate 31.1 56.8 10.5

Tax rate, current tax 5.1 19.7 14.6

In 2001, Swedish tax legislation changed so that capital losses on business-related shares and participations after December 7, 2001 may only be
offset against capital gains on shares and participations. Deferred tax benefits attributable to holdings in which latent capital losses were deemed
to exist were consequently valued only to the extent that the loss was estimated to be offset by capital gains on shares. The remainder of deferred
tax benefits was expensed, increasing the tax expense for 2001. On December 19, 2002, the Swedish Government proposed that the effective
date of this legislation be changed to December 1, 2002.

The accumulated tax loss carry-forwards were distributed as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Sweden 916 233 237
Finland 42,005 8 �
Rest of world 6,397 3,957 2,545

Total 49,318 4,198 2,782

Swedish tax loss carry-forwards have no expiration date, while Finnish tax loss carry-forwards expire after 10 years. Total loss carry-forwards as
of December 31, 2002 expire in the following years.

Expiry
SEK in
millions

2003 255
2004 139
2005 357
2006 275

Edgar Filing: TELIASONERA AB - Form 20-F

Table of Contents 231



2007 380
Later years 42,739
Unlimited 5,173

Total 49,318
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Deferred tax liabilities and benefits were distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Deferred tax liability
Shares and participations 2,645 301 60
Other long-term assets 7,255 6,258 6,323
Provisions 488 � 2
Current receivables and liabilities 17 98 43
Off-balance-sheet items 268 283 333

Total deferred tax liability 10,673 6,940 6,761
Deferred tax benefit
Shares and participations 23 76 1,884
Other long-term assets 1,537 590 256
Provisions and other long-term liabilities 1,172 973 812
Current receivables and liabilities 157 19 224
Tax-effective deductions for losses 14,236 1,343 835

Subtotal 17,125 3,001 4,011
Valuation reserve -1,194 -1,511 -619

Total deferred tax benefit 15,931 1,490 3,392

Net deferred tax benefit (-)/liability (+) -5,258 5,450 3,369

The deferred tax liability in other long-term assets chiefly refers to untaxed reserves (see below). Unrecorded deferred tax liabilities for
undistributed earnings in subsidiaries, branch offices and associated companies totaled SEK 350 million in 2002, SEK 515 million in 2001 and
SEK 316 million in 2000.

Appropriations and untaxed reserves

Tax legislation in Sweden, Finland and certain other countries allows companies to postpone tax payments by making allocations to untaxed
reserves in the balance sheet via the Appropriations line item in the income statement. Of particular interest to TeliaSonera, with its extensive
capital expenditure in infrastructure, are Swedish and Finnish tax regulations that make it possible to depreciate assets at an accelerated rate (see
also note �Depreciation, Amortization, and Write-Downs�). However, appropriations and untaxed reserves are not recorded in the consolidated
financial statements.

In the consolidated accounts, untaxed reserves after eliminations have been divided into a deferred tax liability and a restricted reserve in
shareholders� equity. If recorded as income and taxed, the latter would be transferred to non-restricted reserves (cf. note �Shareholders� Equity,
Earnings per Share�).

Overall, the individual Group companies recorded the following untaxed reserves.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Profit equalization reserve 1,503 2,811 3,584
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Accumulated excess depreciation 14,217 18,870 18,466
Contingency reserve 160 135 94

Total 15,880 21,816 22,144

Excess depreciation, applicable to intangible assets, buildings and plant and machinery, changed as follows.
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December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Intangible Plant and Intangible Plant and Intangible Plant and
SEK in millions assets Buildings machinery assets Buildings machinery assets Buildings machinery

Opening balance 662 � 18,208 197 12 18,257 196 37 17,899
Operations
acquired/divested 227 131 1,533 � � -101 � � �
Provisions 219 � -164 465 � 1,466 14 � 1,881
Reversals -526 -76 -5,997 � -12 -1,414 -13 -25 -1,523

Closing balance 582 55 13,580 662 � 18,208 197 12 18,257

15. Intangible Fixed Assets
Intangible assets are recorded in the balance sheet at acquisition value less accumulated scheduled amortization, and write-downs. For assets
acquired during the year, amortization is calculated from the date of acquisition. The rates and other parameters applied are specified in note
�Depreciation, Amortization, and Write-Downs.�

Direct external and internal charges for the development of software for in-house administrative use are capitalized, provided that probable
future economic benefits exceed accrued expenses. Activities in projects at the feasibility study stage as well as maintenance and training
activities are expensed as incurred.

December 31,

2002 2001 2000

SEK in millions Goodwill Other Goodwill Other Goodwill Other

Acquisition value, opening balance 26,790 2,895 24,838 1,740 1,793 1,243
Purchases 30,929 5,119 448 1,316 22,893 509
Operations acquired � 3,496 � � 38 105
Sales/discards -5 -101 � -27 -64 -43
Operations divested � � -643 -142 -655 -8
Reclassifications 3,874 1,271 -1 -50 -11 -95
Exchange rate differences 2,470 78 2,148 58 844 29

Accumulated acquisition value, closing balance 64,058 12,758 26,790 2,895 24,838 1,740
Amortization, opening balance -2,075 -763 -902 -477 -604 -240
Purchases � � � 0 � �
Operations acquired � -1,337 � � -19 -65
Sales/discards 1 39 � 26 33 20
Operations divested � � 247 56 358 4
Reclassifications -1,256 -38 -1 -18 1 19
Amortization for the year -1,572 -535 -1,375 -338 -655 -212
Exchange rate differences -176 -7 -44 -12 -16 -3

Accumulated amortization, closing balance -5,078 -2,641 -2,075 -763 -902 -477
Write-downs, opening balance -29 -2 -1 � -46 �
Operations acquired � -390 � � � �
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Operations divested � � � � 46 �
Write-downs for the year -366 -203 -28 -2 -1 �
Exchange rate differences -1 0 0 � � �

Accumulated write-downs, closing balance -396 -595 -29 -2 -1 �

Total book value, closing balance 58,584 9,522 24,686 2,130 23,935 1,263

The acquisition value includes interest of SEK 22 million for 2002, SEK 22 million for 2001, and SEK � million for 2000.
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Capitalized software for in-house administrative use amounted to SEK 192 million in 2002, SEK 182 million in 2001, and SEK 129 million in
2000. In the three years, amortization was SEK 101 million, SEK 45 million, and SEK 96 million, respectively. The total book value was
distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Goodwill, Sonera 30,068 � �
Goodwill, NetCom 24,456 23,998 23,185
Goodwill, other 4,060 688 750
Administrative support systems 386 476 440
Trade names, licenses, contractual agreements, patents, etc. 8,666 1,594 739
Leases, etc. 85 11 84
Work in progress 385 49 �

Total book value 68,106 26,816 25,198

16. Tangible Fixed Assets
General

Tangible assets are recorded in the balance sheet at acquisition value less accumulated scheduled depreciation, and write-downs. In the case of
cable TV installations, a deduction is made for customer hookup fees paid in advance (fixed-asset contributions). Software that is a direct
prerequisite for end-user service production is capitalized as a tangible asset.

For assets acquired during the year, depreciation is calculated from the date of acquisition. The rates and other parameters applied are specified
in note �Depreciation, Amortization, and Write-Downs.� New installations under construction are valued at the expense already incurred,
including interest during the installation period. For buildings, interest paid on construction loans is capitalized. Otherwise capitalized interest is
calculated based on the Group�s estimated average cost of borrowing (5.75 percent for 2002 and 5.5 percent for 2001 and 2000).

Buildings and land

The Group�s real estate holdings include some 4,200 properties. The vast majority is used solely for technical facilities.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Acquisition value, opening balance 2,406 2,193 2,071
Purchases 237 269 552
Operations acquired 3,099 � 53
Sales/discards -23 -651 -400
Operations divested � -39 -15
Reclassifications 177 613 -76
Exchange rate differences -37 21 8

Accumulated acquisition value, closing balance 5,859 2,406 2,193
Depreciation, opening balance -763 -786 -706
Operations acquired -795 � -11
Sales/discards 3 141 14
Operations divested � 17 4
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Reclassifications -41 -4 15
Depreciation for the year -163 -130 -102
Exchange rate differences 3 -1 0

Accumulated depreciation, closing balance -1,756 -763 -786
Write-downs, opening balance -13 0 -3
Operations divested � � 3
Write-downs for the year -284 -13 0
Exchange rate differences -1 � �

Accumulated write-downs, closing balance -298 -13 0

Total book value, closing balance 3,805 1,630 1,407
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No interest is included in the acquisition value for the years 2002, 2001 or 2000.

The Group�s Swedish real estate holdings have been assessed for taxes at the following values.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Buildings 206 178 671
Land and land improvements 33 54 124

Tax-assessed value 239 232 795

At the 2002 property assessment for taxation purposes, a number of additional properties were assessed for the first time, while others had their
assessments increased. The number of real estate properties valued for tax purposes is limited as many of them are classified as non-taxable
communication buildings. In 2001, two large office locations and other assessed properties were sold off.

Plant and machinery

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Acquisition value, opening balance 93,985 82,605 65,534
Purchases 8,206 14,398 13,457
Operations acquired 36,136 1,507 2,796
Sales/discards -1,384 -1,910 -272
Operations divested � -1,190 -52
Reclassifications 1,275 -2,332 897
Exchange rate differences -153 907 245

Accumulated acquisition value, closing balance 138,065 93,985 82,605
Depreciation, opening balance -49,393 -43,929 -36,738
Operations acquired -20,954 -257 -824
Sales/discards 1,207 1,649 250
Operations divested � 544 8
Reclassifications -481 48 -470
Depreciation for the year -8,347 -7,249 -6,131
Exchange rate differences -7 -199 -24

Accumulated depreciation, closing balance -77,975 -49,393 -43,929
Write-downs, opening balance -3,364 -135 -100
Sales/discards 182 21 �
Write-downs for the year -7,807 -3,250 -35
Exchange rate differences 60 � �

Accumulated write-downs, closing balance -10,929 -3,364 -135
Fixed-asset contributions from cable TV customers, net -74 -72 -78
Advances 1 3 �

Total book value, closing balance 49,088 41,159 38,463
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The acquisition value includes interest of SEK 574 million, SEK 555 million and SEK 496 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. In 2002 and 2001, the book value of the business area Telia International Carrier was written down and, in 2002, assets in the
Danish fixed-line operations were written down (see also note �Restructuring Costs�).
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Equipment, tools, and installations

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Acquisition value, opening balance 7,634 6,682 6,846
Purchases 801 1,742 2,075
Operations acquired 4,936 43 797
Sales/discards -980 -656 -1,495
Operations divested -8 -1,391 -810
Reclassifications -2,349 1,071 -796
Exchange rate differences 58 143 65

Accumulated acquisition value, closing balance 10,092 7,634 6,682
Depreciation, opening balance -2,943 -2,744 -3,475
Operations acquired -3,385 -2 -380
Sales/discards 755 531 1,324
Operations divested 5 801 463
Reclassifications 549 -16 484
Depreciation for the year -1,287 -1,446 -1,119
Exchange rate differences -43 -67 -41

Accumulated depreciation, closing balance -6,349 -2,943 -2,744
Write-downs, opening balance -166 -1 -12
Sales/discards -1 � �
Operations divested � � 12
Write-downs for the year -297 -165 -1
Exchange rate differences 0 0 0

Accumulated write-downs, closing balance -464 -166 -1

Total book value, closing balance 3,279 4,525 3,937

No interest is included in the acquisition value for the years 2002, 2001 or 2000.

Distribution by class of asset

The total book value was distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Buildings and land
Expenditure on improvements to property not owned by the Group 21 164 126
Buildings 3,398 1,309 1,051
Land and land improvements 386 157 230

Total 3,805 1,630 1,407
Plant and machinery
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Fixed networks � switching systems and peripheral equipment 10,107 5,970 7,636
Fixed networks � transmission systems 11,907 12,200 6,005
Fixed networks � transmission media and other types of media 8,831 9,728 10,894
Mobile networks 13,456 7,288 6,138
Cable TV networks 1,307 1,329 1,078
Alarm systems 11 20 54
New installations under construction, advances 3,469 4,624 6,658

Total 49,088 41,159 38,463
Equipment, tools, and installations
Financial leasing, vehicles 297 308 694
Other equipment, tools and installations 2,982 4,217 3,243

Total 3,279 4,525 3,937

Total 56,172 47,314 43,807
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New installations under construction under Plant and machinery are chiefly installations for fixed and mobile networks. Assets owned by Group
companies and leased to other Group companies are included in Plant and machinery and Other equipment, tools and installations as appropriate.

17. Financial Fixed Assets
General

The principles for the consolidation of subsidiaries and associated companies are described in note �Consolidated Financial Statements.� Negative
equity participations in associated companies are recognized only for companies for which the Group has contractual obligations to contribute
additional capital. This is then recorded as Other provisions.

Other holdings of securities are valued at fair value if listed (application of IAS 39 effective 2001), otherwise at acquisition cost unless an
assessment of the market value indicates that a write-down is necessary (see note �Depreciation, Amortization, and Write-downs�).

Equity participations in associated companies

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Book value, opening balance 9,927 13,298 10,177
Acquisitions 8,373 1,845 2,337
Operations acquired 10,830 � �
Equity participation in former subsidiaries � 295 -8
Transactions with non-related parties -57 � �
New shares issues and shareholder contributions 776 414 5,375
Share in earnings 293 -903 -879
Amortization and write-down of goodwill etc. -145 -2,285 -549
Divestitures -1,133 -4,758 -12
Dividends received -348 -307 -166
Reclassifications -5,085 1,157 -3,611
Exchange rate differences -404 1,171 634

Book value, closing balance 23,027 9,927 13,298

The book value was distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Goodwill and similar assets on consolidation 9,157 3,352 5,773
Participation in equity 13,870 6,575 7,525

Total 23,027 9,927 13,298

Book value is broken down by business segments in the notes �Business Area Breakdown� and �Geographic Segment Breakdown.�
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The following shows the associated companies� aggregate balance sheets and income statements in summary.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Fixed assets 234,176 35,816 71,976
Current assets 272,434 17,374 27,532
Provisions and long-term liabilities 498,881 16,696 23,760
Current liabilities 8,948 4,886 34,557
Net sales 16,391 46,168 39,336
Gross income -10,169 17,450 9,723
Net income -1,219 1,032 -72

Other holdings of securities

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Book value, opening balance 426 635 527
Changes in accounting principles � -223 �
Book value, adjusted opening balance 426 412 527
Acquisitions 128 68 107
Operations acquired 769 � �
Divestitures -19 -18 �
Write-ups � 72 �
Write-downs -201 -29 -1
Reclassifications 49 -32 -22
Share of earnings in partnerships -3 -47 24
Exchange rate differences 15 � �

Book value, closing balance 1,164 426 635

Other long-term financial assets

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Book value, opening balance 10,431 8,402 7,319
Changes in accounting principles � 484 �
Book value, adjusted opening balance 10,431 8,886 7,319
Purchases 6,303 3,159 5,257
Operations acquired 11,938 � 324
Sales/discards -3,398 -3,733 -3,582
Operations divested � -586 �
Write-downs -847 -6 �
Reclassifications � 2,514 -1,022
Exchange rate differences -84 197 106
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Book value, closing balance 24,343 10,431 8,402

Changes in accounting principles in 2001 refer to the application of IAS 39 and gross recording of derivatives in the balance sheet (see also note
�Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management�).
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Distribution by class of asset

The total book value was distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Associated companies
Equity participations in associated companies 23,027 9,927 13,298
Interest-bearing receivables 1,127 1,154 4
Non-interest-bearing receivables 242 17 17

Total 24,396 11,098 13,319
Other holdings of securities
Shares and participations 1,050 426 634
Other securities 114 � 1

Total 1,164 426 635
Deferred tax benefit 15,931 1,490 3,392
Other long-term receivables
Interest-bearing
Financial leasing agreements 4,229 3,901 3,403
Service-financing agreements 462 438 434
Loans to employees 136 229 291
Interest rate swaps 506 27 �
Foreign currency interest rate swaps 514 1,167 �
Other 281 168 201
Non-interest-bearing
Operating lease agreements 676 1,495 277
Other 239 345 383

Total 7,043 7,770 4,989

Total 48,534 20,784 22,335

Deferred tax benefit is discussed in note �Income taxes� and leasing agreements in note �Leasing Agreements and Contractual Obligations.� The
valuation of financial fixed assets is discussed in note �Financial Instruments and Risk Management.� Shareholdings and participations in
associated companies as well as other holdings of securities are specified in note �Specification of Shareholdings and Participations.�
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18. Inventories etc.
Inventory and stock in trade are valued at acquisition value, based on FIFO (first in/first out), or fair value, whichever is lower. Write-downs for
obsolescence are made separately for each individual stockholding. Obsolescence is assessed with reference to the age and rate of turnover of the
articles. The entire difference between the opening and closing balances of the reserve for obsolescence is charged to operating income for the
year.

Construction contracts are valued at expense incurred, applying the lower of original cost and replacement value. Interest paid during installation
is not capitalized. Construction contracts refer chiefly to short-term (one to three months) installation works on the customer�s site and, for
previous years, directory production. Installation work is recognized as revenue when all or nearly all undertakings have been completed.
Revenues from the directory operations owned through September 2000 were recorded in the period in which the relevant directory or section of
a directory was published.

After deductions for obsolescence, the total book value is distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Raw materials and essential inputs 197 105 80
Products at work 7 � 6
Finished products 303 463 466
Expense incurred, construction contracts 37 61 212
Advances to suppliers 36 7 9

Total 580 636 773

Finished products include purchased supplies that are mainly intended for use in constructing TeliaSonera�s own installations and for repair and
maintenance. Supplies valued at SEK 26 million, SEK 9 million and SEK 89 million for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, were
stored at a central location. The remainder was held at local warehouses and worksites.

19. Receivables
Allowance for doubtful receivables on mass invoicing is calculated primarily using a standardized method based on actual losses from previous
years.

Net receivables from clients for construction and service contracts are recorded as accruals and deferrals. Construction contracts mainly refer to
larger installations of PBXs and customer premises networks. Revenue is recognized progressively, with the degree of completion based on the
phases completed.
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December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Accounts receivable
Invoiced receivables 12,376 12,616 11,476
Reserve for doubtful receivables -861 -1,078 -580

Total 11,515 11,538 10,896
Other current receivables
Interest-bearing
Receivable from associated companies 601 857 7,363
Financial leasing agreements 3,352 3,046 3,087
Foreign currency interest rate swaps 543 20 �
Receivable from others 350 268 384
Non-interest-bearing
Receivable from associated companies 399 225 223
Value-added tax 277 692 803
Other tax benefits 369 417 327
International settlements 377 32 66
Currency swaps, forward exchange contracts 157 355 �
Receivable from others 1,394 1,432 1,131

Total 7,819 7,344 13,384
Accrued revenues and prepaid expenses
Metered call charges 1,201 889 1,481
Interconnect and roaming charges 810 703 521
Other traffic charges 3,085 1,129 971
Construction and service contracts � 32 80
Prepaid rent and leasing fees 258 201 166
Other accrued or prepaid items 1,919 1,685 1,573

Total 7,273 4,639 4,792

Total 26,607 23,521 29,072

Written-down accounts receivable (bad debt expense) and recovered accounts receivable for the years 2002, 2001 and 2000 are recorded in note
�Operating Costs� and note �Other Operating Revenues and Expenses.� For information on leases, see note �Leasing Agreements and Contractual
Obligations.�

20. Short-term Investments
Short-term investments consist primarily of surplus funds invested in the overnight market and valued at the acquisition value plus accrued
interest income (amortized cost). Investments with maturities over three months are valued at fair value.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Investments with maturities over three months 1,192 197 93
Investments with maturities up to and including three months 2,634 7,405 85
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Total 3,826 7,602 178

See also note �Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management� and note �Cash Flow Information.�
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21. Shareholders� Equity, Earnings per Share
Restricted and non-restricted equity

According to Swedish law, shareholders� equity is divided into funds available for distribution (non-restricted) and not available for distribution
(restricted). In a group the shareholders can receive as distribution only the non-restricted funds in the parent company or the group, whichever
is lower.

Restricted equity is made up of the share capital and share premium reserve/legal reserve. The Group�s non-restricted equity in the consolidated
accounts includes only that part of a subsidiary�s non-restricted equity that can be assigned to the parent company without having to write down
the value of the shares in the subsidiary.

The Group balance sheet also shows the equity component of untaxed reserves as restricted equity. Earnings in associated companies that have
not been distributed are recorded in the Group�s equity as an equity reserve in restricted reserves. The equity effect of recording financial
instruments at fair value (application of IAS 39 effective 2001) is attributed to a fair value reserve in restricted reserves. Likewise, the difference
in equity effect between the Group�s principles for accounting for pensions and relevant Swedish standards is recorded in restricted reserves.

Share capital

According to the by-laws of TeliaSonera AB the authorized share capital shall amount to no less than SEK 8,000,000,000 and no more than SEK
32,000,000,000. All issued shares have been paid in full and carry equal rights to vote and participate in the assets of the company. No shares are
held by the company itself or by its subsidiaries.

During the last three years, the share capital changed as follows.

Number of Par value, Share capital,
shares sek/share SEK

Share capital, December 31, 1999 8,800,000 1,000.00 8,800,000,000
Bonus issue, May 20, 2000 � 1,036.80 323,840,000
Split 324:1, May 20, 2000 2,842,400,000 3.20 �
New share issue, June 16, 2000 150,000,000 3.20 480,000,000

Share capital, December 31, 2000 3,001,200,000 3.20 9,603,840,000
Share capital, December 31, 2001 3,001,200,000 3.20 9,603,840,000

New share issue, December 3, 2002 1,604,556,725 3.20 5,134,581,520
Share capital, December 31, 2002 4,605,756,725 3.20 14,738,421,520

On February 10, 2003, in connection with the mandatory redemption offer to holders of outstanding Sonera shares, the Board of Directors
decided, in accordance with the authorization by the General Meeting of shareholders, to increase the share capital by SEK 222,321,100.80,
through the issuance of 69,475,344 new shares. Following the new issue, the share capital amounts to SEK 14,960,742,620.80 and the total
number of shares outstanding amounts to 4,675,232,069. The new shares issued are entitled to dividend for 2002.

Dividend payments are proposed by the Board of Directors in accordance with the regulations of the Swedish Companies Act and decided by the
General Meeting of shareholders. The proposed but not yet decided dividend for 2002 totals SEK 1,870 million (SEK 0.40 per share). This
amount has not been recorded as a liability.
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Exchange rate differences

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Translation of foreign operations 1,686 4,203 2,122
Forward contracts used as equity hedge 11 -671 -425
Operations divested 33 85 �
Tax effect arising from the translation of foreign associated companies � -20 5
Other tax effect -3 188 119

Total 1,727 3,785 1,821

The cumulative exchange rate differences in restricted equity were distributed as follows.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Equity profit reserve 177 397 562
Other restricted reserves 6,241 4,329 878

Total 6,418 4,726 1,440

Fair value reserve

December 31,

2002 2001 2000

SEK in millions Securities Derivatives Securities Derivatives Securities Derivatives

Book value, opening balance -19 -68 � � � �
Changes in accounting principles � � -224 -253 � �
Tax effect � � 62 71 � �
Book value, adjusted opening balance -19 -68 -162 -182 � �
Provisions -3 � -11 -33 � �
Reversals 16 17 210 191 � �
Tax effect -5 -5 -56 -44 � �

Book value, closing balance -11 -56 -19 -68 � �

No part of the reversed amount referred to reversals that necessitate adjusting the acquisition value. See also the introduction to note �Financial
Instruments and Financial Risk Management.�

Earnings per share
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January-December

2002 2001 2000

Net income (SEK million) -8,067 1,869 10,278
Average number of shares (thousands) 3,124,289 3,001,200 2,932,757
- after dilution (thousands) 3,125,314 3,001,200 2,932,757
Loss/Earnings per share (SEK)
- Basic -2.58 0.62 3.50
- Diluted -2.58 0.62 3.50
Dividend per share (SEK) (for 2002 as proposed by the Board) 0.40 0.20 0.50
Dividend (SEK million) (for 2002 as proposed by the Board) 1,870 600 1,501

In 2002 and 2001, General Meetings of shareholders decided to implement a number of stock option schemes (see section �Stock-Based
Compensation� in note �Human Resources�). With the terms and conditions that apply to the employee stock option schemes, they had a very
limited dilution effect upon computation of earnings per share as of December 31, 2002, and no dilution effect as of December 31, 2001.
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22. Provisions for Pensions and Employment Contracts
Almost all employees in Sweden, Finland and Norway are covered by defined benefit pension plans, which means that the individual is
guaranteed a pension equal to a certain percentage of his or her salary. The pension plans mainly include old-age pension, disability pension and
family pension. The pension obligations are secured mostly by pension funds, but also by provisions in the balance sheet and by insurance
premiums. The Group�s employees outside Sweden, Finland and Norway are usually covered by defined contribution pension plans.
Contributions to the latter are normally set at a certain percentage of the employee�s salary.

All pension obligations that TeliaSonera AB assumed when it was converted into a limited liability company on July 1, 1993 and the remaining
pension obligations of the parent company as well as obligations of Swedish subsidiaries in which the parent company owns more than
90 percent of the share capital are secured by Telia Pension Fund.

Pension obligations are calculated annually, on the balance sheet date, based on actuarial principles.

The assets of the pension funds constitute plan assets for pensions and are valued at market value. When the net cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gain or loss on pension obligations and plan assets goes outside a �corridor� equal to 10 percent of the greater of either pension
obligations or the market value of plan assets, the surplus amount is amortized over the remaining employment period.

The following provisions for pension obligations were made in the balance sheet.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Present value of pension obligations 16,398 14,683 15,801
Fair value of plan assets -13,987 -13,464 -15,334

Pension obligations less plan assets 2,411 1,219 467
Unrecognized past service cost 36 � �
Unrecognized actuarial gains (+)/losses(-) -2,423 899 2,775
Unrecognized transition gains 200 240 283

Provisions for pension obligations 224 2,358 3,525

Total pension expenses were distributed as follows.

January-December

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Current service cost 220 253 484
Interest on pension provisions 784 883 914
Expected return on assets -1,022 -1,122 -1,183
Net transition gain (-) recognized in year -40 -40 -40
Depreciation of unrecognized actuarial gains (-)/losses (+) � -80 -145

Pension expenses, defined benefit pension plans -58 -106 30
Settlement of pension obligations -2 � �
Early retirement pensions (excl. premiums and pension-related social charges) 28 43 416
Pension expenses, defined benefit and contribution pension plans 349 409 237
Pension-related social charges, other pension expenses 654 267 218
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Total pension expenses 971 613 901
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The actuarial calculation of pension obligations and pension expenses is based on the following principal assumptions.

December 31,

% 2002 2001 2000

Weighted average discount rate 5.5 5.5 6.0
Expected rate of compensation increase 3.5 3.0 3.0
Expected return on plan assets 6.5 7.5 7.5
Annual adjustments to pensions 2.0 2.0 2.0
Income base amount (only Sweden) 2.5 � �
Employee turnover 3.8 5.0 5.0
Average expected remaining working life, years 14.7 15.0 15.0

Changes in projected benefit obligation, plan assets, and the net liability in the balance sheet and actuarial net gains or losses for the defined
benefit pension plans were as follows. Repayment from pension trust refers to cash disbursed for pension expenses incurred by the employer.

December 31,

SEK in millions 2002 2001 2000

Present value of pension obligations
Opening balance 14,683 15,801 15,784
Current service cost 220 253 484
Interest expenses 784 883 914
Benefits paid -1,071 -1,141 -1,118
Early retirement pensions 28 43 416
Operations acquired/divested 1,448 -1,394
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